
 
 

                    
    ​    ​      ​  ​    ​   ​      ​    ​      

 ​     ​     ​      
 

 
     

   
     

    
    

 
  

 
                   

                 
       

 
                    

 
 

 
​                

  ​    
   ​    

 
   

                  
                       
                      
                

              
   

 
  
 

         
 

              
   

    
 

    
 

         
 
 
 

 

SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ Board of EdXcaWion ⚈ 400 Encinal SWreeW, SanWa CrX], CA 95060 ⚈ Tel (831) 466-5900 ⚈ ZZZ.sanWacrX]coe.org 

Ms. Jane Ro\er Barr ⚈ Ms. Rose Filicetti ⚈ Ms. Sandra Nichols ⚈ Ms. Sue Roth ⚈ Mr. Dana Sales 
Mr. Abel Sanche] ⚈ Mr. Bruce Van Allen 

Santa Cru] Count\ Board of Education 
Regular Board Meeting 

Thursda\ September 17, 2020 
Open Session 4:00 P.M. 

Held b\ Videoconference Onl\ 

NOTICE: 

In order Wo meeW Whe mosW recenW gXidelines from Whe SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ HealWh SerYices Agenc\ in regard Wo 
COVID-19, Whis meeWing Zill be limited to virtual participation onl\ and made aYailable online Yia a liYe 
Yideo-conference aW Whe folloZing Zeb address: 

This meeWing Zill be hosWed in a Zebinar formaW. No regisWraWion is reqXired. Use Whe folloZing link Wo join Whe 
meeWing: 

hWWps://sanWacrX]coe-org.]oom.Xs/j/88033207425 

Alternativel\, join b\ phone Xsing Whe folloZing phone nXmber aW Whe Wime of Whe meeWing: 
Phone NXmber: +1 (669) 900-6833 

MeeWing ID: 880 3320 7425# 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 

An\ person Zishing Wo make a pXblic commenW Zill haYe Whe opporWXniW\ Wo do so Yia Yideoconference dXring 
Whe YirWXal meeWing for Xp Wo Whree minXWes each for an\ iWem noW lisWed on Whe agenda, or for Xp Wo WZo minXWes 
for an\ iWem lisWed on Whe agenda. To sXbmiW a commenW aboXW Wo be read aloXd on \oXr behalf eiWher lisWed or 
noW lisWed on Whe meeWing agenda, please send a commenW no longer Whan 300 Zords Wo 
sleibenson@sanWacrX]coe.org no laWer Whan 2pm on SepWember 17Wh. Each indiYidXal ma\ onl\ make one 
commenW per Wopic. 

REVISED AGENDA 

1. CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL AND ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 

SXe RoWh (PresidenW), Jane Ro\er Barr, Rose FiliceWWi, Sandra Nichols, Dana Sales, Abel Sanche], 
BrXce Van Allen 
Faris Sabbah, SecreWar\ 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

SXperinWendenW Sabbah (SecreWar\) Zill lead Whe Pledge of Allegiance. 

1

https://santacruzcoe-org.zoom.us/j/88033207425
mailto:sleibenson@santacruzcoe.org
https://ZZZ.sanWacrX]coe.org


    
  

   
 

   
 

                
  

 
  

 
                   

                
                 

   ​    ​           
                  

                  
                 

 ​ ​         
 

  
 

               
                   

             
     

 
          
           
   

  
 

       
 

                  
       

 
 

 
         

 
    

 
       

 
               
               

                 
                

 
               

               
               

 
        

 

 

SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ Board of EdXcaWion 

Agenda, RegXlar MeeWing 

SepW. 17, 2020 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Agenda deleWions and/or changes of seqXence Zill be approYed or Whe agenda Zill be approYed as 
sXbmiWWed. 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT 

This is an opporWXniW\ for Whe pXblic Wo address Whe Board regarding iWems noW on Whe agenda. The 
Board PresidenW Zill recogni]e an\ member of Whe aXdience noW preYioXsl\ placed on Whe agenda Zho 
Zishes Wo speak on a maWWer direcWl\ relaWed Wo school bXsiness. Each speaker, on an\ specific Wopic, 
ma\ speak Xp three (3) minutes Xnless oWherZise limiWed or e[Wended b\ Whe PresidenW. The 
PresidenW ma\ alloW Wime Wo Whose Zishing Wo speak bXW no acWion Zill be Waken on maWWers presenWed 
(EDC � 35145.5). If appropriaWe, Whe PresidenW, or an\ Member of Whe Board, ma\ direcW WhaW a maWWer 
be referred Wo Whe SXperinWendenW¶s Office for placemenW on a fXWXre agenda. Please refer Wo iWem, 
PleaVe NoWe, on Whe lasW iWem of Whis agenda. 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 

All iWems appearing on Whe consenW agenda are recommended acWions Zhich are considered Wo be 
roXWine in naWXre and Zill be acWed Xpon as one moWion. Specific iWems ma\ be remoYed for separaWe 
consideraWion. IWem(s) remoYed Zill be considered immediaWel\ folloZing Whe consenW agenda moWion 
as Deferred ConsenW IWems. 

5.0.1 MinXWes of Whe RegXlar Board MeeWing of AXgXsW 20, 2020 
5.0.2 MinXWes of Whe Special Board MeeWing of SepWember 10, 2020 
5.0.3 RoXWine BXdgeW ReYisions 
5.0.4 DonaWions 

5.1 DEFERRED CONSENT ITEMS (if required) 

This iWem is placed on Whe agenda Wo address an\ iWems WhaW mighW be pXlled from Agenda IWem 
5.0 for fXrWher discXssion/consideraWion if so deWermined. 

6. CORRESPONDENCE 

Official correspondence receiYed b\ Whe Board is inclXded herein. 

7. REPORTS, DISCUSSIONS, AND PRESENTATIONS 

7.1 COVID-19, CZU Fire, and School Reopening Update 

SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion has been Zorking in collaboraWion ZiWh Whe SanWa CrX] 
CoXnW\ HealWh SerYices agenc\ and school disWricWs Wo prepare for and respond Wo Whe oXWbreak 
of COVID-19 in oXr commXniW\. The Board Zill receiYe an XpdaWe on Whe Za\s in Zhich Whe 
SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion has been Zorking Wo respond Wo Whe COVID-19 crisis. 

The presenWaWion Zill also inclXde an XpdaWe on Whe CZU LighWning comple[ fire and e[plain 
Whe Za\s in Zhich Whe SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion is sXpporWing sWXdenWs, families, 
and school sWaff coXnW\Zide Zho haYe been impacWed b\ Whe CZU LighWning Comple[ Fire. 

PresenWer: Dr. Faris Sabbah, CoXnW\ SXperinWendenW of Schools 

2



    
  

   
 

     
 

             
         

 
        

 
       

 
       

 
                

             
               

 
        

 
  

     
 

       
 

           
             

              
               

         
 

        
 

   
      

 
       

 
              
             

              
    

 
       

 
  

    
     

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ Board of EdXcaWion 

Agenda, RegXlar MeeWing 

SepW. 17, 2020 

7.2 2019-2020 Unaudited Closing Financial Statement 

The Board is reqXesWed Wo reYieZ informaWion from Whe annXal closing financial reporWing 
docXmenW filed ZiWh Whe California DeparWmenW of EdXcaWion 

PresenWer: Liann Re\es, AssociaWe SXperinWendenW, EdXcaWional SerYices 

8. PUBLIC HEARINGS, NEW BUSINESS, AND ACTION ITEMS 

8.1 Personnel Commission Vacanc\: Appointment of Nominee 

The Board Zill be informed of nominees for Whe appoinWmenW as Whe Board¶s appoinWee Wo Whe 
SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion Personnel Commission and Zill pXblicl\ annoXnce Whe 
inWended appoinWee Wo fill a Yacanc\ WhaW Zill e[isW December 1, 2020. (E.C. 45246(b)). 

PresenWer: Tro\ Cope, Senior DirecWor, HXman ResoXrces 

MoWion & 
VoWe: SXe RoWh (PresidenW) 

8.2 Resolution #20-25 In Recognition of Suicide Prevention 

SepWember is naWionall\ recogni]ed as SXicide PreYenWion monWh. Michael Pa\nWer, Senior 
DirecWor of SWXdenW SXpporW SerYices, Zill giYe a presenWaWion highlighWing SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ 
Office of EdXcaWion and commXniW\ iniWiaWiYes Wo sXpporW Whe menWal and emoWional healWh of 
sWXdenWs in SanWa CrX] CoXnW\. FolloZing Whe presenWaWion, Whe Board Zill be asked Wo adopW 
ResolXWion #20-25 in SXpporW of NaWional SXicide PreYenWion MonWh. 

PresenWer: Michael Pa\nWer, Senior DirecWor, SanWa CrX] COE 

MoWion & 
Roll Call VoWe: SXe RoWh (PresidenW) 

8.3 Public Hearing: Sufficienc\ of Instructional Materials 

PXrsXanW Wo EdXcaWion Code SecWion 60119(1)(A), Whe Board shall hold a pXblic hearing WhaW 
proYides an opporWXniW\ for pXblic inpXW regarding Whe SXfficienc\ of InsWrXcWional MaWerials Wo 
be Xsed b\ Whe SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion AlWernaWiYe SWXdenW Programs dXring 
Whe 2020-2021 school \ear. 

PresenWer: John Rice, Senior DirecWor, AlWernaWiYe EdXcaWion 

Open, CondXcW 
& Close PXblic 
Hearing: SXe RoWh (PresidenW) 

3



    
  

   
 

        
 

               
                  

            
             

            
 

        
 

   
       

 
            

 
               

           
             

        
           

           
             
           

 
        

 
   

     
 

            
 

              
           

             
       

            
          

             
             

 
        

 
     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ Board of EdXcaWion 

Agenda, RegXlar MeeWing 

SepW. 17, 2020 

8.4 Adopt Resolution #20-26: Sufficienc\ of Instructional Materials 

In order Wo be eligible Wo receiYe insWrXcWional maWerials fXnding, Whe goYerning board is reqXired 
Wo hold a pXblic hearing and adopW a resolXWion sWaWing ZheWher or noW each pXpil in Whe SanWa 
CrX] CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion programs has sXfficienW sWandards aligned We[Wbooks and/or 
insWrXcWional maWerials in specified sXbjecWs pXrsXanW Wo EdXcaWion Code SecWion 60605 eW. seq. 
The Board Zill be asked Wo AdopW ResolXWion #20-26 for Whis pXrpose. 

PresenWer: John Rice, Senior DirecWor, AlWernaWiYe EdXcaWion 

MoWion & 
Roll Call VoWe: SXe RoWh (PresidenW) 

8.5 Approve the Santa Cru] Count\ Office of Education Learning Continuit\ Plan 

The Board Zill be asked Wo approYe Whe SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion¶s Learning 
ConWinXiW\ Plan. The Learning ConWinXiW\ Plan WemplaWe memoriali]es Whe planning process 
alread\ XnderZa\ for Whe 2020±21 school \ear and inclXdes descripWions of Whe folloZing: 
condXcWing meaningfXl sWakeholder engagemenW; mainWaining Wransparenc\; addressing Whe 
needs of XndXplicaWed pXpils, sWXdenWs ZiWh XniqXe needs, and sWXdenWs e[periencing 
homelessness; proYiding access Wo necessar\ deYices and connecWiYiW\ for disWance learning; 
proYiding resoXrces and sXpporWs Wo address sWXdenW and sWaff menWal healWh and social 
emoWional Zell-being; and conWinXing Wo proYide school meals for sWXdenWs. 

PresenWer: Jennifer I]anW-Gon]ales, ProjecW DirecWor, AlWernaWiYe EdXcaWion 

MoWion & 
VoWe: SXe RoWh (PresidenW) 

8.6 Approve the Santa Cru] Count\ Career Advancement Charter Learning Continuit\ Plan 

The Board Zill be asked Wo approYe Whe SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ Career AdYancemenW CharWer 
Learning ConWinXiW\ Plan. The Learning ConWinXiW\ Plan WemplaWe memoriali]es Whe planning 
process alread\ XnderZa\ for Whe 2020±21 school \ear and inclXdes descripWions of Whe 
folloZing: condXcWing meaningfXl sWakeholder engagemenW; mainWaining Wransparenc\; 
addressing Whe needs of XndXplicaWed pXpils, sWXdenWs ZiWh XniqXe needs, and sWXdenWs 
e[periencing homelessness; proYiding access Wo necessar\ deYices and connecWiYiW\ for 
disWance learning; proYiding resoXrces and sXpporWs Wo address sWXdenW and sWaff menWal healWh 
and social emoWional Zell-being; and conWinXing Wo proYide school meals for sWXdenWs. 

PresenWer: Denise Sanson, Senior DirecWor, SWXdenW Programs 

MoWion: SXe RoWh (PresidenW) 

4



    
  

   
 

          
 

             
               

              
             

        
 

          
 

   
       

 
      

 
               

              
               

          
 

      
      
      
       
     

 
       

 
    

 
  

 
               
    

 
     

 
                 
        

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ Board of EdXcaWion 

Agenda, RegXlar MeeWing 

SepW. 17, 2020 

8.7 Resolution #20-27 In Recognition of LGBTQ+ Histor\ Month 

The Board Zill consider adopWing a resolXWion recogni]ing Whe imporWanW conWribXWions of local, 
SWaWe, and NaWional LGBTQ+ people Wo Whe hisWor\ of Whe UniWed SWaWes b\ promoWing jXsWice, 
enhancing healWh and Zell-being, and bXilding a sense of commXniW\ for LGBTQ+ people and 
designaWes OcWober as a Wime Wo celebraWe Wheir accomplishmenWs and encoXrages Weachers Wo 
Weach lessons aboXW LGBTQ+ hisWor\ in Wheir classrooms. 

PresenWer: BrXce Van Allen, CommXniW\ OXWreach & LegislaWiYe CommiWWee 

MoWion & 
Roll Call VoWe: SXe RoWh (PresidenW) 

8.8 First Reading: Board Policies (BP) 

ModificaWion and neZ policies ma\ be adopWed b\ Whe CoXnW\ Board of EdXcaWion folloZing a 
firsW and second reading b\ Whe Board. The Board ma\ accepW Whe folloZing proposed 
polic\(ies) as sXbmiWWed and ZaiYe a second reading and moYe Wo Wake acWion, order changes, 
or order changes and bring back for a final reading: 

BP 3290 GifWs, GranWs, and BeqXesWs 
BP 3550 Food SerYice/Child NXWriWion Program 
BP 3551 Food SerYice OperaWions/CafeWeria FXnd 
BP 3553 Free and RedXced Price Meals 
BP 3555 NXWriWion Program Compliance 

PresenWer: TrXsWee FiliceWWi, Board Polic\ CommiWWee 

MoWion: SXe RoWh (PresidenW) 

9. SUPERINTENDENT¶S REPORT 

CoXnW\ SXperinWendenW of Schools, Dr. Faris M. Sabbah, Zill proYide an XpdaWe on acWiYiWies and 
maWWers of inWeresW. 

10. TRUSTEE REPORTS (3 minutes each) 

TrXsWees Zill reporW on maWWers, eYenWs, and acWiYiWies as relaWed Wo Board goals of: AdYocaWing for 
sWXdenWs, mainWaining commXniW\ relaWions, and promoWing sWXdenW achieYemenW. 

5



    
  

   
 

         
 

       
 

           
              

       
 

    
 

        
 

      
    
    

  
 

      
    

    
  

 
      

    
    

  
 

  
 

        
 
 

  
  

  
  

                 
                     

                     
                     

                 
                

                
                 

  
  

  
                  

                   
                 

                
 

 

SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ Board of EdXcaWion 

Agenda, RegXlar MeeWing 

SepW. 17, 2020 

11. AD HOC COMMITTEE REPORTS AND CSBA/CCBE REPORTS (if an\) 

11.1 California Count\ Boards of Education (CCBE) Report 

TrXsWee FiliceWWi, California School Boards AssociaWion Region 9 DelegaWe, Zill proYide 
Whe Board ZiWh an XpdaWe ZiWh informaWion and neZ XpdaWes perWaining Wo CSBA and 
California CoXnW\ Boards of EdXcaWion (CCBE). 

PresenWer: TrXsWee Rose FiliceWWi 

12. SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS AND COMING EVENTS 

SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ Board of EdXcaWion 
RegXlar MeeWing (VirWXal) 
OcWober 15, 2020 
4:00 p.m. 

SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ Board of EdXcaWion 
RegXlar MeeWing (VirWXal) 
NoYember 19, 2020 
4:00 p.m. 

SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ Board of EdXcaWion 
RegXlar MeeWing (VirWXal) 
December 10, 2020 
4:00 p.m. 

13. ADJOURNMENT 

The Board PresidenW Zill adjoXrn Whe meeWing. 

PLEA6E NO7E: 

Public Participation: 

All persons are encoXraged Wo aWWend and, Zhen appropriaWe, Wo parWicipaWe in meeWings of Whe SanWa CrX] 
CoXnW\ Board of EdXcaWion. If \oX Zish Wo speak Wo an iWem on Whe agenda, please be presenW aW Whe beginning 
of Whe meeWing as an\ iWem, Xpon moWion, ma\ be moYed Wo Whe beginning of Whe agenda. Persons Zishing Wo 
address Whe Board are asked Wo sWaWe Wheir name for Whe record. The presidenW of Whe Board Zill esWablish a 
Wime limiW of Whree (3) minXWes, Xnless oWherZise sWaWed b\ Whe presidenW, for commenWs from Whe pXblic. 
ConsideraWion of all maWWers is condXcWed in open session e[cepW Whose relaWing Wo liWigaWion, personnel and 
emplo\ee negoWiaWions, Zhich, b\ laZ, ma\ be considered in closed session. E[pXlsion appeal hearings are 
heard in closed session Xnless a reqXesW for hearing in open session is made b\ Whe appellanW. 

Backup Documentation: 

An\ ZriWings or docXmenWs WhaW are pXblic records and are proYided Wo a majoriW\ of Whe goYerning board 
regarding an open session iWem on Whis agenda Zill be made aYailable for pXblic inspecWion in Whe CoXnW\ Office 
of EdXcaWion, locaWed 400 Encinal SWreeW, SanWa CrX], CA 95060, dXring normal bXsiness hoXrs, or read aloXd 
and shoZn Yia screencasW for Xp Wo Whree minXWes each in a YirWXal meeWing seWWing. 

6



    
  

   
 

  
  

               
                  
                  

       
 

  
  

                 
                

                    
                

               
               

  

 

SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ Board of EdXcaWion 

Agenda, RegXlar MeeWing 

SepW. 17, 2020 

Translation Requests: 

Spanish langXage WranslaWion is aYailable on an as-needed basis. Please make adYance arrangemenWs ZiWh 
Sage Leibenson b\ Welephone aW (831) 466-5900 TradXcciones del inglps al espaxol \ del espaxol al inglps 
esWin disponibles en las sesiones de la mesa direcWiYa. Por faYor haga arreglos por anWicipado con Sage 
Leibenson por Welpfono al nXmero (831) 466-5900. 

ADA Compliance: 

In compliance ZiWh GoYernmenW Code secWion 54954.2 (a), The SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion Zill, on 
reqXesW, make Whis agenda aYailable in appropriaWe alWernaWiYe formaWs Wo persons ZiWh a disabiliW\, as reqXired 
b\ SecWion 202 of Whe Americans ZiWh DisabiliWies AcW of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec 12132), and Whe federal rXles and 
regXlaWions adopWed in implemenWaWion Whereof. IndiYidXals Zho need Whis agenda in an alWernaWiYe formaW or 
Zho need a disabiliW\-relaWed modificaWion or accommodaWion in order Wo parWicipaWe in Whe meeWing shoXld 
conWacW Sage Leibenson, AdminisWraWiYe Aide Wo Whe SXperinWendenW, 400 Encinal SW., SanWa CrX], CA 95060, 
(831) 466-5900. 

7



AbHO SaQcKH] 

 

 
 

                    
    ​    ​      ​  ​    ​   ​      ​    ​      

 ​     ​     ​      
 

  
 

​                
              

                
​             

               
             

               
                

               
                

  
 

 
 

  
          

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
​  

 
 ​  

  ​  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ Board of EdXcaWion ⚈ 400 Encinal SWreeW, SanWa CrX], CA 95060 ⚈ Tel (831) 466-5900 ⚈ ZZZ.sanWacrX]coe.org 

MV. JaQH RR\HU BaUU ⚈ MV. RRVH FLOLcHWWL ⚈ MV. SaQdUa NLcKROV ⚈ MV. SXH RRWK ⚈ MU. DaQa SaOHV 
MU. ⚈ MU. BUXcH VaQ AOOHQ 

NO7ICE OF P8BLIC HEARING 

NO7ICE LV KHUHE\ JLYHQ WKDW RQ 7KXUVGD\ 6HSWHPEHU 17, 2020 DW 4:00 S.P., RU DV VRRQ 
WKHUHDIWHU DV WKH PDWWHU FDQ EH KHDUG, YLD YLGHRFRQIHUHQFH ONL< DW WKH IROORZLQJ ZHE 
DGGUHVV, WKH SDQWD CUX] CRXQW\ BRDUG RI EGXFDWLRQ ZLOO KROG D SXEOLF PHHWLQJ GXULQJ ZKLFK WKH\ 
ZLOO GLVFXVV WKH VXIILFLHQF\ RI LQVWUXFWLRQDO PDWHULDOV LQ FRPSOLDQFH ZLWK EGXFDWLRQ CRGH SHFWLRQ 
60119(1)(A) ³7KH JRYHUQLQJ ERDUG VKDOO KROG D SXEOLF KHDULQJ RU KHDULQJV DW ZKLFK WKH JRYHUQLQJ 
ERDUG VKDOO HQFRXUDJH SDUWLFLSDWLRQ E\ SDUHQWV, WHDFKHUV, PHPEHUV RI WKH FRPPXQLW\ LQWHUHVWHG LQ 
WKH DIIDLUV RI WKH VFKRRO GLVWULFW (COE VWXGHQW SURJUDPV), DQG EDUJDLQLQJ XQLW OHDGHUV, DQG VKDOO 
PDNH D GHWHUPLQDWLRQ, WKURXJK D UHVROXWLRQ, DV WR ZKHWKHU HDFK SXSLO LQ HDFK VFKRRO GLVWULFW (COE 
VWXGHQW SURJUDPV) KDV VXIILFLHQW WH[WERRNV RU LQVWUXFWLRQDO PDWHULDOV, RU ERWK, WKDW DUH DOLJQHG WR WKH 
FRQWHQW VWDQGDUGV DGRSWHG SXUVXDQW WR VHFWLRQ 60605 HW. VHT. LQ HDFK RI WKH IROORZLQJ VXEMHFWV, DV 
DSSURSULDWH, WKDW DUH FRQVLVWHQW DQG F\FOHV RI WKH FXUULFXOXP IUDPHZRUN DGRSWHG E\ WKH VWDWH ERDUG: 

L: MDWKHPDWLFV 
LL: SFLHQFH 
LLL: HLVWRU\-SRFLDO SFLHQFH 
LY: EQJOLVK/LDQJXDJH AUWV, LQFOXGLQJ WKH EQJOLVK ODQJXDJH GHYHORSPHQW FRPSRQHQW RI DQ 
DGRSWHG SURJUDP 

7KLV PHHWLQJ ZLOO EH KRVWHG LQ D ZHELQDU IRUPDW. NR UHJLVWUDWLRQ ZLOO EH UHTXLUHG. 8VH WKH 
IROORZLQJ OLQN WR MRLQ WKH PHHWLQJ: 

KWWSV://VDQWDFUX]FRH-RUJ.]RRP.XV/M/88033207425 

AOWHUQDWLYHO\, MRLQ E\ SKRQH XVLQJ WKH IROORZLQJ SKRQH QXPEHU DW WKH WLPH RI WKH PHHWLQJ: 

PKRQH NXPEHU: +1 (669) 900-6833 
MHHWLQJ ID: 880 3320 7425# 

8

https://santacruzcoe-org.zoom.us/j/88033207425
https://ZZZ.sanWacrX]coe.org


 
 

 
 

 
​ ​  

​ ​  
 

​   
 

 
 

​ ​  

 

AQ\ SHUVRQ ZLVKLQJ WR PDNH D SXEOLF FRPPHQW ZLOO KDYH WKH RSSRUWXQLW\ WR GR VR YLD 
YLGHRFRQIHUHQFH GXULQJ WKH YLUWXDO PHHWLQJ IRU XS WR WKUHH PLQXWHV HDFK IRU DQ\ LWHP QRW OLVWHG RQ 
WKH DJHQGD, RU IRU XS WR WZR PLQXWHV IRU DQ\ LWHP OLVWHG RQ WKH DJHQGD. 7R VXEPLW D FRPPHQW DERXW 
WR EH UHDG DORXG RQ \RXU EHKDOI HLWKHU OLVWHG RU QRW OLVWHG RQ WKH PHHWLQJ DJHQGD, SOHDVH VHQG D 
FRPPHQW QR ORQJHU WKDQ 300 ZRUGV WR VOHLEHQVRQ@VDQWDFUX]FRH.RUJ QR ODWHU WKDQ 2SP RQ 
SHSWHPEHU 17WK. EDFK LQGLYLGXDO PD\ RQO\ PDNH RQH FRPPHQW SHU WRSLF. 7KH DJHQGD IRU WKH 
PHHWLQJ ZLOO EH PDGH DYDLODEOH QR ODWHU WKDQ WKH SXQGD\ SULRU WR WKH PHHWLQJ DW 
KWWSV://VDQWDFUX]FRH.RUJ/ERDUG/ERDUG-DJHQGD-DQG-PLQXWHV/. 

7R UHTXHVW IXUWKHU LQIRUPDWLRQ DERXW WKHVH SXEOLF KHDULQJV, SOHDVH FRQWDFW SDJH LHLEHQVRQ, 
AGPLQLVWUDWLYH AVVLVWDQW WR WKH CRXQW\ SXSHULQWHQGHQW RI SFKRROV, DW WKH SDQWD CUX] CRXQW\ OIILFH 
RI EGXFDWLRQ DW (831) 466-5900 RU VOHLEHQVRQ@VDQWDFUX]FRH.RUJ. 

9

mailto:sleibenson@santacruzcoe.org
https://santacruzcoe.org/board/board-agenda-and-minutes/
mailto:sleibenson@santacruzcoe.org


SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

AGENDA ITEM 

 
      

  
  

 
 

             

 
 
 

​      
 

​    
 

​            
 

 
 

 
 

 
        

 
 

 
     

 
  

 
  

  ​     ​   

BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: SHSW. 17, 2020 AcWLRQ IQIRUPaWLRQ X 

TO: SanWa CUX] CoXnW\ BoaUd of EdXcaWion 

FROM: AdminiVWUaWion DepaUWmenW 

SUBJECT: RegXlaU AXgXVW 20Wh MinXWeV of Whe SanWa CUX] CoXnW\ BoaUd of 
EdXcaWion 

BACKGROUND 

RegXlaU meeWing minXWeV of Whe AXgXVW 20, 2020 meeWing. 

SUPERINTENDENT¶S RECOMMENDATION: 

AppUoYe AXgXVW 20Wh minXWeV. 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: 

None. 

BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: SepW. 17, 2020 AJHQGa IWHP: #5.0.1 
10



Abel Sanche] 

 
 

                    
    ​    ​      ​  ​    ​   ​      ​    ​      

 ​     ​     ​      
 

     
   
     

    
       

 
 

  
 

         
 

    
 

   
    

  
  

   
  

 
    

 
    
   
  

 
 

 
    

 
             

 
    

 
        

 
   

 
                  

    
 
           

 
        
   
   

 

Santa CrX] CoXnt\ Board of EdXcation ⚈ 400 Encinal Street, Santa CrX], CA 95060 ⚈ Tel (831) 466-5900 ⚈ santacrX]coe.org 

Ms. Jane Ro\er Barr ⚈ Ms. Rose Filicetti ⚈ Ms. Sandra Nichols ⚈ Ms. Sue Roth ⚈ Mr. Dana Sales 
Mr. ⚈ Mr. Bruce Van Allen 

Santa Cru] Count\ Board of Education 
Regular Board Meeting 

Thursda\ August 20, 2020 
Open Session 4:00 p.m. 

VIRTUAL Meeting hosted from the Board Room 

UNAPPROVED MINUTES 

1. CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL AND ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 

Board Present (Yia Yideoconference) 

Jane Ro\er Barr 
Rose Filicetti (Vice President) 
Sandra Nichols 
Abel Sanche] 
BrXce Van Allen 
Dana Sales 

Staff Present (Yia Yideoconference) 

Faris Sabbah (Secretar\) 
Debi Bodenheimer 
Sage Leibenson 

Absent 

SXe Roth (President) 

Vice President Filicetti chaired this meeting in the absence of Board President Roth. 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

SXperintendent Sabbah (Secretar\) led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

A call for a motion Zas made to make agenda deletions and/or changes of seqXence, or approYe the 
agenda as sXbmitted. 

It Zas M.S.C. (Sales/Barr) to approYe the agenda as sXbmitted. 

A\es: Barr, Filicetti, Nichols, Sales, Sanche], Van Allen 
Na\s: None 
Abstain: None 

11

https://santacrX]coe.org


      
   

   
 

 
 

   
 

               
        

 
 

   
 

               
                   

             
     

 
          
   

    
              

 
            

 
        
   
   

 
 

      
 

 
 

 
 

                
 

     
 

     
 

              
               

               
             

               
           

 
    

 
           

             
                

                

 

Santa Cru] Count\ Board of Education 
MinXtes, RegXlar Meeting 
AXgXst 20, 2020 

Absent: Roth 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT 

The Board Clerk recited pXblic comments that Zere receiYed Yia email before the Board materials 
Zere posted. The folloZing comments Zere recited: 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 

All items appearing on the consent agenda are recommended actions Zhich are considered to be 
roXtine in natXre and Zill be acted Xpon as one motion. Specific items ma\ be remoYed for separate 
consideration. Item(s) remoYed Zill be considered immediatel\ folloZing the consent agenda motion 
as Deferred Consent Items. 

5.0.1 MinXtes of the RegXlar Board Meeting of JXl\ 16, 2020 
5.0.2 RoXtine BXdget ReYisions 
5.0.3 AlternatiYe EdXcation Consolidated Application 
5.0.4 Letter Appointing Liann Re\es as AXthori]ed Signer for COE Ba\ Federal AccoXnts 

It Zas M.S.C. (Barr/Van Allen) to approYe the consent agenda as sXbmitted. 

A\es: Barr, Filicetti, Nichols, Sales, Sanche], Van Allen 
Na\s: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Roth 

5.1 Deferred Consent Items (if required) 

None. 

6. CORRESPONDENCE 

No neZ correspondence Zas receiYed in addition to Zhat Zas inclXded in the Board packet. 

7. REPORTS, DISCUSSIONS, AND PRESENTATIONS 

7.1 COVID-19 and School Reopening Update 

SXperintendent Sabbah gaYe a presentation to the Board aboXt Zhat the Santa CrX] CoXnt\ 
Office of EdXcation has been Zorking on in collaboration Zith the Santa CrX] CoXnt\ Health 
SerYices agenc\ and school districts to prepare for and respond to the oXtbreak of COVID-19 
in oXr commXnit\. The presentation also inclXded the anticipated impacts of COVID-19 on 
fXnding for California pXblic schools and a brief Xpdate aboXt the CZU Lightning Comple[ Fire. 
The Board asked a nXmber of clarif\ing qXestions of staff. 

7.2 Admin Kick Off Update 

Associate SXperintendent of BXsiness SerYices, Debi Bodenheimer, gaYe a presentation to 
the Board aboXt the annXal Administrators' Kickoff for Santa CrX] CoXnt\ administrators held 
Yia Zoom on AXgXst 5th, from 9-11:30 AM. Almost 200 people attended, to hear the ke\note 
speaker, Dr. Victor Rios from UC Santa Barbara, and a stXdent panel of 10 stXdents from 

12



      
   

   
 

             
               

                 
               

 
      

 
             

             
              

                
             

               
              

               
             

         
 

     
 

              
              

            
               
               

              
               

              
      

 
​  ​        

 
       

 
            

             
              

         
 

       
 

               
              

               
          

 
     
    
       
       
     
      

 

Santa Cru] Count\ Board of Education 
MinXtes, RegXlar Meeting 
AXgXst 20, 2020 

Santa CrX] CoXnt\ high schools. The focXs Zas on eqXit\, anti-racism, and deYeloping 
connections dXring a time of distance learning. The session Zas recorded, and folloZ Xp Zill 
inclXde reaching oXt to the stXdents for folloZ Xp on their YieZs of hoZ to best sXpport 
stXdents dXring this time. The Board asked a nXmber of clarif\ing qXestions of staff. 

7.3 Santa Cru] COE Arts Update 

COE Arts Coordinator, AXdre\ Sirota, proYided the Board Zith an Xpdate aboXt Professional 
DeYelopment opportXnities for teachers in the Arts inclXding the Arts Integration InstitXte and 
ongoing, Zeekl\ teacher meetings in the Arts disciplines dXring this time of Distance Learning. 
The Arts are deemed as core cXrricXlXm b\ the EYer\ StXdent SXcceeds Act. The Arts are 
essential for deYeloping the Zhole child in Xsing the 4 C's: CommXnication, Collaboration, 
Critical Thinking, and CreatiYit\. In oXr Strategic Plan, Strategic Priorit\ 1, states Ze aspire "to 
increase stXdent access to ongoing, standards-based programs in the Arts." In this time of 
COVID-19, the Arts are also essential in sXpporting stXdents in their academic as Zell as 
social and emotional learning. The Board asked a nXmber of clarif\ing qXestions and 
commended AXdre\ for her Zork on this project. 

7.4 Count\wide Virtual Math Camp 

COE Math Coordinator, KeYin Drinkard, gaYe a presentation to the Board aboXt the first-eYer 
coXnt\Zide "VirtXal Math Camp" for tZent\-si[ 6th grade stXdents in oXr coXnt\. DXring the 
Zeek, stXdents engaged s\nchronoXsl\ for 75 minXtes each morning and as\nchronoXsl\ for 
45 minXtes each afternoon to haYe fXn doing math problems, Xse math content and practices, 
Xse math to e[plore eqXit\ and social jXstice, strengthen the poZer and identit\ of \oXng 
mathematicians, and make friends YirtXall\. The camp also serYed as a learning lab for 
edXcators. SXrYe\ data from the eYent indicated that it had a significant impact on stXdents¶ 
groZth mindset. The Board asked a nXmber of clarif\ing qXestions and commended KeYin on 
his Zork on this project. 

8. PUBLIC HEARINGS, NEW BUSINESS, AND ACTION ITEMS 

8.1 Public Disclosure: CSEA Collective Bargaining Agreement 

GoYernment Code Section 3547.5 reqXires that before a pXblic school emplo\er enters 
into a Zritten agreement Zith an e[clXsiYe representatiYe, the major proYisions of the 
agreement shall be disclosed in a pXblic meeting. Senior Director of Fiscal SerYices, Rebecca 
Olker,, presented this pXblic disclosXre to the Board. 

8.2 First Reading: Board Policies (BP) 

Modification and neZ policies ma\ be adopted b\ the CoXnt\ Board of EdXcation folloZing a 
first and second reading b\ the Board. The Board ma\ accept the folloZing proposed 
polic\(ies) as sXbmitted and ZaiYe a second reading and moYe to take action, order changes, 
or order changes and bring back for a final reading: 

BP 0450 ComprehensiYe Safet\ Plan 
BP 1112 Media Relations 
BP 1113 Santa CrX] COE and School Websites 
BP 1114 Santa CrX] COE-Sponsored Social Media 
BP 3290 Gifts, Grants, and BeqXests 
BP 3550 Food SerYice/Child NXtrition Program 

13



      
   

   
 

     
       
     
    
     

 
             

 
           

 
               

       
 

        
   
   

 
  

  
 

               
   

 
     

 
                 

          
 

               
               

          
 

              
 

              
              

            
               

               
              

      
 

       
 

       
 

            
         
             
            

             

 

Santa Cru] Count\ Board of Education 
MinXtes, RegXlar Meeting 
AXgXst 20, 2020 

BP 3551 Food SerYice Operations/Cafeteria FXnd 
BP 3553 Free and RedXced Price Meals 
BP 3555 NXtrition Program Compliance 
BB 9010 PXblic Statements 
BB 9323 Meeting CondXct 

The Board discXssed each item indiYidXall\ and then took the folloZing actions: 

The Board tabled board polities 3290, 3550, 3551, 3553, and 3555. 

It Zas M.S.C (Nichols/Van Allen) to ZaiYe the second reading and adopt board policies 0450, 
1112, 1113, 1114, 9010, and 9323. 

A\es: Barr, Filicetti, Nichols, Sales, Sanche], Van Allen 
Na\s: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Roth 

9. SUPERINTENDENT¶S REPORT 

CoXnt\ SXperintendent of Schools, Dr. Faris M. Sabbah, proYided an Xpdate on actiYities and matters 
of interest. 

10. TRUSTEE REPORTS (3 minutes each) 

TrXstee Sales attended meetings of the polic\ committee and has been Zorking on preparing to rXn for 
re-election to the Santa CrX] CoXnt\ Board of EdXcation. 

TrXstee Sanche] has been keeping Xp Zith EdXcational NeZs from CSBA, attended the Admin Kick 
Off, and COE All Staff meetings. TrXstee Sanche] also e[pressed appreciation for being able to 
participate in YirtXal meetings of the Santa CrX] COE. 

TrXstee Van Allen e[pressed appreciation for the COE¶s leadership dXring the coronaYirXs crisis. 

TrXstee Filicetti attended the Santa CrX] CoXnt\ COVID-19 Operational calls, COE All Staff meetings, 
a special meeting of the Santa CrX] CoXnt\ School Board Association (SCZCSBA) Zhich featXred 
SXperintendent Sabbah for a 2020 Fall School Reopening Update and RoXndtable DiscXssion. 
TrXstee Filicetti also attended the CCBE Board of Directors Retreat, the 2020 Santa CrX] CoXnt\ 
Administrators Kick Off, a meeting of the Board Agenda Committee, a Back-to-School ToZn Hall Zith 
EdSoXrce reporters and editors, a Polic\Matters: 2020-2021 School Year in California Zebinar, and a 
meeting of the polic\ committee. 

11. AD HOC COMMITTEE REPORTS/ACTIONS (if an\) 

11.1 California Count\ Boards of Education (CCBE) Report 

TrXstee Filicetti gaYe an Xpdate on recent CCBE actiYities. The CCBE Directors 
Retreat focXsed on strategic planning Xnder COVID-19 circXmstances. TrXstee 
Filicetti e[plained that LCAPs are more effectiYe than Board policies and resolXtions to 
address eqXit\ discrepancies for COE stXdents sXch as digital eqXit\, learning loss, 
and effects of racism. The meeting also inclXded adYocac\ matters for federal and 

14



      
   

   
 

             
  

 
  

 
  

 
       

 
      
       

   
  

 
      

    
    

  
 

      
    
    

  
 

      
    

    
  

 
   

 
        

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Santa Cru] Count\ Board of Education 
MinXtes, RegXlar Meeting 
AXgXst 20, 2020 

state fXnding for schools Zhich inclXde mone\ for PPE costs and fle[ibilit\ for 
attendance reporting. 

11.2 CO&L Updates 

None. 

12. SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS AND COMING EVENTS 

Santa CrX] CoXnt\ Board of EdXcation 
Board BXdget Workshop and Special Meeting (VirtXal) 
September 10, 2020 
3:00 p.m. 

Santa CrX] CoXnt\ Board of EdXcation 
RegXlar Meeting (VirtXal) 
September 17, 2020 
4:00 p.m. 

Santa CrX] CoXnt\ Board of EdXcation 
RegXlar Meeting (VirtXal) 
October 15, 2020 
4:00 p.m. 

Santa CrX] CoXnt\ Board of EdXcation 
RegXlar Meeting (VirtXal) 
NoYember 19, 2020 
4:00 p.m. 

17. ADJOURNMENT 

The Board President adjoXrned the meeting at 

15



      
   

   
 

  
  

  
  

                 
                    

                    
                     

                  
                

               
                   

 
  

  
  

                  
                  

               
  

  
  

               
                  
                  

       
  

  
  

                
                

                  
                

               
              

      
 

 

 

Santa Cru] Count\ Board of Education 
MinXtes, RegXlar Meeting 
AXgXst 20, 2020 

PLEASE NOTE: 

Public Participation: 

All persons are encoXraged to attend and, Zhen appropriate, to participate in meetings of the Santa CrX] 
CoXnt\ Board of EdXcation. If \oX Zish to speak to an item on the agenda, please be present at the 
beginning of the meeting as an\ item, Xpon motion, ma\ be moYed to the beginning of the agenda. Persons 
Zishing to address the Board are asked to state their name for the record. The president of the Board Zill 
establish a time limit of three (3) minXtes, Xnless otherZise stated b\ the president, for comments from the 
pXblic. Consideration of all matters is condXcted in open session e[cept those relating to litigation, 
personnel and emplo\ee negotiations, Zhich, b\ laZ, ma\ be considered in closed session. E[pXlsion 
appeal hearings are heard in closed session Xnless a reqXest for hearing in open session is made b\ the 
appellant. 

Backup Documentation: 

An\ Zritings or docXments that are pXblic records and are proYided to a majorit\ of the goYerning board 
regarding an open session item on this agenda Zill be made aYailable for pXblic inspection in the CoXnt\ 
Office of EdXcation, located 400 Encinal Street, Santa CrX], CA 95060, dXring normal bXsiness hoXrs. 

Translation Requests: 

Spanish langXage translation is aYailable on an as-needed basis. Please make adYance arrangements Zith 
Sage Leibenson b\ telephone at (831) 466-5900 TradXcciones del inglps al espaxol \ del espaxol al inglps 
estin disponibles en las sesiones de la mesa directiYa. Por faYor haga arreglos por anticipado con Sage 
Leibenson por telpfono al nXmero (831) 466-5900. 

ADA Compliance: 

In compliance Zith GoYernment Code section 54954.2 (a), The Santa CrX] CoXnt\ Office of EdXcation Zill, 
on reqXest, make this agenda aYailable in appropriate alternatiYe formats to persons Zith a disabilit\, as 
reqXired b\ Section 202 of the Americans Zith Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec 12132), and the 
federal rXles and regXlations adopted in implementation thereof. IndiYidXals Zho need this agenda in an 
alternatiYe format or Zho need a disabilit\-related modification or accommodation in order to participate in 
the meeting shoXld contact Sage Leibenson, AdministratiYe Aide to the SXperintendent, 400 Encinal St., 
Santa CrX], CA 95060, (831) 466-5900. 

16



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

AGENDA ITEM

 
      

  
  

 
 

             

 
 
 

​      
 

​    
 

​            
 

 
 

 
 

 
       

 
 

 
    

 
  

 
  

  ​     ​   

BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: SHSW. 17, 2020 AcWLRQ IQIRUPaWLRQX

TO: SanWa CUX] CoXnW\ BoaUd of EdXcaWion 

FROM: AdminiVWUaWion DepaUWmenW 

SUBJECT: Special SepWembeU 10Wh MinXWeV of Whe SanWa CUX] CoXnW\ BoaUd of
EdXcaWion 

BACKGROUND

Special minXWeV of Whe SepWembeU 10, 2020 meeWing. 

SUPERINTENDENT¶S RECOMMENDATION:

AppUoYe SepWembeU 10Wh minXWeV. 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:

None. 

BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: SepW. 17, 2020 AJHQGa IWHP: #5.0.2
17



AEHO SDQFKH] 

 
 

                    
    ​    ​      ​  ​    ​   ​      ​    ​      

 ​     ​     ​      
 

     
   

    
    

       
 

 
  

 
         

 
    

 
   
   

  
   

   
  

 
    

 
    
  

   
  

  
   

 
 

 
   

 
    

 
        

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Santa Cru] County Board of Education ⚈ 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cru], CA 95060 ⚈ Tel (831) 466-5900 ⚈ santacru]coe.org 

MV. JDQH RR\HU BDUU ⚈ MV. RRVH FLOLFHWWL ⚈ MV. SDQGUD NLFKROV ⚈ MV. SXH RRWK ⚈ MU. DDQD SDOHV 
MU. ⚈ MU. BUXFH 9DQ AOOHQ 

SDQWD CUX] CRXQW\ BRDUG RI EGXFDWLRQ 
SSHFLDO BRDUG MHHWLQJ 

SHSWHPEHU 10, 2020 
OSHQ SHVVLRQ 3:00 S.P. 

9IRTUAL MHHWLQJ KRVWHG IURP WKH BRDUG RRRP 

UNAPPRO9ED MINUTES 

1. CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL AND ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 

Board Present (via videoconference) 

Jane Royer Barr 
Rose Filicetti 
Sandra Nichols 
Sue Roth (President) 
Bruce Van Allen 
Dana Sales 

Staff Present (via videoconference) 

Faris Sabbah (Secretary) 
Liann Reyes 
Debi Bodenheimer 
Sage Leibenson 
Denise Sanson 
Jennifer I]ant-Gon]ales 

Absent 

Abel Sanche] 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Superintendent Sabbah (Secretary) led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

18

https://santacru]coe.org


      
   

   
 

   
 

                  
    

 
           

 
        
   
   

 
 

   
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

​  ​        
 

            
 

            
            

          
           

           
            

              
               

         
 

              
 

            
       

 
             

           
            

          
 

              
    

 
           

               
      

 
 

 

SDQWD CUX] CRXQW\ BRDUG RI EGXFDWLRQ 
Minutes, Special Meeting 
September 10, 2020 

3. APPRO9AL OF AGENDA 

A call for a motion was made to make agenda deletions and/or changes of sequence, or approve the 
agenda as submitted. 

It was M.S.C. (Barr/Sales) to approve the agenda as submitted. 

Ayes: Barr, Filicetti, Nichols, Roth, Sales, Van Allen 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Sanche] 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT 

None. 

5. CORRESPONDENCE 

None. 

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS, NE: BUSINESS, AND ACTION ITEMS 

6.1 PUBLIC HEARING: SDQWD CUX] CRXQW\ OIILFH RI EGXFDWLRQ LHDUQLQJ CRQWLQXLW\ PODQ 

The Santa Cru] County Office of Education student programs Learning Continuity Plan 
template memoriali]es the planning process already underway for the 2020±21 school year 
and includes descriptions of the following: conducting meaningful stakeholder engagement; 
maintaining transparency; addressing the needs of unduplicated pupils, students with unique 
needs, and students experiencing homelessness; providing access to necessary devices and 
connectivity for distance learning; providing resources and supports to address student and 
staff mental health and social emotional well-being; and continuing to provide school meals for 
students. The Board conducted a public hearing to determine the level of interest and support 
from community members, teachers, and students of the district. 

President Roth opened the public hearing and explained the procedure of the hearing. 

Superintendent Sabbah gave a brief introduction of the Learning Continuity Plan and 
introduced Jennifer-I]ant Gon]ales, Alternative Education Project Coordinator. 

President Roth then invited Jennifer I]ant-Gon]ales to give a presentation on the COE 
Learning Continuity Plan. The presentation highlighted student voice, possible public health 
conditions regarding the resumption of in-person instruction, and student support team roles. 
The Board asked a number of clarifying questions of Jennifer. 

Following the presentation, President Roth invited members of the public to speak. No public 
comments were made. 

President Roth thanked Jennifer I]ant-Gon]ales and the entire COE Alternative Education 
team for their hard work on the COE Learning Continuity Plan. Following this, the public 
hearing was closed at 3:39 p.m. 

19



      
   

   
 

          
  

 
           

            
          

           
           

            
              

               
         

 
              

 
            

        
 

              
             
             

      
 

             
              

              
   

 
              

               
   

 
             

            
             

 
       

 
      

    
    

  
 

      
    
    

  
 

      
    

    
  

 

SDQWD CUX] CRXQW\ BRDUG RI EGXFDWLRQ 
Minutes, Special Meeting 
September 10, 2020 

6.2 PUBLIC HEARING: SDQWD CUX] CRXQW\ CDUHHU AGYDQFHPHQW CKDUWHU LHDUQLQJ 
CRQWLQXLW\ PODQ 

The Santa Cru] County Career Advancement Charter (CAC) Learning Continuity Plan 
template memoriali]es the planning process already underway for the 2020±21 school year 
and includes descriptions of the following: conducting meaningful stakeholder engagement; 
maintaining transparency; addressing the needs of unduplicated pupils, students with unique 
needs, and students experiencing homelessness; providing access to necessary devices and 
connectivity for distance learning; providing resources and supports to address student and 
staff mental health and social emotional well-being; and continuing to provide school meals for 
students. The Board conducted a public hearing to determine the level of interest and support 
from community members, teachers, and students of the district. 

President Roth opened the public hearing and explained the procedure of the hearing. 

Superintendent Sabbah gave a brief introduction of the Learning Continuity Plan and 
introduced Denise Sanson, Senior Director of Student Programs. 

President Roth then invited Denise Sanson to give a presentation on the CAC Learning 
Continuity Plan. The presentation highlighted the role of the CAC, possible public health 
conditions regarding the resumption of in-person instruction, and explained how the CAC is 
fulfilling the Learning Continuity Plan. 

Following the presentation, President Roth invited members of the public to speak. One 
member of the public and COE Independent Studies Teacher, Ismael Cru], made a comment 
in appreciation of all the benefits the Career Advancement Charter offers students in Santa 
Cru] County. 

President Roth thanked Denise Sanson and the entire COE Student Programs team for their 
hard work on the CAC Learning Continuity Plan. Following this, the public hearing was closed 
at 3:59 p.m. 

Trustee Van Allen and Trustee Filicetti expressed gratitude for the Santa Cru] COE¶s 
leadership and hard work to continue providing essential services and high-quality distance 
learning to students and families throughout the COVID-19 and CZU fire crises. 

12. SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS AND COMING E9ENTS 

Santa Cru] County Board of Education 
Regular Meeting (Virtual) 
September 17, 2020 
4:00 p.m 

Santa Cru] County Board of Education 
Regular Meeting (Virtual) 
October 15, 2020 
4:00 p.m. 

Santa Cru] County Board of Education 
Regular Meeting (Virtual) 
November 19, 2020 
4:00 p.m. 

20



      
   

   
 
 

   
 

          
 

  
  

  
  

                 
                    

                    
                     

                  
                

               
                   

 
  

  
  

                  
                  

               
  

  
  

               
                  
                  

       
  

  
  

                
                

                  
                

               
              

      
 

 

 

SDQWD CUX] CRXQW\ BRDUG RI EGXFDWLRQ 
Minutes, Special Meeting 
September 10, 2020 

17. ADJOURNMENT 

The Board President adjourned the meeting at 4:00 p.m. 

PLEASE NOTE: 

PXEOLF PDUWLFLSDWLRQ: 

All persons are encouraged to attend and, when appropriate, to participate in meetings of the Santa Cru] 
County Board of Education. If you wish to speak to an item on the agenda, please be present at the 
beginning of the meeting as any item, upon motion, may be moved to the beginning of the agenda. Persons 
wishing to address the Board are asked to state their name for the record. The president of the Board will 
establish a time limit of three (3) minutes, unless otherwise stated by the president, for comments from the 
public. Consideration of all matters is conducted in open session except those relating to litigation, 
personnel and employee negotiations, which, by law, may be considered in closed session. Expulsion 
appeal hearings are heard in closed session unless a request for hearing in open session is made by the 
appellant. 

BDFNXS DRFXPHQWDWLRQ: 

Any writings or documents that are public records and are provided to a majority of the governing board 
regarding an open session item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection in the County 
Office of Education, located 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cru], CA 95060, during normal business hours. 

TUDQVODWLRQ RHTXHVWV: 

Spanish language translation is available on an as-needed basis. Please make advance arrangements with 
Sage Leibenson by telephone at (831) 466-5900 Traducciones del inglps al espaxol y del espaxol al inglps 
estin disponibles en las sesiones de la mesa directiva. Por favor haga arreglos por anticipado con Sage 
Leibenson por telpfono al numero (831) 466-5900. 

ADA CRPSOLDQFH: 

In compliance with Government Code section 54954.2 (a), The Santa Cru] County Office of Education will, 
on request, make this agenda available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a disability, as 
required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec 12132), and the 
federal rules and regulations adopted in implementation thereof. Individuals who need this agenda in an 
alternative format or who need a disability-related modification or accommodation in order to participate in 
the meeting should contact Sage Leibenson, Administrative Aide to the Superintendent, 400 Encinal St., 
Santa Cru], CA 95060, (831) 466-5900. 

21



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

AGENDA ITEM 

 
      

  
  

 
 

             

 
 
 

​      
 

​   
 

​    
 
 

 
 

 
     

 
 

 
      

 
  

 
   

  ​     ​   

BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: SHSW. 17, 2020 AcWLRQ IQIRUPaWLRQ X 

TO: SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\ BRaUd Rf EdXcaWiRQ 

FROM: BXViQeVV DeSaUWmeQW 

SUBJECT: RRXWiQe BXdgeW ReYiViRQV 

BACKGROUND 

AdjXVWV Whe 2020-2021 SSeQdiQg PlaQ. 

SUPERINTENDENT¶S RECOMMENDATION: 

ASSURYe Whe URXWiQe bXdgeW UeYiViRQV. 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: 

DeWailed heUeiQ. 

BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: SeSW. 17, 2020 AJHQGa IWHP: #5.0.3 
22



 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

        
 

    
     
 

   
   
 

    
 

           
       

 
      

  
   

      
   

 
         

           
  
 

   
 

 
  

 

  
    
   
   
   
    
  
    

 
               

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Ms. Jane Royer Barr 
Ms. Rose Filicetti 
Ms. Sandra Nichols 
Ms. Sue Roth 
Mr. Dana M. Sales 
Mr. Abel Sanchez 
Mr. Bruce Van Allen 

Dr. Faris Sabbah, Superintendent � 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 � 831-466-5600 � FAX 831-466-5607 � www.santacruzcoe.org 

MEMO 

DATE: September 17, 2020 

TO: Santa Cruz County Board of Education 
Dr. Faris Sabbah, County Superintendent of Schools 

FROM: Liann Reyes, Deputy Superintendent, Business Services 
Melissa Lopez, Director of Fiscal Services 

RE: August Budget Revisions 

Budget revisions in August reflect an increase in expenditures in the amount of 
$33,898, resulting in a net decrease to fund balance of $33,898. 

Adjustments were made to increase services and supplies which includes: 
$5,942 professional development service for S4C 
$10,000 anticipated increase for STRS penalties & interest 
$10,000 financial data archival project 
$7,956 credentialing support 

Projected increases in revenue due to the State Budget and Learning Loss Mitigation 
funding are being calculated and will be presented to the Board as they are processed. 

Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact us. 

LR:ml 
3 attachments 
cc: Rebecca Olker 

23

rolker
Stamp

www.santacruzcoe.org


 
  

 

  
   

       

             
     
     
     

              

     
     
     

      
      

     
     

      
              

    
      

     

            
      

              

  

         
              
                  

          

 

Santa Cruz County Office of Education 
Budget Variance Summary for August, 2020 

September 17, 2020 Board Meeting 

2020-2021 2020-21 AUGUST 2020-21 

Description Adopted Budget 
Board Meeting 

08/20/2020 Unrestricted Restricted Board Meeting 09/17/2020 

REVENUE  
Local Control Funding Formula 
Federal Revenues 
State Revenues 
Local Revenues 

27,537,112 
5,816,517 
6,211,333 
8,677,516 

27,537,112 
5,816,517 
6,211,333 
8,677,516 

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

27,537,112 
5,816,517 
6,211,333 
8,677,516 

TOTAL REVENUE 48,242,478 48,242,478 - - 48,242,478 

EXPENDITURES 
Certificated Salaries 
Classified Salaries 
Employee Benefits 
Books and Supplies 
Services, Other Operating Expenses 
Capital Outlay 
Other Outgo 
Interprogram Support 

10,868,103 
12,570,579 
14,381,643 
1,750,573 
7,297,393 

86,200 
(75,056) 

4,974,756 

10,868,103 
12,570,579 
14,381,643 
1,790,102 
7,372,621 

86,200 
(75,056) 

4,974,756 

-
-
-

(135,568) 
163,524 

-
-
-

-
-
-

28,614 
(23,135) 

-
-
463 

10,868,103 
12,570,579 
14,381,643 
1,683,148 
7,513,010 

86,200 
(75,056) 

4,975,219 
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 51,854,191 51,968,948 27,956 5,942 52,002,846 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS 
Transfers In 
Transfers Out 

-
466,051 

-
466,051 - -

-
466,051 

TOTAL INTERFUND TRANSFERS 466,051 466,051 - - 466,051 

FUND BALANCE 
Beginning Fund Balance 
Net Increase/(Decrease) 

27,366,002 
(4,077,764) 

27,366,002 
(4,192,521) 

-
(27,956) (5,942) 

27,366,002 
(4,226,419) 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 23,288,238 23,173,481 (27,956) (5,942) 23,139,583 

Pacheco Bill Compliance: 

There was one professional services agreement in excess of $25,000 that required a budget revision during the month of August, 2020. Professional services agreement 
with 360 Degree Customer Inc. to provide services of a Speech Therapist who will provide direct therapy services, studies and/or reports. The Speech Therapist will also 
need to hold IEP meetings, complete IEPs, track and monitor all services, and attend meetings and trainings. The department had a vacancy that was unable to be filled and 
the cost will be offset by a decrease in budgeted salary and benefits for the vacancy. Contract amount not to exceed $133,200.00. 

� of 3 24



   

  

    

  

      

  

     

  

     

  

     

     

     

  

     
  

     

  

     

  
 

 
 

     

Budget Variance Detail for 
August, 2020 

September 17, 2020 Board Meeting 

2020-21 2020-21 Variance 2020-21 
Description (Object Code Range) Res Program  Adopted Budget  Board Meeting 8/20/20  Unrestricted  Restricted  Board Meeting 9/17/20 

REVENUE 

Local Control Funding Formula (8010-8099) 27,537,112 27,537,112 

Total Local Control Funding Formula 27,537,112 27,537,112 - - 27,537,112 

Federal Revenues (8100-8299) 5,816,517 5,816,517 

Total Federal Revenues 5,816,517 5,816,517 - - 5,816,517 

State Revenues (8300-8599) 6,211,333 6,211,333 

Total State Revenues 6,211,333 6,211,333 - - 6,211,333 

Local Revenues (8600-8799) 8,677,516 8,677,516 

Total Local Revenues 8,677,516 8,677,516 - - 8,677,516 

Other Financing Sources (8900-8997) 

Total Other Financing Sources - - - - -

TOTAL REVENUE 48,242,478 48,242,478 - - 48,242,478 

EXPENDITURES 

Certificated Salaries (1000-1999) 10,868,103 10,868,103 

Total Certificated Salaries 10,868,103 10,868,103 - - 10,868,103 
Classified Salaries (2000-2999) 12,570,579 12,570,579 

Total Classified Salaries 12,570,579 12,570,579 - - 12,570,579 

Employee Benefits (3000-3999) 14,381,643 14,381,643 

Total Employee Benefits 14,381,643 14,381,643 - - 14,381,643 

Books and Supplies (4000-4999) 
Cover 360 Degree Contract, Cover Negatives 
Position Funding Changes 
Allocate 19/20 S4C Carryover 

0620 
3025 
9010 

EDUCATION & ADMIN OPERATIONS 
EDUCATION & ADMIN OPERATIONS 
S4C 

1,750,573 1,790,102 
(135,568) 

28,066 
548 

Total Books and Supplies 1,750,573 1,790,102 (135,568) 28,614 1,683,148 

� of 3 
25



   

  

    

  
 
 

 
 

 

     

  

     

  

     

  
 

     

  

     

     

   

     

   

Budget Variance Detail for 
August, 2020 

September 17, 2020 Board Meeting 

2020-21 2020-21 Variance 2020-21 
Description (Object Code Range) Res Program  Adopted Budget  Board Meeting 8/20/20  Unrestricted  Restricted  Board Meeting 9/17/20 

Services, Other Operating Expenses (5000-5999) 
Anticipated STRS P&I 
Digital SchoRls Archival Project, Credentialing National University� 
Cover 360 Degree Contract, Cover Negatives 
Position Funding Changes 
Allocate 19/20 S4C Carryover, Carolyn Stones Contract 

0060 
0090 
0620 
3025 
9010 

ADMINISTRATION 
EDUCATION & ADMIN OPERATIONS 
COUNTY COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 
NCLB:TIT I LOC DELINQ PRGS 
S4C 

7,297,393 7,372,621 
10,000 
17,956 

135,568 
(28,066) 

4,931 

Total Services, Other Operating Expenses 7,297,393 7,372,621 163,524 (23,135) 7,513,010 

Capital Outlay (6000-6999) 86,200 86,200 

Total Capital Outlay 86,200 86,200 - - 86,200 

Other Outgo (7100-7299, 7400-7499) 4,974,756 4,974,756 

Total Other Outgo 4,974,756 4,974,756 - - 4,974,756 

Interprogram Support Services (7300-7399) 
Allocate 19/20 S4c Carryover 9010 OTHER RESTRICTED LOCAL 

(75,056) (75,056) 
463 

Total Interprogram Support (75,056) (75,056) - 463 (74,593) 

Interfund Transfers Out (7600-7629) 466,051 466,051 

Total Interfund Transfers Out 466,051 466,051 - - 466,051 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 52,320,242 52,434,999 27,956 5,942 52,468,897 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 

27,366,002 

(4,077,764) 

23,288,238 

27,366,002 

(4,192,521) 

23,173,481 

(27,956) (5,942) 

27,366,002 

(4,226,419) 

23,139,583 

� of 3 
26



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

AGENDA ITEM 

 
      

  
  

 
 

             

 
 
 

​      
 

​   
 

​    
 
 
 

 
 

         
       

    
 

 
 

    
 

 
 

    
   

   
 

 
  

 
           

  ​     ​   

BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: SHSW. 17, 2020 AcWLRQ IQIRUPaWLRQ X 

TO: SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\ BRaUd RI EdXcaWLRQ 

FROM: BXVLQHVV DHSaUWPHQW 

SUBJECT: GLIWV aQd DRQaWLRQV 

BACKGROUND 

CRXQW\ BRaUd RI EdXcaWLRQ PROLc\ 3280 UHTXLUHV WKaW aOO JLIWV aQd dRQaWLRQV UHcHLYHd b\ 
SURJUaPV cRQdXcWHd b\ WKH CRXQW\ SXSHULQWHQdHQW RI ScKRROV bH accHSWHd b\ WKH 
CRXQW\ BRaUd RI EdXcaWLRQ. 

SUPERINTENDENT¶S RECOMMENDATION: 

AccHSW JLIWV aQd dRQaWLRQV aV IROORZV: 

PURJUaP: DRQRU: VaOXH: 

COE SWaII PHUIRUPLQJ 
EVVHQWLaO DXWLHV 

VRJPaVN (14) FacH 
PaVNV (HVW. 
YaOXH $33 
HacK) 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: 

GLIWV/dRQaWLRQV UHcHLYHd ZLOO bH XWLOL]Hd b\ WKH SURJUaPV/VWaII WR ZKLcK WKH\ aUH dRQaWHd. 

BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: SHSW. 17, 2020 AJHQGa IWHP: #5.0.4 
27



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

AGENDA ITEM 

 
      

  
  

 
 

             

 
 
 

​      
 

​   
 

​  
 
 
 

 
 

        
 

 
 

  
 

  
 

  

  ​    ​  

BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: SHSW. 17, 2020 AcWLRQ 

TO: SanWa CUX] CoXnW\ BoaUd of EdXcaWion 

FROM: AdminiVWUaWiYe DepaUWmenW 

SUBJECT: CoUUeVpondence 

X IQIRUPaWLRQ 

BACKGROUND 

Official coUUeVpondence UeceiYed b\ Whe BoaUd iV inclXded heUein. 

SUPERINTENDENT¶S RECOMMENDATION: 

ReceiYe coUUeVpondence. 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: 

None. 

BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: SepW. 17, 2020 AJHQGa IWHP: #6.0 
28



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

AGENDA ITEM 

 
      

  
  

 
 

             

 
 

​      
 

​       
 

​      
 
 
 

 
 

           
        

             
           

     
 

             
          

            
   

 
 

 
  

 
  

 
    

  ​     ​   

BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: SHSW. 17, 2020 AcWLRQ 

TO: SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\ BRaUd Rf EdXcaWLRQ 

FROM: DU. FaULV SabbaK, CRXQW\ SXSeULQWeQdeQW Rf ScKRROV 

SUBJECT: COVID-19 aQd ScKRRO ReRSeQLQJ USdaWe 

X IQIRUPaWLRQ 

BACKGROUND 

SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\ OffLce Rf EdXcaWLRQ KaV beeQ ZRUNLQJ LQ cROOabRUaWLRQ ZLWK WKe SaQWa 
CUX] CRXQW\ HeaOWK SeUYLceV aJeQc\ aQd VcKRRO dLVWULcWV WR SUeSaUe fRU aQd UeVSRQd WR 
WKe RXWbUeaN Rf COVID-19 LQ RXU cRPPXQLW\. TKe BRaUd ZLOO UeceLYe aQ XSdaWe RQ WKe 
Za\V LQ ZKLcK WKe SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\ OffLce Rf EdXcaWLRQ KaV beeQ ZRUNLQJ WR UeVSRQd 
WR WKe COVID-19 cULVLV. 

TKe SUeVeQWaWLRQ ZLOO aOVR LQcOXde aQ XSdaWe RQ WKe CZU LLJKWQLQJ cRPSOe[ fLUe aQd 
e[SOaLQ WKe Za\V LQ ZKLcK WKe SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\ OffLce Rf EdXcaWLRQ LV VXSSRUWLQJ 
VWXdeQWV, faPLOLeV, aQd VcKRRO VWaff cRXQW\ZLde ZKR KaYe beeQ LPSacWed b\ WKe CZU 
LLJKWQLQJ CRPSOe[ FLUe. 

SUPERINTENDENT¶S RECOMMENDATION: 

ReceLYe SUeVeQWaWLRQ. 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: 

IQcOXded ZLWKLQ SUeVeQWaWLRQ. 

BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: SeSW. 17, 2020 AJHQGa IWHP: #7.1 
29



	Z:cE�-aE:gF�~�v|�wuwu 

)DULV�6DEEDK��(G' 
&RXQW\�6XSHULQWHQGHQW�RI�6FKRROV 

3NVEKNcFd����
 2���v~� 

30



Ɣ ,PSDFWHG�6FKRRO�'LVWULFWV��6/986'��3DFLĆF�(OHPHQWDU\�� 
%RQQ\�'RRQ��6FRWWV�9DOOH\ 

Ɣ &RPPHUFLDO�&OHDQLQJ�VHUYLFHV�WLPHIUDPH 
Ɣ +RXVLQJ�RI�6WDII�DW�WKH�&2( 
Ɣ 6XSSRUW�IRU�IDPLOLHV�WKDW�DUH�GLVSODFHG 
Ɣ 0HQWDO�+HDOWK�6HUYLFHV 
Ɣ 4XHVWLRQV 

3NVEKNcFd 

31




 2���v~�-aE:gF 
Ɣ &29,'����3DQGHPLF�,QIRUPDWLRQ 
Ɣ *RYHUQRUèV�%OXHSULQW�IRU�D�6DIHU�(FRQRP\ 

&RXQW\�5LVN�/HYHO��� ,PSDFW�RQ�6FKRRO�2SHQLQJ 

:LGHVSUHDG 
0DQ\�QRQ�HVVHQWLDO�LQGRRU� 
EXVLQHVVHV�DUH�FORVHG� 

6FKRROV�LQ�WKH�:LGHVSUHDG� �SXUSOH��WLHU�DUHQ¶W�SHUPLWWHG�WR�UHRSHQ�IRU� 
LQ�SHUVRQ�LQVWUXFWLRQ��XQOHVV�WKH\�UHFHLYH�D�ZDLYHU�IURP�WKHLU�ORFDO� 
KHDOWK�GHSDUWPHQW�IRU�7.���JUDGHV� 

6XEVWDQWLDO 
6RPH�QRQ�HVVHQWLDO�LQGRRU� 

EXVLQHVV�RSHUDWLRQV�DUH�FORVHG� 

6FKRROV�FDQ�UHRSHQ�IRU�LQ�SHUVRQ�LQVWUXFWLRQ�RQFH�WKHLU�FRXQW\�KDV� 
EHHQ�LQ�WKH�6XEVWDQWLDO� �UHG��WLHU�IRU�DW�OHDVW�WZR�ZHHNV� 

0RGHUDWH 6FKRROV�PD\�UHRSHQ�IXOO\�IRU�LQ�SHUVRQ�LQVWUXFWLRQ��/RFDO�VFKRRO� 
6RPH�LQGRRU�EXVLQHVV�RSHUDWLRQV� RIILFLDOV�ZLOO�GHFLGH�ZKHWKHU�DQG�ZKHQ�WKDW�ZLOO�RFFXU� 

DUH�RSHQ�ZLWK�PRGLILFDWLRQV 

0LQLPDO� 6FKRROV�PD\�UHRSHQ�IXOO\�IRU�LQ�SHUVRQ�LQVWUXFWLRQ��/RFDO�VFKRRO� 
0RVW�LQGRRU�EXVLQHVV�RSHUDWLRQV� RIILFLDOV�ZLOO�GHFLGH�ZKHWKHU�DQG�ZKHQ�WKDW�ZLOO�RFFXU� 
DUH�RSHQ�ZLWK�PRGLILFDWLRQV 

32



	

:LGHVSUHDG 6XEVWDQWLDO 0RGHUDWH 

%OXHSULQW�IRU�D�6DIHU�(FRQRP\ 

,QGLYLGXDO�6HUYLFHV��6PDOO� 
*URXSV� ����WR�����&KLOGFDUH (OHPHQWDU\�:DLYHUV +\EULG�,QVWUXFWLRQ 

6HUYLFHV 

9ROXQWHHU�6WDII� 
IRU�6PDOO�*URXSV� 
EDVHG�RQ�1HHG 

028�ZLWK�ODERU�IRU�DOO�VWDII 

/DERU 

/LPLWHG�DV\PSWRPDWLF� 
7HVWLQJ 

6XUYHLOODQFH�7HVWLQJ��� 
&RQWDFW�7UDFLQJ 

7HVWLQJ� �7UDFLQJ 

6XUYHLOODQFH���RSHQ� 
WHVWLQJ���&RQWDFW�7UDFLQJ 

33

https://covid19.ca.gov/safer-economy



 
1HZ�3URJUDPV 

Ɣ 7HVWLQJ�&DSDFLW\�3DUWQHUVKLS�ZLWK�6WDQIRUG�0HGLFDO 
Ɣ 2XWGRRU�6FLHQFH�&KLOGFDUH�3URJUDP 
Ɣ +LJK�1HHG�6WXGHQWV 
Ɣ 4XHVWLRQV 

2���v~�-aE:gF 

34



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

AGENDA ITEM 

 
      

  
  

 
 

             

 
 

​      
 

​     
 

​       
 
 

 
 

 
           

           
        

 
 

 
  

 
  

 
    

  ​     ​   

BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: SHSW. 17, 2020 AcWLRQ IQIRUPaWLRQ X 

TO: SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\ BRaUd Rf EdXcaWiRQ 

FROM: LiaQQ Re\eV, DeSXW\ SXSeUiQWeQdeQW, BXViQeVV SeUYiceV 

SUBJECT: 2019-2020 UQaXdiWed ClRViQg FiQaQcial SWaWePeQW 

BACKGROUND 

The BRaUd iV UeTXeVWed WR UeYieZ iQfRUPaWiRQ fURP Whe aQQXal clRViQg fiQaQcial UeSRUWiQg 
dRcXPeQW filed ZiWh Whe CalifRUQia DeSaUWPeQW Rf EdXcaWiRQ. DRcXPeQWaWiRQ iV aWWached 
liVWiQg Whe 2019-2020 UQaXdiWed AcWXalV aQd XSdaWed 2020-2021 BXdgeW. 

SUPERINTENDENT¶S RECOMMENDATION: 

ReceiYe SUeVeQWaWiRQ. 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: 

IQclXded ZiWhiQ SUeVeQWaWiRQ. 

BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: SeSW. 17, 2020 AJHQGa IWHP: #7.2 
35



 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

  

Santa Cruz County Office of Education 

2019/20 Unaudited Actuals 

September 17, 2020 

36



     
  

 

     
 

   
    

          

                   
              

         
              

         
         

        
               

           

  
   

           
         

    
         

8QDXGLWHG AFWXDOV 
6DQWD CUX] CRXQW\ 2IILFH RI EGXFDWLRQ FINANCIAL 5E32576 44 10447 0000000 
6DQWD CUX] CRXQW\ 2019-20 8QDXGLWHG AFWXDOV FRUP CA 

6XPPDU\ RI 8QDXGLWHG AFWXDO DDWD 6XEPLVVLRQ 

FROORZLQJ LV D VXPPDU\ RI WKH FULWLFDO GDWD HOHPHQWV FRQWDLQHG LQ \RXU XQDXGLWHG DFWXDO GDWD. 6LQFH WKHVH GDWD PD\ KDYH 
ILVFDO LPSOLFDWLRQV IRU \RXU DJHQF\, SOHDVH YHULI\ WKHLU DFFXUDF\ EHIRUH ILOLQJ \RXU XQDXGLWHG DFWXDO ILQDQFLDO UHSRUWV. 

Form Description Value 

E6M2E EYHU\ 6WXGHQW 6XFFHHGV AFW (E66A) MDLQWHQDQFH RI EIIRUW (M2E) DHWHUPLQDWLRQ M2E MHW 
II M2E NRW MHW, WKH 2021-22 DSSRUWLRQPHQW PD\ EH UHGXFHG E\ WKH OHVVHU RI WKH IROORZLQJ WZR SHUFHQWDJHV: 

M2E DHILFLHQF\ 3HUFHQWDJH - BDVHG RQ 7RWDO E[SHQGLWXUHV 

M2E DHILFLHQF\ 3HUFHQWDJH - BDVHG RQ E[SHQGLWXUHV 3HU ADA 

GANN AGMXVWPHQWV WR ASSURSULDWLRQV LLPLW 3HU GRYHUQPHQW CRGH 6HFWLRQ 7902.1 $2,092,405.67 

II WKLV DPRXQW LV QRW ]HUR, LW UHSUHVHQWV DQ LQFUHDVH WR \RXU ASSURSULDWLRQV LLPLW. 7KH DHSDUWPHQW RI 
FLQDQFH PXVW EH QRWLILHG RI LQFUHDVHV ZLWKLQ 45 GD\V RI EXGJHW DGRSWLRQ. 

AGMXVWHG ASSURSULDWLRQV LLPLW 
$14,268,592.95 

$14,268,592.95 

ASSURSULDWLRQV 6XEMHFW WR LLPLW 
7KHVH DPRXQWV UHSUHVHQW WKH ERDUG DSSURYHG ASSURSULDWLRQV LLPLW DQG ASSURSULDWLRQV 6XEMHFW WR 

LLPLW SXUVXDQW WR GRYHUQPHQW CRGH 6HFWLRQ 7907 DQG EC 1629. 

IC5 3UHOLPLQDU\ 3URSRVHG IQGLUHFW CRVW 5DWH 8.63% 

FL[HG-ZLWK-FDUU\-IRUZDUG LQGLUHFW FRVW UDWH IRU XVH LQ 2021-22, VXEMHFW WR CDE DSSURYDO. 

CDOLIRUQLD DHSW RI EGXFDWLRQ 
6AC6 FLQDQFLDO 5HSRUWLQJ 6RIWZDUH - 2020.2.0 
FLOH: FD-F (5HY 03/06/2018) 3DJH 1 3ULQWHG: 9/12/2020 4:46 3M 

37

https://14,268,592.95
https://14,268,592.95
https://2,092,405.67


     
  

 

    
 

   
     

         

   

     

            
           

 
  

         

    

 

  

 

8QDXGLWHG AFWXDOV 
6DQWD CUX] CRXQW\ 2IILFH RI EGXFDWLRQ FINANCIAL 5E32576 44 10447 0000000 
6DQWD CUX] CRXQW\ 2019-20 8QDXGLWHG AFWXDOV FRUP CA 

CRXQW\ 2IILFH RI EGXFDWLRQ CHUWLILFDWLRQ 

8NA8DI7ED AC78AL FINANCIAL 5E3257: 

7R WKH 6XSHULQWHQGHQW RI 3XEOLF IQVWUXFWLRQ: 

2019-20 8NA8DI7ED AC78AL FINANCIAL 5E3257. 7KLV UHSRUW LV KHUHE\ SUHSDUHG DQG ILOHG E\ WKH 
CRXQW\ 6XSHULQWHQGHQW RI 6FKRROV SXUVXDQW WR EGXFDWLRQ CRGH VHFWLRQV 41010 DQG 1628. 

FRU DGGLWLRQDO LQIRUPDWLRQ RQ WKH XQDXGLWHG DFWXDO UHSRUWV, SOHDVH FRQWDFW: 

6LJQHG: DDWH: 
CRXQW\ 6XSHULQWHQGHQW/DHVLJQHH 

(2ULJLQDO VLJQDWXUH UHTXLUHG) 

FRU CRXQW\ 2IILFH RI EGXFDWLRQ: 

MHOLVVD LRSH] 
NDPH 

DLUHFWRU, FLVFDO 6HUYLFHV 
7LWOH 

(831) 466-5616 
7HOHSKRQH 

PORSH]@VDQWDFUX]FRH.RUJ 
E-PDLO AGGUHVV 

CDOLIRUQLD DHSW RI EGXFDWLRQ 
6AC6 FLQDQFLDO 5HSRUWLQJ 6RIWZDUH - 2020.2.0 
FLOH: FD-F (5HY 05/30/2017) 3DJH 1 3ULQWHG: 9/12/2020 4:46 3M 

38

mailto:PORSH]@VDQWDFUX]FRH.RUJ


     
  

   

  

  
 

    
         

   

 
   

 
   

 
 

    

   

   

   

   

 

   

   

   

   

         

   

    
          

    

   

    
    
           

   
 
   
   

   

   
   

   

   

        

UnaXdiWed AcWXalV 
SanWa CUX] CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion CoXnW\ School SeUYice FXnd 44 10447 0000000 
SanWa CUX] CoXnW\ UnUeVWUicWed and ReVWUicWed FoUm 01 

E[pendiWXUeV b\ ObjecW 

2019-20 8QDXGLWHG AFWXDOV 2020-21 BXGJHW 

DHVFULSWLRQ 5HVRXUFH CRGHV 
OEMHFW 
CRGHV 

8QUHVWULFWHG 
(A) 

5HVWULFWHG 
(B) 

7RWDO FXQG 
FRO. A + B 

(C) 
8QUHVWULFWHG 

(D) 
5HVWULFWHG 

(E) 

7RWDO FXQG 
FRO. D + E 

(F) 

% DLII 
CROXPQ 
C & F 

A. 5E9EN8E6

 1) LCFF SoXUceV 8010-8099 21,326,598.35 7,884,918.00 29,211,516.35 20,038,614.00 7,498,498.00 27,537,112.00 -5.7%

 2) FedeUal ReYenXe 8100-8299 4,433,023.57 1,852,990.04 6,286,013.61 4,350,000.00 1,466,517.00 5,816,517.00 -7.5%

 3) OWheU SWaWe ReYenXe 8300-8599 291,742.67 4,322,106.98 4,613,849.65 275,946.00 5,935,386.61 6,211,332.61 34.6%

 4) OWheU Local ReYenXe 8600-8799 2,411,005.29 7,643,006.73 10,054,012.02 1,546,451.00 7,131,065.36 8,677,516.36 -13.7%

 5) TOTAL, REVENUES 28,462,369.88 21,703,021.75 50,165,391.63 26,211,011.00 22,031,466.97 48,242,477.97 -3.8% 

B. E;3ENDI785E6

 1) CeUWificaWed SalaUieV 1000-1999 5,576,628.53 4,545,426.57 10,122,055.10 6,576,798.04 4,291,304.86 10,868,102.90 7.4%

 2) ClaVVified SalaUieV 2000-2999 6,428,495.71 5,458,927.51 11,887,423.22 6,847,383.08 5,723,195.55 12,570,578.63 5.7%

 3) Emplo\ee BenefiWV 3000-3999 6,068,036.26 6,714,559.58 12,782,595.84 7,179,016.86 7,202,626.13 14,381,642.99 12.5%

 4) BookV and SXpplieV 4000-4999 453,854.20 549,940.89 1,003,795.09 922,398.59 828,174.69 1,750,573.28 74.4% 

5) SeUYiceV and OWheU OpeUaWing E[pendiWXUeV 5000-5999 3,014,573.60 4,338,160.21 7,352,733.81 3,331,950.70 3,965,442.00 7,297,392.70 -0.8%

 6) CapiWal OXWla\ 6000-6999 111,946.48 18,814.75 130,761.23 66,200.00 20,000.00 86,200.00 -34.1%

 7) OWheU OXWgo (e[clXding TUanVfeUV of IndiUecW 7100-7299
 CoVWV) 7400-7499 4,272,034.37 624,754.82 4,896,789.19 4,350,000.00 624,756.00 4,974,756.00 1.6%

 8) OWheU OXWgo - TUanVfeUV of IndiUecW CoVWV 7300-7399 (1,447,897.09) 1,313,667.75 (134,229.34) (1,203,837.44) 1,128,781.44 (75,056.00) -44.1%

 9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 24,477,672.06 23,564,252.08 48,041,924.14 28,069,909.83 23,784,280.67 51,854,190.50 7.9% 

C. E;CE66 (DEFICIENC<) OF 5E9EN8E6
 O9E5 E;3ENDI785E6 BEFO5E O7HE5 
FINANCING 6O85CE6 AND 86E6 (A5 - B9) 3,984,697.82 (1,861,230.33) 2,123,467.49 (1,858,898.83) (1,752,813.70) (3,611,712.53) -270.1% 

D. O7HE5 FINANCING 6O85CE6/86E6

 1) InWeUfXnd TUanVfeUV
     a) TUanVfeUV In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

     b) TUanVfeUV OXW 7600-7629 1,235,042.40 0.00 1,235,042.40 466,051.31 0.00 466,051.31 -62.3%

 2) OWheU SoXUceV/UVeV
     a) SoXUceV 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

     b) UVeV 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

 3) ConWUibXWionV 8980-8999 (1,484,914.98) 1,484,914.98 0.00 (1,470,916.22) 1,470,916.22 0.00 0.0% 

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES (2,719,957.38) 1,484,914.98 (1,235,042.40) (1,936,967.53) 1,470,916.22 (466,051.31) -62.3% 

CalifoUnia DepW of EdXcaWion 
SACS Financial RepoUWing SofWZaUe - 2020.2.0 
File: fXnd-a (ReY 03/10/2020) Page 1 PUinWed: 9/12/2020 7:13 PM 

39



     
  

   

  

  
 

    
         

   

 
   

 
   

     
   

   
 
   
   

   

    

   

   

    

   
   
          

          

           

           

   

   
          

           
 

 

   

           
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
   

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
   

       

           

          

UnaXdiWed AcWXalV 
SanWa CUX] CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion CoXnW\ School SeUYice FXnd 44 10447 0000000 
SanWa CUX] CoXnW\ UnUeVWUicWed and ReVWUicWed FoUm 01 

E[pendiWXUeV b\ ObjecW 

2019-20 8QDXGLWHG AFWXDOV 2020-21 BXGJHW 

DHVFULSWLRQ 5HVRXUFH CRGHV 
OEMHFW 
CRGHV 

8QUHVWULFWHG 
(A) 

5HVWULFWHG 
(B) 

7RWDO FXQG 
FRO. A + B 

(C) 
8QUHVWULFWHG 

(D) 
5HVWULFWHG 

(E) 

7RWDO FXQG 
FRO. D + E 

(F) 

% DLII 
CROXPQ 
C & F 

E. NE7 INC5EA6E (DEC5EA6E) IN F8ND
 BALANCE (C + D4) 1,264,740.44 (376,315.35) 888,425.09 (3,795,866.36) (281,897.48) (4,077,763.84) -559.0% 

F. F8ND BALANCE, 5E6E59E6

 1) Beginning FXnd Balance
     a) AV of JXl\ 1 - UnaXdiWed 9791 24,966,632.15 2,399,369.75 27,366,001.90 26,231,372.59 2,023,054.40 28,254,426.99 3.2%

     b) AXdiW AdjXVWmenWV 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

     c) AV of JXl\ 1 - AXdiWed (F1a + F1b) 24,966,632.15 2,399,369.75 27,366,001.90 26,231,372.59 2,023,054.40 28,254,426.99 3.2%

     d) OWheU ReVWaWemenWV 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

     e) AdjXVWed Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 24,966,632.15 2,399,369.75 27,366,001.90 26,231,372.59 2,023,054.40 28,254,426.99 3.2%

 2) Ending Balance, JXne 30  (E + F1e) 26,231,372.59 2,023,054.40 28,254,426.99 22,435,506.23 1,741,156.92 24,176,663.15 -14.4%

     ComponenWV of Ending FXnd Balance 
     a) NonVpendable

  ReYolYing CaVh 9711 2,800.00 0.00 2,800.00 2,800.00 0.00 2,800.00 0.0%

  SWoUeV 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  PUepaid IWemV 9713 21,000.00 5,385.00 26,385.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

  All OWheUV 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

     b) ReVWUicWed 9740 0.00 2,150,620.26 2,150,620.26 0.00 1,874,107.78 1,874,107.78 -12.9%

     c) CommiWWed
  SWabili]aWion AUUangemenWV 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

  OWheU CommiWmenWV 9760 2,605,827.75 0.00 2,605,827.75 2,600,327.75 0.00 2,600,327.75 -0.2% 

DefeUUed MainWenance 0000 9760 1,405,�2�.�5 1,405,�2�.�5 

COP 0000 9760 1,200,000.00 1,200,000.00 

DefeUUed MainWenance 0000 9760 1,400,32�.�5 1,400,32�.�5 

COP 0000 9760 1,200,000.00 1,200,000.00

     d) AVVigned

  OWheU AVVignmenWV 9780 23,601,744.84 0.00 23,601,744.84 19,832,378.48 0.00 19,832,378.48 -16.0% 

MAA PUogUam 0000 9780 33�,5�5.�5 33�,5�5.�5 

Small DiVWUicWV 0000 9780 1,�35.�4 1,�35.�4 

DiffeUenWiaWed AVViVWance 0000 9780 ���,5�5.2� ���,5�5.2� 

SMAA AdminiVWUaWion 0000 9780 2,0�2,234.�0 2,0�2,234.�0 

SafeW\ PUogUam 0000 9780 ��,412.�� ��,412.�� 

Special PUojecWV 0000 9780 200,000.00 200,000.00 

AlWeUnaWiYe EdXcaWion 0000 9780 2,315,113.2� 2,315,113.2� 

ClaVVified CUedenWial PUogUam 0000 9780 �5,000.00 �5,000.00 

MandaWed CoVW 0000 9780 2,0�5,�2�.32 2,0�5,�2�.32 

EdXcaWion and AdminiVWUaWiYe OpeUaWionV 0000 9780 15,2�3,1�2.�2 15,2�3,1�2.�2 

MAA PUogUam 0000 9780 33�,5�5.�5 33�,5�5.�5 

Small DiVWUicWV 0000 9780 1,�35.�4 1,�35.�4 

DiffeUenWiaWed AVViVWance 0000 9780 �20,551.3� �20,551.3� 

SMAA AdminiVWUaWion 0000 9780 2,20�,�24.4� 2,20�,�24.4� 

ClaVVified CUedenWial PUogUam 0000 9780 �5,000.00 �5,000.00 

MandaWed CoVW 0000 9780 2,14�,4�3.32 2,14�,4�3.32 

SafeW\ PUogUam 0000 9780 ��,412.�� ��,412.�� 

Special PUojecWV 0000 9780 200,000.00 200,000.00 

AlWeUnaWiYe EdXcaWion 0000 9780 2,4�2,5��.2� 2,4�2,5��.2� 

EdXcaWional and AdminiVWUaWiYe OpeUaWion 0000 9780 11,001,0�0.5� 11,001,0�0.5�

     e) UnaVVigned/UnappUopUiaWed

  ReVeUYe foU Economic UnceUWainWieV 9789 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

 UnaVVigned/UnappUopUiaWed AmoXnW 9790 0.00 (132,950.86) (132,950.86) 0.00 (132,950.86) (132,950.86) 0.0% 

CalifoUnia DepW of EdXcaWion 
SACS Financial RepoUWing SofWZaUe - 2020.2.0 
File: fXnd-a (ReY 03/10/2020) Page 2 PUinWed: 9/12/2020 7:13 PM 

40



     
  

 
  
 

 
  

   
   

         

 

 
 

     

     

     

     

     

 
 

     

     

     

     

      

     

        
         

        

     

  
      
         

   
 
     
        

        

     
        

        

    

       

UnaXdiWed AcWXalV 
SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion CharWer SchoolV Special ReYenXe FXnd 44 10447 0000000 
SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ E[pendiWXreV b\ ObjecW Form 09 

DHVFULSWLRQ 5HVRXUFH CRGHV OEMHFW CRGHV 
2019-20 

8QDXGLWHG AFWXDOV 
2020-21 
BXGJHW 

PHUFHQW 
DLIIHUHQFH 

A. 5E9EN8E6 

1) LCFF SoXrceV 8010-8099 2,159,966.00 1,062,528.00 -50.8% 

2) Federal ReYenXe 8100-8299 401.00 318.00 -20.7% 

3) OWher SWaWe ReYenXe 8300-8599 374,487.54 159,662.05 -57.4% 

4) OWher Local ReYenXe 8600-8799 434,270.79 487,852.58 12.3% 

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 2,969,125.33 1,710,360.63 -42.4% 

B. E;PENDI785E6 

1) CerWificaWed SalarieV 1000-1999 1,671,934.47 874,875.16 -47.7% 

2) ClaVVified SalarieV 2000-2999 220,964.75 196,200.18 -11.2% 

3) Emplo\ee BenefiWV 3000-3999 1,069,673.31 635,192.51 -40.6% 

4) BookV and SXpplieV 4000-4999 86,681.78 70,406.56 -18.8% 

5) SerYiceV and OWher OperaWing E[pendiWXreV 5000-5999 507,392.40 426,006.57 -16.0% 

6) CapiWal OXWla\ 6000-6999 15,000.00 0.00 -100.0% 

7) OWher OXWgo (e[clXding TranVferV of IndirecW 7100-7299, 
CoVWV) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

8) OWher OXWgo - TranVferV of IndirecW CoVWV 7300-7399 22,992.03 0.00 -100.0% 

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 3,594,638.74 2,202,680.98 -38.7% 

C. E;CE66 (DEFICIENC<) OF 5E9EN8E6 
O9E5 E;PENDI785E6 BEFO5E O7HE5 
FINANCING 6O85CE6 AND 86E6 (A5 - B9) (625,513.41) (492,320.35) -21.3% 

D. O7HE5 FINANCING 6O85CE6/86E6 

1) InWerfXnd TranVferV 
a) TranVferV In 8900-8929 591,215.08 447,051.31 -24.4% 

b) TranVferV OXW 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

2) OWher SoXrceV/UVeV 
a) SoXrceV 8930-8979 (50,452.00) 0.00 -100.0% 

b) UVeV 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

3) ConWribXWionV 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 540,763.08 447,051.31 -17.3% 

California DepW of EdXcaWion 
SACS Financial ReporWing SofWZare - 2020.2.0 
File: fXnd-b (ReY 03/10/2020) Page 1 PrinWed: 9/12/2020 4:42 PM 

41



     
  

 
  
 

 
  

   
   

         

 

    
       

   
 
      
             

         

             

        

            

        
            
        
              

             

              

              

        

        
              

            

         
              

         
             

             

UnaXdiWed AcWXalV 
SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion CharWer SchoolV Special ReYenXe FXnd 44 10447 0000000 
SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ E[pendiWXreV b\ ObjecW Form 09 

DHVFULSWLRQ 5HVRXUFH CRGHV OEMHFW CRGHV 
2019-20 

8QDXGLWHG AFWXDOV 
2020-21 
BXGJHW 

PHUFHQW 
DLIIHUHQFH 

E. NE7 INC5EA6E (DEC5EA6E) IN F8ND 
BALANCE (C + D4) (84,750.33) (45,269.04) -46.6% 

F. F8ND BALANCE, 5E6E59E6 

1) Beginning FXnd Balance 
a) AV of JXl\ 1 - UnaXdiWed 

b) AXdiW AdjXVWmenWV 

c) AV of JXl\ 1 - AXdiWed (F1a + F1b) 

d) OWher ReVWaWemenWV 

e) AdjXVWed Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 

2) Ending Balance, JXne 30 (E + F1e) 
ComponenWV of Ending FXnd Balance 
a) NonVpendable 

ReYolYing CaVh 

SWoreV 

Prepaid IWemV 

All OWherV 

b) ReVWricWed 

c) CommiWWed 
SWabili]aWion ArrangemenWV 

 OWher CommiWmenWV 

d) AVVigned 
OWher AVVignmenWV 

e) UnaVVigned/UnappropriaWed 
ReVerYe for Economic UncerWainWieV 

UnaVVigned/UnappropriaWed AmoXnW 

9791 

9793 

9795 

9711 

9712 

9713 

9719 

9740 

9750 

9760 

9780 

9789 

9790 

271,115.21 242,201.65 -10.7% 

0.0% 

-10.7% 

-100.0% 

-25.9% 

-18.7% 

0.00 0.00 

271,115.21 242,201.65 

55,836.77 0.00 

326,951.98 242,201.65 

242,201.65 

400.00 

0.00 

0.00 

196,932.61 

0.00 -100.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.0% 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

31,922.45 31,922.41 0.0% 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.0%

0.00 0.0% 

-21.4% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

209,879.20 

0.00 

165,010.20 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

California DepW of EdXcaWion 
SACS Financial ReporWing SofWZare - 2020.2.0 
File: fXnd-b (ReY 03/10/2020) Page 2 PrinWed: 9/12/2020 4:42 PM 

42



     
  

 
   

 
 

  

   
   

         

 

 
 

     

     

     

     

     

 
 

     

     

     

     

      

     

        
         

        

     

  
      
         

   
 
     
        

        

     
        

        

    

       

Unaudited Actuals 
Santa Cru] Count\ Office of Education Special Education Pass-Through Fund 44 10447 0000000 
Santa Cru] Count\ E[penditures b\ Object Form 10 

DHVFULSWLRQ RHVRXUFH CRGHV OEMHFW CRGHV 
2019-20 

8QDXGLWHG AFWXDOV 
2020-21 
BXGJHW 

PHUFHQW 
DLIIHUHQFH 

A. RE9EN8E6 

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 6,826,493.68 3,717,083.00 -45.5% 

3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 4,225,485.50 3,212,216.00 -24.0% 

4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 22,397.98 23,000.00 2.7% 

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 11,074,377.16 6,952,299.00 -37.2% 

B. E;PENDI78RE6 

1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

3) Emplo\ee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

5) Services and Other Operating E[penditures 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

6) Capital Outla\ 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

7) Other Outgo (e[cluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299, 
Costs) 7400-7499 10,880,565.93 6,677,266.00 -38.6% 

8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 10,880,565.93 6,677,266.00 -38.6% 

C. E;CE66 (DEFICIENC<) OF RE9EN8E6 
O9ER E;PENDI78RE6 BEFORE O7HER 
FINANCING 6O8RCE6 AND 86E6 (A5 - B9) 193,811.23 275,033.00 41.9% 

D. O7HER FINANCING 6O8RCE6/86E6 

1) Interfund Transfers 
a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

2) Other Sources/Uses 
a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting SoftZare - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 03/10/2020) Page 1 Printed: 9/12/2020 4:42 PM 

43



     
  

 
   

 
 

  

   
   

         

 

    
       

   
 
      
             

         

             

        

            

        
            
        
              

             

              

              

        

        
              

            

         
              

         
             

             

Unaudited Actuals 
Santa Cru] Count\ Office of Education Special Education Pass-Through Fund 44 10447 0000000 
Santa Cru] Count\ E[penditures b\ Object Form 10 

DHVFULSWLRQ RHVRXUFH CRGHV OEMHFW CRGHV 
2019-20 

8QDXGLWHG AFWXDOV 
2020-21 
BXGJHW 

PHUFHQW 
DLIIHUHQFH 

E. NE7 INCREA6E (DECREA6E) IN F8ND 
BALANCE (C + D4) 193,811.23 275,033.00 41.9% 

F. F8ND BALANCE, RE6ER9E6 

1) Beginning Fund Balance 
a) As of Jul\ 1 - Unaudited 

b) Audit Adjustments 

c) As of Jul\ 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 

d) Other Restatements 

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 
Components of Ending Fund Balance 
a) Nonspendable 

Revolving Cash 

Stores 

Prepaid Items 

All Others 

b) Restricted 

c) Committed 
Stabili]ation Arrangements 

 Other Commitments 

d) Assigned 
Other Assignments 

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated 
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 

9791 

9793 

9795 

9711 

9712 

9713 

9719 

9740 

9750 

9760 

9780 

9789 

9790 

373,739.80 567,551.03 51.9% 

0.0% 

51.9% 

0.0% 

51.9% 

48.5% 

0.00 0.00 

373,739.80 567,551.03 

0.00 0.00 

373,739.80 567,551.03 

567,551.03 

0.00 

842,584.03 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

567,551.03 842,584.03 48.5% 

0.00 0.00 0.0%

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting SoftZare - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 03/10/2020) Page 2 Printed: 9/12/2020 4:42 PM 

44



     
  

 
  

 
 

  

   
   

         

 

 
 

     

     

     

     

     

 
 

     

     

     

     

      

     

        
         

        

     

  
      
         

   
 
     
        

        

     
        

        

    

       

UnaXdiWed AcWXals 
SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion AdXlW EdXcaWion FXnd 44 10447 0000000 
SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ E[pendiWXres b\ ObjecW Form 11 

DHVFULSWLRQ 5HVRXUFH CRGHV OEMHFW CRGHV 
2019-20 

8QDXGLWHG AFWXDOV 
2020-21 
BXGJHW 

PHUFHQW 
DLIIHUHQFH 

A. 5E9EN8E6 

1) LCFF SoXrces 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

2) Federal ReYenXe 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

3) OWher SWaWe ReYenXe 8300-8599 70,416.00 63,377.00 -10.0% 

4) OWher Local ReYenXe 8600-8799 325.57 0.00 -100.0% 

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 70,741.57 63,377.00 -10.4% 

B. E;PENDI785E6 

1) CerWificaWed Salaries 1000-1999 45,723.12 39,081.60 -14.5% 

2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

3) Emplo\ee BenefiWs 3000-3999 21,722.60 21,437.54 -1.3% 

4) Books and SXpplies 4000-4999 371.20 11.27 -97.0% 

5) SerYices and OWher OperaWing E[pendiWXres 5000-5999 1,020.94 0.00 -100.0% 

6) CapiWal OXWla\ 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

7) OWher OXWgo (e[clXding Transfers of IndirecW 7100-7299, 
CosWs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

8) OWher OXWgo - Transfers of IndirecW CosWs 7300-7399 3,245.89 2,847.00 -12.3% 

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 72,083.75 63,377.41 -12.1% 

C. E;CE66 (DEFICIENC<) OF 5E9EN8E6 
O9E5 E;PENDI785E6 BEFO5E O7HE5 
FINANCING 6O85CE6 AND 86E6 (A5 - B9) (1,342.18) (0.41) -100.0% 

D. O7HE5 FINANCING 6O85CE6/86E6 

1) InWerfXnd Transfers 
a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

b) Transfers OXW 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

2) OWher SoXrces/Uses 
a) SoXrces 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

3) ConWribXWions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

California DepW of EdXcaWion 
SACS Financial ReporWing SofWZare - 2020.2.0 
File: fXnd-b (ReY 03/10/2020) Page 1 PrinWed: 9/12/2020 4:43 PM 

45



     
  

 
  

 
 

  

   
   

         

 

    
       

   
 
      
             

         

             

        

            

        
            
        
              

             

              

              

        

        
              

            

         
              

         
             

             

UnaXdiWed AcWXals 
SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion AdXlW EdXcaWion FXnd 44 10447 0000000 
SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ E[pendiWXres b\ ObjecW Form 11 

DHVFULSWLRQ 5HVRXUFH CRGHV OEMHFW CRGHV 
2019-20 

8QDXGLWHG AFWXDOV 
2020-21 
BXGJHW 

PHUFHQW 
DLIIHUHQFH 

E. NE7 INC5EA6E (DEC5EA6E) IN F8ND 
BALANCE (C + D4) (1,342.18) (0.41) -100.0% 

F. F8ND BALANCE, 5E6E59E6 

1) Beginning FXnd Balance 
a) As of JXl\ 1 - UnaXdiWed 

b) AXdiW AdjXsWmenWs 

c) As of JXl\ 1 - AXdiWed (F1a + F1b) 

d) OWher ResWaWemenWs 

e) AdjXsWed Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 

2) Ending Balance, JXne 30 (E + F1e) 
ComponenWs of Ending FXnd Balance 
a) Nonspendable 

ReYolYing Cash 

SWores 

Prepaid IWems 

All OWhers 

b) ResWricWed 

c) CommiWWed 
SWabili]aWion ArrangemenWs 

 OWher CommiWmenWs 

d) Assigned 
OWher AssignmenWs 

e) Unassigned/UnappropriaWed 
ReserYe for Economic UncerWainWies 

Unassigned/UnappropriaWed AmoXnW 

9791 

9793 

9795 

9711 

9712 

9713 

9719 

9740 

9750 

9760 

9780 

9789 

9790 

11,043.39 9,701.21 -12.2% 

0.0% 

-12.2% 

0.0% 

-12.2% 

0.0% 

0.00 0.00 

11,043.39 9,701.21 

0.00 0.00 

11,043.39 9,701.21 

9,701.21 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

9,700.80 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.0% 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

9,701.21 9,700.80 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0%

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

California DepW of EdXcaWion 
SACS Financial ReporWing SofWZare - 2020.2.0 
File: fXnd-b (ReY 03/10/2020) Page 2 PrinWed: 9/12/2020 4:43 PM 

46



     
  

 
  

 
 

  

   
   

         

 

 
 

     

     

     

     

     

 
 

     

     

     

     

      

     

        
         

        

     

  
      
         

   
 
     
        

        

     
        

        

    

       

UnaXdiWed AcWXalV 
SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion Child DeYelopmenW FXnd 44 10447 0000000 
SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ E[pendiWXreV b\ ObjecW Form 12 

DHVFULSWLRQ 5HVRXUFH CRGHV OEMHFW CRGHV 
2019-20 

8QDXGLWHG AFWXDOV 
2020-21 
BXGJHW 

PHUFHQW 
DLIIHUHQFH 

A. 5E9EN8E6 

1) LCFF SoXrceV 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

2) Federal ReYenXe 8100-8299 327,568.52 204,264.00 -37.6% 

3) OWher SWaWe ReYenXe 8300-8599 664,392.98 591,419.00 -11.0% 

4) OWher Local ReYenXe 8600-8799 302,129.88 200,537.00 -33.6% 

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 1,294,091.38 996,220.00 -23.0% 

B. E;PENDI785E6 

1) CerWificaWed SalarieV 1000-1999 10,059.61 0.00 -100.0% 

2) ClaVVified SalarieV 2000-2999 336,921.57 313,781.64 -6.9% 

3) Emplo\ee BenefiWV 3000-3999 196,889.81 195,612.73 -0.6% 

4) BookV and SXpplieV 4000-4999 92,552.35 49,111.83 -46.9% 

5) SerYiceV and OWher OperaWing E[pendiWXreV 5000-5999 524,626.88 368,959.80 -29.7% 

6) CapiWal OXWla\ 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

7) OWher OXWgo (e[clXding TranVferV of IndirecW 7100-7299, 
CoVWV) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

8) OWher OXWgo - TranVferV of IndirecW CoVWV 7300-7399 105,191.36 68,754.00 -34.6% 

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 1,266,241.58 996,220.00 -21.3% 

C. E;CE66 (DEFICIENC<) OF 5E9EN8E6 
O9E5 E;PENDI785E6 BEFO5E O7HE5 
FINANCING 6O85CE6 AND 86E6 (A5 - B9) 27,849.80 0.00 -100.0% 

D. O7HE5 FINANCING 6O85CE6/86E6 

1) InWerfXnd TranVferV 
a) TranVferV In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

b) TranVferV OXW 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

2) OWher SoXrceV/UVeV 
a) SoXrceV 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

b) UVeV 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

3) ConWribXWionV 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

California DepW of EdXcaWion 
SACS Financial ReporWing SofWZare - 2020.2.0 
File: fXnd-b (ReY 03/10/2020) Page 1 PrinWed: 9/12/2020 4:43 PM 

47



     
  

 
  

 
 

  

   
   

         

 

    
       

   
 
      
             

         

             

        

            

        
            
        
              

             

              

              

        

        
              

            

         
              

         
             

             

UnaXdiWed AcWXalV 
SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion Child DeYelopmenW FXnd 44 10447 0000000 
SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ E[pendiWXreV b\ ObjecW Form 12 

DHVFULSWLRQ 5HVRXUFH CRGHV OEMHFW CRGHV 
2019-20 

8QDXGLWHG AFWXDOV 
2020-21 
BXGJHW 

PHUFHQW 
DLIIHUHQFH 

E. NE7 INC5EA6E (DEC5EA6E) IN F8ND 
BALANCE (C + D4) 27,849.80 0.00 -100.0% 

F. F8ND BALANCE, 5E6E59E6 

1) Beginning FXnd Balance 
a) AV of JXl\ 1 - UnaXdiWed 

b) AXdiW AdjXVWmenWV 

c) AV of JXl\ 1 - AXdiWed (F1a + F1b) 

d) OWher ReVWaWemenWV 

e) AdjXVWed Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 

2) Ending Balance, JXne 30 (E + F1e) 
ComponenWV of Ending FXnd Balance 
a) NonVpendable 

ReYolYing CaVh 

SWoreV 

Prepaid IWemV 

All OWherV 

b) ReVWricWed 

c) CommiWWed 
SWabili]aWion ArrangemenWV 

 OWher CommiWmenWV 

d) AVVigned 
OWher AVVignmenWV 

e) UnaVVigned/UnappropriaWed 
ReVerYe for Economic UncerWainWieV 

UnaVVigned/UnappropriaWed AmoXnW 

9791 

9793 

9795 

9711 

9712 

9713 

9719 

9740 

9750 

9760 

9780 

9789 

9790 

38,475.82 66,325.62 72.4% 

0.0% 

72.4% 

0.0% 

72.4% 

0.0% 

0.00 0.00 

38,475.82 66,325.62 

0.00 0.00 

38,475.82 66,325.62 

66,325.62 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

66,325.62 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.0% 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

61,628.97 61,628.97 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0%

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

4,696.65 

0.00 

4,696.65 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

California DepW of EdXcaWion 
SACS Financial ReporWing SofWZare - 2020.2.0 
File: fXnd-b (ReY 03/10/2020) Page 2 PrinWed: 9/12/2020 4:43 PM 

48



     
  

 
   

 
 

  

   
   

         

 

 
 

     

     

     

     

     

 
 

     

     

     

     

      

     

        
         

        

     

  
      
         

   
 
     
        

        

     
        

        

    

       

UnaXdiWed AcWXals 
SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion CafeWeria Special ReYenXe FXnd 44 10447 0000000 
SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ E[pendiWXres b\ ObjecW Form 13 

DHVFULSWLRQ 5HVRXUFH CRGHV OEMHFW CRGHV 
2019-20 

8QDXGLWHG AFWXDOV 
2020-21 
BXGJHW 

PHUFHQW 
DLIIHUHQFH 

A. 5E9EN8E6 

1) LCFF SoXrces 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

2) Federal ReYenXe 8100-8299 20,996.69 45,000.00 114.3% 

3) OWher SWaWe ReYenXe 8300-8599 1,730.49 5,000.00 188.9% 

4) OWher Local ReYenXe 8600-8799 95.36 100.00 4.9% 

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 22,822.54 50,100.00 119.5% 

B. E;PENDI785E6 

1) CerWificaWed Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

3) Emplo\ee BenefiWs 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

4) Books and SXpplies 4000-4999 54,688.76 65,645.00 20.0% 

5) SerYices and OWher OperaWing E[pendiWXres 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

6) CapiWal OXWla\ 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

7) OWher OXWgo (e[clXding Transfers of IndirecW 7100-7299, 
CosWs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

8) OWher OXWgo - Transfers of IndirecW CosWs 7300-7399 2,800.06 3,455.00 23.4% 

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 57,488.82 69,100.00 20.2% 

C. E;CE66 (DEFICIENC<) OF 5E9EN8E6 
O9E5 E;PENDI785E6 BEFO5E O7HE5 
FINANCING 6O85CE6 AND 86E6 (A5 - B9) (34,666.28) (19,000.00) -45.2% 

D. O7HE5 FINANCING 6O85CE6/86E6 

1) InWerfXnd Transfers 
a) Transfers In 8900-8929 34,666.28 19,000.00 -45.2% 

b) Transfers OXW 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

2) OWher SoXrces/Uses 
a) SoXrces 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

3) ConWribXWions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 34,666.28 19,000.00 -45.2% 

California DepW of EdXcaWion 
SACS Financial ReporWing SofWZare - 2020.2.0 
File: fXnd-b (ReY 03/10/2020) Page 1 PrinWed: 9/12/2020 4:43 PM 

49



     
  

 
   

 
 

  

   
   

         

 

    
       

   
 
      
             

         

             

        

            

        
            
        
              

             

              

              

        

        
              

            

         
              

         
             

             

UnaXdiWed AcWXals 
SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion CafeWeria Special ReYenXe FXnd 44 10447 0000000 
SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ E[pendiWXres b\ ObjecW Form 13 

DHVFULSWLRQ 5HVRXUFH CRGHV OEMHFW CRGHV 
2019-20 

8QDXGLWHG AFWXDOV 
2020-21 
BXGJHW 

PHUFHQW 
DLIIHUHQFH 

E. NE7 INC5EA6E (DEC5EA6E) IN F8ND 
BALANCE (C + D4) 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

F. F8ND BALANCE, 5E6E59E6 

1) Beginning FXnd Balance 
a) As of JXl\ 1 - UnaXdiWed 

b) AXdiW AdjXsWmenWs 

c) As of JXl\ 1 - AXdiWed (F1a + F1b) 

d) OWher ResWaWemenWs 

e) AdjXsWed Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 

2) Ending Balance, JXne 30 (E + F1e) 
ComponenWs of Ending FXnd Balance 
a) Nonspendable 

ReYolYing Cash 

SWores 

Prepaid IWems 

All OWhers 

b) ResWricWed 

c) CommiWWed 
SWabili]aWion ArrangemenWs 

 OWher CommiWmenWs 

d) Assigned 
OWher AssignmenWs 

e) Unassigned/UnappropriaWed 
ReserYe for Economic UncerWainWies 

Unassigned/UnappropriaWed AmoXnW 

9791 

9793 

9795 

9711 

9712 

9713 

9719 

9740 

9750 

9760 

9780 

9789 

9790 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.0% 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0%

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

California DepW of EdXcaWion 
SACS Financial ReporWing SofWZare - 2020.2.0 
File: fXnd-b (ReY 03/10/2020) Page 2 PrinWed: 9/12/2020 4:44 PM 

50



     
  

 
  

 
 

  

   
   

         

 

 
 

     

     

     

     

     

 
 

     

     

     

     

      

     

        
         

        

     

  
      
         

   
 
     
        

        

     
        

        

    

       

UnaXdiWed AcWXals 
SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion Deferred MainWenance FXnd 44 10447 0000000 
SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ E[pendiWXres b\ ObjecW Form 14 

DHVFULSWLRQ 5HVRXUFH CRGHV OEMHFW CRGHV 
2019-20 

8QDXGLWHG AFWXDOV 
2020-21 
BXGJHW 

PHUFHQW 
DLIIHUHQFH 

A. 5E9EN8E6 

1) LCFF SoXrces 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

2) Federal ReYenXe 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

3) OWher SWaWe ReYenXe 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

4) OWher Local ReYenXe 8600-8799 20,511.53 10,000.00 -51.2% 

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 20,511.53 10,000.00 -51.2% 

B. E;PENDI785E6 

1) CerWificaWed Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

3) Emplo\ee BenefiWs 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

4) Books and SXpplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

5) SerYices and OWher OperaWing E[pendiWXres 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

6) CapiWal OXWla\ 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

7) OWher OXWgo (e[clXding Transfers of IndirecW 7100-7299, 
CosWs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

8) OWher OXWgo - Transfers of IndirecW CosWs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

C. E;CE66 (DEFICIENC<) OF 5E9EN8E6 
O9E5 E;PENDI785E6 BEFO5E O7HE5 
FINANCING 6O85CE6 AND 86E6 (A5 - B9) 20,511.53 10,000.00 -51.2% 

D. O7HE5 FINANCING 6O85CE6/86E6 

1) InWerfXnd Transfers 
a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

b) Transfers OXW 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

2) OWher SoXrces/Uses 
a) SoXrces 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

3) ConWribXWions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

California DepW of EdXcaWion 
SACS Financial ReporWing SofWZare - 2020.2.0 
File: fXnd-b (ReY 03/10/2020) Page 1 PrinWed: 9/12/2020 4:44 PM 

51



     
  

 
  

 
 

  

   
   

         

 

    
       

   
 
      
             

         

             

        

            

        
            
        
              

             

              

              

        

        
              

            

         
              

         
             

             

UnaXdiWed AcWXals 
SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion Deferred MainWenance FXnd 44 10447 0000000 
SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ E[pendiWXres b\ ObjecW Form 14 

DHVFULSWLRQ 5HVRXUFH CRGHV OEMHFW CRGHV 
2019-20 

8QDXGLWHG AFWXDOV 
2020-21 
BXGJHW 

PHUFHQW 
DLIIHUHQFH 

E. NE7 INC5EA6E (DEC5EA6E) IN F8ND 
BALANCE (C + D4) 20,511.53 10,000.00 -51.2% 

F. F8ND BALANCE, 5E6E59E6 

1) Beginning FXnd Balance 
a) As of JXl\ 1 - UnaXdiWed 

b) AXdiW AdjXsWmenWs 

c) As of JXl\ 1 - AXdiWed (F1a + F1b) 

d) OWher ResWaWemenWs 

e) AdjXsWed Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 

2) Ending Balance, JXne 30 (E + F1e) 
ComponenWs of Ending FXnd Balance 
a) Nonspendable 

ReYolYing Cash 

SWores 

Prepaid IWems 

All OWhers 

b) ResWricWed 

c) CommiWWed 
SWabili]aWion ArrangemenWs 

 OWher CommiWmenWs 

d) Assigned 
OWher AssignmenWs 

e) Unassigned/UnappropriaWed 
ReserYe for Economic UncerWainWies 

Unassigned/UnappropriaWed AmoXnW 

9791 

9793 

9795 

9711 

9712 

9713 

9719 

9740 

9750 

9760 

9780 

9789 

9790 

1,028,247.61 1,048,759.14 2.0% 

0.0% 

2.0% 

0.0% 

2.0% 

1.0% 

0.00 0.00 

1,028,247.61 1,048,759.14 

0.00 0.00 

1,028,247.61 1,048,759.14 

1,048,759.14 

0.00 

1,058,759.14 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0%

1,048,759.14 1,058,759.14 1.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

California DepW of EdXcaWion 
SACS Financial ReporWing SofWZare - 2020.2.0 
File: fXnd-b (ReY 03/10/2020) Page 2 PrinWed: 9/12/2020 4:44 PM 

52



     
  

 
      

 
 

  

   
   

         

 

 
 

     

     

     

     

     

 
 

     

     

     

     

      

     

        
         

        

     

  
      
         

   
 
     
        

        

     
        

        

    

       

Unaudited Actuals 
Santa Cru] Count\ Office of Education Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outla\ Projects 44 10447 0000000 
Santa Cru] Count\ E[penditures b\ Object Form 17 

DHVFULSWLRQ RHVRXUFH CRGHV OEMHFW CRGHV 
2019-20 

8QDXGLWHG AFWXDOV 
2020-21 
BXGJHW 

PHUFHQW 
DLIIHUHQFH 

A. RE9EN8E6 

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 51,284.49 25,000.00 -51.3% 

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 51,284.49 25,000.00 -51.3% 

B. E;PENDI78RE6 

1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

3) Emplo\ee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

5) Services and Other Operating E[penditures 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

6) Capital Outla\ 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

7) Other Outgo (e[cluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299, 
Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

C. E;CE66 (DEFICIENC<) OF RE9EN8E6 
O9ER E;PENDI78RE6 BEFORE O7HER 
FINANCING 6O8RCE6 AND 86E6 (A5 - B9) 51,284.49 25,000.00 -51.3% 

D. O7HER FINANCING 6O8RCE6/86E6 

1) Interfund Transfers 
a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

2) Other Sources/Uses 
a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting SoftZare - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 03/10/2020) Page 1 Printed: 9/12/2020 4:44 PM 

53



     
  

 
      

 
 

  

   
   

         

 

    
       

   
 
      
             

         

             

        

            

        
            
        
              

             

              

              

        

        
              

            

         
              

         
             

             

Unaudited Actuals 
Santa Cru] Count\ Office of Education Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outla\ Projects 44 10447 0000000 
Santa Cru] Count\ E[penditures b\ Object Form 17 

DHVFULSWLRQ RHVRXUFH CRGHV OEMHFW CRGHV 
2019-20 

8QDXGLWHG AFWXDOV 
2020-21 
BXGJHW 

PHUFHQW 
DLIIHUHQFH 

E. NE7 INCREA6E (DECREA6E) IN F8ND 
BALANCE (C + D4) 51,284.49 25,000.00 -51.3% 

F. F8ND BALANCE, RE6ER9E6 

1) Beginning Fund Balance 
a) As of Jul\ 1 - Unaudited 

b) Audit Adjustments 

c) As of Jul\ 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 

d) Other Restatements 

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 
Components of Ending Fund Balance 
a) Nonspendable 

Revolving Cash 

Stores 

Prepaid Items 

All Others 

b) Restricted 

c) Committed 
Stabili]ation Arrangements 

 Other Commitments 

d) Assigned 
Other Assignments 

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated 
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 

9791 

9793 

9795 

9711 

9712 

9713 

9719 

9740 

9750 

9760 

9780 

9789 

9790 

2,570,903.12 2,622,187.61 2.0% 

0.0% 

2.0% 

0.0% 

2.0% 

1.0% 

0.00 0.00 

2,570,903.12 2,622,187.61 

0.00 0.00 

2,570,903.12 2,622,187.61 

2,622,187.61 

0.00 

2,647,187.61 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.0%

0.00 0.0% 

0.0% 0.00 0.00 

2,622,187.61 2,647,187.61 1.0% 

0.0% 0.00 0.00 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting SoftZare - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 03/10/2020) Page 2 Printed: 9/12/2020 4:44 PM 

54



     
  

 
  

 
 

  

   
   

         

 

 
 

     

     

     

     

     

 
 

     

     

     

     

      

     

        
         

        

     

  
      
         

   
 
     
        

        

     
        

        

    

       

UnaXdiWed AcWXals 
SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion CoXnW\ School FaciliWies FXnd 44 10447 0000000 
SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ E[pendiWXres b\ ObjecW Form 35 

DHVFULSWLRQ 5HVRXUFH CRGHV OEMHFW CRGHV 
2019-20 

8QDXGLWHG AFWXDOV 
2020-21 
BXGJHW 

PHUFHQW 
DLIIHUHQFH 

A. 5E9EN8E6 

1) LCFF SoXrces 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

2) Federal ReYenXe 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

3) OWher SWaWe ReYenXe 8300-8599 (974,677.96) 0.00 -100.0% 

4) OWher Local ReYenXe 8600-8799 (130,822.29) 5,000.00 -103.8% 

5) TOTAL, REVENUES (1,105,500.25) 5,000.00 -100.5% 

B. E;PENDI785E6 

1) CerWificaWed Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

3) Emplo\ee BenefiWs 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

4) Books and SXpplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

5) SerYices and OWher OperaWing E[pendiWXres 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

6) CapiWal OXWla\ 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

7) OWher OXWgo (e[clXding Transfers of IndirecW 7100-7299, 
CosWs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

8) OWher OXWgo - Transfers of IndirecW CosWs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

C. E;CE66 (DEFICIENC<) OF 5E9EN8E6 
O9E5 E;PENDI785E6 BEFO5E O7HE5 
FINANCING 6O85CE6 AND 86E6 (A5 - B9) (1,105,500.25) 5,000.00 -100.5% 

D. O7HE5 FINANCING 6O85CE6/86E6 

1) InWerfXnd Transfers 
a) Transfers In 8900-8929 609,161.04 0.00 -100.0% 

b) Transfers OXW 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

2) OWher SoXrces/Uses 
a) SoXrces 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

3) ConWribXWions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 609,161.04 0.00 -100.0% 

California DepW of EdXcaWion 
SACS Financial ReporWing SofWZare - 2020.2.0 
File: fXnd-d (ReY 02/07/2019) Page 1 PrinWed: 9/12/2020 4:44 PM 

55



     
  

 
  

 
 

  

   
   

         

 

    
       

   
 
      
             

         

             

        

            

        
             
        
              

             

              

              

        

         
              

            

         
              

         
             

             

UnaXdiWed AcWXals 
SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion CoXnW\ School FaciliWies FXnd 44 10447 0000000 
SanWa CrX] CoXnW\ E[pendiWXres b\ ObjecW Form 35 

DHVFULSWLRQ 5HVRXUFH CRGHV OEMHFW CRGHV 
2019-20 

8QDXGLWHG AFWXDOV 
2020-21 
BXGJHW 

PHUFHQW 
DLIIHUHQFH 

E. NE7 INC5EA6E (DEC5EA6E) IN F8ND 
BALANCE (C + D4) (496,339.21) 5,000.00 -101.0% 

F. F8ND BALANCE, 5E6E59E6 

1) Beginning FXnd Balance 
a) As of JXl\ 1 - UnaXdiWed 

b) AXdiW AdjXsWmenWs 

c) As of JXl\ 1 - AXdiWed (F1a + F1b) 

d) OWher ResWaWemenWs 

e) AdjXsWed Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 

2) Ending Balance, JXne 30 (E + F1e) 
ComponenWs of Ending FXnd Balance 
a) Nonspendable 

ReYolYing Cash 

SWores 

Prepaid IWems 

All OWhers 

b) ResWricWed 

c) CommiWWed 
SWabili]aWion ArrangemenWs 

 OWher CommiWmenWs 

d) Assigned 
OWher AssignmenWs 

e) Unassigned/UnappropriaWed 
ReserYe for Economic UncerWainWies 

Unassigned/UnappropriaWed AmoXnW 

9791 

9793 

9795 

9711 

9712 

9713 

9719 

9740 

9750 

9760 

9780 

9789 

9790 

496,339.21 0.00 -100.0% 

0.0% 

-100.0% 

0.0% 

-100.0% 

NeZ 

0.00 0.00 

496,339.21 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

496,339.21 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

5,000.00 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.0% 

0.0% 

NeZ 

0.00 

5,000.00 

0.00 0.00 0.0%

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.0% 

California DepW of EdXcaWion 
SACS Financial ReporWing SofWZare - 2020.2.0 
File: fXnd-d (ReY 02/07/2019) Page 2 PrinWed: 9/12/2020 4:45 PM 

56



     
  

 
  

 
 

  

   
   

         

 

 
 

     

     

     

     

     

 
 

     

     

     

     

      

    

        
         

        

     

  
       
         

   
 
     
        

        

     
        

        

    

       

Unaudited Actuals 
Santa Cru] Count\ Office of Education Retiree Benefit Fund 44 10447 0000000 
Santa Cru] Count\ E[penses b\ Object Form 71 

DHVFULSWLRQ RHVRXUFH CRGHV OEMHFW CRGHV 
2019-20 

8QDXGLWHG AFWXDOV 
2020-21 
BXGJHW 

PHUFHQW 
DLIIHUHQFH 

A. RE9EN8ES 

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 1,156,395.21 850,000.00 -26.5% 

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 1,156,395.21 850,000.00 -26.5% 

B. E;PENSES 

1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

3) Emplo\ee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

5) Services and Other Operating E[penses 5000-5999 735,516.32 630,000.00 -14.3% 

6) Depreciation 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

7) Other Outgo (e[cluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299, 
Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

9) TOTAL, EXPENSES 735,516.32 630,000.00 -14.3% 

C. E;CESS (DEFICIENC<) OF RE9EN8ES 
O9ER E;PENSES BEFORE OTHER 
FINANCING SO8RCES AND 8SES (A5 - B9) 420,878.89 220,000.00 -47.7% 

D. OTHER FINANCING SO8RCES/8SES 

1) Interfund Transfers 
a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

2) Other Sources/Uses 
a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-e (Rev 03/27/2018) Page 1 Printed: 9/12/2020 4:45 PM 

57



     
  

 
  

 
 

  

   
   

         

 

   
         

  
 
      
             

         

             

        

            

           
 
             
            

          

          

Unaudited Actuals 
Santa Cru] Count\ Office of Education Retiree Benefit Fund 44 10447 0000000 
Santa Cru] Count\ E[penses b\ Object Form 71 

DHVFULSWLRQ RHVRXUFH CRGHV OEMHFW CRGHV 
2019-20 

8QDXGLWHG AFWXDOV 
2020-21 
BXGJHW 

PHUFHQW 
DLIIHUHQFH 

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN 
NET POSITION (C + D4) 420,878.89 220,000.00 -47.7% 

F. NET POSITION 

1) Beginning Net Position 
a) As of Jul\ 1 - Unaudited 9791 9,060,657.20 9,481,536.09 4.6% 

0.0% 

4.6% 

0.0% 

4.6% 

2.3% 

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 

c) As of Jul\ 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 9,060,657.20 9,481,536.09 

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 

e) Adjusted Beginning Net Position (F1c + F1d) 9,060,657.20 9,481,536.09 

2) Ending Net Position, June 30 (E + F1e) 9,481,536.09 9,701,536.09 

Components of Ending Net Position 
a) Net Investment in Capital Assets 9796 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

b) Restricted Net Position 9797 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

c) Unrestricted Net Position 9790 9,481,536.09 9,701,536.09 2.3% 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: fund-e (Rev 03/27/2018) Page 2 Printed: 9/12/2020 4:45 PM 

58



    
 

  
  

 

   
    

          

      
   

   
    

        
           
           
           
            
           
               
      
         
           
         
           
          
               
              
          
            
                 
            
               
     
          
      
     
     
          
          

2020-21 BXGJHW

2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 
Santa Cru] County Office of Education AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE 44 10447 0000000 
Santa Cru] County Form A 

2019-20 8QDXGLWHG AFWXDOV 2020-21 BXGJHW 
EVWLPDWHG P-2 EVWLPDWHG EVWLPDWHG 

DHVFULSWLRQ P-2 ADA AQQXDO ADA FXQGHG ADA ADA AQQXDO ADA FXQGHG ADA 

B. CO8N7< OFFICE OF ED8CA7ION 
1. CRXQW\ PURJUDP AOWHUQDWLYH EGXFDWLRQ ADA 

a. County Group Home and Institution Pupils 
b. Juvenile Halls, Homes, and Camps 61.87 61.87 61.87 61.87 61.87 61.87 
c. Probation Referred, On Probation or Parole, 

Expelled per EC 48915(a) or (c) [EC 2574(c)(4)(A)] 803.51 803.51 803.51 903.13 903.13 903.13 
G. 7RWDO, CRXQW\ PURJUDP AOWHUQDWLYH EGXFDWLRQ 

ADA (6XP RI LLQHV B1D WKURXJK B1F) 865.38 865.38 865.38 965.00 965.00 965.00 
2. DLVWULFW FXQGHG CRXQW\ PURJUDP ADA 

a. County Community Schools 
b. Special Education-Special Day Class 82.63 82.63 82.63 82.63 82.63 82.63 
c. Special Education-NPS/LCI 
d. Special Education Extended Year 6.27 6.27 6.27 6.27 6.27 6.27 
e. Other County Operated Programs: 

Opportunity Schools and Full Day 
Opportunity Classes, Speciali]ed Secondary

 Schools 
f. County School Tuition Fund 

(Out of State Tuition) [EC 2000 and 46380] 
J. 7RWDO, DLVWULFW FXQGHG CRXQW\ PURJUDP ADA 

(6XP RI LLQHV B2D WKURXJK B2I) 88.90 88.90 88.90 88.90 88.90 88.90 
3. 7O7AL CO8N7< OFFICE ADA 

(6XP RI LLQHV B1G DQG B2J) 954.28 954.28 954.28 1,053.90 1,053.90 1,053.90 
4. AGXOWV LQ CRUUHFWLRQDO FDFLOLWLHV 
5. CRXQW\ OSHUDWLRQV GUDQW ADA 37,306.28 37,306.28 37,306.28 37,306.28 37,306.28 37,306.28 
6. CKDUWHU 6FKRRO ADA 

(EQWHU CKDUWHU 6FKRRO ADA XVLQJ 
7DE C. CKDUWHU 6FKRRO ADA) 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: ada (Rev 03/27/2018) Page 1 of 1 Printed: 9/12/2020 4:45 PM 

59



     
  

  
   

   
     

          

    

  
 

 
   

                                                    
                                                

                        

        
    

       
            
           
            
                 
            
          
            

   
          
           
         
           
           
              
              
          
            
          
            

   
           

           

        
    

       
            
           
            
                 
           
          
            

   
          
           
         
           
           
              
              
          
            
          
            

   
           

   
      
          

2020-21 BXGJHW

Authori]ing LEAs reporting charter school SACS financial data in their Fund 01, 09, or 62 use this worksheet to report ADA for those charter schools.
Charter schools reporting SACS financial data separately from their authori]ing LEAs in Fund 01 or Fund 62 use this worksheet to report their ADA.

 F8ND 01: CKDUWHU 6FKRRO ADA FRUUHVSRQGLQJ WR 6AC6 ILQDQFLDO GDWD UHSRUWHG LQ FXQG 01.

2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 
Santa Cru] County Office of Education AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE 44 10447 0000000 
Santa Cru] County Form A 

 2019-20 8QDXGLWHG AFWXDOV 2020-21 BXGJHW 

DHVFULSWLRQ P-2 ADA AQQXDO ADA FXQGHG ADA 
EVWLPDWHG P-2 

ADA 
EVWLPDWHG 

AQQXDO ADA 
EVWLPDWHG 

FXQGHG ADA 
C. CHAR7ER 6CHOOL ADA 

Authori]ing LEAs reporting charter school SACS financial data in their Fund 01, 09, or 62 use this worksheet to report ADA for those charter schools. 
Charter schools reporting SACS financial data separately from their authori]ing LEAs in Fund 01 or Fund 62 use this worksheet to report their ADA.

 F8ND 01: CKDUWHU 6FKRRO ADA FRUUHVSRQGLQJ WR 6AC6 ILQDQFLDO GDWD UHSRUWHG LQ FXQG 01. 

1. 7RWDO CKDUWHU 6FKRRO RHJXODU ADA
 2.  CKDUWHU 6FKRRO CRXQW\ PURJUDP AOWHUQDWLYH 

EGXFDWLRQ ADA 
a. County Group Home and Institution Pupils 
b. Juvenile Halls, Homes, and Camps 
c. Probation Referred, On Probation or Parole, 

Expelled per EC 48915(a) or (c) [EC 2574(c)(4)(A)] 
G. 7RWDO, CKDUWHU 6FKRRO CRXQW\ PURJUDP 

AOWHUQDWLYH EGXFDWLRQ ADA 
(6XP RI LLQHV C2D WKURXJK C2F) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

 3.  CKDUWHU 6FKRRO FXQGHG CRXQW\ PURJUDP ADA 
a. County Community Schools 
b. Special Education-Special Day Class 
c. Special Education-NPS/LCI 
d. Special Education Extended Year 
e. Other County Operated Programs: 

Opportunity Schools and Full Day 
Opportunity Classes, Speciali]ed Secondary
 Schools 

I. 7RWDO, CKDUWHU 6FKRRO FXQGHG CRXQW\ 
PURJUDP ADA 
(6XP RI LLQHV C3D WKURXJK C3H) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

 4.  7O7AL CHAR7ER 6CHOOL ADA 
(6XP RI LLQHV C1, C2G, DQG C3I) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

 F8ND 09 RU 62: CKDUWHU 6FKRRO ADA FRUUHVSRQGLQJ WR 6AC6 ILQDQFLDO GDWD UHSRUWHG LQ FXQG 09 RU FXQG 62. 

5. 7RWDO CKDUWHU 6FKRRO RHJXODU ADA 208.73 208.73 208.73 115.00 115.00 115.00
 6.  CKDUWHU 6FKRRO CRXQW\ PURJUDP AOWHUQDWLYH 

EGXFDWLRQ ADA 
a. County Group Home and Institution Pupils 
b. Juvenile Halls, Homes, and Camps 
c. Probation Referred, On Probation or Parole, 

Expelled per EC 48915(a) or (c) [EC 2574(c)(4)(A)] 
G. 7RWDO, CKDUWHU 6FKRRO CRXQW\ PURJUDP 

AOWHUQDWLYH EGXFDWLRQ ADA 
(6XP RI LLQHV C6D WKURXJK C6F) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

 7.  CKDUWHU 6FKRRO FXQGHG CRXQW\ PURJUDP ADA 
a. County Community Schools 
b. Special Education-Special Day Class 
c. Special Education-NPS/LCI 
d. Special Education Extended Year 
e. Other County Operated Programs: 

Opportunity Schools and Full Day 
Opportunity Classes, Speciali]ed Secondary
 Schools 

I. 7RWDO, CKDUWHU 6FKRRO FXQGHG CRXQW\ 
PURJUDP ADA 
(6XP RI LLQHV C7D WKURXJK C7H) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

 8.  7O7AL CHAR7ER 6CHOOL ADA 
(6XP RI LLQHV C5, C6G, DQG C7I) 208.73 208.73 208.73 115.00 115.00 115.00

 9.  7O7AL CHAR7ER 6CHOOL ADA
 RHSRUWHG LQ FXQG 01, 09, RU 62 
(6XP RI LLQHV C4 DQG C8) 208.73 208.73 208.73 115.00 115.00 115.00 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 
File: ada (Rev 03/27/2018) Page 1 of 1 Printed: 9/12/2020 4:45 PM 60



     
  

 
  

      

   
    

        

   
  

       

     
   

     
       

 
  

 
 

 

 

   
 

       
    

     
  

    
      

      
  

   

 
  

     

     
    

    

   
        

8QDXGLWHG AFWXDOV 
6DQWD CUX] CRXQW\ OIILFH RI EGXFDWLRQ 2019-20 8QDXGLWHG AFWXDOV 44 10447 0000000 
6DQWD CUX] CRXQW\ EYHU\ 6WXGHQW 6XFFHHGV AFW MDLQWHQDQFH RI EIIRUW E[SHQGLWXUHV FRUP E6MOE 

SHcWLRQ I - E[SHQdLWXUHV 

A. 7RWDO VWDWH, IHGHUDO, DQG ORFDO H[SHQGLWXUHV (DOO UHVRXUFHV) 

B. LHVV DOO IHGHUDO H[SHQGLWXUHV QRW DOORZHG IRU MOE 
(5HVRXUFHV 3000-5999, H[FHSW 3385) 

C. LHVV VWDWH DQG ORFDO H[SHQGLWXUHV QRW DOORZHG IRU MOE: 
(AOO UHVRXUFHV, H[FHSW IHGHUDO DV LGHQWLILHG LQ LLQH B) 
1. CRPPXQLW\ 6HUYLFHV 

2. CDSLWDO OXWOD\ 

3. DHEW 6HUYLFH 

4. OWKHU 7UDQVIHUV OXW 

5. IQWHUIXQG 7UDQVIHUV OXW 

6. AOO OWKHU FLQDQFLQJ 8VHV 

7. NRQDJHQF\ 

8. 7XLWLRQ (5HYHQXH, LQ OLHX RI H[SHQGLWXUHV, WR DSSUR[LPDWH 
FRVWV RI VHUYLFHV IRU ZKLFK WXLWLRQ LV UHFHLYHG) 

9. 6XSSOHPHQWDO H[SHQGLWXUHV PDGH DV D UHVXOW RI D 
PUHVLGHQWLDOO\ GHFODUHG GLVDVWHU 

10. 7RWDO VWDWH DQG ORFDO H[SHQGLWXUHV QRW 
DOORZHG IRU MOE FDOFXODWLRQ 
(6XP OLQHV C1 WKURXJK C9) 

D. POXV DGGLWLRQDO MOE H[SHQGLWXUHV: 
1. E[SHQGLWXUHV WR FRYHU GHILFLWV IRU IRRG VHUYLFHV 

(FXQGV 13 DQG 61) (II QHJDWLYH, WKHQ ]HUR) 

2. E[SHQGLWXUHV WR FRYHU GHILFLWV IRU VWXGHQW ERG\ DFWLYLWLHV 

E. 7RWDO H[SHQGLWXUHV VXEMHFW WR MOE 
(LLQH A PLQXV OLQHV B DQG C10, SOXV OLQHV D1 DQG D2) 

FXQdV 01, 09, aQd 62 

GRaOV FXQcWLRQV ObMHcWV 

2019-20 
E[SHQdLWXUHV 

AOO AOO 1000-7999 52,871,605.28 

AOO AOO 1000-7999 1,892,334.44 

AOO 5000-5999 1000-7999 1,827,371.09 
AOO H[FHSW 
7100-7199 

AOO H[FHSW 
5000-5999 6000-6999 145,761.23 

AOO 9100 

5400-5450, 
5800, 7430-

7439 624,754.82 

AOO 9200 7200-7299 4,272,034.37 

AOO 9300 7600-7629 1,235,042.40 

9100 7699 

AOO 9200 7651 0.00 

7100-7199 

AOO H[FHSW 
5000-5999, 
9000-9999 1000-7999 0.00 

AOO AOO 8710 105,729.47 

MDQXDOO\ HQWHUHG. MXVW QRW LQFOXGH 
H[SHQGLWXUHV LQ OLQHV B, C1-C8, D1, RU 

D2. 

8,210,693.38 
1000-7143, 
7300-7439 

AOO AOO 
PLQXV 

8000-8699 34,666.28 

MDQXDOO\ HQWHUHG. MXVW QRW LQFOXGH 
H[SHQGLWXUHV LQ OLQHV A RU D1. 

42,803,243.74 

CDOLIRUQLD DHSW RI EGXFDWLRQ 
6AC6 FLQDQFLDO 5HSRUWLQJ 6RIWZDUH - 2020.2.0 
FLOH: HVPRH (5HY 03/01/2018) PDJH 1 PULQWHG: 9/12/2020 4:50 PM 

61



     
  

 
  

      

   
    

        

    
 

  

  
      

      

        
      

     
        

          
     

       
     

        

    

    

       
   

            
          

          

      
     

     
       

8QDXGLWHG AFWXDOV 
6DQWD CUX] CRXQW\ OIILFH RI EGXFDWLRQ 2019-20 8QDXGLWHG AFWXDOV 44 10447 0000000 
6DQWD CUX] CRXQW\ EYHU\ 6WXGHQW 6XFFHHGV AFW MDLQWHQDQFH RI EIIRUW E[SHQGLWXUHV FRUP E6MOE 

SHcWLRQ II - E[SHQdLWXUHV PHU ADA 

2019-20 
AQQXaO ADA/

E[SV. PHU ADA 

A. AYHUDJH DDLO\ AWWHQGDQFH 
(FRUP A, AQQXDO ADA FROXPQ, VXP RI OLQHV B1G DQG C9) 

1,074.11 

B. E[SHQGLWXUHV SHU ADA (LLQH I.E GLYLGHG E\ LLQH II.A) 39,849.96 

SHcWLRQ III - MOE CaOcXOaWLRQ (FRU daWa cROOHcWLRQ RQO\. FLQaO 
dHWHUPLQaWLRQ ZLOO bH dRQH b\ CDE) TRWaO PHU ADA 

A. BDVH H[SHQGLWXUHV (PUHORDGHG H[SHQGLWXUHV IURP SULRU \HDU RIILFLDO CDE 
MOE FDOFXODWLRQ). (NRWH: II WKH SULRU \HDU MOE ZDV QRW PHW, CDE KDV 
DGMXVWHG WKH SULRU \HDU EDVH WR 90 SHUFHQW RI WKH SUHFHGLQJ SULRU \HDU 
DPRXQW UDWKHU WKDQ WKH DFWXDO SULRU \HDU H[SHQGLWXUH DPRXQW.) 

44,668,976.65 46,266.56 
1. AGMXVWPHQW WR EDVH H[SHQGLWXUH DQG H[SHQGLWXUH SHU ADA DPRXQWV IRU 

LEAV IDLOLQJ SULRU \HDU MOE FDOFXODWLRQ (FURP 6HFWLRQ I9) 0.00 0.00 

2. 7RWDO DGMXVWHG EDVH H[SHQGLWXUH DPRXQWV (LLQH A SOXV LLQH A.1) 44,668,976.65 46,266.56 

B. 5HTXLUHG HIIRUW (LLQH A.2 WLPHV 90%) 40,202,078.99 41,639.90 

C. CXUUHQW \HDU H[SHQGLWXUHV (LLQH I.E DQG LLQH II.B) 42,803,243.74 39,849.96 

D. MOE GHILFLHQF\ DPRXQW, LI DQ\ (LLQH B PLQXV LLQH C) 
(II QHJDWLYH, WKHQ ]HUR) 0.00 1,789.94 

E. MOE GHWHUPLQDWLRQ 
(II RQH RU ERWK RI WKH DPRXQWV LQ OLQH D DUH ]HUR, WKH MOE UHTXLUHPHQW MOE MHW 
LV PHW; LI ERWK DPRXQWV DUH SRVLWLYH, WKH MOE UHTXLUHPHQW LV QRW PHW. II 
HLWKHU FROXPQ LQ LLQH A.2 RU LLQH C HTXDOV ]HUR, WKH MOE FDOFXODWLRQ LV 
LQFRPSOHWH.) 

F. MOE GHILFLHQF\ SHUFHQWDJH, LI MOE QRW PHW; RWKHUZLVH, ]HUR 
(LLQH D GLYLGHG E\ LLQH B) 
(FXQGLQJ XQGHU E66A FRYHUHG SURJUDPV LQ F< 2021-22 PD\ 
EH UHGXFHG E\ WKH ORZHU RI WKH WZR SHUFHQWDJHV) 0.00% 4.30% 

CDOLIRUQLD DHSW RI EGXFDWLRQ 
6AC6 FLQDQFLDO 5HSRUWLQJ 6RIWZDUH - 2020.2.0 
FLOH: HVPRH (5HY 03/01/2018) PDJH 2 PULQWHG: 9/12/2020 4:50 PM 

62



     
  

 
  

      

   
    

        

            

  

   

8QDXGLWHG AFWXDOV 
6DQWD CUX] CRXQW\ OIILFH RI EGXFDWLRQ 2019-20 8QDXGLWHG AFWXDOV 44 10447 0000000 
6DQWD CUX] CRXQW\ EYHU\ 6WXGHQW 6XFFHHGV AFW MDLQWHQDQFH RI EIIRUW E[SHQGLWXUHV FRUP E6MOE 

SECTION IV - DHWaLO RI AdMXVWPHQWV WR BaVH E[SHQdLWXUHV (XVHd LQ SHcWLRQ III, LLQH A.1) 
TRWaO E[SHQdLWXUHV 

DHVcULSWLRQ RI AdMXVWPHQWV E[SHQdLWXUHV PHU ADA 

7RWDO DGMXVWPHQWV WR EDVH H[SHQGLWXUHV 0.00 0.00 

CDOLIRUQLD DHSW RI EGXFDWLRQ 
6AC6 FLQDQFLDO 5HSRUWLQJ 6RIWZDUH - 2020.2.0 
FLOH: HVPRH (5HY 03/01/2018) PDJH 3 PULQWHG: 9/12/2020 4:50 PM 

63



     
  

 
  

    

   
    

          

           
                       
                
                    
                    
        

                     
                            
                        
                       
                                    
                                     
                                      
                                      

                 
                            
                            
 
                 
                              
 

         
                      
                     
       

                      
                       
                    
                      
               

                  
                   
                    
                     
                       

             
                              
                              
                                  
                

               
                          
                         
                            

UnaXdited ActXals 
Santa CrX] CoXnt\ Office of EdXcation 2019-20 UnaXdited ActXals 44 10447 0000000 
Santa CrX] CoXnt\ Indirect Cost Rate Worksheet Form ICR 

PDUW I - GHQHUDO AGPLQLVWUDWLYH SKDUH RI PODQW SHUYLFHV CRVWV 

California's indirect cost plan alloZs that the general administratiYe costs in the indirect cost pool ma\ inclXde that portion of plant serYices 
costs (maintenance and operations costs and facilities rents and leases costs) attribXtable to the general administratiYe offices. The 
calcXlation of the plant serYices costs attribXted to general administration and inclXded in the pool is standardi]ed and aXtomated 
Xsing the percentage of salaries and benefits relating to general administration as pro[\ for the percentage of sqXare footage 
occXpied b\ general administration. 

A. SDODULHV DQG BHQHILWV - OWKHU GHQHUDO AGPLQLVWUDWLRQ DQG CHQWUDOL]HG DDWD PURFHVVLQJ 

1. Salaries and benefits paid throXgh pa\roll (FXnds 01, 09, and 62, objects 1000-3999 e[cept 3701-3702) 
(FXnctions 7200-7700, goals 0000 and 9000) 3,240,073.57 

2. Contracted general administratiYe positions not paid throXgh pa\roll 
a. Enter the costs, if an\, of general administratiYe positions performing serYices ON SITE bXt paid throXgh a 

contract, rather than throXgh pa\roll, in fXnctions 7200-7700, goals 0000 and 9000, Object 5800. 
b. If an amoXnt is entered on Line A2a, proYide the title, dXties, and appro[imate FTE of each general 

administratiYe position paid throXgh a contract. Retain sXpporting docXmentation in case of aXdit. 

B. SDODULHV DQG BHQHILWV - AOO OWKHU AFWLYLWLHV 
1. Salaries and benefits paid throXgh pa\roll (FXnds 01, 09, and 62, objects 1000-3999 e[cept 3701-3702) 

(FXnctions 1000-6999, 7100-7180, & 8100-8400; FXnctions 7200-7700, all goals e[cept 0000 & 9000) 33,717,110.44 

C. PHUFHQWDJH RI PODQW SHUYLFHV CRVWV AWWULEXWDEOH WR GHQHUDO AGPLQLVWUDWLRQ 
(Line A1 plXs Line A2a, diYided b\ Line B1; ]ero if negatiYe) (See Part III, Lines A5 and A6) 9.61% 

PDUW II - AGMXVWPHQWV IRU EPSOR\PHQW SHSDUDWLRQ CRVWV 

When an emplo\ee separates from serYice, the local edXcational agenc\ (LEA) ma\ incXr costs associated Zith the separation in addition 
to the emplo\ee's regXlar salar\ and benefits for the final pa\ period. These additional costs can be categori]ed as "normal" or "abnormal 
or mass" separation costs. 

Normal separation costs inclXde items sXch as pa\ for accXmXlated XnXsed leaYe or roXtine seYerance pa\ aXthori]ed b\ goYerning board 
polic\. Normal separation costs are not alloZable as direct costs to federal programs, bXt are alloZable as indirect costs. State programs 
ma\ haYe similar restrictions. Where federal or state program gXidelines reqXired that the LEA charge an emplo\ee's normal separation 
costs to an Xnrestricted resoXrce rather than to the restricted program in Zhich the emplo\ee Zorked, the LEA ma\ identif\ and enter 
these costs on Line A for inclXsion in the indirect cost pool. 

Abnormal or mass separation costs are those costs resXlting from actions taken b\ an LEA to inflXence emplo\ees to terminate their 
emplo\ment earlier than the\ normall\ ZoXld haYe. Abnormal or mass separation costs inclXde retirement incentiYes sXch as a Golden 
Handshake or seYerance packages negotiated to effect termination. Abnormal or mass separation costs ma\ not be charged to federal 
programs as either direct costs or indirect costs. Where an LEA paid abnormal or mass separation costs on behalf of positions in general 
administratiYe fXnctions inclXded in the indirect cost pool, the LEA mXst identif\ and enter these costs on Line B for e[clXsion from the pool. 

A. NRUPDO SHSDUDWLRQ CRVWV (RSWLRQDO) 
Enter an\ normal separation costs paid on behalf of emplo\ees of restricted state or federal programs that 
Zere charged to an Xnrestricted resoXrce (0000-1999) in fXnds 01, 09, and 62 Zith fXnctions 1000-6999 or 8100-8400 
rather than to the restricted program. These costs Zill be moYed in Part III from base costs to the indirect cost pool. 
Retain sXpporting docXmentation. 

B. AEQRUPDO RU MDVV SHSDUDWLRQ CRVWV (UHTXLUHG) 
Enter an\ abnormal or mass separation costs paid on behalf of general administratiYe positions charged to 
Xnrestricted resoXrces (0000-1999) in fXnds 01, 09, and 62 Zith fXnctions 7200-7700. These costs Zill be 
moYed in Part III from the indirect cost pool to base costs. If none, enter ]ero. 

California Dept of EdXcation 
SACS Financial Reporting SoftZare - 2020.2.0 
File: icr (ReY 06/02/2020) Page 1 of 3 Printed: 9/12/2020 4:50 PM 

64

https://33,717,110.44
https://3,240,073.57


     
  

 
  

    

   
    

          

               
          
                          
                         
                          
                         
                         
                        

                      
                        

                            
                             
                         
                              
                      
                               
                                
                        
                        
                      
           
                      
                      
                        
                      
                      
                         
                      
                        
                        
                         

                          
                         
                           
                         
                              
                         
                          
                             
                        
                             
                    
                               
                                
                       
                          
                          
                         
                          
                          
            
                    
                  
            
                       
                  

UnaXdited ActXals 
Santa CrX] CoXnt\ Office of EdXcation 2019-20 UnaXdited ActXals 44 10447 0000000 
Santa CrX] CoXnt\ Indirect Cost Rate Worksheet Form ICR 

PDUW III - IQGLUHFW CRVW RDWH CDOFXODWLRQ (FXQGV 01, 09, DQG 62, XQOHVV LQGLFDWHG RWKHUZLVH) 
A. IQGLUHFW CRVWV 

1. Other General Administration, less portion charged to restricted resoXrces or specific goals 

(FXnctions 7200-7600, objects 1000-5999, minXs Line B9) 2,509,086.44 

2. Centrali]ed Data Processing, less portion charged to restricted resoXrces or specific goals 

(FXnction 7700, objects 1000-5999, minXs Line B10) 902,083.99 
3. E[ternal Financial AXdit - Single AXdit (FXnction 7190, resoXrces 0000-1999, 

goals 0000 and 9000, objects 5000-5999) 
55,200.00 

4. Staff Relations and Negotiations (FXnction 7120, resoXrces 0000-1999, 
goals 0000 and 9000, objects 1000-5999) 49,757.82 

5. Plant Maintenance and Operations (portion relating to general administratiYe offices onl\) 
(FXnctions 8100-8400, objects 1000-5999 e[cept 5100, times Part I, Line C) 222,203.90 

6. Facilities Rents and Leases (portion relating to general administratiYe offices onl\) 
(FXnction 8700, resoXrces 0000-1999, objects 1000-5999 e[cept 5100, times Part I, Line C) 36,794.86 

7. AdjXstment for Emplo\ment Separation Costs 
a. PlXs: Normal Separation Costs (Part II, Line A) 0.00 

b. Less: Abnormal or Mass Separation Costs (Part II, Line B) 0.00 
8. Total Indirect Costs (Lines A1 throXgh A7a, minXs Line A7b) 3,775,127.01 
9. Carr\-ForZard AdjXstment (Part IV, Line F) (44,575.27) 

10. Total AdjXsted Indirect Costs (Line A8 plXs Line A9) 3,730,551.74 
B. BDVH CRVWV 

1. InstrXction (FXnctions 1000-1999, objects 1000-5999 e[cept 5100) 17,927,451.18 

2. InstrXction-Related SerYices (FXnctions 2000-2999, objects 1000-5999 e[cept 5100) 11,845,926.28 

3. PXpil SerYices (FXnctions 3000-3999, objects 1000-5999 e[cept 4700 and 5100) 4,261,899.98 

4. Ancillar\ SerYices (FXnctions 4000-4999, objects 1000-5999 e[cept 5100) 11,654.22 

5. CommXnit\ SerYices (FXnctions 5000-5999, objects 1000-5999 e[cept 5100) 1,254,600.64 

6. Enterprise (FXnction 6000, objects 1000-5999 e[cept 4700 and 5100) 0.00 
7. Board and SXperintendent (FXnctions 7100-7180, objects 1000-5999, 

minXs Part III, Line A4) 896,148.07 
8. E[ternal Financial AXdit - Single AXdit and Other (FXnctions 7190-7191, 

objects 5000-5999, minXs Part III, Line A3) 0.00 

9. Other General Administration (portion charged to restricted resoXrces or specific goals onl\) 
(FXnctions 7200-7600, resoXrces 2000-9999, objects 1000-5999; FXnctions 7200-7600, 
resoXrces 0000-1999, all goals e[cept 0000 and 9000, objects 1000-5999) 1,952,402.47 

10. Centrali]ed Data Processing (portion charged to restricted resoXrces or specific goals onl\) 
(FXnction 7700, resoXrces 2000-9999, objects 1000-5999; FXnction 7700, resoXrces 0000-1999, all goals 
e[cept 0000 and 9000, objects 1000-5999) 908,348.20 

11. Plant Maintenance and Operations (all e[cept portion relating to general administratiYe offices) 
(FXnctions 8100-8400, objects 1000-5999 e[cept 5100, minXs Part III, Line A5) 2,090,011.51 

12. Facilities Rents and Leases (all e[cept portion relating to general administratiYe offices) 
(FXnction 8700, objects 1000-5999 e[cept 5100, minXs Part III, Line A6) 927,065.62 

13. AdjXstment for Emplo\ment Separation Costs 
a. Less: Normal Separation Costs (Part II, Line A) 0.00 
b. PlXs: Abnormal or Mass Separation Costs (Part II, Line B) 0.00 

14. StXdent ActiYit\ (FXnd 08, fXnctions 4000-5999, objects 1000-5999 e[cept 5100) 0.00 
15. AdXlt EdXcation (FXnd 11, fXnctions 1000-6999, 8100-8400, and 8700, objects 1000-5999 e[cept 5100) 68,837.86 

16. Child DeYelopment (FXnd 12, fXnctions 1000-6999, 8100-8400 & 8700, objects 1000-5999 e[cept 4700 & 5100) 1,084,530.22 

17. Cafeteria (FXnds 13 & 61, fXnctions 1000-6999, 8100-8400 & 8700, objects 1000-5999 e[cept 4700 & 5100) 0.00 

18. FoXndation (FXnds 19 & 57, fXnctions 1000-6999, 8100-8400 & 8700, objects 1000-5999 e[cept 4700 & 5100) 0.00 

19. Total Base Costs (Lines B1 throXgh B12 and Lines B13b throXgh B18, minXs Line B13a) 43,228,876.25 

C. SWUDLJKW IQGLUHFW CRVW PHUFHQWDJH BHIRUH CDUU\-FRUZDUG AGMXVWPHQW 
(FRU LQIRUPDWLRQ RQO\ - QRW IRU XVH ZKHQ FODLPLQJ/UHFRYHULQJ LQGLUHFW FRVWV) 
(Line A8 diYided b\ Line B19) 8.73% 

D. PUHOLPLQDU\ PURSRVHG IQGLUHFW CRVW RDWH 
(FRU ILQDO DSSURYHG IL[HG-ZLWK-FDUU\-IRUZDUG UDWH IRU XVH LQ 2021-22 VHH ZZZ.FGH.FD.JRY/IJ/DF/LF) 
(Line A10 diYided b\ Line B19) 8.63% 

California Dept of EdXcation 
SACS Financial Reporting SoftZare - 2020.2.0 
File: icr (ReY 06/02/2020) Page 2 of 3 Printed: 9/12/2020 4:50 PM 

65

https://43,228,876.25
https://1,084,530.22
https://68,837.86
https://927,065.62
https://2,090,011.51
https://908,348.20
https://1,952,402.47
https://896,148.07
https://1,254,600.64
https://11,654.22
https://4,261,899.98
https://11,845,926.28
https://17,927,451.18
https://3,730,551.74
https://44,575.27
https://3,775,127.01
https://36,794.86
https://222,203.90
https://49,757.82
https://55,200.00
https://902,083.99
https://2,509,086.44


     
  

 
  

    

   
    

          

      

                    
                         
                       
       

                          
                      
                        
                

                  

             

                      

                          

                

                           
                              

                             
                                 
                              

               

                   

                                   
                                 
                                
                                 

                             
                                     

                               
                                          
                                      

                               
                                          
                                      

                     

 

                    
                   

UnaXdited ActXals 
Santa CrX] CoXnt\ Office of EdXcation 2019-20 UnaXdited ActXals 44 10447 0000000 
Santa CrX] CoXnt\ Indirect Cost Rate Worksheet Form ICR 

PDUW I9 - CDUU\-IRUZDUG AGMXVWPHQW 

The carr\-forZard adjXstment is an after-the-fact adjXstment for the difference betZeen indirect costs recoYerable Xsing the indirect 
cost rate approYed for Xse in a giYen \ear, and the actXal indirect costs incXrred in that \ear. The carr\-forZard adjXstment eliminates 
the need for LEAs to file amended federal reports Zhen their actXal indirect costs Yar\ from the estimated indirect costs on Zhich the 
approYed rate Zas based. 

Where the ratio of indirect costs incXrred in the cXrrent \ear is less than the estimated ratio of indirect costs on Zhich the approYed rate for 
Xse in the cXrrent \ear Zas based, the carr\-forZard adjXstment is limited b\ Xsing either the approYed rate times cXrrent \ear base costs, 
or the highest rate actXall\ Xsed to recoYer costs from an\ program times cXrrent \ear base costs, if the highest rate Xsed Zas less than 
the approYed rate. Rates Xsed to recoYer costs from programs are displa\ed in E[hibit A. 

A. IQGLUHFW FRVWV LQFXUUHG LQ WKH FXUUHQW \HDU (PDUW III, LLQH A8) 3,775,127.01 

B. CDUU\-IRUZDUG DGMXVWPHQW IURP SULRU \HDU(V) 

1. Carr\-forZard adjXstment from the second prior \ear 416,727.59 

2. Carr\-forZard adjXstment amoXnt deferred from prior \ear(s), if an\ 0.00 

C. CDUU\-IRUZDUG DGMXVWPHQW IRU XQGHU- RU RYHU-UHFRYHU\ LQ WKH FXUUHQW \HDU 

1. Under-recoYer\: Part III, Line A8, plXs carr\-forZard adjXstment from prior \ears, minXs (approYed indirect 
cost rate (9.8%) times Part III, Line B19); ]ero if negatiYe 0.00 

2. OYer-recoYer\: Part III, Line A8, plXs carr\-forZard adjXstment from prior \ears, minXs the lesser of 
(approYed indirect cost rate (9.8%) times Part III, Line B19) or (the highest rate Xsed to 
recoYer costs from an\ program (9.8%) times Part III, Line B19); ]ero if positiYe (44,575.27) 

D. PUHOLPLQDU\ FDUU\-IRUZDUG DGMXVWPHQW (LLQH C1 RU C2) (44,575.27) 

E. OSWLRQDO DOORFDWLRQ RI QHJDWLYH FDUU\-IRUZDUG DGMXVWPHQW RYHU PRUH WKDQ RQH \HDU 

Where a negatiYe carr\-forZard adjXstment caXses the proposed approYed rate to fall beloZ ]ero or ZoXld redXce the rate at Zhich 
the LEA coXld recoYer indirect costs to sXch an e[tent that it ZoXld caXse the LEA significant fiscal harm, the LEA ma\ reqXest that 
the carr\-forZard adjXstment be allocated oYer more than one \ear. Where allocation of a negatiYe carr\-forZard adjXstment oYer more 
than one \ear does not resolYe a negatiYe rate, the CDE Zill Zork Zith the LEA on a case-b\-case basis to establish an approYed rate. 

Option 1. Preliminar\ proposed approYed rate (Part III, Line D) if entire negatiYe carr\-forZard 
adjXstment is applied to the cXrrent \ear calcXlation: 8.63% 

Option 2. Preliminar\ proposed approYed rate (Part III, Line D) if one-half of negatiYe carr\-forZard 
adjXstment ($-22,287.64) is applied to the cXrrent \ear calcXlation and the remainder 
($-22,287.63) is deferred to one or more fXtXre \ears: 8.68% 

Option 3. Preliminar\ proposed approYed rate (Part III, Line D) if one-third of negatiYe carr\-forZard 
adjXstment ($-14,858.42) is applied to the cXrrent \ear calcXlation and the remainder 
($-29,716.85) is deferred to one or more fXtXre \ears: 8.70% 

LEA reqXest for Option 1, Option 2, or Option 3 

1 

F. CDUU\-IRUZDUG DGMXVWPHQW XVHG LQ PDUW III, LLQH A9 (LLQH D PLQXV DPRXQW GHIHUUHG LI 
OSWLRQ 2 RU OSWLRQ 3 LV VHOHFWHG) (44,575.27) 

California Dept of EdXcation 
SACS Financial Reporting SoftZare - 2020.2.0 
File: icr (ReY 06/02/2020) Page 3 of 3 Printed: 9/12/2020 4:50 PM 

66

https://44,575.27
https://29,716.85
https://14,858.42
https://22,287.63
https://22,287.64
https://44,575.27
https://44,575.27
https://416,727.59
https://3,775,127.01


    
  

 
  

       

   
   

          

   
    

 
 

 
  
   

UnaXdited ActXals 
Santa CrX] CoXnt\ Office of EdXcation 2019-20 UnaXdited ActXals 44 10447 0000000 
Santa CrX] CoXnt\ E[hibit A: Indirect Cost Rates Charged to Programs Form ICR 

ApproYed indirect cost rate: 9.80% 
Highest rate Xsed in an\ program: 9.80% 

FXQG RHVRXUFH 

EOLJLEOH E[SHQGLWXUHV
(OEMHFWV 1000-5999

H[FHSW OEMHFW 5100) 
IQGLUHFW CRVWV CKDUJHG 

(OEMHFWV 7310 DQG 7350) 
RDWH 
UVHG 

01 3010 173,041.89 16,958.11 9.80% 
01 3025 194,226.78 19,034.22 9.80% 
01 3182 158,966.30 15,578.70 9.80% 
01 3183 52,070.13 5,102.87 9.80% 
01 3310 374,646.26 26,514.74 7.08% 
01 3385 96,422.24 5,881.76 6.10% 
01 4035 21,177.60 2,075.40 9.80% 
01 4128 281,312.88 22,505.03 8.00% 
01 5630 151,343.72 14,831.68 9.80% 
01 5640 5,000.00 305.00 6.10% 
01 5810 183,577.77 7,628.50 4.16% 
01 6230 11,443.94 1,121.40 9.80% 
01 6388 61,733.82 6,049.92 9.80% 
01 6500 8,748,468.95 541,735.11 6.19% 
01 6510 799,254.00 48,754.00 6.10% 
01 6512 54,731.09 5,363.91 9.80% 
01 6520 69,739.94 6,835.06 9.80% 
01 6680 43,873.28 4,299.58 9.80% 
01 6685 46,243.68 2,312.18 5.00% 
01 6690 10,498.31 1,028.83 9.80% 
01 6695 108,833.78 10,665.71 9.80% 
01 7135 33,147.03 3,140.61 9.47% 
01 7311 9,058.25 887.71 9.80% 
01 7366 188,741.94 18,388.91 9.74% 
01 7810 130,101.73 12,749.99 9.80% 
01 8150 598,207.13 58,624.30 9.80% 
01 9010 6,436,833.52 455,294.52 7.07% 
09 9010 236,800.77 22,992.03 9.71% 
11 6391 64,917.86 3,245.89 5.00% 
12 5035 258,124.06 25,188.36 9.76% 
12 5055 48,474.32 4,642.68 9.58% 
12 6045 4,136.61 405.39 9.80% 
12 6100 2,279.60 223.40 9.80% 
12 6110 215,971.40 20,410.60 9.45% 
12 6127 165,000.63 16,170.06 9.80% 
12 7810 138,962.01 13,618.28 9.80% 
12 9010 250,332.59 24,532.59 9.80% 
13 5310 54,688.76 2,800.06 5.12% 

California Dept of EdXcation 
SACS Financial Reporting SoftZare - 2020.2.0 
File: icr (ReY 02/10/2020) Page 1 of 1 Printed: 9/12/2020 4:50 PM 

67



 
  

 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
   

  
  

 
 

 
 

 

                                                                                                         
                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                                                             
                                                                                                                       
                                                                                             

                                                

                                                                                       
                                                                                
                                                                              
                                                                                                          

                                                                                        
                                                                                                                                       

                                                                                                                                                      
                                                                                                                                             

                                                                                            
                                       

 

                                                                                                                                                                          
                                                                                                                                    

                                                                                                                                                                           
                                                                                                   
                                                                    

                                                                                 

                                                                                        

                                                                        

   
                                                                                                                                                        
                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                    

                                                                                                               
                                                                                                                                  
                                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                                                      

SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
GENERAL FUND SUMMARY 2019-20 
2019-20 UNAUDITED ACTUALS 

Various 

General 
Unrestricted 

06XX/1400 

Alternative 
Education 

0830 

CTEP 
Total 

Unrestricted 

33XX/65XX 

Special 
Education 

CATS 

Categoricals 

8150 
Routine & 
Restricted 

Maintenance 

9XXX 

Local 
Programs 

Total 
Restricted 

Total General 
Fund 

Revenues 

LCFF Revenues 
Federal Revenues 
Federal Pass Through 
Other State Revenues 
Other Local Revenues 

9,752,775 
160,989 

4,272,034 
291,743 

2,216,904 

11,573,823 
-
-
-

59,101 

-
-
-
-

135,000 

7,884,918 
536,550 

-
2,127,065 

137,605 

-
1,316,440 

-
2,195,042 

1,000 

-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

7,504,401 

21,326,598 7,884,918 29,211,516 
160,989 1,852,990 2,013,979 

4,272,034 - 4,272,034 
291,743 4,322,107 4,613,850 

2,411,005 7,643,006.73 10,054,012 
Total Revenue 16,694,445 11,632,924 135,000 28,462,370 10,686,139 3,512,482 - 7,504,401 21,703,022 50,165,392 

Expenditures 

Certificated Salaries 
Classified Salaries 
Employee Benefits 
Books and Supplies 
Services, Other Operating Expenditures 
Capital Outlay 
Other Outgo 
Pass Through 
Indirect Costs 

1,479,344 
4,649,975 
3,224,664 

241,591 
1,848,514 

109,751 
-

4,272,034 
(2,255,740) 

3,833,600 
1,656,864 
2,666,669 

196,670 
1,085,428 

2,195 
-
-

743,332 

263,684 
121,657 
176,703 
15,594 
80,632 

-
-
-

64,510 

5,576,629 2,823,942 
2,680,062 
3,586,162 

75,175 
1,011,007 

-
-
-

635,085 

244,866 
703,315 

1,558,969 
183,533 
884,853 
18,815 

-
-

164,664 

-
316,210 
209,435 

5,570 
66,993 

-
-
-

58,624 

1,476,619 
1,759,341 
1,359,993 

285,663 
2,375,307 

-
624,755 

-
455,295 

4,545,427 10,122,055 
6,428,496 5,458,928 11,887,423 
6,068,036 6,714,560 12,782,596 

453,854 549,941 1,003,795 
3,014,574 4,338,160 7,352,734 

111,946 18,815 130,761 
- 624,755 624,755 

4,272,034 - 4,272,034 
(1,447,897) 1,313,668 (134,229) 

Total Expenditures 13,570,134 10,184,757 722,781 24,477,672 10,811,432 3,759,016 656,831 8,336,972 23,564,252 48,041,924 

Interfund Transfers 

Transfers In 
Transfers Out 
Other Financing Sources 
Contributions 

-
(1,200,376) 

-
(2,109,123) 

-
(34,666) 

-
36,427 

-
-
-

587,781 

-
-
-

125,293 

-
-
-

41,011 

-
-
-

741,000 

-
-
-

577,611 

- - -
(1,235,042) - (1,235,042) 

- - -
(1,484,915) 1,484,915 -

Total Transfers (3,309,499) 1,761 587,781 (2,719,957) 125,293 41,011 741,000 577,611 1,484,915 (1,235,042) 

Beginning Balance 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance 

Ending Fund Balance 

Components of Ending Fund Balance: 
Nonspendable 

Restricted 
Committed 

Assigned 
Assigned (COPS) 

Committed (COPS) 
Reserve for Economic Certainty 

24,246,595 

(185,188) 

24,061,407 

2,800 
-
-

21,455,779 
1,402,828 
1,200,000 

-

720,038 

1,449,928 

2,169,966 

-
-
-

2,169,966 
-
-
-

-

-

-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

24,966,633 

1,264,740 

26,231,373 

2,800 
-
-

23,625,745 
1,402,828 
1,200,000 

-

-

-

-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

393,191 

(205,524) 

187,667 

-
187,667 

-
-
-
-
-

-

84,169 

84,169 

-
84,169 

-
-
-
-
-

2,006,178 

(254,960) 

1,751,218 

-
1,751,218 

-
-
-
-
-

2,399,369 

(376,315) 

2,023,054 

-
2,023,054 

-
-
-
-
-

27,366,002 

888,425 

28,254,427 

2,800 
2,023,054 

-
23,625,745 

1,402,828 
1,200,000 

-

68



 
   

 

          

  
 

 
  

                                                                                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                                                             

                                                                                                                                                                                               
                                                                                                                                                                    
                                                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                       

                                                                                                                                                                                   
                                                                                                                                                                                        
                                                                                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                                                    
                                                                                                                                                                                                         

                                                                                                                                                                                                   
                                                                                                                                                                                               

                                                                                                                                                                                                     
                                                                                                                                   

 

                                                                                                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                                                                                                       

                                                                                                                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                           
                                                                                                                                                                             

                                                                                                                          

                                                                                                                                              

                                                                                                                                     

   
                                                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                                                                    
                                                                                                                                                                                                   
                                             

                                                    

 
 

   
        

 
 

     
 

SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
ALL FUNDS SUMMARY 2019-20 
2019-20 UNAUDITED ACTUALS 

Fund 01 

General Fund 

Fund 09 

Charter

Fund 10 

SELPA Pass-
Through

Fund 11 
 Adult 

Education 
Block Grant 

Fund 12 

 Child 
Development 

Fund 13 

Cafeteria 

Fund 14 

Deferred 
Maintenance 

Fund 17 

Special 
Reserve 

Fund 35 

County 
Schools Facility 

Fund 71 

Retiree Benefit 
Trust Total of All Funds 

Revenues 

LCFF Revenues 
Federal Revenues 
Federal Pass Through 
Other State Revenues 
Other Local Revenues 

29,211,516 
2,013,979 
4,272,034 
4,613,850 

10,054,012 

2,159,966 
401 
-

374,488 
434,271 

-
-

6,826,494 
4,225,486 

22,398 

-
-
-

70,416 
326 

-
327,569 

-
664,393 
302,130 

-
20,997 

-
1,730 

95 

-
-
-
-

20,512 

-
-
-
-

51,284 

-
-
-

(974,678) 
(130,822) 

-
-
-
-

1,156,395 

31,371,482 
2,362,945 

11,098,528 
8,975,684 

11,910,601 
Total Revenue 50,165,392 2,969,125 11,074,377 70,742 1,294,091 22,823 20,512 51,284 (1,105,500) 1,156,395 65,719,241 

Expenditures 

Certificated Salaries 
Classified Salaries 
Employee Benefits 
Books and Supplies 
Services, Other Operating Expenditures 
Capital Outlay 
Other Outgo 
Pass Through 
Indirect Costs 

10,122,055 
11,887,423 
12,782,596 
1,003,795 
7,352,734 

130,761 
624,755 

4,272,034 
(134,229) 

1,671,934 
220,965 

1,069,673 
86,682 

507,392 
15,000 

-
-

22,992 

-
-
-
-
-
-

3,103,499 
7,777,067 

-

45,723 
-

21,723 
371 

1,021 
-
-
-

3,246 

10,060 
336,922 
196,890 
92,552 

524,627 
-
-
-

105,191 

-
-
-

54,689 
-
-
-
-

2,800 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

735,516 
-
-
-
-

11,849,772 
12,445,310 
14,070,882 
1,238,089 
9,121,290 

145,761 
3,728,254 

12,049,101 
0 

Total Expenditures 48,041,924 3,594,639 10,880,566 72,084 1,266,242 57,489 - - - 735,516 64,648,459 

Interfund Transfers 

Transfers In 
Transfers Out 
Other Financing Sources 
Contributions 

-
(1,235,042) 

-
-

591,215 
-

(50,452) 
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

34,666 
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

609,161 
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

1,235,042 
(1,235,042) 

(50,452) 
-

Total Transfers (1,235,042) 540,763 - - - 34,666 - - 609,161 - (50,452) 

Beginning Balance 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance 

Ending Fund Balance 

Components of Ending Fund Balance: 
Nonspendable 

Restricted 
Committed 

Assigned 
Assigned (COPS) 

Committed (COPS) 
Reserve for Economic Certainty 

27,366,002 

888,425 

28,254,427 

2,800 
2,023,054 

-
23,625,745 

1,402,828 
1,200,000 

-

271,115 

(84,751) 

186,364 

-
15,111 

-
63,414 

-

107,839 

373,740 

193,811 

567,551 

-
567,551 

-
-
-

11,043 

(1,342) 

9,701 

-
9,701 

-
-
-

38,477 

27,850 

66,326 

-
63,441 

-
2,886 

-
-

0 

-

0 

-
0 

-
-
-

1,028,248 

20,512 

1,048,759 

-
-

1,048,759 
-
-

2,570,903 

51,284 

2,622,188 

-
-
-
-
-

2,622,188 

496,339 

(496,339) 

-

-
-
-
-
-

9,060,657 

420,879 

9,481,536 

-
9,481,536 

-
-
-

41,216,523 

1,020,329 

42,236,852 

2,800 
12,160,394 

1,048,759 
23,692,044 

1,402,828 
1,200,000 
2,730,027 

69



 
 

  
 

 
 

 
  

   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

                                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                                                            

                                                                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                                         
                                                                                                                                
                                                                           

                                                                                                             
                                                                                                       
                                                                                                    

                                                                                                                             
                                                                                                             

                                                                                                                                                                     
                                                                                                                                                                          

                                                                                                                                                                  
                                                                                                                    

                                                                   

 

                                                                                                                                                                                             
                                                                                                                                                                

                                                                                                                                                                                             
                                                                                                                        
                                                                                              

                                                                                                    

                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                     

    
                                                                                                                                                                               
                                                                                                                                            

                                                                                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                                                                          
                                                                                                                                                         

                                                                                                                                                                                            

SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
GENERAL FUND SUMMARY 2020-21 
2019-20 UNAUDITED ACTUALS 

Various 

General 
Unrestricted 

06XX 

Alternative 
Education 

0830 

 CTEP 
Total 

Unrestricted 

33XX/65XX 

Special 
Education 

CATS 

Categoricals 

8150 
Routine & 
Restricted 

Maintenance 

9XXX 

Local 
Programs 

Total 
Restricted 

Total General 
Fund 

Revenues 

LCFF Revenues 
Federal Revenues 
Federal Pass Through 
Other State Revenues 
Other Local Revenues 

7,581,968 
-

4,350,000 
275,946 

1,446,451 

12,456,646 
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

100,000 

7,498,498 
553,144 

-
3,463,731 

-

-
913,373 

-
2,471,655 

135,039 

-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

6,996,026 

20,038,614 7,498,498 27,537,112 
- 1,466,517 1,466,517 

4,350,000 - 4,350,000 
275,946 5,935,387 6,211,333 

1,546,451 7,131,065 8,677,516 
Total Revenue 13,654,365 12,456,646 100,000 26,211,011 11,515,373 3,520,067 - 6,996,026 22,031,467 48,242,478 

Expenditures 

Certificated Salaries 
Classified Salaries 
Employee Benefits 
Books and Supplies 
Services, Other Operating Expenditures 
Capital Outlay 
Other Outgo 
Pass Through 
Indirect Costs 

1,649,700 
4,943,953 
3,625,750 

423,736 
1,893,091 

66,200 
-

4,350,000 
(2,169,022) 

4,756,362 
1,783,957 
3,386,810 

477,663 
1,385,671 

-
-
-

920,328 

170,736 
119,473 
166,457 
21,000 
53,189 

-
-
-

44,857 

6,576,798 2,929,341 
2,885,805 
4,189,313 

126,176 
874,245 
20,000 

-
-

640,914 

220,111 
586,648 

1,398,017 
285,960 
969,906 

-
-
-

117,943 

-
320,199 
218,650 
30,785 

219,771 
-
-
-

66,696 

1,141,853 
1,930,544 
1,396,647 

385,254 
1,901,521 

-
624,756 

-
303,229 

4,291,305 10,868,103 
6,847,383 5,723,196 12,570,579 
7,179,017 7,202,626 14,381,643 

922,399 828,175 1,750,573 
3,331,951 3,965,442 7,297,393 

66,200 20,000 86,200 
- 624,756 624,756 

4,350,000 - 4,350,000 
(1,203,837) 1,128,781 (75,056) 

Total Expenditures 14,783,408 12,710,790 575,712 28,069,910 11,665,794 3,578,584 856,100 7,683,803 23,784,281 51,854,191 

Interfund Transfers 

Transfers In 
Transfers Out 
Other Financing Sources 
Contributions 

-
(447,051) 

-
(1,896,208) 

-
(19,000) 

-
(50,420) 

-
-
-

475,712 

-
-
-

150,420 

-
-
-

35,693 

-
-
-

856,100 

-
-
-

428,703 

- - -
(466,051) - (466,051) 

- - -
(1,470,916) 1,470,916 -

Total Transfers (2,343,259) (69,420) 475,712 (1,936,968) 150,420 35,693 856,100 428,703 1,470,916 (466,051) 

Beginning Balance 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance 

Ending Fund Balance 

Components of Ending Fund Balance: 
Nonspendable 

Restricted 
Committed 

Assigned 
Assigned (COPS) 

Committed (COPS) 
Reserve for Economic Certainty 

24,061,407 

(3,472,302) 

20,589,105 

2,800 
-
-

17,985,977 
1,400,328 
1,200,000 

-

2,169,966 

(323,564) 

1,846,402 

-
-
-

1,846,402 
-
-
-

-

-

-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

26,231,373 

(3,795,866) 

22,435,507 

2,800 
-
-

19,832,379 
1,400,328 
1,200,000 

-

-

-

-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

187,667 

(22,824) 

164,843 

-
164,843 

-
-
-
-
-

84,169 

-

84,169 

-
84,169 

-
-
-
-
-

1,751,218 

(259,073) 

1,492,145 

-
1,492,145 

-
-
-
-
-

2,023,054 

(281,897) 

1,741,157 

-
1,741,157 

-
-
-
-
-

28,254,427 

(4,077,763) 

24,176,664 

2,800 
1,741,157 

-
19,832,379 

1,400,328 
1,200,000 

-

70



          

 
 

                                                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                                                       

                                                                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                   
                                                                                                                                           
                                                                                                      

                                                                                                                                                                     
                                                                                                                                                                   
                                                                                                                                                              

                                                                                                                                                                        
                                                                                                                                                                

                                                                                                                                                                                             
                                                                                                                                                                              

                                                                                                                                                                             
                                                                                                                                                                                      

                                                                                                                      

 

                                                                                                                                                                                     
                                                                                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                                                                                      
                                                                                                                                                                          

                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                     

                                                                                                              

    
                                                                                                                                                                                          
                                                                                                                                      
                                                                                                                                                                            

                                                                                                                                                    
                                                                                                                                                                              
                                                                                              

                                                            

  
  

             
 

 
  

SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
ALL FUNDS SUMMARY 2020-21 
2019-20 UNAUDITED ACTUALS 

Fund 01 

General Fund

Fund 09 

Charter 

Fund 10 

 SELPA Pass-
Through 

Fund 11 
Adult 

Education 
Block Grant 

Fund 12 

Child 
Development 

Fund 13 

Cafeteria 

Fund 14 

Deferred 
Maintenance 

Fund 17 

Special 
Reserve 

Fund 35 

County 
Schools Facility 

Fund 71 

Retiree Benefit 
Trust Total of All Funds 

Revenues 

LCFF Revenues 
Federal Revenues 
Federal Pass Through 
Other State Revenues 
Other Local Revenues 

27,537,112 
1,466,517 
4,350,000 
6,211,333 
8,677,516 

1,062,528 
318 
-

159,662 
487,853 

-
-

3,717,083 
3,212,216 

23,000 

-
-
-

63,377 
-

-
204,264 

-
591,419 
200,537 

-
45,000 

-
5,000 

100 

-
-
-
-

10,000 

-
-
-
-

25,000 

-
-
-
-

5,000 

-
-
-
-

850,000 

28,599,640 
1,716,099 
8,067,083 

10,243,007 
10,279,006 

Total Revenue 48,242,478 1,710,361 6,952,299 63,377 996,220 50,100 10,000 25,000 5,000 850,000 58,904,835 

Expenditures 

Certificated Salaries 
Classified Salaries 
Employee Benefits 
Books and Supplies 
Services, Other Operating Expenditures 
Capital Outlay 
Other Outgo 
Pass Through 
Indirect Costs 

10,868,103 
12,570,579 
14,381,643 
1,750,573 
7,297,393 

86,200 
624,756 

4,350,000 
(75,056) 

874,875 
196,200 
635,193 
70,407 

426,007 
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-

2,046,490 
4,630,776 

-

39,082 
-

21,438 
11 

-
-
-
-

2,847 

-
313,782 
195,613 
49,112 

368,960 
-
-
-

68,754 

-
-
-

65,645 
-
-
-
-

3,455 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

630,000 
-
-
-
-

11,782,060 
13,080,560 
15,233,886 
1,935,748 
8,722,359 

86,200 
2,671,246 
8,980,776 

-
Total Expenditures 51,854,191 2,202,681 6,677,266 63,377 996,220 69,100 - - - 630,000 62,492,835 

Interfund Transfers 

Transfers In 
Transfers Out 
Other Financing Sources 
Contributions 

-
(466,051) 

-
-

447,051 
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

19,000 
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

466,051 
(466,051) 

-
-

Total Transfers (466,051) 447,051 - - - 19,000 - - - - -

Beginning Balance 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance 

Ending Fund Balance 

Components of Ending Fund Balance: 
Nonspendable 

Restricted 
Committed 

Assigned 
Assigned (COPS) 

Committed (COPS) 
Reserve for Economic Certainty 

28,254,427 

(4,077,763) 

24,176,664 

2,800 
1,741,157 

-
19,832,379 

1,400,328 
1,200,000 

-

186,364 

(45,269) 

141,095 

-
15,111 

-
59,904 

-
-

66,080 

567,551 

275,033 

842,584 

-
842,584 

-
-
-
-

9,701 

(0) 

9,701 

-
9,701 

-
-
-
-

66,326 

-

66,326 

-
62,419 

-
3,908 

-
-

0 

-

0 

-
0 

-
-
-

1,048,759 

10,000 

1,058,759 

-
-

1,058,759 
-
-

-

2,622,188 

25,000 

2,647,188 

-
-
-

2,647,188 
-

-

5,000 

5,000 

-
5,000 

-
-
-

9,481,536 

220,000 

9,701,536 

-
9,701,536 

-
-
-

42,236,852 

(3,587,999) 

38,648,853 

2,800 
12,377,508 

1,058,759 
22,543,378 

1,400,328 
1,200,000 

66,080 

71



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

AGENDA ITEM 

 
      

  
  

 
 

             

 
 

​      
 

​     
 

​       
 
 
 

 
 

           
          

            
  

 
 

 
  

 
  

 
 

  ​     ​   

BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: SHSW. 17, 2020 AcWLRQ IQIRUPaWLRQ X 

TO: SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\ BRaUd RI EdXcaWLRQ 

FROM: TUR\ CRSH, SHQLRU DLUHcWRU, HXPaQ RHVRXUcHV 

SUBJECT: PHUVRQQHO CRPPLVVLRQ VacaQc\: ASSRLQWPHQW RI NRPLQHH 

BACKGROUND 

TKH BRaUd ZLOO bH LQIRUPHd RI QRPLQHHV IRU WKH aSSRLQWPHQW aV WKH BRaUd¶V aSSRLQWHH WR 
WKH SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\ OIILcH RI EdXcaWLRQ PHUVRQQHO CRPPLVVLRQ aQd ZLOO SXbOLcO\ 
aQQRXQcH WKH LQWHQdHd aSSRLQWHH WR ILOO a YacaQc\ WKaW ZLOO H[LVW DHcHPbHU 1, 2020. 
(E.C. 45246(b)). 

SUPERINTENDENT¶S RECOMMENDATION: 

ASSRLQW QRPLQHH. 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: 

NRQH. 

BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: SHSW. 17, 2020 AJHQGa IWHP: #8.1 
72



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

AGENDA ITEM 

 
      

  
  

 
 

             

 
 

​      
 

​        
 

​           
 
 
 

 
 

      
          

         
          

             
  

 
 

 
   

 
  

 
 

  ​     ​   

BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: SHSW. 17, 2020 AcWLRQ IQIRUPaWLRQ X 

TO: SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\ BRaUd Rf EdXcaWLRQ 

FROM: MLcKaeO Pa\QWeU, SeQLRU DLUecWRU, SWXdeQW SXSSRUW SeUYLceV 

SUBJECT: ReVROXWLRQ #20-25 IQ RecRgQLWLRQ Rf NaWLRQaO SXLcLde PUeYeQWLRQ MRQWK 

BACKGROUND 

SeSWePbeU LV QaWLRQaOO\ UecRgQL]ed aV SXLcLde PUeYeQWLRQ PRQWK. MLcKaeO Pa\QWeU, 
SeQLRU DLUecWRU Rf SWXdeQW SXSSRUW SeUYLceV, ZLOO gLYe a SUeVeQWaWLRQ KLgKOLgKWLQg SaQWa 
CUX] CRXQW\ OffLce Rf EdXcaWLRQ aQd cRPPXQLW\ LQLWLaWLYeV WR VXSSRUW WKe PeQWaO aQd 
ePRWLRQaO KeaOWK Rf VWXdeQWV LQ SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\. FROORZLQg WKe SUeVeQWaWLRQ, WKe 
BRaUd ZLOO be aVNed WR adRSW ReVROXWLRQ #20-25 LQ SXSSRUW Rf NaWLRQaO SXLcLde 
PUeYeQWLRQ MRQWK. 

SUPERINTENDENT¶S RECOMMENDATION: 

AdRSW UeVROXWLRQ #20-25. 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: 

NRQe. 

BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: SeSW. 17, 2020 AJHQGa IWHP: #8.2 
73



 
 

                   
 

    ​    ​      ​  ​    ​   ​      ​    ​      
 ​     ​     ​      

 
  

        
 

​                 
                

 
​              

                
  

 
​                 

       
 

​               
 

 ​               
 

​                
       

 
​                   

    
 

​             
              
               

 
​             

           
        

 
   ​           

 
 

             
 

           
 

 

Santa Cru] County Board of Education ⚈ 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cru], CA 95060 ⚈ Tel (831) 466-5900 ⚈ 
www.santacru]coe.org 

MV. JaQH RR\HU BaUU ⚈ MV. RRVH FLOLcHWWL ⚈ MV. SaQdUa NLcKROV ⚈ MV. SXH RRWK ⚈ MU. DaQa SaOHV 
MU. AbHO SaQcKH] ⚈ MU. BUXcH VaQ AOOHQ 

RESOLUTION #20-25 
IN SUPPORT OF NATIONAL SUICIDE PREVENTION MONTH 

WHEREAS, suicide is the 10th leading cause of death in the United States and the second 
leading cause of death among individuals between the ages of 10 to 34; and 

WHEREAS, according to the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), one person 
dies by suicide every 11.7 minutes, resulting in nearly 45,000 deaths each year in the United 
States; and 

WHEREAS, suicide is the only leading cause of death in the United States that has increased 
every year for the past decade; and 

WHEREAS, it is estimated that there are over 1,300,000 suicide attempts each year; and 

WHEREAS, there are an average of 123 suicides each day in the united states; and 

WHEREAS, suicide is the second leading cause of deaths for ages 25-34 and third leading 
cause of deaths for ages 15-24; and 

WHEREAS, suicide is preventable, as 9 out of 10 suicide attempt survivors do not go on to die 
by suicide; and 

WHEREAS, the stigma associated with mental health conditions and suicidality works against 
suicide prevention by discouraging persons at risk for suicide from seeking life-saving help and 
further traumati]es survivors of suicide loss and people with lived experience of suicide; and 

WHEREAS, September is recogni]ed as µµNational Suicide Prevention Month¶¶ in the United 
States which overlaps with World Suicide Prevention Day, September 10th, recogni]ed 
internationally and supported by the World Health Organi]ation: 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Santa Cru] County Office of Education is committed 
to: 

1. recogni]ing suicide as a preventable national, State and local public health problem; 

2. supporting the declaration that suicide prevention should be a priority; 

74

www.santacru]coe.org


 
 

         
   

           
 

            
      

 
            

           
 

  ​              
       

   
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
 

 
     

      
 
 
 

 
     
       

 
 
 

 
     

 
 
 

 
    

 
 
 
 

______________________________________ 

_______________________________________ 

_______________________________________ 

_______________________________________ 

Resolution #20-25 In Support of National Suicide Prevention Month 
September 17, 2020 

3. supporting the designation of September as µµNational Suicide Prevention Month¶¶; 

4. developing and implementing strategies to increase access to quality mental health, 
substance abuse, and suicide prevention services. 

5. participating in suicide prevention initiatives by working with local organi]ations that 
listen to and support those who are at risk for suicide. 

PASSED aQd ADOPTED by the Santa Cru] County Board of Education on this 17th day of 
September 2020 by the following vote: 

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

Sue Roth, Board President 
Santa Cru] County Board of Education 

Faris M. Sabbah, Secretary 
Santa Cru] County Superintendent of Schools 

Rose Filicetti, Vice President 

Jane Royer Barr, Trustee 

75



 
 

         
   

 
 
 
 

 
   

 
 
 

 
   

 
 
 

 
   

 
 
 

 
    

_______________________________________ 

_______________________________________ 

_______________________________________ 

_______________________________________ 

Resolution #20-25 In Support of National Suicide Prevention Month 
September 17, 2020 

Sandra Nichols, Trustee 

Dana Sales, Trustee 

Abel Sanche], Trustee 

Bruce Van Allen, Trustee 

76



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

AGENDA ITEM 

 
      

  
  

 
 

             

 
 

​      
 

​       
 

​     
 
 
 

 
 

            
       

          
     

 
 

 
      

 
 
 
 

  ​     ​   

BRaUd MHHWLQJ DaWH: SHSW. 17, 2020 AcWLRQ 

TO: SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\ BRaUG RI EGXcaWLRQ 

FROM: JRKQ RLcH, SHQLRU DLUHcWRU, AOWHUQaWLYH EGXcaWLRQ 

SUBJECT: PXbOLc HHaULQJ: SXIILcLHQc\ RI IQVWUXcWLRQaO MaWHULaOV 

X IQIRUPaWLRQ 

BACKGROUND 

PXUVXaQW WR EGXcaWLRQ CRGH SHcWLRQ 60119(1)(A), WKH BRaUG VKaOO KROG a SXbOLc KHaULQJ 
WKaW SURYLGHV aQ RSSRUWXQLW\ IRU SXbOLc LQSXW UHJaUGLQJ WKH SXIILcLHQc\ RI IQVWUXcWLRQaO 
MaWHULaOV WR bH XVHG b\ WKH SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\ OIILcH RI EGXcaWLRQ AOWHUQaWLYH SWXGHQW 
PURJUaPV GXULQJ WKH 2020-2021 VcKRRO \HaU. 

SUPERINTENDENT¶S RECOMMENDATION: 

OSHQ, cRQGXcW, aQG cORVH SXbOLc KHaULQJ. 

BRaUd MHHWLQJ DaWH: SHSW. 17, 2020 AJHQda IWHP: #8.3 
77



���������� 3DJH�� 

68%-(&7 %22.�7,7/( ,6%1����'LJLW ,6%1����GLJLW &RS\ULJKW�'DWH *UDGH <HDU�$GRSWHG 

0$7+ 
$PHULFDQ�%RRN�&RPSDQ\ &05�$OJHEUD ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�%RRN�&RPSDQ\ &DOLIRUQLD�0DWK�5HYLVHG ����������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�%RRN�&RPSDQ\ &DOLIRUQLD�0DWK�5HYLHZ ����������������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH $OJHEUD ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH $OJHEUD�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH $OJHEUD�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN�$QVZHU�.H\ ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH $OJHEUD���6WXGHQW�7H[W ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH $OJHEUD���7HDFKHUV�(GLWLRQ ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH $OJHEUD�7HDFKHUV�(GLWLRQ ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH $OJHEUD���6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH $OJHEUD���6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN�$QVZHU�.H\ ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH %DVLF�0DWK�.QRZOHGJH�$GYDQFH ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH %DVLF�0DWK�6NLOOV�&XUULFXOXP�&ODVV�6HW�5HYLVHG������(GLWLRQ ���������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH %DVLF�0DWK�6NLOOV�5HYLVHG������(GLWLRQ�6WXGHQW�7H[WV ���������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH %DVLF�0DWK�6NLOOV�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH %DVLF�0DWK�6NLOOV�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH %DVLF�0DWK�6NLOOV�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN�$QVZHU�.H\ ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH &RQVXPHU�0DWK ����������������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH &RQVXPHU�0DWKHPDWLFV�7HDFKHUV�(GLWLRQ ��������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH &RQVXPHU�0DWK�&XUULFXOXP�&ODVV�6HW�5HYLVHG������(GLWLRQ ���������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH &RQVXPHU�0DWKHPDWLFV�6WXGHQW�7H[W�5HYLVHG ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH &RQVXPHU�0DWKHPDWLFV�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN�$QVZHU�.H\ ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH &RQVXPHU�0DWK�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH *HRPHWU\ ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH *HRPHWU\�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH *HRPHWU\�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH *HRPHWU\�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN�$QVZHU�.H\ ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH /LIH�6NLOOV�0DWKHPDWLFV ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH 0DWK�IRU�WKH�:RUOG�RI�:RUN� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH 3UH�$OJHEUD�6WXGHQW�6WXGHQW�7H[W�5HYLVHG ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH 3UH�$OJHEUD�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN�$QVZHU�.H\ ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH 3UH�$OJHEUD�7HDFKHUV�(GLWLRQ ���� ������� 
%HGIRUG��)UHHPDQ� 	�:RUWK�+6�3X 8SGDWHG�3UHOLPLQDU\�9RO��RI�WKH�3UDFWLFH�6WDWLVWLFV �������������� ���� ������� 
%HGIRUG��)UHHPDQ� 	�:RUWK�+6�3X 8SGDWHG�7KH�3UDWFLFH�RI�6WDWLVWLFV���XVHUV�RQ�OLQH �������������� ���� ������� 
%HGIRUG��)UHHPDQ� 	�:RUWK�+6�3X 8SGDWHG�3UHSDULQJ�IRU�WKH�$3�6WDWLVWLFV�([DP �������������� ���� ������� 
%HGIRUG��)UHHPDQ� 	�:RUWK�+6�3X 8SGDWHG�7KH�3UDFWLFH�RI�6WDWLVWLFV �������������� ���� ������� 
%HGIRUG��)UHHPDQ� 	�:RUWK�+6�3X 8SGDWHG�7(��7KH�3UDFWLFH�RI�6WDWLVWLFV� �������������� ���� ������� 
%HGIRUG��)UHHPDQ� 	�:RUWK�+6�3X 8SGDWHG�([DP9LHZ�$VVHVPHQW�6XLWH�IRU�WKH�3UDFWLFH�RI�6WDWV� �������������� ���� ������� 
%HGIRUG��)UHHPDQ� 	�:RUWK�+6�3X 8SGDWHG�7�5HVRXUFHV�)ODVK�'ULYH�IRU�WKH�3UDFWLFH�RI�6WDWV� �������������� ���� ������� 
%HGIRUG��)UHHPDQ� 	�:RUWK�+6�3X 7(�7KH�3UDFWLFH�RI�6WDWLVWLFV �������������� ���� ������� 
%HGIRUG��)UHHPDQ� 	�:RUWK�+6�3X ([DP�9LHZ�$VVHVPHQW�6XLWH�IRU�WKH�3UDFWLFH�RI�6WDWV� �������������� ���� ������� 
%HGIRUG��)UHHPDQ� 	�:RUWK�+6�3X 7HDFKHU�5HVRXUFHV�)ODVK�'ULYH�IRU�WKH�3UDFWLFH�RI�6WDWV �������������� ���� ������� 
%OLW]HU 3UH�&DOFXOXV �������������� ���� ������� 
&HQJDJH� %,0�,QWHJUWHG�0DWK�OO�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ���������������� ���� ���� ������� 

78



	
	

	

���������� 3DJH�� 

&HQJDH %,0�,QWHJUDWHG�0DWK���6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ���������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&HQJDJH� %,0�,QWHJUDWHG�0DWK���7( ���������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&HQJDJH� %,0�,QWHJUDWHG�0DWK�OO�7( ���������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&HQJDJH� %,0�,QWHJUDWHG�0DWK�OOO�7( ���������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&HQDJH %,0�,QWHJUDWHG�0DWK�,,,�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ���������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&30 &RUH�&RQQHFWLRQV�,QWHJUDWHG�� ���� ������� 
&30 &RUH�&RQQHFWLRQV�,QWHJUDWHG�� ���� ������� 
&30 &RUH�&RQQHFWLRQV�,QWHJUDWHG�� ���� ������� 
($,�(GXFDWLRQ 5HDO�/LIH�0DWK�$OJHEUD� ���� ������� 
($,�(GXFDWLRQ 5HDO�/LIH�0DWK�6WDWLVWLFV ���� ������� 
($,�(GXFDWLRQ )UDFWLRQV�5DWLR�5DWH ���� ������� 
($,�(GXFDWLRQ 3UREDELOLW\ ���� ������� 
($,�(GXFDWLRQ 'HFLPDOV�3HUFHQWV ���� ������� 
($,�(GXFDWLRQ 7DEOHV�&KDUWV�*UDSKV ���� ������� 
($,�(GXFDWLRQ *HRPHWU\ ���� ������� 
($,�(GXFDWLRQ 7KH�4XDUWHU�0LOH�0DWK�/����������3UREOHPV ���� ������� 
(GPHQWXP 2QOLQH�0DWK�&XUULFXOXP 
(GXFDWLRQDO�'HVLJQ %DVLF�$OJHEUD���&RDFK ���� ������� 
(GXFDWLRQDO�'HVLJQ ,Q�'HSWK�0DWK� ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO 0DWKHPDWLFV��&RXUVH�� ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO 0DWKHPDWLFV��&RXUVH�� ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO 0DWKHPDWLFV�&RXUVH��� ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO 0DWKHPDWLFV�$SSOLFDWLRQV�DQG�&RQFHSWV ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO 0DWK�ZLWK�%XVLQHVV�$SSOLFDWLRQV�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ���������� ���� ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO 0DWK�ZLWK�%XVLQHVV�$SSOLFDWLRQV�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ ���������� ���� ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO *HRPHWU\��,QWHJUDWLRQ�$SSOLFDWLRQ� �&RQQHFWLRQ�6WXGHQW�7H[W ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO *HRPHWU\��,QWHJUDWLRQ��$SSOLFDWLRQ� �&RQQHFWLRQ�7HDFKHU�7H[W ���� ������� 
*OREH�)HDURQ $OJHEUD�VHW�Z�FG�5RP ���� ������� 
*OREH�)HDURQ )UDFWLRQV�6WXGHQWV ���� ������� 
*OREH�)HDURQ )UDFWLRQ�7HDFKHUV�(G ���� ������� 
*OREH�)HDURQ )RUPXODV ���� ������� 
*OREH�)HDURQ %DVLF�0DWK ���� ������� 
+ROW�0F'RXJDO 0LGGOH�6FKRRO�0DWK�&$�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ�&RXUVH��
 ����������������� ��� 
+ROW�0F'RXJDO 0LGGOH�6FKRRO�0DWK�&$�7HDFKHU�(GWLRQ�&RXUVH��
 ����������������� ��� 
+ROW�0F'RXJDO 0LGGOH�6FKRRO�0DWK�&$�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ�&RXUVH��
 ����������������� ��� 
+ROW�0F'RXJDO 0LGGOH�6FKRRO�0DWK�&$�7HDFKHU�(GWLRQ�&RXUVH��
 ����������������� ��� 
+ROW�0F'RXJDO 0LGGOH�6FKRRO�0DWK�&$�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ�&RXUVH�� ����������������� ��� 
+ROW�0F'RXJDO 0LGGOH�6FKRRO�0DWK�&$�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ�$OJHEUD ����������������� 
+ROW��5LQHKDUW� �:LQVWRQ 3UDFWLFDO�0DWKHPDWLFV ���� ������� 
+RXJKWRQ�0LIIOLQ�+DUFRXUW $OJHEUD�60�%RRN��
 ����������������� ���� 
+RXJKWRQ�0LIIOLQ�+DUFRXUW $OJHEUD�60�%RRN���$QVZHU�.H\
 ����������������� ���� 
+RXJKWRQ�0LIIOLQ�+DUFRXUW $OJHEUD�60�%RRN���$QVZHU�.H\
 ����������������� ���� 
.H\�&XUULFXOXP�3UHVV $QVZHU�%RRNV ���� ������� 
.H\�&XUULFXOXP�3UHVV .H\�WR�$OJHEUD�%RRN�� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
.H\�&XUULFXOXP�3UHVV .H\�WR�$OJHEUD�%RRN�� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
.H\�&XUULFXOXP�3UHVV .H\�WR�$OJHEUD�%RRN�� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
.H\�&XUULFXOXP�3UHVV .H\�WR�$OJHEUD�%RRN�� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
.H\�&XUULFXOXP�3UHVV .H\�WR�$OJHEUD�ERRN�� ���� ������� 

79



	
	

���������� 3DJH�� 

.H\�&XUULFXOXP�3UHVV .H\�WR�$OJHEUD�%RRN�� ���� ������� 

.H\�&XUULFXOXP�3UHVV .H\�WR�$OJHEUD�%RRN�� ���� ������� 

.H\�&XUULFXOXP�3UHVV .H\�WR�$OJHEUD�%RRN�� ���� ������� 

.H\�&XUULFXOXP�3UHVV .H\�WR�$OJHEUD�%RRN�� ���� ������� 

.H\�&XUULFXOXP�3UHVV .H\�WR�$OJHEUD�%RRN��� ���� ������� 

.H\�&XUULFXOXP�3UHVV .H\�WR�'HFLPDOV�%RRN�� ���� ������� 

.H\�&XUULFXOXP�3UHVV .H\�WR�'HFLPDOV�%RRN�� ���� ������� 

.H\�&XUULFXOXP�3UHVV .H\�WR�'HFLPDOV�%RRN�� ���� ������� 

.H\�&XUULFXOXP�3UHVV .H\�WR�'HFLPDOV�%RRN�� ���� ������� 

.H\�&XUULFXOXP�3UHVV .H\�WR�'HFLPDOV�%RRN�6HW���� ����������������� ���� ������� 

.H\�&XUULFXOXP�3UHVV .H\�WR�)UDFWLRQV�%RRN�� ���� ������� 

.H\�&XUULFXOXP�3UHVV .H\�WR�)UDFWLRQV�%RRN�� ���� ������� 

.H\�&XUULFXOXP�3UHVV .H\�WR�)UDFWLRQV�%RRN�� ���� ������� 

.H\�&XUULFXOXP�3UHVV .H\�WR�)UDFWLRQV�%RRN�� ���� ������� 

.H\�&XUULFXOXP�3UHVV .H\�WR�)UDFWLRQV�6WXGHQW�%RRN�6HW ����������������� ���� ������� 

.H\�&XUULFXOXP�3UHVV .H\�WR�*HRPHWU\�%RRN�� ���� ������� 

.H\�&XUULFXOXP�3UHVV .H\�WR�*HRPHWU\�%RRN�� ���� ������� 

.H\�&XUULFXOXP�3UHVV .H\�WR�*HRPHWU\�%RRN�� ���� ������� 

.H\�&XUULFXOXP�3UHVV .H\�WR�*HRPHWU\�%RRN�� ���� ������� 

.H\�&XUULFXOXP�3UHVV .H\�WR�*HRPHWU\�%RRN�� ���� ������� 

.H\�&XUULFXOXP�3UHVV .H\�WR�*HRPHWU\�%RRN�� ���� ������� 

.H\�&XUULFXOXP�3UHVV .H\�WR�*HRHPWU\�%RRN�� ���� ������� 

.H\�&XUULFXOXP�3UHVV .H\�WR�*HRPHWU\�%RRN�� ���� ������� 

.H\�&XUULFXOXP�3UHVV .H\�WR�0HDVXUH�%RRN�� ���� ������� 

.H\�&XUULFXOXP�3UHVV .H\�WR�0HDVXUH�%RRN�� ���� ������� 

.H\�&XUULFXOXP�3UHVV .H\�WR�0HDVXUH�%RRN�� ���� ������� 

.H\�&XUULFXOXP�3UHVV .H\�WR�0HDVXUH�%RRN�� ���� ������� 

.H\�&XUULFXOXP�3UHVV .H\�WR�3HUFHQWV�%RRN�� ���� ������� 

.H\�&XUULFXOXP�3UHVV .H\�WR�3HUFHQWV�%RRN�� ���� ������� 

.H\�&XUULFXOXP�3UHVV .H\�WR�3HUFHQWV�%RRN�� ���� ������� 

.H\�&XUULFXOXP�3UHVV .H\�WR�3HUFHQWV�6WXGHQW�%RRN�6HW ����������������� ���� ������� 

.H\�&XUULFXOXP�3UHVV 5HSURGXFLEOH�7HVW ���� ������� 
0DWK�7HDFKHUV�3UHVV $OJHEUD�5HDGLQHVV�0DQLSXODWLYH�.LW ���� ������� 
0DWK�7HDFKHUV�3UHVV :HE�%DVHG�$VVHVPHQW�3LORW ���� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO $OJHEUD����([FHUFLVHV�LQ�6SDQLVK� �������������� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO &DOLIRUQLD�0DWK�&RXUVH���3XSLO�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� � ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO &DOLIRUQLD�0DWK�&RXUVH���7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� � ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO &DOLIRUQLD�0DWK�3UDFWLFH�:RUNERRN�&RXUVH�� ����������������� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO &DOLIRUQLD�0DWK�7HDFKHU�5HVRXUFH�0DQDJHU�&RXUVH�� ����������������� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO &DOLIRUQLD�6WDQGDUGV�5HYLHZ� �3UDFWLFH�6WXGHQW�&RXUVH�� ����������������� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO &DOLIRUQLD�6WDQGDUGV�5HYLHZ� �3UDFWLFH�7HDFKHU�&RXUVH�� ����������������� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO &DOLIRUQLD�1RWHWDNLQJ�*XLGH�6WXGHQW�&RXUVH�� ����������������� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO &DOLIRUQLD�1RWHWDNLQJ�*XLGH�7HDFKHUV�&RXUVH�� ����������������� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO &DOLIRUQLD�(DV\3ODQQHU�'9'�520�&RXUVH�� ����������������� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO H(GLWLRQ�3OXV�2QOLQH�&RXUVH�� ����������������� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO &DOLIRUQLD�0DWK�&RXUVH���3XSLO�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� � ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO &DOLIRUQLD�0DWK�&RXUVH���7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� � ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO &DOLIRUQLD�3UDFWLFH�:RUNERRN�&RXUVH�� ����������������� ���� ������� 

80



	
	

	
	

	 	
	 	
	
	
	
	
	

	

���������� 3DJH�� 

0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO &DOLIRUQLD�0DWK�7HDFKHU�5HVRXUFH�0DQDJHU�&RXUVH�� ����������������� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO &DOLIRUQLD�6WDQGDUGV�5HYLHZ� �3UDFWLFH�6WXGHQW�&RXUVH�� ����������������� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO &DOLIRUQLD�6WDQGDUGV�5HYLHZ� �3UDFWLFH�7HDFKHU�&RXUVH�� ����������������� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO &DOLIRUQLD�1RWHWDNLQJ�*XLGH�6WXGHQW�&RXUVH�� ����������������� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO &DOLIRUQLD�1RWHWDNLQJ�*XLGH�7HDFKHU�&RXUVH�� ����������������� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO &DOLIRUQLD�(DV\3ODQQHU�'9'�520�&RXUVH�� ����������������� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO H(GLWLRQ�3OXV�2QOLQH�&RXUVH�� ����������������� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO &DOLIRUQLD�0DWK�$OJHEUD���3XSLO�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� � ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO &DOLIRUQLD�0DWK�$OJHEUD���7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� � ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO &DOLIRUQLD�7HDFKHU�5HVRXUFH�0DQDJHU�$OJHEUD�� ����������������� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO &DOLIRUQLD�3UDFWLFH�:RUNERRN�$OJHEUD�� ����������������� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO &DOLIRUQLD�6WDQGDUG�5HYLHZ� �3UDFWLFH�6WXGHQW�$OJHEUD�� ����������������� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHUO &DOLIRUQLD�6WDQGDUG�5HYLHZ� �3UDFWLFH�7HDFKHUV�$OJHEUD�� ����������������� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO &DOLIRUQLD�1RWHWDNLQJ�*XLGH�6WXGHQW�$OJHEUD�� ����������������� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO &DOLIRUQLD�1RWHWDNLQJ�*XLGH�7HDFKHUV�$OJHEUD�� ����������������� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO &DOLIRUQLD�5HVRXUFH�0DQDJHU�$OJHEUD ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO &DOLIRUQLD�7HDFKHUV�(GWLRQ�$OJHEUD�� ����������������� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO &DOLIUQLD�$VVHVVPHQW�%RRN�$OJHEUD�� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO &DOLIRUQLD�$FWLYLW\ ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO &$�H(GLWLRQ�'9'�520�$OJHEUD�� ���� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO H(GLWLRQ�2OLQH�$OJHEUD�� ����������������� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO &$�#+RPH�7XWRU�&'�520�$OJHEUD�� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO &DOLIRUQLD�([DPYLHZ�6XLWH�����7HVW�*HQHUDWRU�&'�520�&RXUVH����&RXUVH����$OJHEUD�� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO &DOLIRUQLD�3RZHU����3UHVHQWDWLRQV��7KH�(OHFWURQLF�&ODVVURRP�&'�520�$OJHEUD�� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO &DOLIRUQLD�(DV\3ODQQHU�'9'�520�$OJHEUD�� ����������������� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO &DOLIRUQLD�5HPHGLDWLRQ�%RRN ����������������� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO�+RXJKWRQ�0LIIOLQ $OJHEUD����7(��� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO�+RXJKWRQ�0LIIOLQ $OJHEUD��6WUXFWXUH�DQG�0HWKRG��%RRN�,, ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWOH�+RXJKWRQ�0LIILQ $OJHEUD�O��([HUFLVHV�LQ�6SDQLVK������ �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO��/LWWHOO� �&R� 3UH�$OJHEUD�&RQFHSWV� �6NLOOV��&RXUVH�� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO��/LWWHOO� �&R� 3UH�$OJHEUD�6WUXFWXUH� �0HWKRG��%RRN�2QH ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO��/LWWHOO� �&R� *HRPHWU\�6WXGHQW�7H[W ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO��/LWWHOO� �&R� *HRPHWU\�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO��/LWWHOO� �&R� *HRPHWU\�6ROXWLRQV�.H\ ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO��/LWWHOO� �&R� 7HVWV� �%ODFNOLQH��&KDSWHU�7HVWV ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO��/LWWHOO� �&R� $QVZHU�.H\V�WR�%ODFNOLQH�7HVWV ��������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0HUULOO 0HUULOO�$OJHEUD�7ZR�ZLWK�7ULJLQRPHWU\ ���� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLFV�/HDUQLQJ %LJ�,GHDV�0DWK�,QWHJUDWHG�O�7( �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLFV�/HDUQLQJ %,J�,GHDV�0DWK�,QWHJUDWHG�O�$VPW�%. �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLFV�/HDUQLQJ %LJ�,GHDV�0DWK�,QWHJUDWHG�OO�$VPW�%. �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLFV�/HDUQLQJ %LJ�,GHDV�0DWK�,QWHJUDWHG�OOO�$VPW�%. �������������� ���� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLFV�/HDUQLQJ %LJ�,GHDV�0DWK�,QWHJUDWHG�O�5HVRXUFHV�E\�&KDSWHU �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLFV�/HDUQLQJ %LJ�,GHDV�0DWK�O �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3&,�(GXFDWLRQDO�3XEOLVKLQJ 'HOX[H�%DQNLQJ�:LQ�&' ���� ������� 
3&,�(GXFDWLRQDO�3XEOLVKLQJ 7ZLVW� �6KRXW�0XOWLSOLFDWLRQ�'HOX[H ���� ������� 
3&,�(GXFDWLRQDO�3XEOLVKLQJ 7DONLQJ�&DOFXODWRU ���� ������� 
3&,�(GXFDWLRQDO�3XEOLVKLQJ &ORFN�DQG�&DOHQGDU�6NLOOV ���� ������� 
3&,�(GXFDWLRQDO�3XEOLVKLQJ $OJHEUD�&XUULFXOXP�&ODVV�6HW�5HYLVHG������(GLWLRQ ���������� ���� ������� 

81






	

	

���������� 3DJH�� 

3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH 3UH�$OJHEUD�&XUULFXOXP�&ODVV�6HW�5HYLVHG������(GLWLRQ ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH $OJHEUD�5HYLVHG������(GLWLRQ�6WXGHQW�7H[W ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH $OJHEUD�6(�5HYLVHG� ����������������� ���� ������� 

3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH *HRPHWU\�5HYLVHG� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH $OJHEUD��� ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH *HRPHWU\�6( ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH *HRPHWU\�&XUULFXOXP�&ODVV�6HW�5HYLVHG ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH 3UH�$OJHEUD�5HYLVHG� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH 0HHWLQJ�WKH�&DOLIRUQLD�&KDOOHQJH�0DWK�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ����������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH 0HHWLQJ�WKH�&DOLIRUQLD�&KDOOHQJH�0DWK�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ ����������[ ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ &RQVXPHU�0DWKHPDWLFV�:RUNERRN
 ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ %DVLF�0DWK�6NLOOV�&ODVVURRQ�6HW ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ %DVLF�0DWK�6NLOOV�:RRNERRN
 ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ 3UH�$OJHEUD�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ�����
 ����������������� ���6HS 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ 3UH�$OJHEUD�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ�����
 ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ 3UH�$OJHEUD�:RUNERRN�����
 ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ $OJHEUD�:RRNERRN�����
 ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ *HRPHWU\�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ
 ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ *HRPHWU\�&ODVVURRP�6HW�����
 ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ $*6�$OJHEUD����7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ $*6�*HRPHWU\�&ODVVURRP�6HW ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ $*6�$OJHEUD�5HYLVHG�&ODVVURRP�6HW ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ $*6�/LIHVNLOOV�0DWK ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ &&�,QWHJUDWHG�0DWK�9�� �������� ����������������� ���� ���� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ &&�,QWHJUDWHG�0DWK�$QVZHU�6ROXWLRQV ����������������� ���� ���� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ &&�,QWHJUDWHG�0DWK���7(�9�� �������� ����������������� ���� ���� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ &RQVXPHU�0DWK�6( �������������� 

�������������� 

����������������� 

����������������� 

�������������� 

�������������� 

�������������� 

�������������� 

�������������� 

�������������� 

���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ &RQVXPHU�0DWK�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ +60���&&�,QW�0WK��:�6( ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ +60���&&�,QW�0WK��:�6( ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ +60��&&�,QWJUWG�0WK���7(��*���� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ +60���&&�,QWJUWG�0DWK���7(�*U����� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ +60���&&�,17*57'�0WK���7(�*U������ ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ +60���&&�,QW�0DWK�O�6(��*U�� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ +60���&&�,QWJUWG�0WK���:��O�6(�*U��� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDLRQ +60���&&�,QWJUWG�0WK���:�O�6(��*U��� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ 0DWKPDWLF�&RQFHSWV�6WXGHQW�7H[W ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ 0DWKPDWLF�&RQFHSWV�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ 0DWKPDWLF�&RQFHSWV�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ *HRPHWU\�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ /RQJPDQ�0DWKHPDWLFV�:RUN�7H[W ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ /RQJPDQ�0DWKHPDWLFV�$QVZHU�.H\ ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�/HDUQLQJ�*URXS *HRPHWU\�7HDFKHU
 V�(GLWLRQ�3DFHPDNHU ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�/HDUQLQJ�*URXS *HRPHWU\�3DFHPDNHU ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�/HDUQLQJ�*URXS 'HYHORSLQJ�6NLOOV�LQ�$OJHEUD��� ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO $OJHEUD���&DOLIRUQLD�(GLWLRQ ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�3UHQWLFH�+DOO (OHPHQWDU\�6WDWLVWLFV��6WXGHQW�(G���� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�3UHQWLFH�+DOO (OHPHQWDU\�6WDWLVWLFV��7HDFKHUV�(G��� ���� ������� 

82



	

	

	

	

	






���������� 3DJH�� 

3HDUVRQ�3UHQWLFH�+DOO (OHPHQWDU\�6WDWLVWLFV�7HVW�%DQN�� ���� ������� 
6DGGOHEDFN�(GXFDWLRQ 6SHFWUXP�*UDGH���0DWK ���� ������� 
6DGGOHEDFN�(GXFDWLRQ 6SHFWUXP�*UDGH���0DWK ���� ������� 
6DGGOHEDFN�(GXFDWLRQ 0DWKHPDWLFV�IRU�1HZ�6SHDNHUV�RI�(QJOLVK �������������� ���� ������� 
6D[RQ $OJHEUD����$Q�,QFUHPHQWDO�'HYHORSPHQW ���� ������� 
6D[RQ $OJHEUD������$Q�,QFUHPHQWDO�'HYHORSPHQW ���� ������� 
6D[RQ $OJHEUD�OO��$Q�,QFUHPHQWDO�'HYHORSPHQW ���� ������� 
6FRWWV�)RUHVPDQ $OJHEUD� ���� ������� 
6FRWWV�)RUHVPDQ *HRPHWU\ ���� ������� 
6RIWZDUH 0DWK�%ODVWHU ���� ������� 
7KLQJV�IRU�/HDUQLQJ�,QF� &UDQLXP�&UDFNHUV ���� ������� 
7KLQJV�IRU�/HDUQLQJ�,QF� ����0DWK�:DUP�8SV ���� ������� 
7UXQRUWK�5HVHDUFK 0DWK�9RFDEXODU\�:RUG�/LVW���6SDQLVK�(GLWLRQ 1R�,6%1 ���� ������� 
8QLYHUVLW\�RI�&KLFDJR�0DWK�3URMHFW $OJHEUD ���� ������� 
8QLYHUVLW\�RI�&KLFDJR�0DWK�3URMHFW *HRPHWU\ ���� ������� 

6&,(1&( 
$GGLVRQ�:HVOH\ (DUWK� �3K\VLFDO�6LFHQFH ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH %LRORJ\ ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH %LRORJ\�5HYLVHG� ����������������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH %LRORJ\�7HDFKHU�(G� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH %LRORJ\�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH %LRORJ\�6WXGHQW�:RNERRN�$QVZHU�.H\V� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH %LRORJ\� �&XUU��6FLHQFH�&XUULFXOXP�&ODVV�6HW ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH &KHPLVWU\�7HDFKHU
 V�(GLWLRQ ���������� ���������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH (DUWK�6FLHQFH�6(����� ���������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH *HQHUDO�6FLHQFH ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH *HQHUDO�6FLHQFH�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH *HQHUDO�6FLHQFH� �&XUU��6FLHQFH�&XUULFXOXP�&ODVV�6HW ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH *HQHUDO�6FLHQFH�7HDFKHU�(G� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH *HQHUDO�6FLHQFH�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN�$QVZHU�.H\ ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH (DUWK�6FLHQFH��6(�*���� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH (DUWK�6FLHQFH�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH (DUWK�6FLHQFH�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN�$QVZHU�.H\ ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH (DUWK�6FLHQFH�7HDFKHU�(G� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH (DUWK�6FLHQFH� �&XUU��6FLHQFH�&XUULFXOXP�&ODVV�6HW ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH 3K\VLFDO�6FLHQFH ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH 3K\VLFDO�6FLHQFH�5HYLVHG� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH 3K\VLFDO�6FLHQFH� �&XUU��6FLHQFH�&XUULFXOXP�&ODVV�6HW ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH 3K\VLFDO�6FLHQFH�7HDFKHUV�(GLWLRQ ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH 3K\VLFDO�6FLHQFH�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH 3K\VLFDO�6FLHQFH�:RUNERRN�$QVZHU�.H\ ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH 6FLHQFH�&XUULFXOXP�(QYLURQPHQWDO ���� ������� 
&KULVWRSKHU�/HH�3XEOLVKHU %RG\�6\VWHPV�3DFNHWV ���� ������� 
)DFLQJ�WKH�)XWXUH ,W V�$OO�&RQQHFWHG�&ODVVURRP�6HW������(GLWLRQ ���������� ���� ������� 
)DFLQJ�WKH�)XWXUH ,W V�$OO�&RQQHFWHG�6WXGHQW�%RRN������(GLWLRQ ���������� ���� ������� 
)DFLQJ�WKH�)XWXUH 8QGHUVWDQGLQJ�6XVWDLQDELOLW\���6FLHQFHV ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH (DUWK�6FLHQFH ���� ������� 

83



	

	

	

	
	

	

���������� 3DJH�� 

*OHQFRH %LRORJ\�$Q�(YHU\GD\�([SHULHQFH ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0F*UDZ�+LOO %LRORJ\��7KH�'\QDPLFV�RI�/LIH�6WXGHQW�(G� QRQH ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0F*UDZ�+LOO %LRORJ\��7KH�'\QDPLFV�RI�/LIH�5HDGLQJ�(VVHQWLDOV�IRU�&RQWHQW�0DVWHU\ ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0F*UDZ�+LOO %LRORJ\��7KH�'\QDPLFV�RI�/LIH�7HDFKHU�:UDSDURXQG�(GLWLRQ ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0F*UDZ�+LOO %LRORJ\��7KH�'\QDPLFV�RI�/LIH�7HDFKHU�&ODVVURRP�5HVRXUFHV ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0F*UDZ�+LOO %LRORJ\��7KH�'\QDPLFV�RI�/LIH�7HDFKHUZRUNV��� ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0F*UDZ�+LOO %LRORJ\��7KH�'\QDPFLV�RI�/LIH�6WXG\�*XLGH� �5HLQIRUFHPHQW ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0F*UDZ�+LOO %LRORJ\��7KH�'\QDPLFV�RI�/LIH�9LUWXDO�/DEV�&'�520 ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0F*UDZ�+LOO %LRORJ\��7KH�'\QDPLFV�RI�/LIH�/DEV�3DFNDJH��� ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0F*UDZ�+LOO %LRORJ\���7KH�'\QDPLFV�RI�/LIH�6WXG\�*XLGH� �5HLQIRUFHPHQW�6SDQLVK�� ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0F*UDZ�+LOO 0DULQH�%LRORJ\ ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0F*UDZ�+LOO 0DULQH�%LRORJ\�,QVWUXFWRUV�7HVWLQJ� �5HVRXUFH�&'B520 ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0F*UDZ�+LOO %LRORJ\��'\QDPLFV�RI�/LIH�6(&�)2&�75$16��%22.������� ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0F*UDZ�+LOO %LRORJ\��'\QDPLFV�RI�/LIH��%$6�&21&�75$16�%22.������� ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0F*UDZ�+LOO %LRORJ\��'\QDPLFV�RI�/LIH�5(7�6.,�75$16�%22.������� ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH &KHPLVWU\�&RQFHSWV�DQG�$SSOLFDWLRQV ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH /LIH�6FLHQFH ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH %LRORJ\�'\QDPLFV�RI�/LIH ���������� ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH %LRORJ\�'\QDPLFV�RI�/LIH�7HDFKHU�:UDSDURXQG�(GLWLRQ
 ����������� ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH %LRORJ\ ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0F*UDZ�+LOO (DUWK�6FLHQFH��*HRORJ\��(QYLURQPHQW� �8QLYHUVH�6WXGHQW�7H[W ���������� ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0F*UDZ�+LOO (DUWK�6FLHQFH��*HRORJ\��(QYLURQPHQW� �8QLYHUVH�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ ���������� ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0F*UDZ�+LOO (DUWK�6FLHQFH��6FLHQFH�1RWHERRN�LQ�(DUWK�6FLHQFH ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0F*UDZ�+LOO (DUWK�6FLHQFH��6WXG\�*XLGH�IRU�&RQWHQW�0DVWHU\ ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0F*UDZ�+LOO (DUWK�6FLHQFH��7HDFKHU�:UDSDURXQG�(GLWLRQ ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0F*UDZ�+LOO (DUWK�6FLHQFH��7HDFKHU�&ODVVURRP�5HVRXUFHV ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0F*UDZ�+LOO (DUWK�6FLHQFH��9LUWXDO�/DEV�&'B520 ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0F*UDZ�+LOO 3K\VLFDO�6FLHQFH�6WXGHQW�7H[W ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0F*UDZ�+LOO 3K\VLFDO�6FLHQFH��6FLHQFH�5HDGLQJ�(VVHQWLDOV ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0F*UDZ�+LOO 3K\VLFDO�6FLHQFH��7HDFKHU�:UDSDURXQG�(GLWLRQ ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0F*UDZ�+LOO 3K\VLFDO�6FLHQFH�7HDFKHU�&ODVVURRP�5HVRXUFHV ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0F*UDZ�+LOO 3K\VLFDO�6FLHQFH��6WXG\�*XLGH� �5HLQIRUFHPHQW ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0F*UDZ�+LOO 3K\VLFDO�6FLHQFH��9LUWXDO�/DEV�&'B520 ���� ������� 
*OREH�)HDURQ %DVLF�%LRORJ\ ���� ������� 
*OREH�)HDURQ %DVLF�&KHPLVWU\ ���� ������� 
*OREH�)HDURQ *HQHUDO�6FLHQFH ����������������� ���� ������� 
*OREH�)HDURQ %LRORJLD�9LYRV ���� ������� 
*OREH�)HDURQ %LRORJLD�(VWXGLRV�9LYRV ���� ������� 
*OREH�)HDURQ %LRORJLD�+XPDQD ���� ������� 
+ROW�0F'RXJDO (QYLURQPHQWDO�6FLHQFH�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� ������� 
+ROW�0F'RXJDO (QYLURQPHQWDO�6FLHQFH�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� ������� 
+ROW�0F'RXJDO (QYLURQPHQWDO�6FLHQFH�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ���������������� ���� ������� 
+ROW�0F'RXJDO ,QWHUDFWLYH�2Q�/LQH�(GLWLRQ�ZLWK�6WXGHQW�&'�520 ����������������� ���� ������� 
+ROW�0F'RXJDO 6FLHQFH�&$�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ�(DUWK�6FLHQFH
 ����������������� � ������� 
+ROW�0F'RXJDO 6FLHQFH�&$�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ�(DUWK�6FLHQFH
 ����������������� � ������� 
+ROW�0F'RXJDO 6FLHQFH�&$�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ�/LIH�6FLHQFH
 ����������������� � ������� 
+ROW�0F'RXJDO 6FLHQFH�&$�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ�/LIH�6FLHQFH
 ����������������� � ������� 
+ROW�0F'RXJDO 6FLHQFH�&$�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ�3K\VLFDO�6FLHQFH
 ����������������� � ������� 

84



	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	

���������� 3DJH�� 

+ROW 6FLHQFH�&$�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ�3K\VLFDO�6FLHQFH
 ����������������� � ������� 
+ROW��5LQHKDUW� �:LQVWRQ 0RGHUQ�%LRORJ\ ���������� QRQH ���� ���� ������� 
+ROW��5LQHKDUW� �:LQVWRQ 6FLHQFH�6SHFWUXP�3K\VLFDO�6FLHQFH ���������� QRQH ���� ���� ������� 
+ROW��5LQHKDUW� �:LQVWRQ (QYLURQPHQWDO�6FLHQFH�6WXGHQW�(G� ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+ROW��5LQHKDUW� �:LQVWRQ (QYLURQPHQWDO�6FLHQFH�7HDFKHU�(G� ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+ROW��5LQHKDUW� �:LQVWRQ (QYLURQPHQWDO�6FLHQFH�&KDSWHU�5HVRXUFH�3DFNDJH ���������� QRQH ���� ���� ������� 
+ROW��5LQHKDUW� �:LQVWRQ (QYLURQPHQWDO�6FLHQFH�$FWLYH�5HDGLQJ�:RUNERRN ���������� QRQH ���� ���� ������� 
.HQGDOO�+XQW�3XEOLVKHUV ,QVLJKWV�LQ�%LRORJ\�-RXUQH\�RI�'LVFRYHU\�6WXGHQW�(G� QRQH ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+RXJKWRQ�0LIIOLQ�+DUFRXUW +/7�(QYLURQPHQW�6FLHQFH�6(������ ��������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+RXJKWRQ�0LIIOLQ�+DUFRXUW +/7�(QYLURQPHQW�6FLHQFH�7(������ ��������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0F*UDZ�+LOO (DUWK�6FLHQFH�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ
 ���������� ���� 
0F*UDZ�+LOO (DUWK�6FLHQFH�7HDFKHU�:UDSDURXQG�(GLWLRQ
 ���������� ���� 
0F*UDZ�+LOO 3K\VLFDO�6FLHQFH��([SORULQJ�0DWWHU� �(QHUJ\�6WXGHQW�7H[W ����������������� ���� ������� 
0F*UDZ�+LOO 3K\VLFDO�6FLHQFH��([SORULQJ�0DWWHU� �(QHUJ\�6WXGHQW�7H[W�:��&' ����������������� ���� ������� 
0F*UDZ�+LOO 3K\VLFDO�6FLHQFH��6WXGHQW�&' ����������������� ���� ������� 
0F*UDZ�+LOO 3K\VLFDO�6FLHQFH��7HDFKHU�&' ����������������� ���� ������� 
0F*UDZ�+LOO 3K\VLFDO�6FLHQFH��$VVHVVPHQW�6XLWH�&' ����������������� ���� ������� 
0F*UDZ�+LOO 3K\VLFDO�6FLHQFH��+DUGFRYHU�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� ������� 
0F*UDZ�+LOO 3K\VLFDO�6FLHQFH��/DE�0DQXHO ����������������� ���� ������� 
0F*UDZ�+LOO 3K\VLFDO�6FLHQFH��%/0�$VVHVVPHQW�3DFNHW ����������������� ���� ������� 
0F*UDZ�+LOO 3K\VLFDO�6FLHQFH��2YHUKHDG�7UDQVSDUHQFLHV ����������������� ���� ������� 
0F*UDZ�+LOO�6FKRRO +HDOWK�&DUH�6FLHQFH�7HFKQRORJ\�6( �������������� ���� ������� 
0F*UDZ�+LOO�6FKRRO +HDOWK�&DUH�6FLHQFH�7HFKQRORJ\�7( �������������� ���� ������� 
3%6 *RLQJ�WR�*UHHQ *2*5�������$ ���� ������� 
3%6 H��(QHUJ\ '(6��������$ ���� ������� 
3%6� H��7UDQVSRUW '(6��������$ ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH %LRORJ\�&ODVV�6HW ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*&�*OREH &KHPLVWU\�6(� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH &RQFHSWXDO�3K\VLFV�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ����� ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH &RQFHSWXDO�3K\VLFV�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ����� ���������; ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH +LJK�6FKRRO�3K\VLFDO�6FLHQFH�&RQFHSWV�LQ�$FWLRQ����� ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH +LJK�6FKRRO�3K\VLFDO�6FLHQFH�&RQFHSWV�LQ�$FWLRQ����� ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH (QYLURQPHQWDO�6FLHQFH�&XUULFXOXP�6HW ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH &XUULFXOXP�&ODVV�6HW�3K\VLFDO�6FLHQFH ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH (QYLURQPHQWDO�6FLHQFH�6WXGHQW�7H[W ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH (QYLURQPHQWDO�6FLHQFH�7HDFKHU�(G� ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH 3DFHPDNHU�*HQHUDO�6FLHQFH�&XUULFXOXP�6HW ��������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH *HQHUDO�6FLHQFH�6WXGHQW�7H[WERRN ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH 'LVFRYHU�+HDOWK�:RUNERRNV ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ (DUWK�6FLHQFH�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ
 ����������������� ���� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ (DUWK�6FLHQFH�7HDFKHU�(GWLRQ
 ����������������� ���� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ (DUWK�6FLHQFH�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ�����
 ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ %LRORJ\�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ�����
 ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ %LRORJ\�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ�����
 ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ %LRORJ\�/DE�0DQXDO�����
 ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ /LIH�6NLOOV�+HDOWK �������������� ���� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ 0/%,2�6(�*���� �������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ 0/%,2�7(�*���� �������������� ���� ������� 

85



���������� 3DJH�� 

3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ %LRORJ\�/DE�0DQXDO�$QVZHU�.H\�����
 ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ $*6�(DUWK6FLHQFH����6(��*���� �������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ $*6�(DUWK6FLHQFH����7(��*���� �������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ $*6�(QYLURQPHQWDO�6FLHQFH�&ODVVURRP�6HW ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ $*6�3K\VLFDO�6FLHQFH�&ODVVURRP�6HW ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ $*6�%LRORJ\�&ODVVURRP�6HW ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ /RQJPDQ�6FLHQFH�6WXGHQW�7H[W ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ /RQJPDQ�6FLHQFH�:RUNERRN ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ /RQJPDQ�6FLHQFH�7HDFKHU�*XLGH ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ /RQJPDQ�6FLHQFH�$XGLR�&' ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ /RQJPDQ�.H\V�WR�/HDUQLQJ�6WXGHQW�7H[W ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ /RQJPDQ�.H\V�WR�/HDUQLQJ�:RUNERRN ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ /RQJPDQ�.H\V�WR�/HDUQLQJ�$XGLR�&' ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ )URP�%DFWHULD�WR�3ODQWV�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ )URP�%DFWHULD�WR�3ODQWV�7HDFKHUV�(GLWLRQ ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ $QLPDOV�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ $QLPDOV�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ +XPDQ�%LRORJ\�DQG�+HDOWK�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ +XPDQ�%LRORJ\�DQG�+HDOWK�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ ,QWUR�+RUWLFXOWXUH ���� ���� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ &HOOV�6WXGHQW�(GWLWLRQ ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ &HOOV�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ (QYLURQPHQWDO�6FLHQFH�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ (QYLURQPHQWDO�6FLHQFH�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ (QYLURQPHQWDO�6FLHQFH�:RUNERRN
 ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ (QYLURQPHQWDO�6FLHQFH�/DE�0DQXDO
 ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ (DUWK
 V�:DWHUV�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ (DUWK
 V�:DWHUV�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ $VWURQRP\�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ���������; ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ $VWURQRP\�7HDFKHUV�(GLWLRQ ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ $*6�3K\VLFDO�6FLHQFH�6(����� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ :HDWKHU�DQG�&OLPDWH�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ :HDWKHU�DQG�&OLPDWH�7HDFKHUV�(GLWLRQ ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ 0RWLRQ�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ 0RWLRQ�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ $*6�/LIH�6NLOOV�+HDOWK�5HYLVHG�&ODVV�6HW ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ 3DFHPDNHU�*HQHUDO�6FLHQFH�&XUULFXOXP�6HW ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�3XEOLVKLQJ *HQHUDO�6FLHQFH�&ODVVURRP�ZLWK�&'�520 ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�3XEOLVKLQJ *HQHUDO�6FLHQFH�7HDFKHU�(G� ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�3UHQWLFH�+DOO &RQFHSWXDO�3K\VLFV�Z�/DE�0DQXDO ���������� QRQH ���� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�3UHQWLFH�+DOO &RQFHSWXDO�3K\VLFV�&RUH�7HDFKLQJ�5HVRXUFHV�7( ���������� QRQH ���� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�3UHQWLFH�+DOO )RFXV�RQ�(DUWK�6FLHQFH��&DOLIRUQLD�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ���������; ���� � ������� 
3HDUVRQ�3UHQWLFH�+DOO )RFXV�RQ�(DUWK�6FLHQFH��&DOLIRUQLD�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ ��������� ���� � ������� 
3HDUVRQ�3UHQWLFH�+DOO )RFXV�RQ�/LIH�6FLHQFH��&DOLIRUQLD�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ��������� ���� � ������� 
3HDUVRQ�3UHQWLFH�+DOO )RFXV�RQ�/LIH�6FLHQFH��&DOLIRUQLD�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ ��������� ���� � ������� 
3HDUVRQ�3UHQWLFH�+DOO )RFXV�RQ�3K\VLFDO�6FLHQFH��&DOLIRUQLD�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ��������� ���� � ������� 
3HDUVRQ�3UHQWLFH�+DOO )RFXV�RQ�3K\VLFDO�6FLHQFH��&DOLIRUQLD�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ ��������� ���� � ������� 
3HDUVRQ�3UHQWLFH�+DOO &DOLIRUQLD�)RFXV�RQ�6FLHQFH ��������� ��� ������� 

86



	

	
	

	
	

	

	
	
	
	 	
	
	 	
	
	
	
	

���������� 3DJH��� 

3UHQWLFH�+DOO %LRORJ\�7(� �������������� ���� ���� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO %LRORJ\��([SORULQJ�/LIH ���������� QRQH ���� ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO %LRORJ\�7HDFKHU�5HVRXUFH�3DFNDJH ���������� QRQH ���� ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO &HOOV��%XLOGLQJ�%ORFNV�RI�/LIH ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO 3URGXFW�7HVWLQJ�E\�&RQVXPHU�5HSRUWV�7HDFKHU�*XLGH ��������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO '\QDPLF�(DUWK ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO (DUWK�6FLHQFH ���������� QRQH ���� ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO (FRORJ\��(DUWK
 V�1DWXUDO�5HVRXUFHV ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO (FRORJ\��(DUWK
 V�/LYLQJ�5HVRXUFHV ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO ([SORULQJ�(DUWK
 V�:HDWKHU ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO ([SORULQJ�(FRORJ\ ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO ([SORULQJ�3ODQHW�(DUWK ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO ([SORULQJ�WKH�8QLYHUVH ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO +XPDQ�%LRORJ\�DQG�+HDOWK ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO /D�%LRORJLD�+XPDQD�\�/D�6DOXG� �6SDQLVK� ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO 0RWLRQ�)RUFHV� �(QHUJ\ ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO +HUHGLW\��7KH�&RGH�RI�/LIH ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO 3DUDGH�RI�/LIH���$QLPDOV ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO 3DUDGH�RI�/LIH��)XQJXV ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO 7KH�1DWXUH�RI�6FLHQFH ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO 3K\VLFDO�6FLHQFH�+6�6(����� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO 3K\VLFDO�6FLHQFH��&RQFHSWV�LQ�$FWLRQ�ZLWK�(DUWK� �6SDFH�6( ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO 3K\VLFDO�6FLHQFH��&RQFHSWV�LQ�$FWLRQ�ZLWK�(DUWK� �6SDFH�7( ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO 0LOOHU� �/HYLQH�%LRORJ\��6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ �����������; ���� ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO 0LOOHU� �/HYLQH�%LRORJ\�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO 6WXGHQW�(G��0LOOHU� �/HYLQH�%LR�&RUH�7HDFKLQJ�5HVRXUFHV ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO 3UHQWLFH�+DOO�6FLHQFH�6HULHV ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO 6RXQGV�DQG�/LJKW ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO 6FLHQFH ���� ������� 
6WHFN� �9DXJKQ :RQGHUV�RI�6FLHQFH���+XPDQ�%RG\�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6WHFN� �9DXJKQ :RQGHUV�RI�6FLHQFH���/DQG�$QLPDOV�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6WHFN� �9DXJKQ :RQGHUV�RI�6FLHQFH���:DWHU�/LIH��6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6WHFN� �9DXJKQ :RQGHUV�RI�6FLHQFH���0DWWHU�0RWLRQ� �0DFKLQHV��6WXGHQW�(G ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6WHFN� �9DXJKQ :RQGHUV�RI�6FLHQFH���3ODQW�/LIH��6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6WHFN� �9DXJKQ :RQGHUV�RI�6FLHQFH���(DUWK� �%H\RQG��6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6WHFN� �9DXJKQ :RQGHUV�RI�6FLHQFH�6HULHV ���� ������� 
6WHFN� �9DXJKQ 7KH�(DUWK�DQG�%H\RQG ����������������� ���� ������� 
6WHFN� �9DXJKQ 0DWWHU�0RWLRQ�DQG�0DFKLQHV ����������������� ���� ������� 
6WHFN� �9DXJKQ 7KH�+XPDQ�%RG\ ����������������� ���� ������� 
7UXQRUWK�5HVHDUFK %LRORJ\�:RUG�/LVW���6SDQLVK�(GLWLRQ 1R�,6%1 ���� ������� 
7UXQRUWK�5HVHDUFK (DUWK�6FLHQFH�:RUG�/LVW���6SDQLVK�(GLWLRQ 1R�,6%1 ���� ������� 

62&,$/�6&,(1&( 
$&&(66 $PHULFDQ�+LVWRU\�6(��� �������������� ���� ������� 
$&&(66 +LVWRU\�6WXGHQW�$FWLYLWLHV�-RXUQDOV�*UDGH����� �������������� ���� ������� 
$UN6XSSO\ $QFLHQW�+LVWRU\�%DVHG�:ULWLQJ�/HVVRQV�6( �������������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH $PHULFDQ�+LVWRU\�� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH (FRQRPLFV ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 

87



	

	

���������� 3DJH��� 

$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH (FRQRPLFV�7HDFKHU�(G� ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH (FRQRPLFV�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH (FRQRPLFV�6WXGHQW�:RNERRN�$QVZHU�.H\ ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH (FRQRPLFV�DQG�&XUUHQW�(YHQWV�6HW� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH 3DFHPDNHU�(FRQRPLFV�&ODVV�6HW������(GLWLRQ ���������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH 8QGHUVWDQGLQJ�(FRQRPLFV�&ODVV�6HW ���������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH ([SORULQJ�/LWHUDWXUH ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH ([SORULQJ�$PHULFDQ�+LVWRU\ ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH *HRJUDSK\�RI�8�6 ����������������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH /HDUQLQJ�$ERXW�*RYHUQPHQW ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH /HDUQLQJ�$ERXW�2XU�8QLWHG�6WDWHV ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH /HDUQLQJ�$ERXW�2XU�8QLWHG�6WDWHV�$QVZHU�.H\ ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH /HDUQLQJ�$ERXW�2XU�8QLWHG�6WDWHV���*HRJUDSK\ ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH /HDUQLQJ�$ERXW�2XU�8QLWHG�6WDWHV���&LWL]HQVKLS ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH /HDUQLQJ�$ERXW�2XU�8QLWHG�6WDWHV���$PHULFDQ�+LVWRU\ ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH /HDUQLQJ�$ERXW�2XU�8QLWHG�6WDWHV���<RX�DQG�WKH�/DZ ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH /HDUQLQJ�$ERXW�2XU�8QLWHG�6WDWHV���*RYHUQPHQW ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH /HDUQLQJ�$ERXW�2XU�8QLWHG�6WDWHV���(FRQRPLFV ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH /HDUQLQJ�$ERXW�2XU�8QLWHG�6WDWHV���$QVZHU�.H\ ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH 8QGHUVWDQGLQJ�(FRQRQLFV ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH 8�6��+LVWRU\�6WXGHQW�7H[W ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH 8QLWHG�6WDWHV�+LVWRU\�5HYLVHG�6WXGHQW�7H[W ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH 8QLWHG�6WDWHV�+LVWRU\�&XUULFXOXP�&ODVV�6HW������(GLWLRQ ���������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH 8�6��+LVWRU\�5HYLVHG�&XUULFXOXP�&ODVV�6HW� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH 8�6��+LVWRU\�7HDFKHU�(G� ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH 8�6��+LVWRU\�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH 8�6��+LVWRU\�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN�$QVZHU�.H\ ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH <RXWK�DQG�/DZ ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH :RUOG�+LVWRU\ ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH :RUOG�+LVWRU\�&ODVV�6HW������(GLWLRQ ���������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH :RUOG�+LVWRU\�6WXGHQW�7H[W������(GLWLRQ ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH :RUOG�+LVWRU\�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ�����
 ����������������� ���� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH :RUOG�+LVWRU\�6WXGHQW�7H[W ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH :RUOG�+LVWRU\�7HDFKHU�(G� ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH :RUOG�+LVWRU\�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN�$QVZHU�.H\V� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH :RUOG�+LVWRU\� �&XUUHQW�(YHQWV�&XUULFXOXP�&ODVV�6HW ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH :RUOG�*HRJUDSK\�6WXGHQW�7H[W ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH :RUOG�*HRJUDSK\�7HDFKHU�(G� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH :RUOG�*HRJUDSK\�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH :RUOG�*HRJUDSK\�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN�$QVZHU�.H\ ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH :RUOG�*HRJUDSK\� �&XUU��(YHQWV�&XUULFXOXP�&ODVV�6HW ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH 8QLWHG�6WDWHV�*RYHUQPHQW�&XUULFXOXP�&ODVV�6HW ���������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH 8�6��*RYHUQPHQW�6WXGHQW�7H[W������(GLWLRQ�5HYLVHG ���������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH 8�6���*RYHUQPHQW�6WXGHQW�7H[W ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH 8�6��*RYHUQPHQW�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH 8�6��*RYHUQPHQW�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN�$QVZHU�.H\ ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH 8�6��*RYHUQPHQW�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH 8�6��*RYHUQPHQW�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ�5HYLVHG ���������� ���� ������� 

88



	

	




	

	

	

���������� 3DJH��� 

$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH 8�6��*RYHUQPHQW� �&XUU��(YHQWV�&XUULFXOXP�&ODVV�6HW ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH 6SDQLVK�8�6��*RYHUQPHQW�6WXGHQW�(G� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH 6SDQLVK�8�6��*RYHUQPHQW�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH 6SDQLVK�8�6��*RYHUQPHQW�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN�$QVZHU�.H\ ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH 7KH�:D\�WR�8�6��&LWL]HQVKLS�6WXGHQW�7H[W ���������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH :RUOG�/LWHUDWXUH ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH ([SORULQJ�/LWHUDWXUH ���� ������� 
$SSOHE\� (7$/������$PHULFDQ�9LVLRQ�6(����� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$SSOHE\� (7$/������$PHULFDQ�9LVLRQ�([DP9LHZ�$VVHVPHQW�6XLWH�&'�5RP����� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$SSOHE\� (7$/������$PHULFDQ�9LVLRQ�7HDFKHU�:UDSDURXQG�(GLWLRQ �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$SSOHE\� (7$/���$PHULFDQ�9LVLRQ�6HFWLRQ�4XL]]HV� �&KDSWHU�7HVW����� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&DOLIRUQLD�'HSW��2I�(GXFDWLRQ �����$�&RPSRVLWH�RI�/DZV���WK�(GLWLRQ ���� ������� 
&HQWHU�IRU�&LYLO�(G� )RXQGDWLRQV�IRU�'HPRFUDF\ ���� ������� 
&ODLUHFH�)HDJLQ�(GXF�'HVLJQ�,QF� 2XU�(FRQRPLF�6\VWHP ��������� ���� ������� 
&ODLUHFH�)HDJLQ�(GXF�'HVLJQ�,QF� 2XU�8QLWHG�6WDWHV�*RYHUQPHQW ��������� ���� ������� 
(GXFDWLRQDO�'HVLJQ 2XU�8�6��+LVWRU\ ���� ������� 
(GXFDWLRQDO�'HVLJQ 8�6��*RYHUQPHQW ���� ������� 
)DFLQJ�WKH�)XWXUH ,W V�$OO�&RQQHFWHG ���� ������� 
)DFLQJ�WKH�)XWXUH )DFLQJ�WKH�)XWXUH�,QWHUPHGLDWH�&ODVVURRP�6HW 1�$ 1�$ ���� ���� ������� 
)DFLQJ�WKH�)XWXUH )DFLQJ�WKH�)XWXUH�$GYDQFHG�&ODVVURRP�6HW� 1�$ 1�$ ���� ���� ������� 
)DFLQJ�WKH�)XWXUH *OREDO�,VVXHV�6WXGHQW�%RRN ���� ������� 
)DFLQJ�WKH�)XWXUH (QJDJLQJ�6WXGHQWV�WKURXJK�*OREDO�,VVXHV ���� ������� 
)DFLQJ�WKH�)XWXUH 8QGHUVWDQGLQJ�6XVWDLQDELOLW\���6FRFLDO�6WXGLHV ���� ������� 
)DFLQJ�WKH�)XWXUH *OREDO�,VVXHV�DQG�6XVWDQDEOH�6ROXWLRQ ���������� ���� ������� 
)RUHVPDQ $PHULFDQ�9RLFHV ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH *HRJUDSK\ ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH $PHULFDQ�-RXUQH\ ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH $PHULFDQ�2G\VVH\�6WXGHQW�7H[W ���������� ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO $PHULFDQ�2G\VVH\�7HDFKHUV�(GLWLRQ�� ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO $PHULFDQ�2G\VVH\�7HDFKHU�:UDSDURXQG�(G� ���������� ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO $PHULFDQ�2G\VVH\�7HDFKHU�&ODVVURRP�5HVRXUFHV ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO $PHULFDQ�2G\VVH\�5HDGLQJ�(VVHQWLDO� �6WXG\�*XLGH ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO $PHULFDQ�2G\VVH\�6SDQLVK�&KDSWHU�6XPPDULHV ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO $PHULFDQ�2G\VVH\�6SDQLVK�9RFDE�� �*XLGHG�5HDGLQJ�$FWLYLWLHV ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO 'LVFRYHULQJ�2XU�3DVW��$QFLHQW�&LYLOL]DWLRQV�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ���������� ���� � ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO 'LVFRYHULQJ�2XU�3DVW��$QFLHQW�&LYLOL]DWLRQV�7HDFKHU�5HVRXUFHV ���������� ���� � ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO 'LVFRYHULQJ�2XU�3DVW��0HGLHYDO�DQG�(DUO\�0RGHUQ�7LPHV�6WXGHQW ���������� ���� � ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO 'LVFRYHULQJ�2XU�3DVW��0HGLHYDO�DQG�(DUO\�0RGHUQ�7LPHV�7HDFKHU ���������� ���� � ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO 'LVFRYHULQJ�2XU�3DVW��7KH�$PHULFDQ�-RXUQH\�WR�:RUOG�:DU�,�6WXGHQW ���������� ���� � ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO 'LVFRYHULQJ�2XU�3DVW��7KH�$PHULFDQ�-RXUQH\�WR�:RUOG�:DU�,�7HDFKHU ���������� ���� � ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO 'LVFRYHULQJ�RXU�3DVW�&ODVVURRP�7HDFKHU�5HVRXUFHV ���������� � ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO 'LVFRYHULQJ�RXU�3DVW�&ODVVURRP�7HDFKHU�5HVRXUFHV ���������� � ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO 'LVFRYHULQJ�RXU�3DVW�&ODVVURRP�7HDFKHU�5HVRXUFHV ���������� � ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO (FRQRPLFV��7RGD\�DQG�7RPRUURZ ����������������� ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO (FRQRPLFV��7RGD\�DQG�7RPRUURZ�7HDFKHU�:UDSDURXQG�(GLWLRQ ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO *RYHUQPHQW��'HPRFUDF\�LQ�$FWLRQ�6WXGHQW�7H[W ����������������� ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO *RYHUQPHQW��'HPRFUDF\�LQ�$FWLRQ�7HDFKHUV�:UDSDURXQG�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO *RYHUQPHQW��'HPRFUDF\�,Q�$FWLRQ�7HDFKHUV�&ODVVURRP�5HVRXUFHV ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO *RYHUQPHQW��'HPRFUDF\�LQ�$FWLRQ�5HDGLQJ�(VVHQWLDOV� �6WXG\�*XLGH ���� ������� 

89



	

	

���������� 3DJH��� 

*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO *RYHQUPHQW��'HPRFUDF\�LQ�$FWLRQ�6SDQLVK�&KDSWHU�6XPPDULHV ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH 6RFLRORJ\�DQG�<RX�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ� ���������� ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH 6RFLRORJ\�DQG�<RX�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ� ���������� ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH +XPDQ�+HULWDJH ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH :RUOG�*HRJUDSK\ ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH 7KH�+XPDQ�([SHULHQFH ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH *HRJUDSK\�7KH�:RUOG�DQG�,WV�3HRSOH ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH 8�6��*RYHUQPHQW���'HPRFUDF\�LQ�$FWLRQ ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO 8�6��*RYHUQPHQW�&RPSOHWH�&ODVVURRP�6HW �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO 8�6��*RYHUQPHQW�2XU�'HPRFUDF\�6(����� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO 8�6��*RYHUQPHQW�2XU�'HPRFUDF\�7(����� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO 8�6��*RYHUQPHQW�&KDSWHU�7HVW� �/HVVRQ�4XL]]HV����� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO 8�6��*RYHUQPHQW��'HPRFUDF\�LQ�$FWLRQ�7HDFKHUV�(G� ���� ������� 
*OREH�)HDURQ 0H[LFDQ�$PHULFDQ�/LWHUDWXUH ���� ������� 
*OREH�)HDURQ3HDUVRQ�/HDUQLQJ�*URXS 7KH�/DWLQR�([SHULHQFH�LQ�8�6��+LVWRU\ ���� ������� 
*OREH�)HDURQ 3ODLQV�1DWLRQDO�$PHULFDQ�/LWHUDWXUH ���� ������� 
*OREH�)HDUVRQ )UHHGRP�)LJKWHUV�6HW ���� ������� 
*OREH�%RRN�&R� :RUOG�+LVWRU\�IRU�D�*OREDO�$JH�%RRN�� ���� ������� 
*OREH�%RRN�&R� :RUOG�+LVWRU\�IRU�D�*OREDO�$JH��%RRN�� ���� ������� 
*OREH�)HDURQ %XLOGLQJ�6NLOOV�LQ�*HRJUDSK\ ���� ������� 
*OREH�)HDURQ 8QGHUVWDQGLQJ�(FRQRPLFV��$�&DVH�6WXG\�$SSURDFK�&ODVV�6HW ���� ������� 
*OREH�)HDURQ 8QGHUVWDQGLQJ�(FRQRPLFV��$�&DVH�6WXG\�$SSURDFK�6WXGHQW�7H[W ����������������� ���� ������� 
*OREH�)HDURQ 8QGHUVWDQGLQJ�(FRQRPLFV��7HDFKHUV�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� ������� 
*OREH�)HDURQ 8�6��+LVWRU\�6WXGHQW�7H[W ���� ������� 
*OREH�)HDURQ 8��6��+LVWRU\�7HDFKHUV�(GLWLRQ ���� ������� 
*OREH�)HDURQ :RUOG�+LVWRU\ ���� ������� 
*OREH�)HDURQ :D\�WR�8�6�&LWL]HQVKLS ���������; QRQH ���� ���� ������� 
+DUSHU�&ROOLQV� )UHDNRQRPLFV�3DSHU�%DFN
 ����������������� ���� 
+ROW��5LQHKDUW� �:LQVWRQ :RUOG�+LVWRU\ ���� ������� 
+RXJKWRQ�0LIIOLQ $FURVV�WKH�&HQWXULHV ���� ������� 
+RXJKWRQ�0LIIOLQ $PHULFD
 V�+LVWRU\��/DQG�RI�/LEHUW\������6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� ������� 
+RXJKWRQ�0LIIOLQ $PHULFD
 V�+LVWRU\��/DQG�RI�/LEHUW\������7HDFKHU
 V�*XLGH ����������������� ���� ������� 
+RXJKWRQ�0LIIOLQ�+DUFRXUW /DQJXDJH�RI�/LWHUDWXUH�$PHULFDQ�/LWHUDWXUH�*UDGH���
 ����������������� ���� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO &UHDWLQJ�$PHULFD ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO 0RGHUQ�:RUOG�+LVWRU\ ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO 7KH�$PHULFDQ�3DJHDQW ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO 7KH�$PHULFDQV ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO :RUOG�&XOWXUHV�DQG�*HRJUDSK\ ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO :RUOG�&XOWXUHV�DQG�*HRJUDSK\ ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO :RUOG�&XOWXUHV�DQG�*HRJUDSK\ ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO :RUOG�&XOWXUHV�DQG�*HRJUDSK\��(DVWHUQ�+HPLVSKHUH ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO :RUOG�&XOWXUHV�DQG�*HRJUDSK\��:HVWHUQ�+HPLVSKHUH ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO :RUOG�*HRJUDSK\ ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO /DQJXDJH�RI�/LWHUDWXUH�6WXGHQW�7H[W��WK�*UDGH ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO /DQJXDJH�RI�/LWHUDWXUH�7HDFKHUV�(G�� ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO /DQJXDJH�RI�/LWHUDWXUH���WK�*UDGH��7HDFKHUV�(G��� ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO /DQJXDJH�RI�/LWHUDWXUH����WK�*UDGH�6WXGHQW�7H[W���� ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO $PHULFDQ�/LWHUDWXUH���WK�*UDGH�6WXGHQW�7H[W�� ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 

90



	

	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	

���������� 3DJH��� 

0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO $PHULFDQ�/LWHUDWXUH����WK�*UDGH�7HDFKHUV�(G� ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO %ULWLVK�/LWHUDWXUH���WK��*UDGH�6WXGHQW�7H[W��� ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO %ULWLVK�/LWHUDWXUH����WK�*UDGH��7HDFKHUV�(G���� ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO :RUOG�+LVWRU\�&DOLIRUQLD�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ�$QFLHQW�&LYLOL]DWLRQV ����������������� � ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO :RUOG�+LVWRU\�&DOLIRUQLD�&RUH�7HDFKHU�0DWHULDOV�$QFLHQW�&LYLOL]DWLRQV ����������������� � ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO :RUOG�+LVWRU\�&DOLIRUQLD�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ�0HGLHYDO�DQG�(DUO\�0RGHUQ�7LPHV
 ����������������� � ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO :RUOG�+LVWRU\�&DOLIRUQLD�6WXGHWQ�(GLWLRQ�0HGLHYDO�DQG�(DUO\�0RGHUQ�7LPHV ����������������� � ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO &UHDWLQJ�$PHULFD�&DOLIRUQLD�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ�%HJLQQLQJV�7KURXJK�::, ����������������� � ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO &UHDWLQJ�$PHULFD�&DOLIRUQLD�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ�%HJLQQLQJV�7KURXJK�::, ����������������� � ������� 
0F*UDZ�+LOO %XLOGLQJ�&LWL]HQVKLS��&LYLFV� �(FRQRPRFV�7( �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0F*UDZ�+LOO (FRQRPLFV�6RIWFRYHU�6WXGHQW�(GWLRQ�ZLWK�&'�520
 ���������� ���� 
0F*UDZ�+LOO (FRQRPLFV�7RGD\� �7RPRUURZ�6(������ �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0F*UDZ�+LOO (FRQRPLFV�7RGD\� �7RPRUURZ�7HDFKHU�:UDSDURXQG����� ������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0F*UDZ�+LOO $�+LVWRU\�RI�:HVWHUQ�$UW������ ���������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0F*UDZ�+LOO +XPDQ�+HULWDJH�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ���������� ���� ���� ������� 
0F*UDZ�+LOO +XPDQ�+HULWDJH�7HDFKHU�:UDS�$URXQG�(GLWLRQ ���������� ���� ���� ������� 

0F*UDZ�+LOO 8QGHUVWDQGLQJ�3V\FKRORJ\�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ
 ���������� ���� ������� 
0F*UDZ�+LOO 8QGHUVWDQGLQJ�3V\FKRORJ\�7HDFKHU�:UDSDURXQG�(GLWLRQ
 ���������� ���� ������� 
0F*UDZ�+LOO 8QLWHG�6WDWHV�+LVWRU\� �*HRJUDSK\��6( �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0F*UDZ�+LOO :RUOG�+LVWRU\� �*HRJUDSK\�7( �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0F*UDZ�+LOO :RUOG�+LVWRU\� �*HSJUDSK\�&KDSWHU�7HVW�DQG�/HVVRQ�4XL]]HV �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0F*UDZ�+LOO :RUOG�+LVWRU\� �*HRJUDSK\�7HDFKHU�/HVVRQ�&HQWHU���\U�6XEVFULSWLRQ����� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
1F*UDZ�+LOO :RUOG�+LVWRU\� �*HRJUDSK\�6(����� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0F*UDZ�+LOO�$SSOHE\ $PHUFLDQ�9LVLRQ����� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0F*UDZ�+LOO�$SSOHE\ $PHULFDQ�9LVLRQ������([DP�$VVHVPHQWV �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0F*UDZ�+LOO�$SSOHE\ $PHULFDQ�9LVLRQ�7HDFKHU�:UDSDURXQG����� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0F�*UDZ�+LOO�$SSOHE\ $PHULFDQ�9LVLRQ�6HFWLRQ�4XL]]HV� �&KDSWHU�7HVW����� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�/HDUQLQJ�*URXS /DWLQR�([SHULHQFH�LQ�8�6��+LVWRU\ ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH 86�*RYHUQPHQW�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH :RUOG�+LVWRU\�&ODVV�6HW ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH :RUOG�+LVWR\�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ
 ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH :RUOG�+LVWRU\�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ
 ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH 86�+LVWRU\�&ODVVURRP�6HW�����
 ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH 86�+LVWRU\�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ�����
 ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH :RUOG�+LVWR\�,QFOXVLRQ�&ODVV�6HW ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH :RUOG�*HRJUDSK\�&ODVVURRP�6HW������(GLWLRQ ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH $*6�*OREH�:RUOG�+LVWRU\�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ����� ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH 5HDO�/LIH�6WRULHV���7H[W ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH 5HDO�/LIH�6WRULHV���$QVZHU�.H\ ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH %ULGJH�$FURVV�$PHULFD ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH %ULGJH�$FURVV�$PHULFD�$QVZHU�.H\ ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH 86�+LVWRU\�&XUULFXOXP�&ODVV�6HW ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH 86�+LVWRU\�6WXGHQW�7H[W ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH $PHULFDQ�*RYHUQPHQW�&ODVVURRP�6HW ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH $PHULFDQ�*RYHUQPHQW�6WXGHQW�7H[W ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ 86�+LVWRU\�5HYLVHG�6WXGHQW�7H[W ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ 86�+LVWRU\�5HYLVHG�:RUNERRN ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ 86�+LVWRU\�5HYLVHG�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ ���������� ���� ������� 

91






	
	 







�

	
	
	

���������� 3DJH��� 

3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ 86�*RYHUQPHQW�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ
 ����������������� ���� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ 86�*RYHUQPHQW�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ
 ����������������� ���� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ (FRQRPLFV�&ODVVURRP�6HW ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ (FRQRPLFV�:RUNERRN
 ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ 3DFHPDNHU�(FRQRPLFV�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ 3DFHPDNHU�(FRQRPLFV�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ $*6�8QLWHG�6WDWHV�*RYHUQPHQW ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ $*6�8QLWHG�6WDWHV�*RYHUQPHQW�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ�����
 ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ $*6�:RUOG�+LVWRU\�&ODVVURRP�6HW ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ $*6�86�+LVWRU\�&ODVVURRP�6HW ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ $*6�8QLWHG�6WDWHV�+LVWRU\�&XUULFXOXP�DQG�6RIWZDUH
 ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ 86�+LVWRU\�&ODVVURRP�6HW ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ :RUOG�+LVWRU\�&ODVV�6HW ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ ([SORULQJ�$PHULFDQ�+LVWRU\ ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ /RQJPDQ�6RFLDO�6WXGLHV�6WXGHQW�7H[W ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ /RQJPDQ�6RFLDO�6WXGLHV�:RUNERRN ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ /RQJPDQ�6RFLDO�6WXGLHV�7HDFKHU�*XLGH ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ /RQJPDQ�6RFLDO�6WXGLHV�$XGLR�&' ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ $*6�(FRQRPLFV�&ODVV�6HW ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ :RUOG�*HRJUDSK\� �&XOWXUHV�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ
 ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ :RUOG�*HRJUDSK\� �&XOWXUHV�&ODVVURRP�6HW ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ $*6�:RUOG�*HRJUDSK\�DQG�&XOWXUHV������6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ $*6�:RUOG�*HRJUDSK\�DQG�&XOWXUHV������7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ :RUOG�*HRJUDSK\�6(����� �������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ :RUOG�*HRJUDSK\�7(����� �������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ $*6�/HDUQLQJ�$ERXW�*RYHUQPHQW ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ 86�*RYHUQPHQW�6RIWZDUG�DQG�&XUULFXOXP�6HW ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�3UHQWLFH�+DOO $PHULFDQ�3DWKZD\V�6XUYH\�(G�&'�520�6WXGHQW�7H[W��� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�3UHQWLFH�+DOO $PHULFDQ�3DWKZD\V��7HDFKHU�(G����� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�3UHQWLFH�+DOO 8�6��*RYHUQPHQW�LQ�$PHULFD��6WXGHQW�7H[W��� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�3UHQWLFH�+DOO 6WXG\�*XLGH�WR�*RYHUQPHQW�LQ�$PHULFD��� ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO�3HDUVRQ :RUOG�+LVWRU\��&RQQHFWLRQV�WR�7RGD\�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO�3HDUVRQ :RUOG�+LVWRU\��&RQQHFWLRQV�WR�7RGD\�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ ������������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO :RUOG�+LVWRU\�� ���� ������� 
6DGGOHEDFN�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� H��*XLGHV�(DUWK ���� ������� 
6DGGOHEDFN�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� $SSROOR��� &3������$2 ���� ������� 
6DGGOHEDFN�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� $WWDFN�RQ�3HDUO�+DUERU &3������$2 ���� ������� 
6DGGOHEDFN�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� $]WHF�/LIH &3������$2 ���� ������� 
6DGGOHEDFN�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� 1DWLYH�$PHULFDQ�/LIH &3������$2 ���� ������� 
6DGGOHEDFN�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� ,UDT�:DU� ������SUHVHQW /&������$2 ���� ������� 
6DGGOHEDFN�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� +LVSDQLF�$PHULFDQV -:������$2 ���� ������� 
6DGGOHEDFN�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� 86�*RYHUQPHQW 3&������$2 ���� ������� 
6FKRODVWLF $PHULFDQ�$GYHQWXUHV ���� ������� 
6FRWW�)RUHVPDQ $PHULFDQ�9RLFHV ���� ������� 
6FRWW�)RUHVPDQ $PHULFDQ�$GYHQWXUHV ���� ������� 
6FRWW�)RUHVPDQ 2XU�:RUOG��/DQG� �&XOWXUHV ���� ������� 
6WHFN� �9DXJKQ $PHULFDQ�$GYHQWXUHV ���� ������� 
6WHFN� �9DXJKQ $PHULFDQ�+LVWRU\�/DQG�RI�/LEHUW\ ����������������� ���� ������� 

92



	
	
	
	
	 	
	
	
	
	

	
	

	

���������� 3DJH��� 

6WHFN� �9DXJKQ $PHULFDQ�+LVWRU\��/DQG�RI�/LEHUW\�7HDFKHU
 V�5HVRXUFH�%LQGHU ���� ������� 
6WHFN� �9DXJKQ $PHULFDQ�+LVWRU\��/DQG�RI�/LEHUW\�7HDFKHU
 V�*XLGH�IRU�+DUGFRYHU ����������������� ���� ������� 
6WHFN� �9DXJKQ $PHULFD
 V�6WRU\ ���� ������� 
6WHFN� �9DXJKQ $PHULFD��6X�+LVWRULD��6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ��QG�(GLWLRQ ��������������� ���� ������� 
6WHFN� �9DXJKQ (FRQRPLF�&RQFHSWV� �$SSOLFDWLRQV ���� ������� 
6WHFN� �9DXJKQ +LVWRU\�RI�2XU�:RUOG��3HRSOH��3ODFHV�DQG�,GHDV�&RPSOHWH�+DUGFRYHU�6WXGHQW�(G� ���� ������� 
6WHFN� �9DXJKQ +LVWRU\�RI�2XU�:RUOG��3HRSOH��3ODFHV�DQG�,GHDV�&RPSOHWH�+DUGFRYHU�7HDFKHU�5HVRXUFH� ���� ������� 
6WHFN� �9DXJKQ +LVWRU\�RI�2XU�:RUOG��3HROSOH��3ODFHV�DQG�,GHDV�&RPSOHWH�+DUGFRYHU�7HDFKHUV�*XLGH ���� ������� 
6WHFN� �9DXJKQ $PHULFD��6X�+LVWRULD��6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
7�&�,� +LVWRU\�$OLYH�6HULHV ���� ������� 
7HDFKLQJ�IRU�&KDQJH %RRNV�QRW�%DUV�� ���� ������� 
7HDFKLQJ�IRU�&KDQJH $�3HRSOHV�+LVWRU\�RI�WKH�8�6��� ���� ������� 
7HDFKLQJ�IRU�&KDQJH 7HDFKLQJ�(FRQRPLFV�DV�LI�3HRSOH�0DWWHUHG��� ���� ������� 
7HDFKHUV�&XUULFXOXP�,QVWLWXWH +LVWRU\�$OLYH��7KH�$QFLHQW�:RUOG�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ���������� ���� � ������� 
7HDFKHUV�&XUULFXOXP�,QVWLWXWH +LVWRU\�$OLYH��7KH�$QFLHQW�:RUOG�7HDFKHU�5HVRXUFHV ���������� ���� � ������� 
7HDFKHUV�&XUULFXOXP�,QVWLWXWH +LVWRU\�$OLYH��7KH�0HGLHYDO�:RUOG�DQG�%H\RQG�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ���������; ���� � ������� 
7HDFKHUV�&XUULFXOXP�,QVWLWXWH +LVWRU\�$OLYH��7KH�0HGLHYDO�:RUOG�DQG�%H\RQG�7HDFKHU�5HVRXUFHV ���������� ���� � ������� 
7HDFKHUV�&XUULFXOXP�,QVWLWXWH +LVWRU\�$OLYH��7KH�8QLWHG�6WDWHV�7KURXJK�,QGXVWULDOLVP�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ���������� ���� � ������� 
7HDFKHUV�&XUULFXOXP�,QVWLWXWH +LVWRU\�$OLYH��7KH�8QLWHG�6WDWHV�7KURXJK�,QGXVWULDOLVP�7HDFKHU�UHVRXUFHV ���������� ���� � ������� 
7UXQRUWK�5HVHDFK +LVWRU\�6RFLDO�6WXGLHV�:RUG�/LVW���6SDQLVK�(GLWLRQ 1R�,6%1 ���� ������� 
,QWHUDFW�&R� ,QWHUDFW�&ROODE�6LPXODWLRQ�$FWLYLWLHV ���� ������� 
:HLVHU�(GXFDWLRQDO�,QF� $PHULFD
 V�6WRU\�6WXGHQW�7H[W /'����:% 1�$ ���� ������� 
:HLVHU�(GXFDWLRQDO�,QF� $PHULFD
 V�6WRU\�5HVRXUFH�%LQGHU /'����:% 1�$ ���� ������� 
:HLVHU�(GXFDWLRQDO�,QF� $PHULFD
 V�6WRU\�$XGLR�&' /'����:% 1�$ ���� ������� 
:HLVHU�(GXFDWLRQDO�,QF� $PHULFD
 V�6WRU\�6HW�RI���9LGHRV /'����:% 1�$ ���� ������� 

7($&+(5�6833/(0(176 
$�%RRN�&RPSDQ\�//& (OHPHQWDU\�6WDWLVWLFV �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&HQWHU�IRU�$SSOLHG�5HVHDUFK�LQ�(GXFDW 5HDG\�WR�8VH�(QYLURQPHQWDO�6FLHQFH�$FWLYLWLHV�.LW ���� ������� 
&HQWHU�IRU�$SSOLHG�5HVHDUFK�LQ�(GXFDW 5HDG\�WR�8VH�+XPDQ�%LR�$FWLYLWLHV�.LW ���� ������� 
(YDQ�0RRU ;�6SDQLVK�(QJOLVK�5HDG� �8QGHUVWDQG�6FLHQFH����� ������������� ���� ������� 
(YDQ�0RRU ;�6SDQLVK�5HDG� �8QGHUVWDQG�1RQILFWLRQ����� ������������� ���� ������� 
(YDQ�0RRU ;�6SDQLVK��(QJOLVK�5HDG� �8QGHUVWDQG�)LFWLRQ����� ������������� ���� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLF�5HDGHU /DV�6HUSLHQWH�6SDQLVK�5HDGHU �������������� ��� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLF�6RFLHW\ 3HUVRQDO�1DUUDWLYH���3DFN�7HDFKHUV�*XLGH ���� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLF�6RFLHW\ 6HTXHQFH�$���3DFN��7HDFKHUV�*XLGH� ���� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLF�6RFLHW\ 4XHVWLRQV�$���3DFN��7HDFKHUV�*XLGH� ���� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLF�6RFLHW\ ,QWHUYLHZ�$���3DFN�7HDFKHUV�*XLGH� ���� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLF�6RFLHW\ 9LVXDO�,QIR�$���3DFN�7HDFKHUV�*XLGH� ���� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLF�6RFLHW\ &DXVH�(IIHFW�%���3DFN ���� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLF�6RFLHW\ 'HVFULSWLRQ�%���3DFN� ���� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLF�6RFLHW\ ,QIR�$UWLFOHV�%���3DFN� ���� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLF�6RFLHW\ )HDWXUH�6WRU\�%���3DFN� ���� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLF�6RFLHW\ 8QG��9LV��,QIR�%���3DFN�7HDFKHU�*XLGH ���� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLF�6RFLHW\ 3�6�$UWLFOH�&�3DFN�7HDFKHUV�*XLGH ���� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLF�6RFLHW\ /HWWHUV�-RXUQDOV�&���3DFN�7HDFKHU�*XLGH ���� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLF�6RFLHW\ %LR�6NHWFK�&���3DFN� ���� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLF�6RFLHW\ ,QIR�$UWLFOHV�&�3DFN�7HDFKHUV�*XLGH� ���� ������� 

93



	

���������� 3DJH��� 

1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLF�6RFLHW\ 8QG��9LV��,QIR�&���3DFN�7HDFKHU�*XLGH ���� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLF�6RFLHW\ :LQGRZV�RQ�/LWHUDF\�3OXV ���� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLF�6RFLHW\ 0DS�(VVHQWLDOV�*UDGH��� ���� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLF�6RFLHW\ 6WXGHQW�5HVSRQVH�%RRN ���� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLF�6RFLHW\ 7HDFKHUV�*XLGH ���� ������� 
3UHSDUDWLRQ�*XLGH�IRU�WKH�&+63( 7HVW�3UHS��*XLGH�IRU�WKH�&+63( ���� ������� 
7236�/HDUQLQJ�6\VWHPV 0RWLRQ�7DVN�&DUG�$FWLYLWLHV�7236�/HDUQLQJ�6\VWHPV ���� ������� 
7KH�0HUULDP���:HEVWHU�'LFWLRQDU\ 0HUULDP�:HEVWHU�,QFRUS� ���� ������� 

2QOLQH�3URJUDPV 6+0223 ���� ������� 

$FFHOHUDWH�(GXFDWLRQ ���� ������� 

8&�6FRXW ���� ������� 

(GPHQWXP ���� ������� 

.,76 
'HOWD�(GXFDWLRQ )266� �)XOO�2SWLRQ�6FLHQFH�6\VWHPV��/DE�.LWV ���� ������� 
0RQWHUH\�%D\�67(3 6DOPRQ� �7URXW�(GXFDWLRQ�3URJUDP ���� ������� 

&'�520 
'LJLWDO�)URJ�,QWHUQDWLRQDO 'LJLWDO�)URJ ���� ������� 
'LJLWDO�)URJ�,QWHUQDWLRQDO 'LJLWDO�'HVHUW ���� ������� 
'LJLWDO�)URJ�,QWHUQDWLRQDO 'LJLWDO�:HWODQGV ���� ������� 
'LJLWDO�)URJ�,QWHUQDWLRQDO 'LJLWDO�5DLQIRUHVW ���� ������� 
'DUZLQ�5HVHDUFK�6WDWLRQ *DODSDJRV ���� ������� 

/$1*8$*(�$576 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH $PHULFDQ�/LWHUDWXUH�&XUULFXOXP�&ODVV�6HW ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH $PHULFDQ�/LWHUDWXUH�6WXGHQW�(G�� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH $PHULFDQ�/LWHUDWXUH�5HYLVHG������(GLWLRQ�6WXGHQW�7H[W ���������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH $PHULFDQ�/LWHUDWXUH�7HDFKHU�(G��5HYLVHG ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH $PHULFDQ�/LWHUDWXUH�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN�5HYLVHG ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH $PHULFDQ�/LWHUDWXUH�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN�$QVZHU�.H\ ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH %DVLF�(QJOLVK�&RPS ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH %DVLF�(QJOLVK�&RPSRVLWLRQ�7HDFKHU�(G� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH %DVLF�(QJOLVK�&RPSRVLWLRQ�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH %DVLF�(QJOLVK�&RPSRVLWLRQ�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN�$QVZHU�.H\ ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH %DVLF�(QJOLVK�*UDPPDU�&ODVV�6HW ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH %ULWLVK�/LWHUDWXUH������(GLWLRQ�6WXGHQW�7H[W ���������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH %ULWLVK�/LWHUDWXUH�&XUULFXOXP�&ODVV��6HW ���������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH (QJOLVK�IRU�WKH�:RUOG�RI�:RUN ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH /LIH�6NLOOV�(QJOLVK ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH /LIH�6NLOOV�(QJOLVK�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH /LIH�6NLOOV�(QJOLVK�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH /LIH�6NLOOV�(QJOLVK�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN�$QVZHU�.H\ ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH ([SORULQJ�/LWHUDWXUH�&XUULFXOXP�6HW ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH ([SORULQJ�/LWHUDWXUH�6WXGHQW�7H[W ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH ([SORULQJ�/LWHUDWXUH�7HDFKHU�(G��5HYLVHG ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 

94



	

	
	
	
	

	

���������� 3DJH��� 

$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH ([SORULQJ�/LWHUDWXUH�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN�5HYLVHG ���������; ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH ([SORULQJ�/LWHUDWXUH�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN�$QVZHU�.H\ ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH :RUOG�/LWHUDWXUH�&XUULFXOXP�&ODVV�6HW ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH :RUOG�/LWHUDWXUH�&XUULFXOXP�&ODVV�6HW�6WXGHQW�(G��5HYLVHG ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH :RUOG�/LWHUDWXUH�6WXGHQW�7H[W ���������� �������������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH :RUOG�/LWHUDWXUH�7HDFKHU�(G� ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH :RUOG�/LWHUDWXUH�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH :RUOG�/LWHUDWXUH�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN�$QVZHU�.H\ ���� ������� 
$PPLH�(QWHUSULVHV (QJOLVK�WKH�(DV\�:D\ ���� ������� 
$PPLH�(QWHUSULVHV (QJOLVK�*UDPPDU�3XQFXDWLRQ�&DUG ���� ������� 
$PPLH�(QWHUSULVHV 'LFWLRQDU\� �+RPRSKRQHV ���� ������� 
$PPLH�(QWHUSULVHV 6SDQLVK�(QJOLVK�'LFWLRQDU\ ���� ������� 
$PPLH�(QWHUSULVHV 3URQRXQFH�,W�3HUIHFWO\�LQ�(QJOLVK ���� ������� 
$PPLH�(QWHUSULVHV (VVHQWLDOV�LQ�(QJOLVK ���� ������� 
&HQJDJH�/HDUQLQJ %DVLF�(QJOLVK�5HYLHZ��(QJOLVK�WKH�(DV\�:D\���WK�(GLWLRQ ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
(GXFDWLRQDO�'HVLJQ &DOLIRUQLD�6WDQGDUGV ���� ������� 
(GXFDWLRQDO�'HVLJQ %DVHG�(QJOLVK�/DQJXDJH ���� ������� 
(GXFDWLRQDO�'HVLJQ $UW��&RDFK�6HULHV ���� ������� 
)ROHWW $PHULFDQ�+HULWDJH�'LFWLRQDU\ ���� ������� 
)ROHWW 6SDQLVK�(QJOLVK�'LFWLRQDU\ ���� ������� 
*OREH 7DSHVWU\�$�0XOWL�&XOWXUDO�$QWKRORJ\ ���� ������� 
*OREH�)HDURQ 3UDFWLFDO�(QJOLVK ���� ������� 
*OREH�)HDURQ %DVLF�(QJOLVK� ���� ������� 
*OREH�)HDURQ %DVLF�(QJOLVK�:RUN�%RRN ���� ������� 
*OREH�)HDURQ %DVLF�(QJOLVK�$QVZHU�.H\ ���� ������� 
*OREH�)HDURQ (6/�7HDFKHUV�3DFNDJH ���� ������� 
*OREH�)HDURQ /DWLQR�%LRJUDSKLHV ���� ������� 
*OREH�)HDURQ /DWLQR�/LWHUDWXUH ���� ������� 
*UHDW�6RXUFH�(GXFDWLRQ�7KH�:ULWH� $OO�:ULWH�+DQGERRN�6RIWFRYHU ���� ������� 
*UHDW�6RXUFH�(GXFDWLRQ�7KH�:ULWH� $OO�:ULWH�7HDFKHU
 V�*XLGH� �WR�WKH�+DQGERRN� ���� ������� 
*UHDW�6RXUFH�(GXFDWLRQ�7KH�:ULWH� :ULWH�$KHDG�+DQGERRN�6RIWFRYHU ���� ������� 
*UHDW�6RXUFH�(GXFDWLRQ�7KH�:ULWH� :ULWH�$KHDG�7HDFKHU
 V�*XLGH ���� ������� 
+HLQOH� �+HLQOH 0RUH�*UDPPDU�3UDFWLFH�%RRN��� ���� ������� 
+HLQOH� �+HLQOH 0RUH�*UDPPDU�3UDFWLFH�%RRN��� ���� ������� 
+HLQOH� �+HLQOH 0RUH�*UDPPDU�3UDFWFH�%RRN��� ���� ������� 
+HLQOH� �+HLQOH *UDPPDU�3UDFWLFH�$QVZHU�.H\� ���� ������� 
+ROW $GYHQWXUHV�LQ�(QJOLVK�/LWHUDWXUH " ���� ������� 
+ROW &KDUDFWHUV�LQ�&RQIOLFW " ���� ������� 
+ROW 9RFDEXODU\�:RUNVKRS " ���� ������� 
+ROW�0F'RXJDO (OHPHQWV�RI�/LWHUDWXUH�&RXUVH���6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� ������� 
+ROW�0F'RXJDO (OHPHQWV�RI�/LWHUDWXUH�&RXUVH���7HDFKHUV�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� ������� 
+ROW�0F'RXJDO (OHPHQWV�RI�/LWHUDWXUH�&RXUVH���6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� ������� 
+ROW�0F'RXJDO (OHPHQWV�RI�/LWHUDWXUH�&RXUVH���7HDFKHUV�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� ������� 
+ROW�0F'RXJDO (OHPHQWV�RI�/LWHUDWXUH�&RXUVH���6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� ������� 
+ROW�0F'RXJDO (OHPHQWV�RI�/LWHUDWXUH�&RXUVH���7HDFKHUV�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� ������� 
+ROW�0F'RXJDO (VVHQWLDOV�RI�%ULWLVK�DQG�:RUOG�/LWHUDWXUH�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� ������� 
+ROW�0F'RXJDO /LWHUDWXUH�DQG�/DQJXDJH�$UWV�&RXUVH����7HDFKHUV�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� ������� 
+ROW��5LQHKDUW� �:LQVWRQ $IULFDQ�$PHULFDQ�/LWHUDWXUH ���������; QRQH ���� ���� ������� 

95



	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	

	
	

	 	
	

	 	
	

	 	
	

���������� 3DJH��� 

+ROW��5LQHKDUW� �:LQVWRQ (OHPHQWV�RI�/LWHUDWXUH��)LUVW�&RXUVH ���������� QRQH ���� ���� ������� 
+ROW��5LQHKDUW� �:LQVWRQ (OHPHQWV�RI�/LWHUDWXUH��6HFRQG�&RXUVH ���������� QRQH ���� ���� ������� 
+ROW��5LQHKDUW� �:LQVWRQ (OHPHQWV�RI�/LWHUDWXUH��7KLUG�&RXUVH ���������� QRQH ���� ���� ������� 
+ROW��5LQHKDUW� �:LQVWRQ (OHPHQWV�RI�/LWHUDWXUH��7KLUG�&RXUVH�7HDFKHU
 V�(GLWLRQ ���������; QRQH ���� ���� ������� 
+ROW��5LQHKDUW� �:LQVWRQ (OHPHQWV�RI�/LWHUDWXUH�)RXUWK�&RXUVH ���������� QRQH ���� ���� ������� 
+ROW��5LQHKDUW� �:LQVWRQ (OHPHQWV�RI�/LWHUDWXUH��WK�&RXUVH ���������� QRQH ���� ���� ������� 
+ROW��5LQHKDUW� �:LQVWRQ (OHPHQWV�RI�/LWHUDWXUH��WK�&RXUVH ���������� QRQH ���� ���� ������� 
+ROW��5LQHKDUW� �:LQVWRQ (OHPHQWV�RI�/LWHUDWXUH��6L[WK�&RXUVH�7HDFKHU
 V�(GLWLRQ ���������� QRQH ���� ���� ������� 
+RXJKWRQ�0LIIOLQ )RFXV�RQ�/LWHUDWXUH���3HRSOH ���� ������� 
+RXJKWRQ��0LIIOLQ $PHULFDQ�+HULWDJH�'LFWLRQDU\ ���� ������� 
+RXJKWRQ�0LIIOLQ��+DUFRXUW /DQJXDJH�2I�/LWHUDWXUH�*U�����3( ��������������� ���� ������� 
+RXJKWRQ�0LIIOLQ��+DUFRXUW /DQJXDJH�RI�/LWHUDWXUH�*U����7( ��������������� ���� ������� 
+RXJKWRQ�0LIIOLQ��+DUFRXUW /DQJXDJH�RI�/LWHUDWXUH�*U����3( ��������������� ���� ������� 
+RXJKWRQ�0LIIOLQ��+DUFRXUW /DQJXDJH�RI�/LWHUDWXUH�*U�����7( ��������������� ���� ������� 
+RXJKWRQ�0LIIOLQ��+DUFRXUW +'0�/LIHWLPH�+HDOWK�6( ��������������� ���� ������� 
+RXJKWRQ�0LIIOLQ 9RFDEXODU\�IRU�$FKHLYHPHQW�*UDGH����6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN ����������������� ���� ������� 
+RXJKWRQ�0LIIOLQ 9RFDEXODU\�IRU�$FKHLYHPHQW�*UDGH����7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� ������� 
+RXJKWRQ�0LIIOLQ 9RFDEXODU\�IRU�$FKHLYHPHQW�*UDGH����6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN ����������������� ���� ������� 
+RXJKWRQ�0LIIOLQ 9RFDEXODU\�IRU�$FKHLYHPHQW�*UDGH����7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� ������� 
+RXJKWRQ�0LIIOLQ 9RFDEXODU\�IRU�$FKHLYHPHQW�*UDGH����6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN ����������������� ���� ������� 
+RXJKWRQ�0LIIOLQ 9RFDEXODU\�IRU�$FKHLYHPHQW�*UDGH����7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� ������� 
+RXJKWRQ�0LIIOLQ 9RFDEXODU\�IRU�$FKHLYHPHQW�*UDGH����6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN ����������������� ���� ������� 
+RXJKWRQ�0LIIOLQ 9RFDEXODU\�IRU�$FKHLYHPHQW�*UDGH����7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� ������� 
+RXJKWRQ�0LIIOLQ 9RFDEXODU\�IRU�$FKHLYHPHQW�*UDGH�����6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN ����������������� ���� ������� 
+RXJKWRQ�0LIIOLQ 9RFDEXODU\�IRU�$FKHLYHPHQW�*UDGH�����7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� ������� 
+RXJKWRQ�0LIIOLQ 9RFDEXODU\�IRU�$FKHLYHPHQW�*UDGH�����6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN ����������������� ���� ������� 
+RXJKWRQ�0LIIOLQ 9RFDEXODU\�IRU�$FKHLYHPHQW�*UDGH�����7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLFV�6FKRRO &DOLIRUQLD�6(�7KHPH�%RRNV�6HW�$�DQG�3UDFWLFH�%RRN ����������������� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLFV�6FKRRO &DOLIRUQLD�7(�/DQJXDJH� �)OXHQF\�&' ����������������� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLFV�6FKRRO 7HDFKHU�6XSSRUW�3DFN ����������������� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLFV�6FKRRO )RON�7DOHV�&ROOHFWLRQ�Z��&'��&DOLIRUQLD�$GRSWLRQ�/HYHO�$ ����������������� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLFV�6FKRRO $VVHVVPHQW�+DQGERRN ����������������� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLFV�6FKRRO &DOLIRUQLD�6(�7KHPH�%RRNV�6HW�%� �3UDFWLFH�%RRN ����������������� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLFV�6FKRRO &DOLIRUQLD�7(�/DQJXDJH� �)OXHQF\�&' ����������������� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLFV�6FKRRO 7HDFKHU�6XSSRUW�3DFN ����������������� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLFV�6FKRRO )RON�7DOHV�&ROOHFWLRQ�Z��&'��&DOLIRUQLD�$GRSWLRQ�/HYHO�% ����������������� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLFV�6FKRRO $VVHVVPHQW�+DQGERRN ����������������� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLFV�6FKRRO &$�5HDGLQJ� �/DQJXDJH�6(�Z��3UDFWLFH�%RRN� �:ULWLQJ�6(�Z��ZRUNRXW ����������������� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLFV�6FKRRO &DOLIRUQLD�7(�6HW��9RO��� �� ����������������� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLFV�6FKRRO 7HDFKHU�6XSSRUW�3DFN�Z��/HYHOHG�/LEUDU\�6LQJOH��&RS\�6HW�& ����������������� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLFV�6FKRRO /HYHOHG�/LEUDU\�6LQJOH��&RS\�6HW ����������������� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLFV�6FKRRO $VVHVVPHQW�+DQGERRN ����������������� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLFV�6FKRRO &$�5HDGLQJ� �/DQJXDJH�6(�Z��3UDFWLFH�%RRN� �:ULWLQJ�6(�Z��ZRUNRXW ����������������� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLFV�6FKRRO &DOLIRUQLD�7HDFKHUV�(GLWLRQ�6HW��9RO��� �� ����������������� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLFV�6FKRRO 7HDFKHU�6XSSRUW�3DFN�Z��/HYHOHG�/LEUDU\�&ODVVURRP�6HW�' ����������������� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLFV�6FKRRO &$�5HDGLQJ� �/DQJXDJH�6(�Z��3UDFWLFH�%RRN� �:ULWLQJ�6(�Z��ZRUNRXW ����������������� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLFV�6FKRRO &DOLIRUQLD�7HDFKHUV�(GLWLRQ�6HW��9RO��� �� ����������������� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLFV�6FKRRO 7HDFKHU�6XSSRUW�3DFN�Z��/HYHOHG�/LEUDU\�&ODVVURRP�6HW�( ����������������� ������� 

96






	






	
	
	

	












	

���������� 3DJH��� 

1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLFV�6FKRRO /DQJXDJH�'HYHORSPHQW�:RUN�7H[W�6(��/LWHUDF\�([SUHVV�3UDFWLFH�%RRN ����������������� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLFV�6FKRRO 7HDFKHUV�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLFV�6FKRRO $VVHVVPHQW�+DQGERRN ����������������� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLFV�6FKRRO ,QVLGH�WKH�8�6�$��.LW ����������������� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLFV�6FKRRO 7KHPH�%RRNV�/LEUDU\ ����������������� ������� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLFV�6FKRRO /HYHO�&�&DOLIRUQLD�,QVLGH�/LWHUDWXUH��5HDGLQJ�3UDFWLFH�%RRNV
 ���� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLFV�6FKRRO /HYHO�'�&DOLIRUQLD�,QVLGH�/LWHUDWXUH��0H[LFR�3DFN
 ���� 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLFV�6FKRRO /HYHO�(�&DOLIRUQLD�,QVLGH�/HWHUDWXUH��6RXQG�6SHOOLQJ�&DUG�6HW ���� 
1RYHO�8QLWV 0LUDFOH
 V�%R\V�6WXGHQW�3DFNHW�7HDFKHUV�*XLGH ���� ������� 
1RYHO�8QLWV 7KH�0HUULDP�:HEVWHU
 V�'LFWLRQDU\�RI�6\QRQ\PV� �$QWRQ\PV ���� ������� 
1RYHO�8QLWV -XOLXV�&HDVDU�6WXGHQW�3DFNHW�7HDFKHUV�*XLGH ���� ������� 
3&,�(GXFDWLRQDO�3XEOLVKLQJ &RQIXVLQJ�:RUGV ���� ������� 
3HUIHFWLRQ�/HDUQLQJ�&RUS 3URJUHVV�WR�6XFFHVV��(QJOLVK�7HDFKHU�:UDSDURXQG�*UDGHV������ ���������������� ���� ������� 
3HUIHFWLRQ�/HDUQLQJ�&RUS 3URJUHVV�WR�6XFFHVV��(QJOLVK�/DQJXDJH�$UWV�*UDGHV��������6( ���������������� ����� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH $PHULFDQ�/LWHUDWXUH�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH $PHULFDQ�/LWHUDWXUH�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ����� ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH $PHULFDQ�/LWHUDWXUH�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN����� ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH ([SORULQJ�/LWHUDWXUH�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH ([SORULQJ�/LWHUDWXUH�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH ([SORULQJ�/LWHUDWXUH�7HDFKHU�(G������ ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH ([SORULQJ�/LWHUDWXUH�:RUNERRN����� ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH :RUOG�/LWHUDWXUH�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�$*6�*OREH :RUOG�/LWHUDWXUH�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ ([SORULQJ�/LWHUDWXUH�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ
 ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ ([SORULQJ�/LWHUDWXUH�9RFDEXODU\�:RUNERRN
 ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ ([SORULQJ�/LWHUDWXUH�&ODVVURP�6HW ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ $PHULFDQ�/LWHUDWXUH�9RFDEXODU\�:RUNERRN
 ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ $PHULFDQ�/LWHUDWXUH�&ODVVURRP�6HW ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ 03(/$����6(�9�� ���*U������� ����������������� � ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ 03(/$����6(�9�� ���*U�������� ����������������� �� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ 03(/$����6(�9�� ���*U�������� ����������������� �� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ 03(/$����9�� ���*U�������� ����������������� �� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ 03(/$����*U��������7( ����������������� �� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ 03(/$����*U����7(����� ����������������� �� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ 03(/$����*U����7(����� ����������������� �� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ 03(/$����*U����7(����� ����������������� �� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ :RUOG�/LWHUDWXUH�&ODVVURRP�6HW ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ :RUOG�/LWHUDWXUH�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ
 ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ :RUOG�/LWHUDWXUH�9RFDEXODU\�:RUNERRN
 ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� $PHULFDQ�/LWHUDWXUH�9RFDEXODU\�:RUNERRN
 ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� $PHULFDQ�/LWHUDWXUH�&ODVVURRP�6HW ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� :RUOG�/LWHUDWXUH�&ODVVURRP�6HW ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� :RUOG�/LWHUDWXUH�9RFDEXODU\�:RUNERRN
 ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� %ULWLVK�/LWHUDWXUH�%RFDEXODU\�:RUNERRN
 ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� %ULWLVK�/LWHUDWXUH�&ODVVURRP�6HW ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� :ULWLQJ�6HQWHQFHV�DQG�3DUDJUDSKV
 ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� %XLOGLQJ�9RFDEXODU\�6NLOOV
 ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� 3XQFWXDWLRQ��&DSLWDOL]DWLRQ� �6SHOOLQJ
 ���������� ���� ������� 

97






	

	
	

���������� 3DJH��� 

3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� *UDPPDU�DQG�&RPSRVLWLRQ�6NLOOV�$ ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� 30�%DVLF�(QJOLVK�&RPSRVLWLRQ�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ
 ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� 30�%DVLF�(QJOLVK�&RPSRVLWLRQ�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ
 ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� 30�%DVLF�(QJOLVK�&RPSRVLWLRQ�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN
 ���������; ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� 3KOLW����5HDOLW\�&HQWUDO�5GJV�70������ �������������� ���� �������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� 3KOLW����5HDOLW\�&QWUO�:UWQJ�-UQ����� �������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� 3KOLW����&QWUO�$QWK�*������� �������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� 3OLW����&&�6WGW�&PSQ�$LR�:NEN�*������� �������������� �� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� 3OLW����&&�&RPSQ�:NEN�*������� �������������� �� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� /&���7(�*������� �������������� �� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� 3+OLW���1WO�/DQJ�&QWUO�:NEN�*U������ �������������� �� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� 3KOLW����7(��*�������� �������������� �� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� 3KOLW����1HZFRPHU�%RRN�7(������ �������������� �� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� 3+/,W����1HZFRPHU�%RRN�6(������ �������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� /&���7(�*�� �������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� 3KOLW���5HDOLW\�&QWUO�$QWK�*�������� �������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� 3/,7���&&�67'7�&031�$���:.%.�*�������� �������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� 3/,7���&&�&2031�:.%.�*�������� �������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� 3/,7����&&�7(�*������� �������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� 3+/,7���17/�/$1*�&175/�:.%.�*5����� �������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� 3+/,7����5($/,7<�&175/�:ULWQJ�-UQO����� �������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� 3/,7����&&�7(�*�������� �������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� 3+/,7����/DQJ�&QWUO�5(9� �$VVHVV������ �������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� 3+/,7����7(�*�������� �������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� 3+/,7����5(DOLW\�&HQWUDO�5'*6�70������ �������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� 3/,7����7(�*�������� �������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�/HDUQLQJ�*URXS %H�D�%HWWHU�5HDGHU�$ ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�/HDUQLQJ�*URXS %H�D�%HWWHU�5HDGHU�%� ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�/HDUQLQJ�*URXS %H�D�%HWWHU�5HDGHU�%�7HDFKHU
 V�(GLWLRQ� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�/HDUQLQJ�*URXS %H�D�%HWWHU�5HDGHU�&� ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�/HDUQLQJ�*URXS %H�D�%HWWHU�5HDGHU�&�7HDFKHU
 V�(GLWLRQ� ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�/HDUQLQJ�*URXS %H�D�%HWWHU�5HDGHU�'� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�/HDUQLQJ�*URXS %H�D�%HWWHU�5HDGHU�'�7HDFKHU
 V�(GLWLRQ� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�/HDUQLQJ�*URXS %H�D�%HWWHU�5HDGHU�(� ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�/HDUQLQJ�*URXS %H�D�%HWWHU�5HDGHU�(�7HDFKHU
 V�(GLWLRQ� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�/HDUQLQJ�*URXS %H�D�%HWWHU�5HDGHU�)� ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�/HDUQLQJ�*URXS %H�D�%HWWHU�5HDGHU�)��7HDFKHU
 V�(GLWLRQ� ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�/HDUQLQJ�*URXS %H�D�%HWWHU�5HDGHU�*� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�/HDUQLQJ�*URXS %H�D�%HWWHU�5HDGHU�*�7HDFKHU
 V�(GLWLRQ� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�/HDUQLQJ�*URXS %H�D�%HWWHU�5HDGHU�6WDUW�2XW ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�/HDUQLQJ�*URXS 'LDJQRVWLF�*XLGH� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�3XEOLVKLQJ %DVLF�(QJOLVK�&XUULFXOXP�&ODVV�6HW ����������� ���� ������� 
3&,�(GXFDWLRQDO�3XEOLVKLQJ 6\QRQ\PV� �$QWRQ\PV ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO *XLGHG�5HDGLQJ� �6WXG\�:RUN�%RRN� ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO�3HDUVRQ /LWHUDWXUH�%URQ]H�6WXGHQW�(G� ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO�3HDUVRQ /LWHUDWXUH�%URQ]H�7HDFKHU�(G� ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO�3HDUVRQ $VVHVVPHQW�%URQ]H� ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO�3HDUVRQ /LWHUDWXUH�$GDSWHG�5HDGHU
 V�&RPSDQLRQ��%URQ]H ���� ������� 

98



���������� 3DJH��� 

3UHQWLFH�+DOO�3HDUVRQ /LWHUDWXUH�(//�5HDGHU
 V�&RPSDQLRQ��%URQ]H ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO�3HDUVRQ /LWHUDWXUH�5HDGHU
 V�&RPSDQLRQ�7HDFKHU�*XLGH�%URQ]H ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO�3HDUVRQ /LWHUDWXUH��6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ�6LOYHU ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO�3HDUVRQ /LWHUDWXUH�7HDFKHU
 V�(GLWLRQ��6LOYHU ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO�3HDUVRQ $VVHVVPHQW��6LOYHU ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO�3HDUVRQ /LWHUDWXUH�$GDSWHG�5HDGHU
 V�&RPSDQLRQ��6LOYHU ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO�3HDUVRQ /LWHUDWXUH�(//�5HDGHU
 V�&RPSDQLRQ�6LOYHU ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO�3HDUVRQ /LWHUDWXUH�5HDGHU
 V�&RPSDQLRQ�7HDFKHU
 V�*XLGH��6LOYHU ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO�3HDUVRQ /LWHUDWXUH�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ�*ROG ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO�3HDUVRQ /LWHUDWXUH�7HDFKHU
 V�(GLWLRQ��*ROG ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO�3HDUVRQ $VVHVVPHQW��*ROG ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO�3HDUVRQ /LWHUDWXUH�$GDSWHG�5HDGHU
 V�&RPSDQLRQ��*ROG ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO�3HDUVRQ /LWHUDWXUH�(//�5HDGHU
 V�&RPSDQLRQ��*ROG ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO�3HDUVRQ /LWHUDWXUH�5HDGHU
 V�&RPSDQLRQ�7HDFKLQJ�*XLGH��*ROG ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO�3HDUVRQ /LWHUDWXUH�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ��3ODWLQXP ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO�3HDUVRQ /LWHUDWXUH��7HDFKHU
 V�(GLWLRQ��3ODWLQXP ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO�3HDUVRQ $VVHVVPHQW��3ODWLQXP ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO�3HDUVRQ /LWHUDWXUH�$GDSWHG�5HDGHU
 V�&RPSDQLRQ��3ODWLQXP ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO�3HDUVRQ /LWHUDWXUH�(//�5HDGHU
 V�&RPSDQLRQ��3ODWLQXP ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO�3HDUVRQ *XLGH�WR�(VVHQWLDOV�7HDFKHU
 V�0DQXDO��� ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO�3HDUVRQ *XLGH�WR�WKH�(VVHQWLDOV� �(QJOLVK� ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO�3HDUVRQ *XLGH�WR�WKH�(VVHQWLDOV� �6SDQLVK����� ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO�3HDUVRQ *XLGH�5HDGLQJ�6SDQLVK�$XGLRWDSHV��� ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO�3HDUVRQ /LWHUDWXUH�5HDGHU
 V�&RPSDQLRQ��7HDFKLQJ�*XLGH��3ODWLQXP ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO�3HDUVRQ 7HDFKLQJ�5HVRXUFHV��� ���� ������� 
&XUULFXOXP�$VVRFLDWHV 4XLFNZRUG���+DQGERRN�RI�6WXGHQW�:RUGV 1R�,6%1 ���� ���� ������� 
5HQDLVVDQFH $FFHOHUDWHG�5HDGHU�6WDUWHU�.LW ���� ������� 
6DGGOHEDFN�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� 6FKRRO�'LFWLRQDU\ ���� ������� 
6DGGOHEDFN�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� 6SDQLVK�(QJOLVK�'LFWLRQDU\ ���� ������� 
6DGGOHEDFN�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� 6WHS�XS�WR�:ULWLQJ��+DQG\�3DJHV��/HYHO��� �3DFN�RI���� ���� ������� 
6DGGOHEDFN�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� 6WHS�8S�WR�:ULWLQJ��2YHUKHDG�0DVWHUV($ ���� ������� 
6DGGOHEDFN�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� 6WHS�8S�WR�:ULWLQJ��&ODVVURRP�5HSURGXFLEOH($ ���� ������� 
6DGGOHEDFN�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� 6WHS�8S�WR�:ULWLQJ�0DQXDO($ ���� ������� 
6DGGOHEDFN�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� 6SHOORJUDSK\��$�6WXGHQW�5RDG�0DS�WR�%HWWHU�6SHOOLQJ�,QWUR��&ODVVURRP�6HW($ ���� ������� 
6DGGOHEDFN�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� 3ULPDU\�6WHSV��5HSURGXFLEOHV�IRU�N���7HDFKHUV�8VLQJ�6WHS�8S�WR�:ULWLQJ($� ���� ������� 
6DGGOHEDFN�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� 0DXUHHQ�$XPDQ
 V�3UDFWLFDO�:ULWLQJ�6HULHV($ ���� ������� 
6DGGOHEDFN�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� 3ULPDU\�6WHSV�3RVWHU�6HW ���� ������� 
6DGGOHEDFN�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� 3DLQOHVV�/DQJXDJH�$UWV %$������$2 ���� ������� 
6DGGOHEDFN�(GXFDWLRQ�,QF� 5HDG�5HIOHFW�5HVSRQG 6$������$2 ���� ������� 
6FKRODVWLF�,QF� �%RRN�7HDFKHU
 V�(GLWLRQ�6WDJH�& 4'3������ ���� ���� ������� 
6FKRODVWLF�,QF� 7HDFKLQJ�5HVRXUFH�7RSLF�6RIWZDUH 4'3������ ���� ���� ������� 
6WDUOLQH�3UHVV��,QF� (QJOLVK���&RPSOHWH (���& ���� ���� ������� 
6WDUOLQH�3UHVV��,QF� (QJOLVK����&RPSOHWH (����& ���� ���� ������� 
6WHFN�9DXJKQ�+DUFRXUW� 6KRUW�&ODVVLF��&RPSOHWH�6HW ���� ������� 
6WHFN�9DXJKQ�+DUFRXUW� 6KRUW�&ODVVLFV�6HW���7HDFKHUV�*XLGH ���� ������� 
6WHFN�9DXJKQ�+DUFRXUW� 6KRUW�&ODVVLFV�6HW���7HDFKHUV�*XLGH ���� ������� 
6XQGDQFH 1RYHO���,GHD�3OXV�1HZ�9RLFHV ���� ������� 
6XQGDQFH 7KH�/DVW�%RRN�LQ�WKH�8QLYHUVH ���� ������� 

99



	

	

	

	

���������� 3DJH��� 

6XQGDQFH 3DUURW�LQ�WKH�2YHQ��0L�9LGD��1RYHO�6NLOOV�,GHDV ���� ������� 
7HDFKLQJ�IRU�&KDQJH 6WDUWLQJ�ZLWK���3HUVRQDO�(VVD\V�E\�7HHQDJHUV� ���� ������� 
7KLQJV�IRU�/HDUQLQJ 'LFWLRQDULHV ���� ������� 
7KLQJV�IRU�/HDUQLQJ :ULWLQJ�6HQWHQFHV�DQG�3DUDJUDSKV ���� ������� 
7KLQJV�IRU�/HDUQLQJ 6WHSV�WR�*RRG�*UDPPDU ���� ������� 
7KRPVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ (QJOLVK�7KH�(DV\�:D\� ���� ������� 
7KRPVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ (QJOLVK�WKH�(DV\�:D\�7HDFKHU
 V�:RUNERRN ���� ������� 
7UXQRUWK�5HVHDUFK $FDGHPLF�/DQJXDJH�9RFDEXODU\�:RUG�/LVW�6SDQLVK�(G 1R�,6%1 ���� ������� 
9DUVLW\%RRNV /DQJXDJH�RI�/LWHUDWXUH�/HYHO����� ���� ������� 
9DUVLW\%RRNV /DQJXDJH�RI�/LWHUDWXUH�/HYHO���� ���� ������� 
:LHVHU�(GXFDWLRQDO &RPSOHWH�6SHOOLQJ�6WHSV�6HULHV ���� ������� 

(1*/,6+�/$1*8$*(�/($51(5�6758&785('�,00(56,21�352*5$0 
)LVKHU�+LOO (QJOLVK�5HDGLQJ� �6SHOOLQJ�IRU�WKH�6SDQLVK�6SHDNHUV�%RRN���� ���� ������� 
)LVKHU�+LOO 'LFFLRQDULR�(VSDQRO���,QJOHV ���� ������� 
)LVKHU�+LOO (QJOLVK�IRU�6SDQLVK�6SHDNHU�%RRN���� ���� ������� 
)LVKHU�+LOO (QJOLVK�IRU�WKH�6SDQLVK�6SHDNHU�%RRN� �&DVVHWWH���� ���� ������� 
)LVKHU�+LOO +HDOWK�(DV\�WR�5HDG ���� ������� 
*UHDW�6RXUFH�(GXFDWLRQ $FFHVV�(QJOLVK�6WXGHQW� �6WXGHQW�$FWLYLWLHV�-RXUQDO�%XQGOH ���� ������� 
*UHDW�6RXUFH�(GXFDWLRQ $FFHVV�(QJOLVK�7HDFKHU
 V�(G� ���� ������� 
*UHDW�6RXUFH�(GXFDWLRQ $FFHVV�(QJOLVK�6WXGHQW�$FWLYLW\�-RXUQDO�7HDFKHU
 V�(G� ���� ������� 
*UHDW�6RXUFH�(GXFDWLRQ $FFHVV�(QJOLVK�$VVHVVPHQW�%RRN ���� ������� 
*UHDW�6RXUFH�(GXFDWLRQ $FFHVV�$PHULFDQ�+LVWRU\�6WXGHQW� �6WXGHQW�$FWLYLW\�-RXUQDO�%XQGOH ���� ������� 
*UHDW�6RXUFH�(GXFDWLRQ $FFHVV�$PHULFDQ�+LVWRU\�7HDFKHU
 V�(GLWLRQ ���� ������� 
*UHDW�6RXUFH�(GXFDWLRQ $FFHVV�$PHULFDQ�+LVWRU\�6WXGHQW�$FWLYLW\�-RXUQDO�7HDFKHU
 V�(G� ���� ������� 
*UHDW�6RXUFH�(GXFDWLRQ $FFHVV�$PHULFDQ�+LVWRU\��$VVHVVPHQW�%RRN ���� ������� 
*UHDW�6RXUFH�(GXFDWLRQ $FFHVV�$PHULFDQ�+LVWRU\�$VVHVVPHQW�)ROGHU� ���� ������� 
*UHDW�6RXUFH�(GXFDWLRQ $FFHVV�6FLHQFH�6WXGHQW�6WXGHQW�$FWLYLW\�-RXUQDO�%XQGOH ���� ������� 
*UHDW�6RXUFH�(GXFDWLRQ $FFHVV�6FLHQFH�7HDFKHU
 V�(GLWLRQ ���� ������� 
*UHDW�6RXUFH�(GXFDWLRQ $FFHVV�6FLHQFH�6WXGHQW�$FWLYLW\�-RXUQDO�7HDFKHU
 V�(GLWLRQ ���� ������� 
*UHDW�6RXUFH�(GXFDWLRQ $FFHVV�6FLHQFH�$VVHVVPHQW�%RRN ���� ������� 
*UHDW�6RXUFH�(GXFDWLRQ $FFHVV�0DWK�6WXGHQW�6WXGHQW�$FWLYLW\�-RXUQDO�%XQGOH ���� ������� 
*UHDW�6RXUFH�(GXFDWLRQ $FFHVV�0DWK�7HDFKHU
 V�(GLWLRQ ���� ������� 
*UHDW�6RXUFH�(GXFDWLRQ $FFHVV�0DWK�6WXGHQW�$FWLYLW\�-RXUQDO�7HDFKHU
 V�(GLWLRQ ���� ������� 
*UHDW�6RXUFH�(GXFDWLRQ $FFHVV�0DWK�$VVHVVPHQW�%RRN ���� ������� 
*UHDW�6RXUFH�(GXFDWLRQ $FFHVV�0DWK��$VVHVVPHQW�)ROGHU ���� ������� 
5RVHWWD�6WRQH 1HWZRUN�(QJOLVK� �86 ���� ���� ������� 
5RVHWWD�6WRQH 1HWZRUN�(QJOLVK� �86 ���� ���� ������� 
5RVHWWD�6WRQH 1HWZRUN�(QJOLVK� �86 ���� ���� ������� 
5RVHWWD�6WRQH 1HWZRUN�6SDQLVK� �/$ ���� ���� ������� 
5RVHWWD�6WRQH 1HWZRUN�6SDQLVK�� �/$ ���� ���� ������� 
7HDFKHU�&UHDWHG�0DWHULDOV $GG�RQ�3DFNV ���� ������� 
7HDFKHU�&UHDWHG�0DWHULDOV (PHUJHQW�.LW� ���� ������� 
7HDFKHU�&UHDWHG�0DWHULDOV 1RQ�)LFWLRQ��QG�/HYHO�.LW ���� ������� 
7HDFKHU�&UHDWHG�0DWHULDOV 7HDFKHU�*XLGH�(//�/HYHO�� ���� ������� 
7HDFKHU�&UHDWHG�0DWHULDOV $FWLYLW\�%RRN ���� ������� 
7HDFKHU�&UHDWHG�0DWHULDOV (//�/HYHO��� ���� ������� 
7HDFKHU�&UHDWHG�0DWHULDOV ([�1RQ�)LFWLRQ�/HYHO��� ���� ������� 

100



	
	
	
	

���������� 3DJH��� 

7HDFKHU�&UHDWHG�0DWHULDOV :ULWH�7LPH�/HYHO��� ���� ������� 
7HDFKHU�&UHDWHG�0DWHULDOV :ULWH�7LPH�/HYHO��� ���� ������� 
7HDFKHU�&UHDWHG�0DWHULDOV :ULWH�7LPH�/HYHO��� ���� ������� 
7HDFKHU�&UHDWHG�0DWHULDOV :ULWH�7LPH��WK�*UDGH�.LW ���� ������� 
7KLQJV�IRU�/HDUQLQJ�,QF� %HJLQQHU�VHW�/LIH�7KHPHV�IRU�(6/�&ODVVHV ���� ������� 
7KRPVRQ�+HLQOH 9LVLRQV��%DVLF�/DQJXDJH� �/LWHUDF\�6WXGHQW�%RRN ���� ������� 
7KRPVRQ�+HLQOH 9LVLRQV��%DVLF�/DQJXDJH� �/LWHUDF\��$FWLYLW\�%RRN ���� ������� 
7KRPVRQ�+HLQOH 9LVLRQV��%DVLF�/DQJXDJH� �/LWHUDF\�6WXGHQW�+DQGERRN ���� ������� 
7KRPVRQ�+HLQOH 9LVLRQV��%DVLF�/DQJXDJH� �/LWHUDF\�$VVHVVPHQW�3URJUDP ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ $FWLYLWL\�0DVWHUV ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ $FWLYLW\�0DVWHUV ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ $FWLYLW\�0DVWHUV ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ $QVZHU�.H\�IRU�0RUH�*UDPPDU���� ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ $VVHVVPHQW ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ $VVHVVPHQW ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ $VVHVVPHQW� ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ $VVHVVPHQW�3NJ ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ $VVHVVPHQW�3NJ ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ $VVHVVPHQW�3NJ ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ &RPSRVLWLRQ�3UDFWLFH�%RRN�� ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ &RPSRVLWLRQ�3UDFWLFH�%RRN�� ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ &RPSRVLWLRQ�3UDFWLFH�%RRN�� ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ &RPSRVLWLRQ�3UDFWLFH�%RRN�� ���� ������� 
7KRPVRQ�/HDUQLQJ /DXQFK�LQWR�5HDGLQJ�/HYHO�� ���� ������� 
7KRPVRQ�/HDUQLQJ /DXQFK�LQWR�5HDGLQJ�/HYHO�� ���� ������� 
7KRPVRQ�/HDUQLQJ /DXQFK�LQWR�5HDGLQJ�/HY����7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ� ���� ������� 
7KRPVRQ�/HDUQLQJ /DXQFK�LQWR�5HDGLQJ�/HYHO�����:RUNERRN ���� ������� 
7KRPVRQ�/HDUQLQJ /DXQFK�LQWR�5HDGLQJ�/HYHO���7H[W ���� ������� 
7KRPVRQ�/HDUQLQJ /DXQFK�LQWR�5HDGLQJ�/HYHO���7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ� ���� ������� 
7KRPVRQ�/HDUQLQJ /DXQFK�LQWR�5HDGLQJ�/HYHO���7H[W ���� ������� 
7KRPVRQ�/HDUQLQJ /DXQFK�LQWR�UHDGLQJ�/HYHO���:RUNERRN��� ���� ������� 
7KRPVRQ�/HDUQLQJ /DXQFK�LQWR�5HDGLQJ�/HYHO���7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ� ���� ������� 
7KRPVRQ�/HDUQLQJ /XDQFK�,QWR�5HDGLQJ�/HYHO����$VVHVVPHQW� ���� ������� 
7KRPVRQ�/HDUQLQJ /DXQFK�LQWR�5HDGLQJ�/HYHO���$VVHVVPHQW� ���� ������� 
7KRPVRQ�/HDUQLQJ /DXQFK�LQWR�5HDGLQJ�/HYHO���$VVHVVPHQW� ���� ������� 
7KRPVRQ�/HDUQLQJ /DXQFK�LQWR�5HDGLQJ�/HYHO���7HDFKHUV�5HVRXUFH� ���� ������� 
7KRPVRQ�/HDUQLQJ /DXQFK�LQWR�5HDGLQJ�/HYHO���7HDFKHUV�5HVRXUFH� ���� ������� 
7KRPVRQ�/HDUQLQJ /DXQFK�LQWR�5HDGLQJ�/HYHO���7HDFKHUV�5HVRXUFH� ���� ������� 
7KRPVRQ�/HDUQLQJ /DXQFK�LQWR�5HDGLQJ�/HYHO���9LGHR�3URJUDP� ���� ������� 
7KRPVRQ�/HDUQLQJ /DXQFK�LQWR�5HDGLQJ�6WXGHQW�&'�5RP�/HYHO��� ���� ������� 
7KRPVRQ�/HDUQLQJ (QJOLVK�$FWLRQ�/HYHO���7H[W�$XGLR�3NJ� ���� ������� 
7KRPVRQ�/HDUQLQJ (QJOLVK�$FWLRQ�/HYHO���:RUNERRN�$XGLR� ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ /LVWHQLQJ�DQG�6SHDNLQJ�7DSH ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ /LVWHQLQJ�DQG�6SHDNLQJ�7DSH�� ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ /LVWHQLQJ�DQG�6SHDNLQJ�7DSH�� ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ /LWHUDF\�0DVWHUV ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ 0DNLQJ�&RQQHFWLRQV�/HYHO���6WXGHQW�7H[W ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ 0DNLQJ�&RQQHFWLRQV�/HYHO���:RUNERRN ���������� ���� ���� ������� 

101



	

	

���������� 3DJH��� 

7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ 0DNLQJ�&RQQHFWLRQV�/HYHO���6WXGHQW�7H[W ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ 0DNLQJ�&RQQHFWLRQV�/HYHO���:RUNERRN ���������� ���� ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ 0DNLQJ�&RQQHFWLRQV�/HYHO���6WXGHQW�7H[W ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ 0DNLQJ�&RQQHFWLRQV�/HYHO���:RUNERRN ���������� ���� ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ &RPSRVLWLRQ�3UDFWLFH�/HYHO���:RUNERRN ���������� ������������� ���� ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ &RPSRVLWLRQ�3UDFWLFH�/HYHO���:RUNERRN� ���������� ������������� ���� ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ &RPSRVLWLRQ�3UDFWLFH�/HYHO���:RUNERRN ���������� ������������� ���� ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ &RPSRVLWLRQ�3UDFWLFH�/HYHO���:RUNERRN ���������� ������������� ���� ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ %DVLF�(QJOLVK�5HYLHZ�$QQRWDWHG�7HDFKHU
 V�(GLWLRQ ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ %DVLF�(QJOLVK�(QJOLVK�WKH�(DV\�:D\�7HDFKHU
 V�(G�:RUNERRN ���������� ���� ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ %DVLF�(QJOLVK�WKH�(DV\�:D\�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ 0RUH�*UDPPDU�3UDFWLFH�:RUNERRN�� ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ 0RUH�*UDPPDU�3UDFWLFH�:RUNERRN�� ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ 0RUH�*UDPPDU�3UDFWLFH�:RUNERRN�� ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ 0RUH�*UDPPDU�3UDFWLFH�%RRN�������$QVZHU�.H\V ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ 6NLOOEXLOGHU�� ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ 6NLOOEXLOGHU�� ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ 6WXGHQW�-RXUQDO�Z�$FWLYLW\�0DVWHUV ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ 6WXGHQW�-RXUQDO�Z�$FWLYLW\�0DVWHUV ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ 6WXGHQW�-RXUQDO�Z�$FWLYLW\�0DVWHUV ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ 6WXGHQW�7DSH ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ 6WXGHQW�7DSH ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ 6WXGHQW�7DSH ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ 7HDFKHU�7DSH ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ 7HDFKHU�7DSH ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ 7HDFKHU�7DSH ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ 7HDFKHUV�([WHQGHG�(GLWLRQ ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ 7HDFKHUV�([WHQGHG�(GLWLRQ ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ 7HDFKHUV�([WHQGHG�(GLWLRQ ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ 7HDFKHUV�*XLGH ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ 7HDFKHUV�*XLGH ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ 7HDFKHUV�*XLGH ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ 7HDFKHUV�*XLGH�WR�8VLQJ�WKH�+HLQOH� �+HLQOH�(6/�(/'�3URJUDP ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ 7UDQVSDUHQFLHV ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ 7UDQVSDUHQFLHV ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ 7UDQVSDUHQFLHV ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ 9RLFHV�LQ�/LWHUDWXUH�%URQ]H�7H[W ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ 9RLFHV�LQ�/LWHUDWXUH�6LOYHU�7H[W ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ 9RLFHV�LQ�/LWHUDWXUH�*ROG�7H[W ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ :RUNERRN ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ :RUNERRN ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�/HDUQLQJ :RUNERRN ���� ������� 

+,*+�6&+22/�(;$0�35(3�0$7(5,$/6 
$PHULFDQ�%RRN�&R� &DOLIRUQLD�*UDPPDU� �8VDJH�5HYLHZ ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�%RRN�&R� &DOLIRUQLD�0DWKHPDWLFV�5HYLHZ� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�%RRN�&R� &DOLIRUQLD�5HDGLQJ�5HYLHZ ���� ������� 

102



	

	

	
	

	
	

	

���������� 3DJH��� 

$PHULFDQ�%RRN�&R� &DOLIRUQLD�:ULWLQJ�5HYLHZ ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�%RRN�&R� 3DVVLQJ�WKH�&DOLIRUQLD�$OJHEUD���6WDWH�([DP ����������������� ���� ������� 
&*3�6WXG\ &$+6((�0DWKHPDWLFV�:RUNERRN�&ODVV�6HW 0�:�&$&�� ���� ���� ������� 
&*3�6WXG\ &$6+((�$OJHEUD���:RUNERRN�&ODVV�6HW $�:�&$&�� ���� ���� ������� 
&*3�6WXG\ &$+6((�(QJOLVK�/DQJXDJH�$UWV�:RUNERRN�&ODVV�6HW (�0�&$&�� ���� ���� ������� 
&*3�6WXG\ 5RPHR� �-XOLHW���$Q�,QWURGXFWLRQ (�5�� ���� ���� ������� 
&KDULRW�6RIWZDUH�*URXS &$+6((�7HVW�3UHS�6\VWHP ���� ������� 
&+63(�6WXG\�*XLGH�3UHSDUDWLRQ�7 &+63(�3UHUDUDWLRQ�%RRN��6WXG\�*XLGH�%RRN� �3UDFWLFH�7HVW �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&RRUGLQDWLRQ�*URXS�3XEOLFDWLRQV 0DWKHPDWLFV�:RUNERRN ���� ������� 
(GXFDWLRQDO�7HVWLQJ�6HUYLFH /D�*XLD�2ILFLDO�SDUD�HO�([DPHQ� �+L6HW ��6SDQLVK�(GLWLRQ ������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+RXJKWRQ�0LIIOLQ &RPSOHWH�*('�3UHSDUDWLRQ ����������������� ���� ������� 
0DWK�7HDFKHUV�3UHVV ([LW�([DP�6WXGHQW�%RRN�6RIW�&RYHU ���� ������� 
0DWK�7HDFKHUV�3UHVV ([LW�([DP�7HDFKHUV�0DQXDO ���� ������� 
0DWK�7HDFKHUV�3UHVV $OJHEUD�5HDGLQHVV�0DQLSXODWLYH�.LW ���� ������� 
0DWK�7HDFKHUV�3UHVV�,QF� &$+6((�(;,7�(;$06�&ODVV�6HWV &$&�� ����� ������� 
0DWK�7HDFKHUV�3UHVV��,QF� &RQTXHULQJ��WKH�&$+6((�&ODVV�0DQLSXODWLYH�.LW ���� ������� 
0DWK�7HDFKHUV�3UHVV��,QF� &RQTXHULQJ��WKH�&$+6((�2YHUKHDG�0DQLSXODWLYHV ���� ������� 
0DWK�7HDFKHUV�3UHVV��,QF� &RQTXHULQJ�WKH�&$+6((�7HDFKHUV�5HVRXUFH�0DQXHO ����������������� ���� ������� 
0DWK�7HDFKHUV�3UHVV��,QF� &RQTXHULQJ�WKH�&$+6((�6WXGHQW�%RRN ����������������� ���� ������� 
0DWK�7HDFKHUV�3UHVV�,QF� 6806�7HDFKHUV�*XLGH 68067* ���� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO &DOLIRUQLD�6WDQGDUGV�5HYLHZ� �3UDFWLFH�IRU�&$6+((�6WXGHQW ����������������� ������� 
0F'RXJDO�/LWWHOO &DOLIRUQLD�6WDQGDUG�5HYLHZ� �3UDFWLFH�IRU�&$6+((�7HDFKHU ����������������� ������� 
7KH�3ULQFHWRQ�5HYLHZ &UDFNLQJ�WKH�&$+6((��0DWK ����������������� ���� ������� 
5LYHUKHDG�%RRNV :2(�,V�,��7KH�*UDPPDUSKREH
 V�*XLGH ���� ������� 
6DGGOHEDFN�(GXFDWLRQDO�,QF� *('�7HVW�3UHS�([HUFLVH�&ODVV ���� ������� 
6DFUDPHQWR�&2( &+63(�7HVW�3UHSDUDWLRQ�*XLGH ���� ������� 
6WHFN�9DXJKQ *('��7HVW�3UHS�0DWK�5HDVRQLQJ�6SDQLVK�%XQGOH����� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
7HVW�3UHS�%RRN� *('������$OO�VXEMHFW�*('�6WXG\�*XLGH� �������������� ���� ������� 
(GXFDWLRQDO�7HVWLQJ�6HUYLFH *XLD�2ILFLDO�([DPHQ�+L6HW��VW�(GLWLRQ����� �������������� ���� ������� 
(GXFDWLRQDO�7HVWLQJ�6HUYLFH 7KH�2IILFLDO�*XLGH�WR�WKH�+L6HW�([DP��QG�(GLWLRQ �������������� ���� ������� 
+L6HW�6WXG\�*XLGH�3UHS�7HDP +L6HW������3UHSDUDWLRQ�%RRN�6WXG\�*XLGH� �3UDFWLFH�([DP �������������� ���� ������� 
5H]D�1D]DUL� �$YD�5RVV +L6HW�0DWK�:RUNERRN���������7KH�0RVW�&RPSUHKHQVLYH�5HYLHZ�IRU�0DWK� �������������� ���� ������� 
.DSODQ�7HVW�3UHS 6$7�3UHS�3OXV���������3UDFWLFH�7HVW�DQG�6WUDWHJLHV �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
7HVW�3UHS�%RRN�5HYLHZ�7HDP 6$7�3UHS���������6WXG\�*XLGH� �3UDFWLFH�7HVW�4XHVWLRQV �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
7KH�&ROOHJH�%RDUG� 7KH�2IILFLDO�6$7�6WXG\�*XLGH������(GLWLRQ� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
7KH�3ULQFHWRQ�5HYLHZ &UDFNLQJ�WKH�6$7�ZLWK���3UDFWLFH�7HVWV������(GLWLRQ �������������� ���� ���� ������� 

+($/7+ 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH 'LVFRYHU�6NLOOV�IRU�/LIH ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH (YHU\GD\�/LIH�6NLOOV ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH +HDOWK ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH /LIH�6NLOOV�+HDOWK�&XUULFXOXP�&ODVV�6HW ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH /LIH�6NLOOV�+HDOWK�6WXGHQW�(G� ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH /LIH�6NLOOV�+HDOWK�7HDFKHU�(G� ����������������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH /LIH�6NLOOV�+HDOWK�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH /LIH�6NLOOV�+HDOWK�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN�$QVZHU�.H\ ���� ������� 
$PHULFDQ�*XLGDQFH�6HUYLFH /LIH�6NLOOV�(QJOLVK� ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
&HQJDJH�/HDUQLQJ 'LYHUVLILHG�+HDOWK�2FXSDWLRQV��WK�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� ������� 

103



	
	

	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

���������� 3DJH��� 

&HQJDJH�/HDUQLQJ :RUNERRN�'LYHUVLILHG�+HDOWK�2FXSDWLRQV��WK�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� ������� 
&HQJDJH�/HDUQLQJ ,QVWUXFWRUV�0DQXDO�'LYHUVLILHG�+HDOWK�2FXSDWLRQ��WK�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[ &KLOGUHQ��7KH�(DUO\�<HDUV ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[ &KLOGUHQ��7KH�(DUO\�<HDUV��6WXGHQW�$FWLYLW\�*XLGH ����������������� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[ 7HDFKHU
 V�:UDSDURXQG�(GLWLRQ ���������� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[ 7HDFKHU
 V�5HVRXUFH�*XLGH ���������� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[ 6WXGHQW�$FWLYLW\�*XLGH ���������� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[ *XLGH�WR�*RRG�)RRG�7H[WERRN����� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[ *XLGH�WR�*RRG�)RRG�:%����� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[ *XLGH�WR�*RRG�)RRG�76������ �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[ *XLGH�WR�*RRG�)RRG�6WXGHQW�$FWLYLW\�*XLGH �������������� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[ *XLGH�WR�*RRG�)RRG�7HDFKHU
 V�(GLWLRQ �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[ 6WXGHQW�$FWLYLW\�*XLGH ���������; ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[ &KLOG�'HYHORSPHQW��(DUO\�6WDJHV�7KURXJK�$JH����7H[W�%RRN
 ����������������� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[ &KLOG�'HYHORSPHQW��(DUO\�6WDJHV�7KURXJK�$JH����:RRNERRN
 ����������������� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[ &KLOG�'HYHORSPHQW��(DUO\�6WDJHV�7KURXJK�$JH����7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ
 ����������������� ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH &URVV�&XUULFXOXP�$FWLYLWLHV ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO +HDOWK� �:HOOQHVV�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO +HDOWK� �:HOOQHVV�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO /D�6DOXG� �+HDOWK�6SDQLVK�9HUVLRQ� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO +HDOWK� �:HOOQHVV�7HDFKHU�&ODVVURRP�5HVRXUFHV ���������� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO +HDOWK� �:HOOQHVV�7HDFKHU�:UDSDURXQG�(GLWLRQ
 ���������� ���� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO 5HDGLQJ�(VVHQWLDOV�+HDOWK�6SDQLVK ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO 5HDGLQJ�(VVHQWLDOV�+HDOWK�6SDQLVK�7�(� ���� ������� 
+DUFRXUW +HDOWK ���� ������� 
+RXJKWRQ�0LIIOLQ�+DUFRXUW 'HFLVLRQV�IRU�+HDOWK�%RRN�� ����������������� ���� ������� 
+RXJKWRQ�0LIIOLQ�+DUFRXUW 'HFLVLRQV�IRU�+HDOWK�%RRN�� ����������������� ���� ������� 
+RXJKWRQ�0LIIOLQ�+DUFRXUW 'HFLVLRQV�IRU�+HDOWK�7HDFKHUV�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� ������� 
+XPDQ�.LQHWLFV )LWQHVV�)RU�/LIH�7HDFKHU�/HVVRQ�3ODQV�&'�520� ���� ������� 
+XPDQ�.LQHWLFV )LWQHVV�)RU�/LIH� ���� ������� 
+ROW�0F'RXJDO +ROW�/LIHWLPH�+HDOWK�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� ������� 
+ROW�0F'RXJDO +ROW�/LIHWLPH�+HDOWK�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� ������� 
+XPDQ�.LQHWLFV )LWQHVV�)RU�/LIH��WK�(GLWLRQ���&ORWK ����������������� ���� ������� 
+XPDQ�.LQHWLFV )LWQHVV�)RU�/LIH��WK�(GLWLRQ���7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� ������� 
+XPDQ�.LQHWLFV )LWQHVV�)RU�/LIH�'9'�,Q�6HUYLFH ����������������� ���� ������� 
+XPDQ�.LQHWLFV )LWQHVV�)RU�/LIH�6SDQLVK�(�%RRN ����������������� ���� ������� 
+XPDQ�.LQHWLFV )LWQHVV�)RU�/LIH�3RVWHU ����������������� ���� ������� 
+XPDQ�.LQHWLFV 6RFLDO�,VVXHV�LQ�6SRUWV ����������������� ���� ������� 
+ROW��5LQHKDUW� �:LQVWRQ +HDOWK ���� ������� 
0F*UDZ�+LOO +HDOWK� �:HOOQHVV�6( �������������� ���� ������� 
0F*UDZ�+LOO +HDOWK� �:HOOQHVV�7( �������������� ���� ������� 
0F*UDZ�+LOO 8QGHUVWDQGLQJ�3V\FKRORJ\�6(����� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0F�*UDZ�+LOO 8QGHUVWDQGLQJ�3V\FKRORJ\�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ����� ���������� ���� ������� 
0F�*UDZ�+LOO &KDSWHU�DQG�8QLW�7HVWV ���������� ���� ������� 
0F�*UDZ�+LOO 8QGHUVWDQGLQJ�3V\FKRORJ\�7HDFKHU�:UDSDURXQG�(GLWLRQ ���������� ���� ������� 
0RUQLQJ�*ORU\�3UHVV <RXU�3UHJQDQF\� �1HZERUQ�-RXUQH\�(DV\�5HDGLQJ�(GLWLRQ
 ���� ������� 
0RUQLQJ�*ORU\�3UHVV <RXU�3UHJQDQF\� �1HZERUQ�-RXUQH\�:RUNGERRN�(DV\�5HDGLQJ�(GLWLRQ
 ���� ������� 
0RUQLQJ�*ORU\�3UHVV <RXU�3UHJQDQF\� �1HZERUQ�-RXUQH\�$QVZHU�.H\�DQG�4XL]]HV�(DV\�5HDGLQJ�(GLWLRQ
 ���� ������� 

104



	
	
	
	
	

	

	

���������� 3DJH��� 

0RUQLQJ�*ORU\�3UHVV <RXU�3UHJQDQF\� �1HZERUQ�-RXUQH\�� ���� ������� 
0RUQLQJ�*ORU\�3UHVV <RXU�3UHJQDQF\� �1HZERUQ�-RXUQH\�6SDQLVK ����� ���� ������� 
0RUQLQJ�*ORU\�3UHVV <RXU�3UHJQDQF\� �1HZERUQ�-RXUQH\�:RUN�%RRNV�� ���� ������� 
0RUQLQJ�*ORU\�3UHVV <RXU�3UHJQDQF\� �1HZERUQ�-RXUQH\�:RUN�%RRNV�6SDQLVK ����� ���� ������� 
0RUQLQJ�*ORU\�3UHVV <RXU�3UHJQDQF\� �1HZERUQ�-RXUQH\�7HDFKHUV�$QVZHU�.H\�6SDQLVK ����� ���� ������� 
0RUQLQJ�*ORU\�3UHVV 1XUWXULQJ�<RXU�1HZERUQ�� ���� ������� 
0RUQLQJ�*ORU\�3UHVV 1XUWXULQJ�<RXU�1HZERUQ�6SDQLVK ����� ���� ������� 
0RUQLQJ�*ORU\�3UHVV 1XUWXULQJ�<RXU�1HZERUQ�:RUN�%RRN�� ���� ������� 
0RUQLQJ�*ORU\�3UHVV 1XUWXULQJ�<RXU�1HZERUQ�:RUN�%RRN�6SDQLVK ����� ���� ������� 
0RUQLQJ�*ORU\�3UHVV 1XUWXULQJ�<RXU�1HZERUQ�7HDFKHUV�(GLWLRQ ����� ���� ������� 
0RUQLQJ�*ORU\�3UHVV <RXU�%DE\
 V�)LUVW�<HDU�� ���� ������� 
0RUQLQJ�*ORU\�3UHVV <RXU�%DE\
 V�)LUVW�<HDU�:RUN�%RRN�� ���� ������� 
0RUQLQJ�*ORU\�3UHVV <RXU�%DE\
 V�)LUVW�<HDU�$QVZHU�.H\�DQG�4XL]]HV
 ���� ������� 
0RUQLQJ�*ORU\�3UHVV 7KH�&KDOOHQJH�RI�7RGGOHUV�:RUN�%RRNV�� ���� ������� 
0RUQLQJ�*ORU\�3UHVV 7KH�&KDOOHQJH�RI�7RGGOHUV�7H[W�%RRNV�� ���� ������� 
0RUQLQJ�*ORU\�3UHVV 'LVFLSOLQH�IURP�%LUWK�WR�7KUHH�:RUN�%RRNV�� ���� ������� 
0RUQLQJ�*ORU\�3UHVV 'LVFLSOLQH�IURP�%LUWK�WR�7KUHH�:RUN�%RRNV�6SDQLVK ����� ���� ������� 
0RUQLQJ�*ORU\�3UHVV 'LVFLSOLQH�IURP�%LUWK�WR�7KUHH�:RUN�%RRN�$QVZHU�.H\ ����� ���� ������� 
0RUQLQJ�*ORU\�3UHVV 'LVFLSOLQH�IURP�%LUWK�WR�7KUHH�:RUN�%RRN�$QVZHU�.H\�6SDQLVK ����� ���� ������� 
0RUQLQJ�*ORU\�3UHVV 7HHQ�'DGV��:RUN�%RRN�� ���� ������� 
1HZ�)XWXUHV 7HHQDJH�3UHJQDQF\��$�1HZ�%HJLQQLQJ�7H[W�%RRN� ���� ������� 
1HZ�)XWXUHV 7HHQDJH�3UHJQDQF\��$�1HZ�%HJLQQLQJ�:RUN�%RRN�� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�3XEOLVKLQJ 'LVFRYHU�+HDOWK�&XUULFXOXP�&ODVV�6HW ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�3XEOLVKLQJ 'LVFRYHU�+HDOWK�6WXGHQW�7H[WERRN ���������� ���� ������� 
3UHQWLFH�+DOO +XPDQ�%LRORJ\� �+HDOWK ���� ������� 
:RUNPDQ�3XEOLVKLQJ�,QF� :KDW�WR�([SHFW�:KHQ�<RX�$UH�([SHFWLQJ ���� ������� 
:RUNPDQ�3XEOLVKLQJ�,QF� :KDW�WR�([SHFW�WKH�)LUVW�<HDU ���� ������� 

*(1'(5� 	�6(;8$/,7< 
1HZ�)XWXUHV��,QF 7HHQDJH�3UHJQDQF\��$�1HZ�%HJLQQLQJ ���� ������� 
1HZ�)XWXUHV��,QF 7HHQDJH�3UHJQDQF\��6WXGHQW�*XLGH�$�1HZ�%HJLQQLQJ ���� ������� 
1HZ�)XWXUHV��,QF :RUNLQJ�ZLWK�3UHJQDQW� �3DUHQWLQJ�7HHQV ���� ������� 
7HDFKLQJ�IRU�&KDQJH )OLUWLQJ�RU�+XUWLQJ�$�7HDFKHUV�*XLGH�RQ�6H[XDO�+DUUDVPHQW� ���� ������� 
7LGHV�*LUOV�&LUFOH�$VVRFLDWLRQ *LUOV�&LUFOH�&RPSOHWH�6HW�� ���� ������� 

9,'(26 
$WWHQERURXJK��'DYLG 3ODQHW�(DUWK�6HULHV ���� ������� 
/LEUDU\�9LGHR�&RPSDQ\ /RUG�RI�WKH�)OLHV�� ���� ������� 
/LEUDU\�9LGHR�&RPSDQ\ 7KH�*UHDW�*DWVE\�� ���� ������� 
/LEUDU\�9LGHR�&RPSDQ\ +DWFKHW�� ���� ������� 

$33/,('�$576 
&DOLIRUQLD�(GXFDWLRQDO�&UHDWLRQV &RPSOHWH�'ULYHU
 V�(GXFDWLRQ�3URJUDP 1R�,6%1 ���� ���� ������� 
0F�*UDZ�+LOO ,QWURGXFLQJ�$UW�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ����� ���� ������� 
0F�*UDZ�+LOO ,QWURGXFLQJ�$UW�7HDFKHU�:UDSDURXQG�(GLWLRQ����� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[ 7KH�:RUOG�RI�)DVKLRQ�0HUFKDQGLVLQJ�7H[WERRN ����������������� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[ 6WXGHQW�$FWLYLW\�*XLGH ����������������� ���� ������� 

105



	
	




���������� 3DJH��� 

*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[ 7HDFKHU
 V�5HVRXUFH�3RUWIROLR ������������� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[ $XWR�)XQGDPHQWDOV ������������� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[ $XWR�:RUNERRN ������������; ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[ ,QVWUXFWRU
 V�0DQXDO ������������� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[ 5HVLGHQWLDO�+RXVLQJ� �,QWHULRU�:RUNERRN ����������������� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[ 5HVLGHQWLDO�+RXVLQJ� �,QWHULRU�7HDFKHUV�(GLWLRQ ����������������� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[ 5HVLGHQWLDO�+RXVLQJ�DQG�,QWHULRUV ������������� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[ 6WXGHQW�$FWLYLW\�*XLGH ������������� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[ ,QVWUXFWRU
 V�5HVRXUFH�3RUWIROLR ������������� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[ )LUHILJKWLQJ��%DVLF�6NLOOV�DQG�7HFKQLTXHV�7H[WERRN ������������� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[ ,QVWUXFWRU
 V�0DQXDO ������������� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[ 6FKRRO�7R�&DUHHU�7H[W�%RRN
 ����������������� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[ 6FKRRO�7R�&DUHHU�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN
 ����������������� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[ 6FKRRO�7R�&DUHHU�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ
 ����������������� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[ +RXVLQJ�DQG�,QWHULRU�'HVLJQ�7H[W�%RRN
 ����������������� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[ +RXVLQJ�DQG�,QWHULRU�'HVLJQ�6WXGHQW�:RUNERRN
 ����������������� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[ +RXVLQJ�DQG�,QWHULRU�'HVLJQ�7HDFKHU�(GLWLRQ
 ����������������� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[ 8QGHUVWDQGLQJ�<RXU�&KDQJH�/LIH�6WXGHQW�7H[W�ERRN ���������������� ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH 5HVSRQVLEOH�'ULYLQJ ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO &XOLQDU\�(VVHQWLDOV�6WXGHQW�(G� ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO &XOLQDU\�(VVHQWLDOV�,QVWUXFWRU�5HVRXUFH�*XLGH ���� ������� 
0F�*UDZ�+LOO $UW�LQ�)RFXV�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ
 ����������������� ���� ������� 
0F�*UDZ�+LOO ,QWURGXFLQJ�$UW�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ
 ����������������� ���� ������� 
0F�*UDZ�+LOO ,QWURGXFLQJ�$UW ����������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ 0HGLFDO�7HUPLQRORJ\�D�/LYLQJ�/DQJXDJH ������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ (QJLQHHULQJ�2XU�'LJLWDO�)XWXUH ������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ 8QGHUVWDQGLQJ�3V\FKRORJ\����� �������������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ 8QGHUVWDQGLQJ�3V\FKRORJ\�7(����� �������������� ���� ������� 
6WDUOLQH�3UHVV��,QF� $UW���&RPSOHWH $���& ���� ������� 
6WDUOLQH�3UHVV��,QF� +RPH�(FRQRPLFV�&RPSOHWH +(���& ���� ������� 
6WDUOLQH�3UHVV��,QF� %XVLQHVV���&RPSOHWH %���& ���� ������� 

92&$7,21$/�('8&$7,21 
$*6� &DUHHU�3ODQQLQJ��6WXGHQW�7H[W ���������������� ���� ������� 
&HQJDJH�/HDUQLQJ &ULPLQDO�-XVWLFH�LQ�$FWLRQ�7H[WERRN ���������� ����������������� ���� ������� 
&HQJDJH�/HDUQLQJ &ULPLQDO�-MXVWLFH�LQ�$FWLRQ�,QVWUXFWLRQ�5HVRXUFH�0DQXHO ����������������� ���� ������� 
&HQJDJH�/HDUQLQJ &ULPLQDO�-XVWLFH�LQ�$FWLRQ�6WXGH\�*XLGH
 ����������������� ���� ������� 
&HQJDJH�/HDUQLQJ 'LYHUVLILHG�+HDOWK�2FFXSDWLRQ�7H[WERRN ���������� ���� ������� 
&HQJDJH�/HDUQLQJ 'LYHUVLILHG�+HDOWK�2FFXSDWLRQ�:RUNERRN ���������� ���� ������� 
&HQJDJH�/HDUQLQJ ,QVWUXFWRUV�0DQXDO�'LYHUVLILHG�+HDOWK�2FFXSDWLRQV ����������������� ���� ������� 
'DYLV�3XEOLVKLQJ��,QF� ([SORULQJ�9LVXDO�'HVLJQV�6(� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
'DYLV�3XEOLVKLQJ��,QF� ([SORULQJ�9LVXDO�'HVLJQV�7( �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
'DYLV�3XEOLVKLQJ��,QF� ([SORULQJ�9LVXDO�'HVLJQ�7HDFKHU�5HVRXUFHV�&' �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOFR[ $XWR�)XQGDPHQWDOV������7H[W�%RRN ����������������� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOFR[ $XWR�)XQGDPHQWDOV�'HVN�&RS\� ����������������� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOFR[ $XWR�)XQGDPHQWDOV������:% ����������������� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOFR[ &KLOG�'HYHORSPHQW��6( �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOFR[ &KLOG�GHYHORSPHQW��7( �������������� ���� ���� ������� 

106



	
	
	
	

	

���������� 3DJH��� 

*RRGKHDUW�:LOFR[ &KLOG�'HYHORSPHQW��\U�HPDLO �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOFR[ :RUNLQJ�ZLWK�<RXQJ�&KLOGUHQ������ �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[� 'LVFRYHULQJ�&DUHHUV�:%� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[� 'LVFRYHULQJ�&DUHHUV�6WXGHQW�7H[W ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[� 'LVFRYHULQJ�&DUHHUV�7$: ����������������� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[� 'LVFRYHULQJ�&DUHHUV�75* ����������������� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[ 'LVFRYHULQJ�&DUHHUV�'HVN�&RS\�7( ����������������� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOFR[ 'LVFRYHULQJ�&DUHHUV���\U�HPDLO ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOFR[ )DVKLRQ�0DUNHW� �0HUFK��������7( �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOFR[ )DVKLRQ�0DUNHW� �0HUFK��������:N%N �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOFR[ )DVKLRQ�0DUNHW� �0HUFK��5&'�� ������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOFR[ )DVKLRQ�0DUNHW� �0HUFK��6( �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOFR[ )RXQGDWLRQ�3HUVRQDO�)LQDQFH�7( �������������� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOFR[ )RXQGDWLRQ�RI�)LQDQFLDO�/LWHUDF\�7H[W�� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOFR[ )RXQGDWLRQ�RI�)LQDQFWLDO�/LWHUDF\�:RUNERRN �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOFR[ )RXQGDWLRQ�3HUVRQDO�)LQDQFH�:.%. ����������������� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOFR[ )RXQGDWLRQ�3HUVRQDO�)LQDQFH�&RS\� ����������������� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOFR[ )RXQGDWLRQ�3HUVRQDO�)LQDQFH�5&' ����������������� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOFR[ *XLGH�WR�*RRG�)RRG�7[W ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOFR[ *XLGH�WR�*RRG�)RRG�:% ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOFR[ *XLGH�WR�*RRG�)RRG�7( ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOFR[ *XLGH�WR�*RRG�)RRG�7$: ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOFR[ *XLGH�WR�*RRG�)RRG�5&' ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOFR[ *XLGH�WR�*RRG�)RRG�33 ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOFR[ +RVSLWDOLW\�6HUYLFHV�7H[W������ �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOFR[ +RVSLWDOLW\�6HUYLFHV�:%� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOFR[ +RVSLWDOLW\�6HUYLFHV��\U�HPDLO ���� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOFR[ +RXVLQJ�,QWHULRU�'HVLJQ�6�7H[W �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOFR[ +RXVLQJ�,QWHULRU�'HVLJQ�:% �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOFR[ +RXVLQJ�,QWHULRU�'HVLJQ�5&'� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[ /HDUQLQJ�IRU�(DUQLQJ�6WXGHQW�7H[WERRN ����������������� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[ /HDUQLQJ�IRU�(DUQLQJ�6WXGHQW�$FWLYLW\�*XLGH ����������������� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[ /HDUQLQJ�IRU�(DUQLQJ�7HDFKHU
 V�:UDSDURXQG�(GLWLRQ ������������� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOFR[ /LIHVSDQ�'HYHORSPHQW�7;7� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOFR[ /LIHVSDQ�'HYHORSPHQW�:% �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOFR[ /LIHVSDQ�'HYHORSPHQW�5&' �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[ 6WXGHQW�$FWLYLW\�*XLGH ������������;�� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOFR[ 0DWK�IRU�$XWRPRWLYH�7HFKQLFLDQV�7H[W �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*RRGKHDUW�:LOOFR[ 7HDFKHU
 V�5HVRXUFH�*XLGH ��������������� ���� ������� 
&DUHHU%RRN�6WRUH��&RP %HFRPLQJ�WKH�%HVW�0H�,QVWUXFWRU
 V�0DQXDO ���� ������� 
&DUHHU%RRN�6WRUH��&RP %HFRPLQJ�WKH�%HVW�0H� ���� ������� 
(GXFDWLRQDO�$FWLYLWLHV�,QF *HWWLQJ�$ORQJ�ZLWK�2WKHUV�&'�5RP�9LGHR�*XLGH ���� ������� 
(GXFDWLRQDO�$FWLYLWLHV�,QF *HWWLQJ�$�-RE��.HHSLQJ�<RXU�-RE ���� ������� 
*OREH�)HDURQ�3HDUVRQ�/HDUQLQJ�*URXS -RE�6NLOOV� �&DUHHU�([SORUDWLRQ�)LQGLQJ�D�-RE ���� ������� 
-RQHV�DQG�%DUWOHWW�3XEOLVKHUV /DZ�(QIRUFHPHQW�LQ�WKH�8�6� ���������� ���� ������� 
-LVW�3XEOLVKLQJ ����%HVW�-REV��� ���� ������� 
-LVW�3XEOLVKLQJ -RE�6DYY\ ���� ������� 
-LVW�3XEOLVKLQJ +RZ�WR�%H�D�6XFFHVV�DW�:RUN�DW�:RUN�'9'�6HULHV ���� ������� 

107



	


 	







���������� 3DJH��� 

-LVW�3XEOLVKLQJ 4XLFN�-RE�6XFFHVV�� ���� ������� 
-LVW�3XEOLVKLQJ 3XWWLQJ�WKH�%DUV�%HKLQG�\RXU�3DFNDJH�� ���� ������� 
-LVW�3XEOLVKLQJ <RXQJ�3HUVRQ
 V�*XLGH�WR�*HWWLQJ� �.HHSLQJ�D�*RRG�-RE ���� ������� 
3HDVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ &DUHHU�3ODQQLQJ�,QFOXVLRQ�&ODVV�6HW ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�3HDFKSLW�(GXFDW &UHDWLQJ�5HVXPHV��/HWWHUV��%XVLQHVV�&DUGV�DQG�)O\HUV�LQ�:RUG ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�3HDFKSLW�(GXFDW 7KH�&DUHHU�7RRO.LW�IRU�+LJK�6FKRRO�6WXGHQWV��0DNLQJ�WKH�7UDQVLWLRQ�IURP�6FKRRO�WR�:RUN� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�3XEOLVKLQJ &DUHHU�3ODQQLQJ�&XUULFXOXP�&ODVV�6HW ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�3XEOLVKLQJ &DUHHU�3ODQQLQJ�6WXGHQW�7H[WERRN ���������� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�3XEOLVKLQJ &DUHHU�3ODQQLQJ�:RUNERRN ���������� ���� ������� 
6WDUOLQH�3UHVV��,QF� %XVLQHVV���&RPSOHWH %���& ���� ������� 

&20387(5�/,7(5$&< 
2 5HLOO\�0HGLD�,QF� 7KH�&66�$QWKRORORJ\������(VVHQWLDO�7LSV��7ULFNV� �+DFNV ���� ������� 
2 5HLOO\�0HGLD�,QF� &66�&RRNERRN ���� ������� 
2 5HLOO\�0HGLD�,QF� &DVFDGLQJ�6W\OH�6KHHWV��7KH�'HILQLWLYH�*XLGH���QG�(GLWLRQ ���� ������� 
2 5HLOO\�0HGLD�,QF� +70/�8WRSLD��'HVLJQLQJ�:LWKRXW�7DEOHV�8VLQJ�&66 ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�3HDFKSLW�3UHVV &UHDWLQJ�*UDSKLFV�IRU�/HDUQLQJ�DQG�3HUIRUPDQFH��/HVVRQV�LQ�9LVXDO�/LWHUDF\ ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�3HDFKSLW�3UHVV &UHDWLQJ�D�3UHVHQWDWLRQ�LQ�3RZHU3RLQW�9LVXDO�4XLFN3URMHFW�*XLGH ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�3HDFKSLW�3UHVV 7HDFKLQJ�DQG�/HDUQLQJ�Z�0LFURVRIW�2IILFH�DQG�)URQW�3DJH� ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�3HDFKSLW�3UHVV 3KRWRVKRS�(OHPHQWV�������:D\V�WR�&UHDWH�&RRO�3LFWXUH ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�3HDFKSLW�3UHVV +RZ�WR�:2:�3KRWRVKRS�IRU�WKH�:HE�3XEOLVKLQJ�D�%ORJ�%ORJJHU�*XLGH ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�3HDFKSLW�3UHVV +RZ�WR�:2:��3KRWRVKRSH�IRU�WKH�:HE ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�3HDFKSLW�3UHVV 0LFURVRIW�2IILFH�3RZHUSRLQW������:LQGRZV�9LVXOD�4XLFN6WDUW�*XLGH ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�3HDFKSLW�3UHVV 3KRWRVKRS�(OHPHQWV���+DQGV�2Q�7UDLQLQJ ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�3HDFKSLW�3UHVV &UHDWLQJ�$�:HE�6LWH�ZLWK�)ODVK��9LVXDO�4XLFN3URMHFW�*XLGH ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�3HDFKSLW�3UHVV 0LFURVRIW�:RUG������&RPSUHKHQVLYH�6WXGHQW�(GLWLRQ ���� ������� 
3HDUVRQ�(GXFDWLRQ�3HDFKSLW�3UHVV &UHDWLQJ�$�:HE�3DJH�ZLWK�+70/��9LVXDO�4XLFN3URMHFW�*XLGH ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�'HOPDU�/HDUQLQJ ([SORULQJ�:HE�'HVLJQ ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�'HOPDU�/HDUQLQJ 7KH�'LJLWDO�'HVLJQHU������*UDSKLF�'HVLJQ�3URMHFWV��3ULQW�0XOWLPHGLD�DQG�0RWLRQ�*UDSKLFV ���� ������� 
7KRPSVRQ�'HOPDU�/HDUQLQJ &RQWHPSRUDU\�&RORU ���� ������� 
:LOH\�3XEOLVKHUV 7HDFK�<RXUVHOI�0LFURVRIW�:RUG������9LVXDOO\ ���� ������� 
:LOH\�3XEOLVKHUV 0DVWHU�9LVXDOO\�&UHDWLQJ�:HE�3DJHV ���� ������� 

08/7,�0(',$ 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO 8QGHUVWDQGLQJ�WKH�)LOP ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO 8QGHUVWDQGLQJ�WKH�)LOP�7HDFKHUV�5HVRXUFH�%RRN ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO 7HOHYLVLRQ�3URGXFWLRQ�7RGD\ ���� ������� 
*OHQFRH�0FJUDZ�+LOO 7HOHYLVLRQ�3URGXFWLRQ�7RGD\�7HDFKHUV�%RRN ���� ������� 
6XQGDQFH 7KH�&LUFXLW�$XGLRWDSH���&DVVHWWHV ���� ������� 
6XQGDQFH +LURVKLPD�9LGHR ���� ������� 
6XQGDQFH +LURVKLPD���&DVVHWWHV ���� ������� 
6XQGDQFH 0LUDFOH
 V�%R\V���&DVVHWWHV ���� ������� 
6XQGDQFH 3DUURW�LQ�WKH�2YHQ��0L�9LGD����&DVVHWWHV ���� ������� 
6XQGDQFH 7KH�%UHDGZLQQHU����&DVVHWWHV ���� ������� 
6XQGDQFH %ULGJH�WR�7HUDELWKLD����&DVVHWWHV ���� ������� 
6XQGDQFH &UDVK����&DVVHWWHV ���� ������� 
6XQGDQFH 7KH�+RXVH�RQ�0DQJR�6WUHHW���&DVVHWWHV ���� ������� 
6XQGDQFH 7XFN�(YHUODVWLQJ����&'
 V ���� ������� 

108



���������� 3DJH��� 

6XQGDQFH -XOLXV�&DHVDU��6KDNHVSHDUH����&DVVHWWHV ���� ������� 
6XQGDQFH 7KH�:DWVRQ
 V�*R�WR�%LUPLQJKDP����&DVVHWWHV ���� ������� 
6XQGDQFH 7R�.LOO�D�0RFNLQJELUG����&DVVHWWHV ���� ������� 
6XQGDQFH -RH\�3LJ]D�6ZDOORZHG�WKH�.H\����&DVVHWWHV ���� ������� 

3(5,2',&$/6 
1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLFV 1DWLRQDO�*HRJUSKLFV�&RPSUHKHQVLYH�6XEVFULSWLRQ ����������������� ������� 
6FKRODVWLF� 1HZ�<RUN�7LPHV�8SIURQW 1R�,6%1 ���� ���� ������� 
6FKRODVWLF� 6FKRODVWLF�$UW ���� ������� 
:HHNO\�5HDGHU�&RUSRUDWLRQ 7HHQ�1HZVZHHN� ���� ������� 
:HHNO\�5HDGHU�&RUSRUDWLRQ &XUUHQW�6FLHQFH ���� ������� 
:HHNO\�5HDGHU�&RUSRUDWLRQ &XUUHQW�+HDOWK�� ���� ������� 
:HHNO\�5HDGHU�&RUSRUDWLRQ &DUHHU�:RUOG� ���� ������� 

63$1,6+ 
9LVWD�+LJKHU�/HDUQLQJ� 'HVFXEUH�� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
9LVWD�+LJKHU�/HDUQLQJ� 'HVFXEUH�� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 
9LVWD�+LJKHU�/HDUQLQJ� 'HVFXEUH�� ����������������� ���� ���� ������� 

109









	

��������� �$OWHUQDWLYH�(GXFDWLRQ�%RRN�/LVW 

$87+25 129(/ ,6%1����'LJL ,6%1����'LJLW &RS\ULJKW *UDGH <U��$GRSWHG 
$EEH\��(GZDUG 0RQNH\�:UHQFK�*DQJ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$ERXOXILD��$QLWD $XWRELRJUDSK\�RI�0DOFROP�; ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$FHYHGR��(OL]DEHWK 3RHW�; ���������� �������������� ���� � ������� 
$FHYHGR��(OL]DEHWK :LWK�WKH�)LUH�RQ�+LJK �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$FKHEH��&KLQXD , P�1RW�6FDUHG ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$FKHEH��&KLQXD 7KLQJV�)DOO�$SDUW ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$FNUR\G��3HWHU 9R\DJHV�WKURXJK�7LPH��&LWLHV�RI�%ORRG ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$GDPV��'RXJODV 7KH�+LWFKKLNHU
 V�*XLGH�WR�WKH�*DOD[\ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$HVFK\OXV 7KH�2UHVWHLD ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$NLQVRQ��.DWH &DVH�+LVWRULHV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$OEHH��(GZDUG 7KH�$PHULFDQ�'UHDP�DQG�WKH�=RR�6WRU\ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$OJHEULD��0DULD (VWUHOOD
 V�4XLQFHDQHUD ��������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$OH[DQGHU��/OR\G 7KH�%RRN�RI�7KUHH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$OH[DQGHU��.ZDPH 7KH�&URVVRYHU �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$OH[DQGHU��.ZDPH %RRNHG� �7KH�&URVVRYHUVHULHV� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$OH[DQGHU��.ZDPH 5HERXQG� �7KH�&URVVRYHU�6HULHV� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$OH[LH��6KHUPDQ 7KH�$EVROXWH�7UXH�'LDU\�RI�D�3DUW�7LPH�,QGLDQ ���� ���� ������� 
$OH[LH��6KHUPDQ 7KH�/RQH�5DQJHU�DQG�7RQWR�)LVW�)LJKW�LQ�+HDYHQ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$OLUH�6DHQ]��%HQMDPLQ $ULVWRWOH�DQG�'DQWH�'LVFRYHU�WKH�6HFUHWV�RI�WKH�8QLYHUVH �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
$OOHQ��5RQDOG 8QGHUVWDQGLQJ�5HOLJLRQ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$OOHQGH��,VDEHO 7KH�+RXVH�RI�6SLULWV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$OOHQGH��,VDEHO /D�&DVD�GH�ORV�HVSLULWRV�6SDQLV�HGLWLRQ �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$OOHQGH��,VDEHO =RUUR ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$OOHQGH��,VDEHO 0L�3DLV�,QYHQWDGR�6SDQLVK �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$OYDUH]��-XOLD %HIRUH�ZH�:HUH�)UHH �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$OYDUH]��-XOLD +RZ�7KH�*DUFLD�*LUOV�/RVW�7KHLU�$FFHQW ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$OYDUH]��-XOLD ,Q�WKH�7LPH�RI�WKH�%XWWHUIOLHV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$OYDUH]��-XOLD 7KH�2WKHU�6LGH�RI�(O�2WUR�/DGR ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$QD\D��5XGROIR� $�&HOHEUDWLRQ�RI�*UDQGIDWKHUV ���� ������� 
$QD\D��5XGROIR� %OHVV�0H�8OWLPD ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$QGHUVRQ��/DXULH�+DOVH 6SHDN ���������; �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$QJHORX��0D\D ,�.QRZ�:K\�WKH�&DJHG�%LUG�6LQJV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$QJHORX��0D\D 1HZ�'LUHFWLRQV ���� ������� 
$QRQ\PRXV *R�$VN�$OLFH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$SSOHJDWH��.DWKHULQH :LVKWUHH �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
$SSOHJDWH��.DWKHULQH +RPH�RI�WKH�%UDYH �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
$UHQD��5HLQDOG )DUHZHOO�WR�WKH�6HD��$�1RYHO�RI�&XED ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$UPVWRQJ��/DQFH ,W V�1RW�$ERXW�WKH�%LNH ���������� �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
$UPVWURQJ��:LOOLDP�+� 6RXQGHU ���������� �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
$UQROG��&DUROLQH 6XSHU�6ZLPPHUV��:KDOHV��'ROSKLQV��HWF« ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$URQVRQ��0DUF 6XJDU�&KDQJHG�WKH�:RUOG��$�6WRU\�RI�0DMLF��6SLFH��6ODYHU\��)UHHGRP�DQG�6FLHQFH �������������� ���� ���� 
$VKHU��-D\ 7KLUWHHQ�5HDVRQ�:K\ �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$VWOH��7RP�-� (VFDSH ���� ������� 
$WZDWHU�5KRGHV��$PHOLD ,Q�WKH�)RUUHVWV�RI�WKH�1LJKW ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$XVWHQ��-DQH 6HQVH� �6HQVLELOLW\ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$YL 1RWKLQJ�%XW�WKH�7UXWK ���������; �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
$YL 3HUORR�WKH�%ROG ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$YL 3RSS\�DQG�5\H ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
$YL 7KH�0DQ�:KR�:DV�3RH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 

110



	

��������� �$OWHUQDWLYH�(GXFDWLRQ�%RRN�/LVW 

$YL 7KH�7UXH�&RQIHVVLRQV�RI�&KDUORWWH�'R\OH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
%DEELWW��1DWDOLH 7XFN�(YHUODVWLQJ ���������� �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
%DFKHO��%HYHUO\ :KDW�GR�<RX�5HDOO\�:DQW"�+RZ�WR�VHW�D�JRDO �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
%DOODQWLQH�%RRNV $XWRELRJUDSK\�RI�0DOFROP�; ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
%DUWRN��-RVK 0RUH�'DLO\�:LVGRP ���������; �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
%DXHU��-RDQ 5XOHV�RI�WKH�5RDG ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
%HDK��,VKPDHO /RQJ�:D\�*RQH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
%HDWW\��3DWULFLD /XSLWD�0DQDQD ���������� �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
%HOO��:LOOLDP )RUELGGHQ�&LW\ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
%HQQHWW��-D\ 7KH�([HFXWLRQHU ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
%HUQVWHLQ��6WHYH 6WRULHV�IURP�WKH�6WRRS �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
%HUU\��-DPHV &ODVVLF�3RHPV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
%HWWV��'ZD\QH $�4XHVWLRQ�RI�)UHHGRP��$�0HPRLU�RI�/HDUQLQJ�6XUYLYDO ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
%LJHORZ��%LOO $�3HRSOH�&XUULFXOXP�IRU�WKH�(DUWK �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
%ODEH\��$DURQ /RV�7LSRV�0DORV��6SDQLVK�HGLWLRQ �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
%ODEH\��$DURQ /RV�7LSRV�PDORV�HQ�0LVLRQ�,PSRVLEOH�6SDQLVK�(GLWLRQ �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
%ODXIDUE��5DIH ,QKXPDQ�7UDIILFN��7KH�,QWHUQDWLRQDO�6WUXJJOH �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
%ORV��-RDQ�:� $�*DWKHULQJ�RI�'D\V ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
%ROGHQ��7RQ\D 0/.��WKH�-RXUQH\�RI�D�.LQJ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
%RRWK��&RH .HQGUD ��������� ��������������� ���� ���� ������� 
%RRWK��&RH %URQ[ZRRG �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
%RZ��(ULQ 7KH�6FRUSLRQ�5XOHV� ��3ULVRQHUV�RI�3HDFH� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
%R\DFN��&RQQRU 7KH�7XWWOH�7ZLQV�DQG�WKH�0LUDFXORXV�3HQFLO �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
%R\DFN��&RQQRU /HVVRQV�IURP�D�/HPRQDGH�6WDQG �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
%R\DFN��&RQQRU 7KH�7XWWOH�7ZLQV�DQG�WKH�6HDUFK�IRU�$WODV �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
%UDGEXU\��5D\ 'DQGHOLRQ�:LQH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
%UDGEXU\��5D\ )DKUHQKHLW���� ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
%UDGEXU\��5D\ ,OOXVWUDWHG�0DQ ���������; �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
%UDGEXU\��5D\ 6RPHWKLQJ�:LFNHG�7KLV�:D\�&RPHV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
%UDGEXU\��5D\ 7KH�*ROGHQ�.LWH��WKH�6LOYHU�:LQG�6WRULHV�RI�5D\�%UDGEXU\� ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
%UDGEXU\��5D\ 7KH�0DUWLDQ�&KURQLFOHV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
%UDGPDQ��7RQ\ 0\�'DGV�D�3XQN ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
%UHQQHU��*DLO ,QJOHV�SDUD�'XPPLHV �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
%URRNV��%UXFH 7KH�0RYHV�0DNH�WKH�0DQ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
%URQWH��(PLO\ :XWKHULQJ�+HLJKWV �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
%URZQ�'RQ 'URZQ�&LW\��+XUULFDQH�.DWULQD�DQG�1HZ�2UOHDQV� ���������; �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
%URZQ��'DQ $QJHOV� �'HPRQV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
%URZQ��*HUU\ (631�6SRUWV�$OPDQDF ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
%URZQ��-XDQLWD :RUOG�&DIp
 ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
%UXFKDF��-RVHSK &RGH�7DONHU��$�1RYHO�DERXW�WKH�0DULQHV�1DYDMR�RI�::OO ����������� ��������������� ���� ���� ������� 
%XFN��3HDUO 7KH�*RRG�(DUWK ���������� �������������� ���� ������� 
%XGQLW] 1LFH�%LJ�$PHULFDQ�%DE\ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
%XUQHWW��)UDQFHV�+� 7KH�6HFUHW�*DUGHQ ���������; �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
%XUQHWW��.HQ =HQ�RI�)XQGUDLVLQJ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
%XWOHU��2FWDYLD .LQGUHG ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
%\DUV��%HWV\ 7KH���WK�(PHUJHQF\ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&DPXV��$OEHUW 6WUDQJHU ������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&DUG��2UVRQ�6FRWW (QGHU
 V�*DPH %��,,%$%;< ���� ���� ������� 
&DUVRQ��%HQ *LIWHG�+DQGV��7KH�%HQ�&DUVRQ�6WRU\ ��������� 
&DUVRQ�/HYLQH��*DLO 'DYH�DW�1LJKW �������������� ���� ���� ������� 

111



	

��������� �$OWHUQDWLYH�(GXFDWLRQ�%RRN�/LVW 

&DUWHU��$OGHQ�5� 8S�&RXQW\ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&DUWHU��)RUUHVW 7KH�(GXFDWLRQ�RI�/LWWOH�7UHH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&DUYHU��5D\PRQG &DWKHGUDOV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&DVWUR�/RSH]��$QWRQR 7KH�'D\�,W�6QRZHG�7RUWLOODV�6SDQLVK�(QJOLVK �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&KDQGOHU��)LRQD (QF\FORSHGLD�RI�WKH�:RUOG ���������� ������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&KHHYHU��-RKQ *RRG�E\H��0\�%URWKHU� �6WRULHV�RI�-RKQ�&KHHYHU� ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&KHYDW��5LFKLH $�4XHHU�+LVWRU\�RI�WKH�86�IRU�<RXQJ�3HRSOH �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&KHNKRY��$QWRQ *RRVHEHUULHV ��� ������� 
&KLOGUHVV��$OLFH $�+HUR�$LQ
 W�1RWKLQ
 �%XW�D�6DQGZLFK ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&LVQHURV��6DQGUD 7KH�+RXVH�RQ�0DQJR�6WUHHW ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&LVQHURV��6DQGUD :RPDQ�+ROOHULQJ�&UHHN ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&ODUNH��%UHHQD 5LYHU�&URVV�0\�+HDUW ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&OHPHQWV��$QGUHZ )ULQGOH ���������� �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
&RHOKR��3DXOR 7KH�$FKHPLVW���WK�$QQLYHUVDU\��$�)DEOH�$ERXW�)ROORZLQJ�\RXU�GUHDPV �������������� ���� ������� 
&ROOLHU��/LQFROQ� �&KULVWRSKHU 0\�%URWKHU�6DP�LV�'HDG ���������� �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
&ROOLQV��6X]DQQH 7KH�+XQJHU�*DPHV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&ROOLQV��6X]DQQH 0RFNLQJMD\ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� 
&ROXP��3DGUDLF 7KH�*ROGHQ�)OHHFH ���������� �������������� ���� ������� 
&RQGH��0DU\VH ,�7XWXED��%ODFN�:LWFK�RI�6DOHP ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&RQO\��-DQH�/HVOLH :KLOH�1R�2QH�:DV�:DWFKLQJ ���������; �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&RRQH\��&DUROLQH�%� %XUQLQJ�8S ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&RRQWV��6WHSKHQ /RV�7LSRV�0DORV�QRYHOD ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&RUPLHU��5REHUW ��3OXV�� ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&RUPLHU��5REHUW +HURHV��$�1RYHO ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&RUPLHU��5REHUW ,�$P�WKH�&KHHVH ���������� �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
&RUPLHU��5REHUW ,Q�WKH�0LGGOH�RI�WKH�1LJKW ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&RUPLHU��5REHUW 2WKHU�%HOOV�)RU�8V�WR�5LQJ ���������; �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&RUPLHU��5REHUW 7KH�%XPEOHEHH�)OLHV�$Q\ZD\ ���������; �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&RUPLHU��5REHUW 7KH�&KRFRODWH�:DU ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&RUPLHU��5REHUW 7XQHV�IRU�%HDUV�WR�'DQFH�7R ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&RUPLHU��5REHUW :H�$OO�)DOO�'RZQ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&RXJKOLQ��-DFN 6KRRWHU ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&RXUWQH\��%U\FH 7KH�3RZHU�RI�2QH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&RYH\��6HDQ 7KH���+DELWV�RI�+LJKO\�(IIHFWLYH�7HHQV �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&RYH\��6WHSKHQ 6SHHG�RI�7UXVW ���������; �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&UDQH��6WHSKDQ 7KH�5HG�%DGJH�RI�&RXUDJH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&UDYHQ��0DUJDUHW ,�+HDUG�WKH�2ZO�&DOO�0\�1DPH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&UHHFK��6KDURQ :DON�7ZR�0RRQV �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
&UHZ��/LQGD &KLOGUHQ�RI�WKH�5LYHU ����������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&ULFKWRQ��-RQDWKRQ (QJOLVK�PDGH�HDV\�9RO�����$�1HZ�$SSURDFK �������������� 

�%��<:�&��� 
���� ���� ������� 

&URZH��(OOLH 6XUIHU�RI�WKH�&HQWWXU\��7KH�OLIH�RI�'XNH�.DKDQDPRNX ���� ���� ������� 
&UXFWKHU��&KULV $WKOHWLF�6KRUWV��6L[�6KRUW�6WRULHV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&UXWFKHU��&KULV &KLQHVH�+DQGFXIIV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&UXWFKHU��&KULV 5XQQLQJ�/RRVH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&XUWLV��&KULVWRSKHU�3DXO %XG��1RW�%XGG\ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
&XUWLV��&KULVWRSKHU�3DXO 7KH�:DWVRQV�*R�7R�%LUPLQJKDP������� ���������; �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
&XUWLV��&KULVWRSKHU�3DXO 7KH�0LJKW\�0LVV�0DORQH �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
&XVVOHU��&OLYH ,FHEHUJ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
'
 $GDPR��)UDQFHVFR ,TEDO ���������� �������������� 

�������������� 
���� ��� ������� 

'DQWLFDW��(GZLGJH 7KH�)DUPLQJ�RI�%RQHV ���� ���� ������� 

112






	

��������� �$OWHUQDWLYH�(GXFDWLRQ�%RRN�/LVW 

'DVV��5DP %H�+HUH�1RZ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
'DYLHV��/XNH &DQG\ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
'DYLV��6DPSVRQ :H�%HW�WKH�6WUHHW��+RZ�D�IUHLQGVKLS�SDFW�OHG�WR�6XFFHVV �������������� 

�������������� 
���� ��� ������� 

'H*URVV��0RQDOLVD 'RQDYDQ V�:RUOG�-DU ���� ��� ������� 
'H�/D�3HQD��0DWW 7KH�/LYLQJ ��������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
'H�/D�3HQD��0DWW :H�:HUH�+HUH �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
'H�/D�3HQD��0DWW %DOO�'RQ¶W�/LH ����������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
'HQHQEHUJ��%DUU\ 1HOVRQ�0DQGHOD �������������� ��� ������� 
'H�6DLQW�([XSHU\��$QWRLQH (O�3ULQFLSLWR� �6SDQLVK� �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
'HVVHQ��6DUDK 6RPHRQH�/LNH�<RX ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
'H9RWR��%HUQDUG 7KH�-RXUQDOV�RI�/HZLV� �&ODUNH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
'LFNHQV��&KDUOHV $�&KULVWPDV�&DURO ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
'LFNHQV��&KDUOHV $�7DOH�RI�7ZR�&LWLHV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
'LFNHQV��&KDUOHV 'DYLG�&RSSHUILHOG ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
'LFNHQV��&KDUOHV *UHDW�([SHFWDWLRQV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
'LFNHQV��&KDUOHV 2OLYHU�7ZLVW ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
'LFNHQV��&KDUOHV :LVKERQH�2OLYHU�7ZLVW ���������; �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
'LFNHQVRQ��3HWHU (YD ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
'LOODUG��$QQLH 3LOJULP�DW�7LQNHU�&UHHN ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
'RFWRURZ��&RU\ /LWWOH�%URWKHU �������������� 

�������������� 
���� ���� ������� 

'RXJODVV��)UHGHULFN 1DUUDWLYH�RI�WKH�/LIH�RI�)UHGHULFN�'RXJODVV ���� ���� ������� 
'RUULV��0LFKDHO 0RUQLQJ�*LUO ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
'UDSHU��6KDURQ�0� 'DUNQHVV�%HIRUH�'DZQ ��������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
'UDSHU��6KDURQ�0� )RUJHG�E\�)LUH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
'UDSHU��6KDURQ�0� 7HDU�RI�D�7LJHU ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
'XPDV��$OH[DQGUH 7KH�&RXQW�RI�0RQWH�&ULVWR ��������� ��������������� ���� ���� ������� 
'XQFDQ��/RLV 'DXJKWHUV�RI�(YH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
'XQFDQ��/RLV 'RQ
 W�/RRN�%HKLQG�<RX ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
'XQFDQ��/RLV 'RZQ�D�'DUN�+DOO ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
'XQFDQ��/RLV *DOORZ�+LOO ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
'XQFDQ��/RLV ,�.QRZ�:KDW�<RX�'LG�/DVW�VXPPHU ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
'XQFDQ��/RLV .LOOLQJ�0U��*ULIILQ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
'XQFDQ��/RLV 6WUDQJHU�:LWK�0\�)DFH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
'XQFDQ��/RLV 6XPPHU�RI�)HDU ���������; �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
'XQFDQ��/RLV 7KH�7KLUG�(\H ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
'XQFDQ��/RLV 7KH�7ZLVWHG�:LQGRZ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
'XQFDQ��/RLV 7KH\�1HYHU�&RPH�+RPH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
(GULFK��/RXLVH /RYH�0HGLFLQH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
(LJ��-RQDWKRQ 7KH�/XFNLHVW�0DQ��7KH�/LIH�DQG�'HDWK�RI�/RX�*HKULJ� ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
(OOLV��'HERUDK 3DUDYDQD
 V�-RXUQH\ ���������� �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
(OOLV��'HERUDK 7KH�%UHDGZLQQHU ���������� �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
(QJOH��0DUJDULWH 6LOYHU�3HRSOH��9RLFHV�IURP�WKH�3DQDPD�&DQDO �������������� 

��������������� 
�������������� 

���� ���� ������� 
(QULTXH]��0DULDQD /DV�FRVDV�TXH�SHUGLPDRV�HQ�HO�IXHJR�� �6SDQLVK�(GLWLRQ� ���� ���� ������� 
)DGLPDQ��$QQH 7KH�6SLULW�&DWFKHV�<RX�DQG�<RX�)DOO�'RZQ ���� ���� ������� 
(YVOLQ��%HUQDUG $GYHQWXUHV�RI�8O\VVHV ���������� �������������� ���� ������� 
)DUPHU��1DQF\ $�*LUO�1DPHG�'LVDVWHU ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
)DVW��+RZDUG $SULO�0RUQLQJ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
)HFKHU��6DUDK )UHDN\�)DFWV�DQG�1DWXUDO�'LVDVWHUV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
)HHOLQJV��7RP 7KH�0LGGOH�3DVVDJH��:KLWH�VKLSV�%ODFN�FDUJR �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
)LIW\�&HQW��.ULV�([ )URP�3LHFHV�WR�:HLJKW ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 

113






��������� �$OWHUQDWLYH�(GXFDWLRQ�%RRN�/LVW 

)LOLSRYLF��=ODWD )UHHGRP�:ULWHUV�'LDU\ ���������; �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
)LOLSRYLF��=ODWD =ODWD
 V�'LDU\ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
)LQH��$QQH )ORXU�%DELHV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
)LW]JHUDOG��)��6FRWW 7KH�*UHDW�*DWVE\ ���������; �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
)ODKHUW\��0LNH $PHULFDQ�&KRSSHU�$W�)XOO�7KURWWOH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
)ODNH��6KDURQ�*� 7KH�6NLQ�, P�,Q ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
)ODXEHUW��*XVWDYH 0DGDPH�%RYDU\ �������������� ���� ������� 
)OHLVFKPDQ��3DXO 6HHGIRONV ���������� �������������� ���� ������� 
)OHLVFKPDQ��3DXO :KLUOLJLJ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
)OHWFKHU��6XVDQ 6KDGRZ�6SLQQHU ���������� �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
)ORFNHU��0LFKDHO 'HDWK�E\�3RZHUSRLQW ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
)UDQN��$QQH 7KH�'LDU\�RI�D�<RXQJ�*LUO ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
)URVW��5REHUW 3RHPV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
)URVW��5REHUW 7KH�5RDG�1RW�7DNHQ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*DDUGHU��-RVWHLQ 6RSKLH
 V�:RUOG��+LVWRU\�RI�3KLORVRSK\ �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*DLQHV��(UQHVW�-� $�/HVVRQ�%HIRUH�'\LQJ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*DLQHV��(UQHVW�-� $XWRELRJUDSK\�RI�0LVV�-DQH�3LWWPDQ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*DOOR��'RQDOG�5� &RQQHFWLRQV��6KRUW�6WRULHV�E\�2XWVWDQGLQJ�:ULWHUV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*DOOR��'RQDOG�5� -RLQ�,Q��0XOWLHWKQLF�6KRUW�6WRULHV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*DOOR��'RQDOG�5� 1R�(DV\�$QVZHUV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*DQWRV��-DFN -RH\�3LJ]D�/RVHV�&RQWURO ���������� �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
*DQWRV��-DFN -RH\�3LJ]D�6ZDOORZHG�WKH�.H\ ���������� �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
*DUFLD��/LRQHO�*� $�6KURXG�LQ�WKH�)DPLO\ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*DUGQHU��0DUWLQ (QWHUWDLQLQJ�0DWKHPDWLFDO�3X]]OHV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*DUULVRQ��3DXO 5HG�6N\�DW�0RUQLQJ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*DU]D��&DUPHQ )DPLO\�3LFWXUHV�&XDGURV�GH�)DPLOLD ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*HRUJH��&KLHI�'DQLH 7KHUH�,V�$�/RQJLQJ ���� ������� 
*HRUJH��-HDQ�&UDLJKHDG -XOLH�RI�WKH�:ROYHV ���������� �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
*HUYDLV��$OLVRQ 7KH�6LOHQFH�%HWZHHQ�8V �������������� 

�������������� 
���� ���� ������� 

*HW]��7UHYRU�5� $ELQD�DQG�WKH�LPSRUWDQW�0HQ�*UDSKLF�+LVWRU\ ���� ���� ������� 
*LEVRQ��:LOOLDP 7KH�0LUDFOH�:RUNHU ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*ROGLQJ��:LOOLDP�*HUDOG /RUG�RI�WKH�)OLHV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*ROGPDQ��&DUULH %XOOLHG�:KDW�HYHU\�3DUHQW��7HDFKHU��DQG�.HG�QHHGV�WR�.QRZ �������������� 

�������������� 
���� ������� 

*RRGPDQ��%XUWRQ /LWHUDWXUH�IRU�(QJOLVK�%HJLQQLQJ�6WXGHQW�7H[W ���� ���� ������� 
*UDQGH��5H\QD $FURVV�$�+XQGUHG�0RXQWDLQV ��������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*UDW]��$ODQ 5HIXJHH �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*UHHQ��%HWWH 'URZLQJ�RI�6WHSKDQ�-RQHV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*UHHQ��%UHWWH 6XPPHU�RI�0\�*HUPDQ�6ROGLHU ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*UHHQ��+DQQDK ,�1HYHU�3URPLVHG�<RX�D�5RVH�*DUGHQ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*UHHQ��-RKQ 7KH�)DXOW�LQ�2XU�6WDUV ���������; �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*ULPHV��1LNNL %URQ[�0DVTXHUDGH ���������� �������������� ���� ������� 
*XHYDUD��(UQHVWR 0RWRUF\FOH�'LDULHV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*XLEDXOW��5RVH�&DVWLOOR 7KH�)DUPZRUNHU
 V�'DXJKWHU ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
*XLQQHVV�%RRN *XLQQHVV�:RUOG�%RRN�RI�5HFRUGV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+DFNHU��'LDQD $�:ULWHUV�5HIHUHQFH��H�DQG�:RUNLQJ�ZLWK�6RXUFHV �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+DOFH�$QGHUVRQ��/DXULH 6SHDN ���������; �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+DPLOWRQ��(GLWK 3HUVHXV ���� ������� 
+DPLOWRQ��(GLWK 0\WKRORJ\��7LPHOHVV�7DOHV�RI�*RGV�DQG�+HURHV ��������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+DPLOWRQ��(GLWK 7KH�+RXVH�RI�'LHV�'UHDU ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+DPPHWW��'DVKLHOO 7KH�0DOWHVH�)DOFRQ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 

114



	

	

	

��������� �$OWHUQDWLYH�(GXFDWLRQ�%RRN�/LVW 

+DPLOWRQ��(GLWK 0\WKRORJ\ 
+DQV�3HWHU�5LFKWHU )ULHGULFK ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+DQVEHUU\��/RUUDLQH $�5DLVLQ�,Q�WKH�6XQ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+DQVEHUU\��/RUUDLQH 2Q�6XPPHU ���� ������� 
+DQVEHUU\��/RUUDLQH 7R�%H�<RXQJ��*LIWHG�DQG�%ODFN ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+DQVRQ��5RQ� �6KHSDUG��-LP <RX
 YH�*RW�WR�5HDG�7KLV��&RQWHPSRUDU\�$PHULFDQ�:ULWHUV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+DUSHU�&ROOLQV %HJLQQHU
 V�(6/�'LFWLRQDU\ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+DUWLQJHU��%UHQW *HRJUDSK\�&OXE ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+DXW]LJ��(VWKHU 6WUDQJHU�LQ�D�6WUDQJH�/DQG ���� ������� 
+DZOH\�0DUWLQ��6WHSKHQ /LIH�$IWHU�'HDWK��3RZHUIXO�(YLGHQFH ��������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+DXW]LJ��(VWKHU 7KH�(QGOHVV�6WHSSH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+D\HV��-RH 7KH�'D\�,W�6QRZHG�7RUWLOODV�6SDQLVK�(QJOLVK ��������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+HOOHU��-RVSHK &DWFK��� %�����5<&* ���� ���� ������� 
+HPLQJZD\��(UQHVW 7KH�2OG�0DQ�DQG�WKH�6HD ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+HPLQJZD\��(UQHVW (O�9LHMR�\�HO�0DU� �6SDQLVK� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+HQU\��2� 7KH�*LIW�RI�WKH�0DJL ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+HUVH\��-RKQ +LURVKLPD ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+HVVH��+HUPDQQ 6LGGKDUWKD ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+HVVH��.DUHQ 2XW�RI�WKH�'XVW ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+LDWW��6WHYHQ $�*DPHV�DV�2OG�DV�(PSLUH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+LJK6SHHG�3URGXFWLRQV -X[WDSR]�0DJD]LQH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+LOO��.LUNSDWULFN :LQWHU�&DPS ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+LOOHUPDQ��7RQ\ 7KH�%OHVVLQJ�:D\ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+LQWRQ��6DOO\�(� 5XPEOH�)LVK ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+LQWRQ��6DOO\�(� 7DPLQJ�WKH�6WDU�5XQQHU ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+LQWRQ��6DOO\�(� 7H[ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+LQWRQ��6DOO\�(� 7KDW�:DV�7KHQ��7KLV�,V�1RZ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+LQWRQ��6DOO\�(� 7KH�2XWVLGHUV ���������; �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+REEV��:LOO� 7KH�0D]H ���������; �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+REEV��:LOOLV %HDUGDQFH ���������� �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
+ROO\��0LFKDHO 3DWULRW�5HLJQ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+RPHU 2G\VVH\ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+RPHU 6KRUW�6WRULHV�&KDUDFWHU�LQ�&RQIOLFW ���� ������� 
+RVVHLQL��.KDOHG .LWH�5XQQHU ���������; �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+RXVWRQ��-HDQQH�:DNDWVXNL )DUHZHOO�WR�0DQ]DQDU ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+XJKHV��/DQJVWRQ 7KH�%LJ�6HD��$Q�$XWREULRJUDSK\ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+XJKHV��/DQJVWRQ 7KH�'UHDP�.HHSHU� �2WKHU�3RHPV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+XQW��,UHQH $FURVV�)LYH�$SULOV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+XWK��0DUN 3UDFWFDO�3UREOHPV�LQ�0DWK�IRU�&DUSHQWHUV �������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
+X[OH\��+HUPDQ %UDYH�1HZ�:RUOG ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
,VEHQ��+HQULN $�'ROO
 V�+RXVH� �2WKHU�3OD\V� ��������������� ���� ���� ������� 
,VKLJXUR��.D]XR 5HPDLQV�RI�WKH�'D\ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
-DFREV��6DPXHO�3DXO -DPHV�3ULQWHU ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
-HQNLQV��$�0� %UHDNLQJ�%R[HV ���������� �������������� ��� ���� ������� 
-LDQJ��-L�/L 5HG�6FDUI�*LUO��$�0HPRLU�RI�WKH�&XOWXUDO�5HYROXWLRQ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
-LPHQH]��)UDQFLVFR 5HDFKLQJ�2XW �������������� ���� ������� 
-LPHQH]��)UDQFLVFR %UHDNLQJ�7KURXJK ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
-LPHQH]��)UDQFLVFR 7KH�&LUFXLW��6WRULHV�IURP�WKH�/LIH�RI�D�0LJUDQW�&KLOG ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
-RKQ��$QWRQ\ )LYH�)ODYRUV�RI�'XPE �������������� 

��������������� 
���� ���� ������� 

-RKQVRQ�$OD\D�'DZQ 7KH�6XPPHU�3ULQFH ���� ���� ������� 

115



	

	
	
	

��������� �$OWHUQDWLYH�(GXFDWLRQ�%RRN�/LVW 

-RKQVRQ��$QJHOD +HDYHQ �������������� ���� ������� 
-RKQVRQ��$QJHOD 7KH�)LUVW�3DUW�/DVW �������������� ���� ������� 
-RKQVWRQ��'DYLG *UHHQ�)URP�WKH�*URXQG�8S ���������; �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
-RKQVWRQ��7RQ\ $Q\�6PDOO�*RRGQHVV��$�1RYHO�RI�WKH�%DUULR �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
-RKQQVRQ��/RXDQQH 0XFKDFKR��$�1RYHO �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
-RQHV��.DUO 'D\�RI�WKH�'HDG� ����������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
-RQHV��)UHG -RQHV�7RROV�IRU�7HDFKLQJ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
-XQJHU��6HEDVWLDQ 7KH�3HUIHFW�6WRUP ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
-XVWHU��1RUWRQ 7KH�3KDQWRP�7ROOERRWK ���������� �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
.DW]��.DUHQ $�3RWW\�IRU�0H �������������� ���� 3UH�. ������� 
.DXIPDQ��.HQ .DXIPDQ�)LHOG�*XLGH�WR�1RUWK�$PHULFDQ�%LUGV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
.HQQHG\��5REHUW 7KLUWHHQ�'D\V��$�0HPRLU�RI�WKH�&XEDQ�0LVVOH�&ULVLV ��������� �������������� 
.HVH\��.HQ 2QH�)OHZ�2YHU�WKH�&XFNRR
 V�1HVW ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
.HVVOHU�+DUULV��$OLFH %UHDG�*LYHUV��$�1RYHO �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
.H\HV��'DQLHO )ORZHUV�IRU�$OJHUQRQ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
.H\HV��5DOSK 4XRWH�9HULILHU ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
.LQFDLG��-DPDLFD *LUO ���� ������� 
.LQJ��$��6� ,�&UDZO�7KRXJK�,W �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
.LQJ��0DUWLQ�/XWKHU�-U� ,�+DYH�$�'UHDP ���������; �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
.LQJ��6WHSKHQ ,7 ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
.LQJ�6W 2Q�:ULWLQJ����WK�$QQLYHUVDU\�(GLWLRQ��$�0HPRLU�RI�WKH�&UDIW ����������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
.LQJVROYHU��%DUEDUD 7KH�%HDQ�7UHHV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
.LUN��$QGUHZ�*� 'RRP�7RZQV��7KH�3HRSOH�DQG�/DQGVFDSHV�RI�$WRPLF�7HVWLQJ �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
.ODVV��'DYLG &DOLIRUQLD�%OXH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
.OHLQEDXP��1�+� 'HDG�3RHWV�6RFLHW\ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
.RKO��+HUEHUW 6KH�:RXOG�QRW�EH�PRYHG��+RZ�ZH�WHOO�WKH�VWRU\�RI�5RVD�3DUNV �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
.RPXQ\DNDD��<XVHI 6ODP��'XQN� �+RRN ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
.RQLJVEXUJ��(�/� 7KH�9LHZ�)URP�6DWXUGD\ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
.RQLJVEXUJ��(�/� 7KURZLQJ�6KDGRZV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
.UDNDXHU��-RQ ,QWR�WKH�:LOG ��������� ���� ���� ������� 
.URHEHU��7KHRGRUD ,VKL��/DVW�RI�+LV�7ULEH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
.URVRFND��-DUUHWW +H\�.LGGR ��������������� ���� ���� ������� 
.UXV]HOQLFNL��.DUO *UHDW�0\WKFRQFHSWLRQV��7KH�6FLHQFH�%HKLQG�WKH�0\WK ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
.XNOLQ�6XVDQ 1R�&KRLUER\ ��������� ��������������� ���� ���� ������� 
/DL��7KDQKKD ,QVLGH�2XW�DQG�%DFN�$JDLQ �������������� 

�������������� 
���� ��� ������� 

/DSHQD��6KDUL $�6WUDQJHU�LQ�WKH�+RXVH ���� ���� ������� 
/DVN\��.DWKU\Q %H\RQG�WKH�%XUQLQJ�7LPH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
/DVV��$EUDKDP� �7DVPDQ��1RUPD�/� ���*UHDW�6WRULHV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
/DZUHQFH��-HURQH� �/HH��5REHUW�(� ,QKHULW�WKH�:LQG ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
/DZUHQFH��-HURQH� �/HH��5REHUW�(� 7KH�1LJKW�7KRUHDX�6SHQW�LQ�-DLO ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
/HDPHU��/DXUHQFH 7KH�WLPH�IRU�-XVWLFH ��������������� ���� ���� ������� 
/H�*XLQ��8UVXOD�.� $�:L]DUG�RI�(DUWKVHD ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
/HH��+DUSHU *R�6HW�$�:DWFKPDQ��1RYHO ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
/HH��+DUSHU 7R�.LOO�$�0RFNLQJELUG ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
/HH��3UHVWRQ ����%RRN�6HULHV�%HJLQQHU�(QJOLVK�&RQYHUVDWLRQ �������������� 

�������������� 
���� ���� ������� 

/HH��3UHVWRQ &RQYHUVDWLRQ�(QJOLVK�IRU�6SDQLVK�6SHDNHUV�/HVVRQ����� ���� ���� ������� 
/
 (QJOH��0DGHOLQH $�6ZLIWO\�7LOWLQJ�3ODQHW ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
/
 (QJOH��0DGHOLQH $�:ULQNOH�LQ�7LPH �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
/HYLQH��1RDK 'KDUPD�3XQ[ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
/HYLWW��6WHYHQ�'� )UHDNRQRPLFV�5RJXH�(FRQRPRFV �������������� ���� ���� ������� 

116



��������� �$OWHUQDWLYH�(GXFDWLRQ�%RRN�/LVW 

/HZLV��&�6� 7KH�/LRQ��7KH�:LWFK��DQG�WKH�:DUGUREH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
/HZLV��-RKQ 0DUFK�%RRN�7ZR ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
/HZLV��-RKQ 0DUFK�%RRN�7KUHH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
/HZLV��-RKQ 0DUFK� �7ULORJ\�6OLSFDVH�6HW� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
/LQGEHUJ��&KDUOHV 6SLULW�RI�6W��/RXLV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
/LSV\WH��5REHUW 7KH�&RQWHQGHU ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
/LVOH��-DQHW�7D\ORU 7KH�$UW�RI�.HHSLQJ�&RRO �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
/RQGRQ��-DFN :KLWH�)DQJ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
/RQGRQ��-DFN &DOO�RI�WKH�:LOG�DQG�:KLWH�)DQJ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
/RUG��%HWWH ,Q�WKH�<HDU�RI�WKH�%RDU�DQG�-DFNLH�5RELQVRQ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
/RZU\��/RLV 1XPEHU�RI�WKH�6WDUV ���������� �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
/RZU\��/RLV 7KH�*LYHU ���������� �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
0DJRRQ��.HNOD &DPR�*LUO �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
0DK��$GHOLQH�<HQ )DOOLQJ�/HDYHV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0DQGHOD��1HOVRQ /RQJ�:DON�WR�)UHHGRP �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0DULDV��-DYLHU /RV�HQDPRUDPLHQWRV��6SDQLVK �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0DUNDQGD\D��.DPDOD 1HFWDU�LQ�D�6LHYH ���������� ���� ������� 
0DUPRP��/HVOLH 7KH�0DQ�WR�6HQG�5DLQ�&ORXGV ���������; �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0DUVGHQ��-RKQ /HWWHUV�IURP�WKH�,QVLGH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0DUWLQH]��9LFWRU 3DUURW�,Q�WKH�2YHQ��0L�9LGD ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0DUWLQH]��;LXKWH]FDWO :H�5LVH��7KH�(DUWK�*XDUGLDQV� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0DWKLV��6KDURQ�%HOO $�7HDFXS�)XOO�RI�5RVHV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0D]HU��+DUU\ 6QRZ�%RXQG ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0D]HU��1RUPD� 2XW�RI�&RQWURO ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0F$UWKXU��-RKQ 1RWKLQJ�%XW�WKH�7UXWK ���������� �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
0F&DLQ��-RKQ�6���0DUN�6DOWHU :RUWK�WKH�)LJKWLQJ�)RU��$�0HPRLU ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0F&DNN��$OH[DQGHU 7KH�*UHDW�&DNH�0\VWHU\ �������������� 

��������������� 
���� ��� ������� 

0F&DPPRQ��5REHUW� %R\
 V�/LIH ���� ���� ������� 
0F&DXJKUHDQ��*HUDOGLQJ &\UDQR ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0F&RXUW��)UDQN $QJHOD
 V�$VKHV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0F:KLUWHU��1RUULV %RRN�RI�:RUOG�5HFRUGV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0HLHU�6FKOHVLQJHU��$UWKXU 7KLUWHHQ�'D\V��$�0HPRLU�RI�WKH�&XEDQ�0LVVOH�&ULVLV ��������������� ���� ������� 
0HQFKX��5LJREHUWD ,�5LJREHUWD�0HQFKX ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0HQGR]D��-HDQ $Q�,QGLJHQRXV�3RHSOH�+LVWRU\�RI�WKH�86�IRU�<RXQJ�3HRSOH �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0HSKDP��0LFKDHO 6XGRNX ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0HSKDP��0LFKDHO 6XGRNX��-XPER�&KDOOHQJH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0H\HU��6WHSKDQLH 7ZLOLJKW ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0LNDHOVHQ��%HQ 7RXFKLQJ�6SLULW�%HDU� ���������� �������������� ���� ������� 
0LOOHU��$UWKXU 7KH�+HDUW�LV�D�/RQHO\�2QH ���� ������� 
0RIIDWW��%HWW\�&ODUH�'DQ�0LOOPDQ (YHU\GD\�(QOLJKWHQPHQW ��������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0RQN��6XH 7KH�6HFUHW�/LIH�RI�%HHV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0RQWDQD��-RH -RH�0RQWDQD ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0RRQH\��%HO 9RLFHV�RI�6LOHQFH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0RRUH��:HV 7KH�2WKHU�:HV�0RRUH��2QH�1DPH��7ZR�)DWHV �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0RUULVRQ��/LOOLDQ 7KH�6SHDUWKURZHU ���� ������� 
0RUULVRQ��7RQL %HORYHG ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0RUULVRQ��7RQL -D]] ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0RUULVRQ��7RQL 6XOD ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0RUVH��-HQQLIHU 6FKRODVWLF�%RRN�RI�:RUOG�5HFRUGV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0XNKHUMHH��%KDUDWL -DVPLQH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 

117



�














��������� �$OWHUQDWLYH�(GXFDWLRQ�%RRN�/LVW 

0XOFURQH��3DWULFLD *(' ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0XQR]��3DP (VSHUDQ]D�5LVLQJ ���������; �������������� 

�������������� 
�������������� 

��������� �������������� 

���� ���� ������� 
0XQR]�5\DQ��3DP (O�(O�VRQDGRU�6SDQLVK�(GLWLRQ ���� ��� ������� 
0XQR]�5\DQ��3DP (VSHUDQ]D�UHQDFH� �VSDQLVK�(GLWLRQ� ���� ���� ������� 
0XQR]��3DP 5LGLQJ�)UHHGRP ���� ���� ������� 
0\HUV��(GZDUG &OLPE�RU�'LH ���������; �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0\HUV��:DOWHU�'HDQ ���WK�6WUHHW ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0\HUV��:DOWHU�'HDQ )DOOHQ�$QJHOV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0\HUV��:DOWHU�'HDQ +RRSV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0\HUV��:DOWHU�'HDQ 0H��0RS�DQG�WKH�0RRQGDQFH�.LG ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0\HUV��:DOWHU�'HDQ 6ODP�� �3RLQW�6LJQDWXUH� ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0\HUV��:DOWHU�'HDQ 6RPHZKHUH�LQ�WKH�'DUNQHVV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
0\HUV��:DOWHU�'HDQ 7KH�2XWVLGH�6KRW ����������������� ���� ��� ������� 
1DUD\DQ��5�.� 2OG�0DQ�RI�WKH�7HPSOH ���� ������� 
1D\ORU��*ORULD :RPHQ�RI�%UHZVWHU�3ODFH ���������; �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
1D\ORU��3K\OOLV�5H\QROGV 6DQ�6SHOO ���� ������� 
1D]DULR��6RQLD (QULTXH�-RXUQH\�7KH�<RXQJ�$GXOW�$GDSWDWLRQ �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
1HDOH�+XUVWRQ��=RUD 7KHLU�(\HV�:HUH�:DWFKLQJ�*RG ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
1HOVRQ��3HWH /HIW�IRU�'HDG��$�<RXQJ�0DQ
 V�6HDUFK�IRU�-XVWLFH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
1HUXGD��3DEOR )LYH�'HFDGHV�3RHPV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
1HVELW��( 6WRU\�RI�WKH�7UHDVXUH�6HHNHUV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
1HXIHOG��-RKQ /LVD��%ULJKW�DQG�'DUN ���������� �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
1H]��&KHVWHU &RGH�7DONHU��7KH�)LUVW�DQG�2QO\�0HPRLU�%\�WKH�1DYDMR�&RGH�7DONHU� ����������� �������������� 
1JDQ :LOO�RI�+HDYHQ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
1RDK��7UHYRU %RUQ�$�&ULPH �������������� ���� ������� 
1RUWRQ��-XVWHU 7KH�3KDQWRP�7ROOERRWK ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
1RXZHQ�+HQUL�-�0� 5HDFKLQJ�2XW %��+7-7�7: ���� ���� ������� 
1\H��1DRPL�6KLKDE 6KRXOGHUV ���� ������� 
1\H��1DRPL�6KLKDE 7KH�6DOWLQJ�2FHDQ������3RHPV�E\�<RXQJ�3RHWV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
1\H��1DRPL�6KLKDE 7KH�6DPH�6N\ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
2EDPD��%DUDFN $XGDFLW\�RI�+RSH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
2EDPD��%DUDFN 'UHDPV�IURP�P\�)DWKHU ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
2 %LUHQ��7LP 7KH�7KLQJV�7KH\�&DUULHG��$�:RUN�RI�)LFWLRQ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
2 %ULHQ��5REHUW�&� 0UV��)ULVE\�DQG�WKH�5DWV�RI�1,0+ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
2 %ULHQ��5REHUW�&� 6LOYHU�&URZQ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
2 'HOO��6FRWW ,VODQG�RI�WKH�%OXH�'ROSKLQV ���������� �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
2 'HOO��6FRWW 6LQJ�'RZQ�WKH�0RRQ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
2 *UDG\��6FRWW %DVKHU�)LYH�7ZR ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
2UWL]�&RIHU��-XGLWK $Q�,VODQG�/LNH�<RX ���������; �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
2UWL]��3DXO $Q�$IULFDQ�$PHULFDQ��DQG�/DWLQ[�+LVW�RI�WKH�86 �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
2UZHOO��*HRUJH ���� ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
2UZHOO��*HRUJH $QLPDO�)DUP ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
2[IRUG�3UHVV 2I[IRUG�'LFWLRQDU\�7KHVDXUDV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
2[IRUG�3UHVV 2[IRUG�'LFWLRQDU\ ���������; �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3DODFLR��5��-� /D�/HFFLRQ�GH�$XJXVW��:RQGHU� �6SDQLVK�(GLWLRQ� �������������� 

�������������� 
�������������� 

���� ���� ������� 
3DODFLR��5��-� :RQGHU ���� ��� ������� 
3DUNHU�5KRGHV��-HZH 1LQWK�:DUG ���� ���� ������� 
3DUHQWL��0LFKDHO 'LUW\�7UXWKV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3DUVRQV��-D\QH 7KH�:D\�6FLHQFH�:RUNV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3DWHUVRQ��.DWKHULQH %ULGJH�WR�7HUDELWKLD ���������� ������������� ���� ���� ������� 

118



	

��������� �$OWHUQDWLYH�(GXFDWLRQ�%RRN�/LVW 

3DWHUVRQ��.DWKHULQH &RPH�6LQJ��-LPP\�-R ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3DWHUVRQ��.DWKHULQH -DFRE�+DYH�,�/RYHG ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3DWHUVRQ��.DWKHULQH /\GGLH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3DWHUVRQ��.DWKHULQH 2I�1LJKWLQJDOHV�7KDW�:HHS ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3DWHUVRQ��.DWKHULQH 6LJQ�RI�WKH�&KU\VDQWKHPXP ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3DWQHDXGH��'DYLG )UDPHG�LQ�)LUH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3DWRQ��$ODQ &U\��WKH�%HORYHG�&RXQWU\ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3DWWHUVRQ��-DPHV $QJHO�([SHULPHQW ���������; �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3DWWHUVRQ��-DPHV 1<3'�5HG ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3DWWHUVRQ��-DPHV &URVV�&RXQWU\ ���������; �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3DWWHUVRQ��-DPHV -DFN� �-LOO 
3DWWLOOR�%HDOV��0HOED :DUULRUV�'RQW�&U\��$�6HDULQJ�0HPRLU �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
3DXOVHQ��*DU\ $OLGD
 V�6RQJ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3DXOVHQ��*DU\ %ULDQ
 V�5HWXUQ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3DXOVHQ��*DU\ %ULDQ
 V�:LQWHU ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3DXOVHQ��*DU\ &DQ\RQV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3DXOVHQ��*DU\ 'RJVRQJ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3DXOVHQ��*DU\ +DWFKHW ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3DXOVHQ��*DU\ 1LJKWMRKQ ���������� �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
3DXOVHQ��*DU\ 3RSFRUQ�'D\V�DQG�%XWWHUPLON�1LJKWV ���������� �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
3DXOVHQ��*DU\ 6DUQ\ ���������� �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
3DXOVHQ��*DU\ 6ROGLHU
 V�+HDUW ���������� ������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3DXOVHQ��*DU\ 7KH�%R\�:KR�2ZQHG�WKH�6FKRRO ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3DXOVHQ��*DU\ 7KH�&RRNFDPS ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3DXOVHQ��*DU\ 7KH�&URVVLQJ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3DXOVHQ��*DU\ 7KH�5LIOH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3DXOVHQ��*DU\ 7KH�5LYHU ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3DXOVHQ��*DU\ 7KH�7HQW ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3DXOVHQ��*DU\ 7KH�:LQWHU�5RRP ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3DXOVHQ��*DU\ 9R\DJH�RI�WKH�)URJ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3DXOVHQ��*DU\ :RRGVRQJ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3HFN��5REHUW $�'D\�1R�3LJV�:RXOG�'LH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3HO]HU��'DYH $�&KLOG�&DOOHG�,W ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3HO]HU��'DYH $�0DQ�1DPHG�'DYH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3UHMHDQ��+HOHQ 'HDG�0DQ�:DONLQJ �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3KDP��$QGUHZ &DWILVK�DQG�0DQGDOD��$�7ZR�:KHHOHG�9R\DJH� ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3KLOEULFN��:�5� )UHDN�7KH�0LJKW\ ���������� �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
3KLOEULFN��:�5� =DQH�DQG�WKH�+XUULFDQH��$�6WRU\�RI�.DWULQD ��������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3KLOEULFN��:�5� 7KH�)LUH�3RQ\ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3LFRXOW��-RGL +RXVH�5XOHV �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3LHUF\��0DUJH 7R�%H�RI�8VH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3LSKHU��0DU\ 5HYLYLQJ�2SKHOLD ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3RH��(GJDU�$OOHQ ���%HVW�6WRULHV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3RWRN��&KDLP 7KH�&KRVHQ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3RWRN��&KDLP =HEUD�DQG�2WKHU�6WRULHV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3UDVDG��&KDQGUD 0L[HG ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3UHOXWVN\��-DFN 6RPHWKLQJ�%LJ�+DV�%HHQ�+HUH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3UHOXWVN\��-DFN 7KH�1HZ�.LG�RQ�WKH�%ORFN ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3UHOXWVN\��-DFN 7KH�3L]]D�WKH�6L]H�RI�WKH�6XQ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
3ULQFHWRQ�5HYLHZ &UDFNLQJ�WKH�*(' ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 

119



��������� �$OWHUQDWLYH�(GXFDWLRQ�%RRN�/LVW 

3XOOPDQ��3KLOLS 7KH�*ROGHQ�&RPSDVV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
4XDOH\��0DUVKD 7KLQ�,FH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
4XLQRQH]��(UQHVWR %RGHJD�'UHDPV %��(����. ���� ���� ������� 
5DSS��$GDP 7KH�%XIIDOR�7UHH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
5DQG��$\Q $WODV�6KUXJJHG ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
5DQNLQH��&DOXGLD &LWL]HQ ���������� �������������� ���� � ������� 
5DZOLQJV��0DUMRULH�.LQQDQ 7KH�<HDUOLQJ ���������� �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
5DZOV��:LOVRQ :KHUH�WKH�5HG�)HUQ�*URZV ���������� �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
5HD��-HQQLIHU 3HUSHWXD
 V�-RXUQH\��)DLWK��*HQGHU��DQG�3RZHU �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
5HDJDQ��5RQDOG $Q�$PHULFDQ�/LIH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
5HPDUTXH��(ULFK�0DULD $OO�4XLHW�RQ�WKH�:HVWHUQ�)URQW ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
5H\QROGV��-DVRQ $OO�$PHULFDQ�%R\V �������������� 

�������������� 
�������������� 
�������������� 
�������������� 

���� ���� ������� 
5H\QROGV��-DVRQ /RRN�%RWK�:D\V�$�7DOH�7ROG�LQ����%ORFNV ���� ���� ������� 
5H\QROGV��-DVRQ /RQJ�:D\�'RZQ ���� ���� ������� 
5H\QROGV��-DVRQ :KHQ�,�ZDV�WKH�*UHDWHVW ���� ���� ������� 
5H\QROGV��-DVRQ *KRVW ���� ��� ������� 
5H\QROGV��3K\OOLV 6KLORK ���������� �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
5KDWLJDQ��-RH &RRO�&HPLVWU\�&RQFRFWLRQV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
5LFH��$QQH ,QWHUYLHZ�ZLWK�D�9DPSLUH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
5LFK��/\QGD *('�/DQJXDJH�$UWV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
5LFKWHU��+DQV�3HWHU )UHGULFK ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
5LGH��6DOO\ 6LQJOH�5RRP��(DUWK�9LHZ ���� ������� 
5LQDOGL��$QQ 7KH�&RIILQ�4XLOW ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
5LRUGDQ��5LFN 0DJQXV�&KDVH�DQG�WKH�*RGV�RI�$VJDUG�6HW �������������� 

�������������� 
�������������� 
�������������� 

���� ���� ������� 
5LRUGDQ��5LFN 3HUF\�-DFNVRQ�DQG�WKH�2O\PSLDQV�VHW���ERRNV ���� ���� ������� 
5LRUGDQ��5LFN 3HUF\�-DFNVRQ�DQG�WKH�2O\PSLDQV�VHW���ERRNV�VSDQLVK�YHUVLRQ ���� ���� ������� 
5LRV��9LFWRU 6WUHHW�/LIH��3RYHUW\��*DQJV��DQG�3K�'� ���� ���� ������� 
5RFNRZLW]��0XUUD\ %DUURQ
 V�*('�������� ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
5RGULJXH]��$UW (DVW�6LGH�'UHDPV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
5RGULJXH]��*DU\ 7KH�3UHJQDQF\�3URMHFW��$�0HPRLU ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
5RX[��0DGHOLQH (VFDSH�IURP�$V\OXP �������������� 

�������������� 
���� ���� ������� 

5RX[��0DGHOLQH 7KH�$V\OXP�1RYHOODV�7KH�6FDUOHW��7KH�%RQH�$UWLVW��7KH�:DUGHQ ���� ���� ������� 
5RZOLQJ��-�.� +DUU\�3RWWHU�DQG�WKH�&KDPEHU�RI�6HFUHWV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
5RZOLQJ��-�.� +DUU\�3RWWHU�DQG�WKH�+DOI�%ORRG�3ULQFH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
5RZOLQJ��-�.� +DUU\�3RWWHU�DQG�WKH�6RUFHUHUV
 �6WRQH ���������; �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
5RZOLQJ��-�.� +DUU\�3RWWHU�\�HO�SULVLRQHUR�GH�$]NDEDQ �������������� 

��������������� 
�������������� 

���� ���� ������� 
5RZOLQJ��-�.� +DUU\�3RWWHU�\�OD�FDPDUD�VHFUHWD� �6SDQLVK�(GLWLRQ� ���� ���� ������� 
5XL]��'RQ�0LJXHO 7KH�)RXU�$JUHHPHQWV��$�3UDFWLDO�*XLGH�WR�3HUVRQDO�)UHHGRP ���� ���� ������� 
5R\��$UXQGKDWL 7KH�*RG�RI�6PDOO�7KLQJV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
5\DQ��0DU\�(OL]DEHWK $OLDV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
5\DQ��3DP�0XQR] (VSHUDQ]D�5LVLQJ ���������; �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
5\DQ��3DP�0XQR] %HFRPLQJ�1DRPL�/HRQ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
5\DQ��3DP�0XQR] 5LGLQJ�)UHHGRP ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6DFKDU��/RXLV +ROHV ���������; �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6DFNV��2OLYHU 7KH�0DQ�:KR�0LVWRRN�+LV�:LIH�)RU�$�+DW �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6DOLQJHU��-�'� )UDQQ\�DQG�=RRH\ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6DOLQJHU��-�'� 1LQH�6WRULHV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6DOLQJHU��-�'� 7KH�&DWFKHU�LQ�WKH�5\H ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6DOLVEXU\��*UDKDP %OXH�6NLQ�RI�WKH�6HD ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6DOLVEXU\��*UDKDP 8QGHU�WKH�%ORRG�5HG�6XQ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 

120



	

	

��������� �$OWHUQDWLYH�(GXFDWLRQ�%RRN�/LVW 

6DO]PDQ��0DUN 7UXH�1RWHERRNV ����������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6DQGEXUJ��&DUO $�/LQFROQ�3UHIDFH ���� ������� 
6DQGEXUJ��&DUO &KLFDJR�3RHPV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6DQGEXUJ��&DUO ,�$P�WKH�3HRSOH��7KH�0RE ���� ������� 
6DWUDSL��0DUMDQH 3HUVHSROLV�&RPSOHWH �������������� 

�������������� 
���� ���� ������� 

6FKDHIHU��-DFN 6KDQH ���� ���� ������� 
6FKODLIHU��5RJHU 2GGV�5
 ��2GGV�RQ�(YHU\WKLQJ�%RRN ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6FKZDUW]��$OYLQ 6FDU\�6WRULHV ���������; �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6HEHVW\HQ��4XLGD 2XW�RI�1RZKHUH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6HEHVW\HQ��4XLGD 7KH�*LUO�LQ�WKH�%R[ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6HEROG��$OLFH /RYHO\�%RQHV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6KDNHVSHDUH��:LOOLDP +DPOHW ���������; �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6KDNHVSHDUH��:LOOLDP +DPOHW� �)ROJHU�/LEUDU\�6KDNHVSHDUH� ���������; �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6KDNHVSHDUH��:LOOLDP +HQU\�9 ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6KDNHVSHDUH��:LOOLDP -XOLXV�&DHVDU ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6KDNHVSHDUH��:LOOLDP 0DFEHWK ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6KDNHVSHDUH��:LOOLDP 2WKHOOR ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6KDNHVSHDUH��:LOOLDP 2WKHOOR� �1HZ�)ROJHU�/LEUDU\� %��(6��(�: ���� ���� ������� 
6KDNHVSHDUH��:LOOLDP 5RPHR� �-XOLHW ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6KDNHVSHDUH��:LOOLDP 7KH�7DPLQJ�RI�WKH�6KUHZ ���������; �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6KDNHVSHDUH��:LOOLDP 7LWXV�$QGURQLFXV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6KDNXU��6DQ\ND 0RQVWHU��7KH�$XWRELRJURSK\�RI�DQ�/�$��*DQJ�0HPEHU �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6KDSKDUG��5REHUW� �7KRPDV��-DPHV 6XGGHQ�)LFWLRQ��$PHULFDQ�6KRUW�6KRUW�6WRULHV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6KHOOH\��0DU\ )UDQNHQVWHLQ �������������� 

�������������� 
�������������� 

���� ���� ������� 
6KHOOH\��0DU\ )UDQNHQVWHLQ��7KH�*UDSKLF�1RYHO ���� ���� ������� 
6KHUPDQ��$OH[LH )OLJKW��$�1RYHO ���� ���� ������� 
6KXWH��1HYLO 2Q�WKH�%HDFK ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6KXVWHUPDQ��1HDO &KDOOHQJHU�'HHS �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6LPRQ��6H\PRXU 6QDNHV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6LQFODLU��8SWRQ 7KH�-XQJOH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6LQJHU��,VDDF�%DVKHYLV 7KH�:DVKHUZRPDQ ���� ������� 
6LWRPHU��$ODQ�/DZUHQFH &DJHG�:DUULRU �������������� 

�������������� 
���� ���� ������� 

6LWRPHU��$ODQ�/DZUHQFH 7KH�6HFUHW�6WRU\�RI�6RQLD�5RGULJXH] ���� ���� ������� 
6NLQQHU��%�)�� :DOGHQ�7ZR ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6ODWHU��'DVKND 7KH����%XV��$�7UXH�6WRU\�RI�7ZR�7HHQDJHUV� 	�WKH�&ULPH�&KDQJHG� �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
6PLWK��$OH[DQGHU�0F&DOO 1XPEHU���/DGLHV�'HWHFWLYH�$JHQF\ ���������; �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6ROLV��2FWDYLR 5HWDEOHV��6WRULHV�IURP�D�/LIH�/LYHG�$ORQJ�WKH�%RUGHU �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6PLWK��=DGLH 2Q�%HDXW\ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6RO]KHQLWV\Q��$OH[DQGHU 2QH�'D\�LQ�WKH�/LIH�RI�,YDQ�'HQLVRYLFK ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6RSKRFOHV $QWLJRQH ���������; �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6RWR��*DU\ 7KH�$IWHUOLIH ���������� ���� ������� 
6RWR��*DU\ %XULHG�2QLRQV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6RWR��*DU\ -HVVH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6RWR��*DU\ /LYLQJ�8S�WKH�6WUHHW ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6RWR��*DU\ /RFDO�1HZV ���������; �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6SDUNV��&KULVWLQH 7KH�(OHSKDQW�0DQ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6SHDUH��(OL]DEHWK�*HRUJH 7KH�:LWFK�RI�%ODFNELUG�3RQG ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6SLQHOOL��-HUU\ /RVHU ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6SLQHOOL��-HUU\ 0DQLDF�0DJHH ���������� �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
6SLQHOOL��-HUU\ 6WDUJLUO ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 

121



	

��������� �$OWHUQDWLYH�(GXFDWLRQ�%RRN�/LVW 

6SLQHOOL��-HUU\ :ULQJHU ���������� �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
6WHLQEHFN��-RKQ $FWV�RI�.LQJ�$UWKXU�DQG�+LV�1REOH�.QLJKWV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6WHLQEHFN��-RKQ &DQQHU\�5RZ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6WHLQEHFN��-RKQ &UDVK ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6WHLQEHFN��-RKQ 2I�0LFH�DQG�0HQ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6WHLQEHFN��-RKQ 7KH�*UDSHV�RI�:UDWK�&HQWHQQLDO�(GLWLRQ �������������� ���� ������� 
6WHLQEHFN��-RKQ 7KH�*UDSHV�RI�:UDWK ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6WHLQEHFN��-RKQ 7KH�/RQJ�9DOOH\ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6WHLQEHFN��-RKQ 7KH�3HDUO ���������; �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6WHLQEHFN��-RKQ 7KH�5HG�3RQ\ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6WHYHQVRQ��%U\DQ -XVW�0HUF\� �$GDSWHG�IRU�<RXQJ�$GXOWV� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6WHYHQVRQ��5REHUW�/RXLV 'U��-HN\OO� �0U��+\GH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6WHYHQVRQ��5REHUW�/RXLV .LGQDSSHG ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6WHYHQVRQ��5REHUW�/RXLV 7UHDVXUH�,VODQG ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6WHZDUW��0HOLVVD 1DWLRQDO�*HRJUDSKLF�5HDGHUV��/DV�6HUSLHQWHV� �6SDQLVK�(GLWLRQ� �������������� 

��������������� 
���� ���� ������� 

6WRQH��1LF 'HDU�0DUWLQ ���� ���� ������� 
6WRSSDUG��7RP 5RVHQFUDQW]�DQG�*XLOGHQVWHUQ�$UH�'HDG ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6WUDVVHU��7RGG 7KH�:DYH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6WULQJHU��/HH 6OHHSDZD\�6FKRRO ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6XOOLYDQ��*HRUJH ,Q�7KHLU�2ZQ�:RUGV��+HOHQ�.HOOHU ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6ZDUWKRXW��*OHQGRQ %OHVV�WKH�%HDVWV�DQG�&KLOGUHQ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6ZHHQH\��-R\FH )UHH�)DOO ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6\PRQV��0LWFKHOO 7KLV�%RRN�RI�3HUIHFWO\�8VHOHVV�,QIRUPDWLRQ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
7DQ��$P\ 7KH�-R\�/XFN�&OXE ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
7DQDND��6KHOO\ 2QERDUG�WKH�7LWDQLF ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
7D\ORU��0LOGUHG�'� /HW�WKH�&LUFOH�%H�8QEURNHQ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
7D\ORU��0LOGUHG�'� 0LVVLVVLSSL�%ULGJH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
7D\ORU��0LOGUHG�'� 5ROO�RI�7KXQGHU��+HDU�0\�&U\ ���������� �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
7D\ORU��7KHRGRUH 7KH�&D\ ���������; �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
7HPSOH��)UDQFHV *UDE�+DQGV�DQG�5XQ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
7HPSOH��)UDQFHV 7DVWH�RI�6DOW ���������� �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
7KRPDV��$QJLH 7KH�+DWH�8�*LYH �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
7KRPDV��-R\FH�&DURO $�*DWKHULQJ�RI�)ORZHUV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
7KRPVRQ��0HOLVVD .HQQD�)RUG�DQG�WKH�'HFRQG�*UDGH�0L[�XS �������������� 

�������������� 
�������������� 

���� ��� ������� 
7KRPVRQ��0HOLVVD .HQQD�)RUG�DQG�WKH�6HFUHW�-RXUQDO�0L[�XS ���� ��� ������� 
7KRPVRQ��0HOLVVD .HQQD�)RUG�DQG�WKH�ILHOG�WULS�0L[�XS ���� ��� ������� 
7RODQ��6WHSKDQLH 6XUYLYLQJ�WKH�$SSOHZKLWHV ���������� ���� ������� 
7RONLHQ��-�5�5� 7KH�+REELW ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
7RPH\��,QJULG 1RERG\�(OVH�+DV�WR�.QRZ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
7RPOLQVRQ��&DURO�$QQ ,QWHJUDWLQJ�'LIIHUHQWLDWHG�,QVW�� 	�8QGHUVWDQGLQJ�E\�'HVLJQ �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
7UHPEDWK��'RQ 7KH�7XHVGD\�&DIp ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
7UXPDQ��7HUU\ 6WXFN�LQ�1HXWUDO ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
7UXPER��'DOWRQ -RKQQ\�*RW�+LV�*XQ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
7ZDLQ��0DUN $GYHQWXUHV�RI�+XFNOHEHUU\�)LQQ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
7ZDLQ��0DUN $GYHQWXUHV�RI�7RP�6DZ\HU ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
7ZDLQ��0DUN 7KH�&RQQHFWLFXW�<DQNHH�LQ�.LQJ�$UWKXU
 V�&RXUW ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
7ZDLQ��0DUN 7KH�,QYDOLG
 V�6WRU\ ���� ������� 
8SFKXUFK��&DUO &RQYLFWHG�LQ�WKH�:RPE ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
8UUHD��/XLV�$OEHUWR ,QWR�WKH�%HDXWLIXO�1RUWK ��������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
8ULV��/HRQ ([RGXV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 

122









��������� �$OWHUQDWLYH�(GXFDWLRQ�%RRN�/LVW 

9DOODGDUHV��$UPDQGR $JDLQVW�$OO�+RSH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
9DUJDV��-RVH�$QWRQLR 'HDU�$PHULFD��1RWHV�RI�DQ�8QGRFXPHQWHG�&LWL]HQ �������������� 

�������������� 
���� ���� ������� 

9HUVWHJHQ��/RUL $QFLHQW�+LVWRU\�%DVHG�:ULWLQJ�/HVVRQV ���� ���� ������� 
9HUQ��-XOHV �������OHDJXHV�8QGHU�WKH�6HD ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
9HUQ��-XOHV -RXUQH\�WR�WKH�&HQWHU�RI�WKH�(DUWK ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
9HUQ��-XOHV 0\VWHULRXV�,VODQG ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
9LOODUHDO��-RVH�$QWRQLR 3RFKR ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
9LOODVHQRU��9LFWRU %XUUR�*HQLXV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
9LOODVHQRU��9LFWRU 5DLQ�RI�*ROG ����������; �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
9RLJW��&\QWKLD 'LFH\
 V�6RQJ ���������� ������������ ���� ���� ������� 
9ROSRQL��3DXO 5RRIWRS ������������������ ���� ���� ������� 
9RQQHJXW��.XUW &DW V�&UDGOH ���������; �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
9RQQHJXW��.XUW 0RWKHU�1LJKW ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
9RQQHJXW��.XUW 3OD\HU�3LDQR ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
9RQQHJXW��.XUW :HOFRPH�WR�WKH�0RQNH\�+RXVH��&ROOHFWLRQ�RI�VKRUW�VWRULHV �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
9RQQHJXW��.XUW 6ODXJKWHUKRXVH�)LYH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
9RQ=LHJHVDU��&HFLO\ 1RWKLQJ�&DQ�.HHS�8V�7RJHWKHU ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
:DONHU��$OLFH 7KH�&RORU�3XUSOH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
:DONHU��$OLFH 7KH�)ORZHUV ���� ������� 
:DOOLV��9HOPD 7ZR�2OG�:RPHQ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
:DOVK��-LOO�3DWRQ 7KH�*UHHQ�%RRN ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
:DOWHU��0LOGUHG�3LWWV -XVWLQ�DQG�WKH�%HVW�%LVFXLWV�LQ�WKH�ZRUOG ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
:DWVRQ��/DUU\ -XVWLFH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
:DWVRQ��/DUU\ 0RQWDQD����� ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
:HOOV��+�*�� 7LPH�0DFKLQH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
:HOOV��+�*�� :DU�RQ�WKH�:RUOGV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
:KHODQ��*ORULD *RRGE\H��9LHWQDP �������������� ��� ������� 
:KLWH��(�%� &KDUORWWH
 V�:HEE �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
:KLWPDQ��:DOW ,�+HDU�$PHULFD�6LQJLQJ ���������; �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
:K\EURZ��,DQ /RELWR�$SUHQGH�D�6HU�PDOR�6SDQLVK�(GLWLRQ ��������������� ���� ��� ������� 
:LHVHO��(OLH 'D\ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
:LHVHO��(OLH 1LJKW�2SUDK��� ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
:LOGH��2VFDU 7KH�3LFWXUH�RI�'RULDQ�*UH\ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
:LOGH��2VFDU 7KH�3LFWXUH�RI�'RULDQ�*UH\��$�*UDSKLF�1RYHO �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
:LOGHU��7KRUQWRQ 2XU�7RZQ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
:LOOLDPV�*DUFLD��5LWD /LNH�6LVWHUV�2Q�WKH�+RPHIURQW ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
:LOOLDPV�*DUFLD��5LWD 2QH�&UD]\�6XPPHU �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
:LOVRQ��$XJXVW 7KH�3LDQR�/HVVRQ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
:LOVRQ��5DZOV :KHUH�WKH�5HG�)HUQ�*URZV ���������� �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
:ROI��9LUJLQLD $�5RRP�RI�2QH
 V�2ZQ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
:ROIH��7RP 7KH�5LJKW�6WXII ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
:ROII��7RELDV 7KLV�%R\
 V�/LIH��$�0HPRLU ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
:ROII��9LUJLQLD�(XZHU 0DNH�/HPRQGDGH ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
:ROIJDQJ�9RQ�*RHWKH��-RKDQQ )DXVW�LQ�3ODLQ�DQG�6LPSOH�(QJOLVK ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
:RRGHQ��-RKQ &RDFK�:RRGHQ V�3\UDPLG�RI�6XFFHVV �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
:RRGVRQ��-DFTXHOLQH +XVK ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
:RRGVRQ��-DFTXHOLQH ,I�<RX�&RPH�6RIWO\ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
:RRGVRQ��-DFTXHOLQH 0LUDFOH
 V�%R\V ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
:RRGVRQ��-DFTXHOLQH $IWHU�7XSDF�DQG�'�)RVWHU ��������������� 

�������������� 
���� ���� ������� 

:RRGVRQ��-DFTXHOLQH +DUERU�0H ���� ��� ������� 

123



��������� �$OWHUQDWLYH�(GXFDWLRQ�%RRN�/LVW 

:RRGVRQ��-DFTXHOLQH )HDWKHUV �������������� ���� ��� ������� 
:RUOG�$OPDQDF :RUOG�$OPDQDF ���� ���� ������� 
:ULJKW��.HQQHWK 0DFKX�3LFFKX��$�&LYLO�(QJLQHHULQJ�0DUYHO ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
:ULJKW��5LFKDUG %ODFN�%R\ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
<HGLQ��-DQH 9LVLRQV��%DVLF�/DQJXDJH�DQG�/LWHUDF\ ���������� ������������� ���� ���� ������� 
<HQ�0DK��$GHOLQH )DOOLQJ�/HDYHV��8QZDQWHG�&KLQHVH�'DXJKWHU �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
<HS��/DXUHQFH &KLOG�RI�WKH�2ZO ���������; ���� ������� 
<HS��/DXUHQFH 'UDJRQZLQJV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
<RRQ��1LFROD 7KH�6XQ�LV�DOVR�D�6WDU �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
<RVKLPRWR��%DQDQD .LWFKHQ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
<RXQJ��:P�3DXO 7KH�6KDFN ���������; �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
<RXVDI]DL��0DODOD ,�$P�0DODOD �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
=LQGHO��3DXO 0\�'DUOLQJ��0\�+DPEXUJHU ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
=LQGHO��3DXO 3LJPDQ�DQG�0H ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
=LQGHO��3DXO 7KH�(IIHFW�RI�*DPPD�5D\V�RQ�0DQ�LQ�WKH�0RRQ�0DULJROGV ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
=LQGHO��3DXO 7KH�3LJPDQ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
=LQGHO��3DXO 7KH�3LJPDQ
 V�/HJDF\ ���������� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
=LQQ��+RZDUG $�<RXQJ�3HRSOH
 V�+LVWRU\�RI�WKH�86�&ROXPEXV�WR�WKH�:RUOG�RQ�7HUURU �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
=XVDN��0DUNXV 7KH�%RRN�7KLHI �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
8QNQRZQ 6FLHQFH�RI�$ZDNHQLQJ��9ROXPH��� �%��)��,=*$ ���� ���� ������� 
3RVLWLYH�1RWHERRN 1RWHERRN�,I�\RX�GRQ¶W�EXLOG�\RXU�'UHDP� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
)UHH�6SLULW�3XEOLVKLQJ :KDW�GR�<RX�5HDOO\�:DQW� �*XLGH�IRU�7HHQV� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 
6RXWKHUQ�3RYHUW\�/DZ�&HQWHU $�7LPH�IRU�-XVWLFH 

9LYD�/D�&DXVD��'9' %��*:&-:�4 ���� ���� ������� 
6HOPD���'9' %��10)�6(. ���� ���� ������� 

6HVDPH�6WUHHW (OPR�3RWW\�7UDLQLQJ�%RRN�IRU�7RGGOHUV %��)�371�� ���� 3UH�. ������� 
5DQGRP�+RXVH�6SDQLVK (O�6XHQR�,QLFLD�� �������������� ���� ���� ������� 

124



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

AGENDA ITEM 

 
      

  
  

 
 

             

 
 

​      
 

​       
 

​     
 
 
 

 
 

            
            

         
      

              
  

 
 

 
    

 
 
 
 

  ​     ​   

BRaUd MHHWLQJ DaWH: SHSW. 17, 2020 AcWLRQ IQIRUPaWLRQ X 

TO: SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\ BRaUG RI EGXcaWLRQ 

FROM: JRKQ RLcH, SHQLRU DLUHcWRU, AOWHUQaWLYH EGXcaWLRQ 

SUBJECT: PXbOLc HHaULQJ: SXIILcLHQc\ RI IQVWUXcWLRQaO MaWHULaOV 

BACKGROUND 

IQ RUGHU WR bH HOLJLbOH WR UHcHLYH LQVWUXcWLRQaO PaWHULaOV IXQGLQJ, WKH JRYHUQLQJ bRaUG LV 
UHTXLUHG WR KROG a SXbOLc KHaULQJ aQG aGRSW a UHVROXWLRQ VWaWLQJ ZKHWKHU RU QRW HacK 
SXSLO LQ WKH SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\ OIILcH RI EGXcaWLRQ SURJUaPV KaV VXIILcLHQW VWaQGaUGV 
aOLJQHG WH[WbRRNV aQG/RU LQVWUXcWLRQaO PaWHULaOV LQ VSHcLILHG VXbMHcWV SXUVXaQW WR 
EGXcaWLRQ CRGH SHcWLRQ 60605 HW. VHT. TKH BRaUG ZLOO bH aVNHG WR AGRSW RHVROXWLRQ 
#20-26 IRU WKLV SXUSRVH. 

SUPERINTENDENT¶S RECOMMENDATION: 

AGRSW RHVROXWLRQ #20-26. 

BRaUd MHHWLQJ DaWH: SHSW. 17, 2020 AJHQda IWHP: #8.4 
125



 
 

                   
 

    ​    ​      ​  ​    ​   ​      ​    ​      
 ​     ​     ​      

 
  

     
 

​            
                

  
 

​               
                   

            
              
               

              
              

               
 

 
  

  
          

   
 

​                 
            

                 
            
              

 
​           

                 
               

             
             

 
 
 
 
 

 

Santa Cruz County Board of Education ⚈ 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 ⚈ Tel (831) 466-5900 ⚈ 
www.santacruzcoe.org 

MV. JDQH RR\HU BDUU ⚈ MV. RRVH FLOLFHWWL ⚈ MV. SDQGUD NLFKROV ⚈ MV. SXH RRWK ⚈ MU. DDQD SDOHV 
MU. AEHO SDQFKH] ⚈ MU. BUXFH VDQ AOOHQ 

RESOLUTION #19-26 
SUFFICIENCY OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS 2019-2020 

WHEREAS, Educational Code Section 60119 establishes procedures to ensure the availability 
of textbooks and instructional materials in order to be eligible to receive funds for that purpose; 
and 

WHEREAS, the procedures require that the governing board shall hold a public hearing before 
the end of the eighth week from the first day pupils attend school for that year at which the 
governing board shall encourage participation by parents, teachers, and members of the 
community interested in the affairs of the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and 
bargaining unit leaders, shall make a determination, by resolution, as to whether each pupil in 
each school operated by the Santa Cruz County Office of Education has sufficient textbooks, 
instructional materials, or both, in each of the following subjects, as appropriate, that are 
consistent with the content and cycles of curriculum framework adopted by the state board: 

1. Mathematics 
2. Science 
3. History-social science 
4. English/language arts, including the English language development component of an 

adopted program 

WHEREAS, the board shall make a written determination as to whether each pupil enrolled in a 
foreign language or health course has sufficient textbooks or instructional materials consistent 
with the content and cycles of curriculum framework of the state board for those subjects. The 
governing board shall also determine the availability of laboratory science equipment as 
applicable to science laboratory courses offered in grades nine through twelve, inclusive; and 

WHEREAS, ³sufficient textbooks or instructional materials´ means that each pupil, including 
English learners, has a textbook or instructional materials, or both, to use in class and to take 
home. This does not require two sets of textbooks or instructional materials for each pupil. 
Sufficient textbooks or instructional materials does not include photocopied sheets from only a 
portion of a textbook or instructional materials copied to address a shortage. 

126

www.santacruzcoe.org


 
 

       
   

 
   ​            

              
               

               
               

           
 

  ​              
       

   
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
 

 
     

      
 
 
 

 
     
       

 
 
 

 
     

 
 
 

 
    

 
 
 
 

______________________________________ 

_______________________________________ 

_______________________________________ 

_______________________________________ 

Resolution #20-26 Regarding Sufficiency of Instructional Materials 
September 17, 2020 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the governing board of the Santa Cruz County Office of 
Education makes the determination that each pupil of the district has sufficient textbooks and/or 
instructional materials in each of the above noted subjects that are consistent with the content 
cycles of the curriculum framework adopted by the state board, and, further, that each pupil, 
including English language learners, has a textbook or instructional materials, or both, to use in 
class and to take home to complete required homework assignments. 

PASSED DQG ADOPTED by the Santa Cruz County Board of Education on this 17th day of 
September 2020 by the following vote: 

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

Sue Roth, Board President 
Santa Cruz County Board of Education 

Faris M. Sabbah, Secretary 
Santa Cruz County Superintendent of Schools 

Rose Filicetti, Vice President 

Jane Royer Barr, Trustee 

127



 
 

       
   

 
 

 
   

 
 
 

 
   

 
 
 

 
   

 
 
 

 
    

_______________________________________ 

_______________________________________ 

_______________________________________ 

_______________________________________ 

Resolution #20-26 Regarding Sufficiency of Instructional Materials 
September 17, 2020 

Sandra Nichols, Trustee 

Dana Sales, Trustee 

Abel Sanchez, Trustee 

Bruce Van Allen, Trustee 

128



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

AGENDA ITEM 

 
      

  
  

 
 

             

 
 

​      
 

​      
 

​           
 

 
 
 

 
 

            
       
      

      
        

        
      

           
     

 
 

 
        

 
 

  
 

   

  ​     ​   

BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: SHSW. 17, 2020 AcWLRQ IQIRUPaWLRQ X 

TO: SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\ BRaUd Rf EdXcaWLRQ 

FROM: JeQQLfeU I]aQW-GRQ]aOeV, PURMecW DLUecWRU, AOWeUQaWLYe EdXcaWLRQ 

SUBJECT: ASSURYe WKe SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\ OffLce Rf EdXcaWLRQ LeaUQLQJ CRQWLQXLW\ 
POaQ 

BACKGROUND 

TKe BRaUd ZLOO be aVNed WR aSSURYe WKe SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\ OffLce Rf EdXcaWLRQ¶V 
LeaUQLQJ CRQWLQXLW\ POaQ. TKe LeaUQLQJ CRQWLQXLW\ POaQ WePSOaWe PePRULaOL]eV WKe 
SOaQQLQJ SURceVV aOUead\ XQdeUZa\ fRU WKe 2020±21 VcKRRO \eaU aQd LQcOXdeV 
deVcULSWLRQV Rf WKe fROORZLQJ: cRQdXcWLQJ PeaQLQJfXO VWaNeKROdeU eQJaJePeQW; 
PaLQWaLQLQJ WUaQVSaUeQc\; addUeVVLQJ WKe QeedV Rf XQdXSOLcaWed SXSLOV, VWXdeQWV ZLWK 
XQLTXe QeedV, aQd VWXdeQWV e[SeULeQcLQJ KRPeOeVVQeVV; SURYLdLQJ acceVV WR QeceVVaU\ 
deYLceV aQd cRQQecWLYLW\ fRU dLVWaQce OeaUQLQJ; SURYLdLQJ UeVRXUceV aQd VXSSRUWV WR 
addUeVV VWXdeQW aQd VWaff PeQWaO KeaOWK aQd VRcLaO ePRWLRQaO ZeOO-beLQJ; aQd cRQWLQXLQJ 
WR SURYLde VcKRRO PeaOV fRU VWXdeQWV. 

SUPERINTENDENT¶S RECOMMENDATION: 

ASSURYe 2020-2021 LeaUQLQJ CRQWLQXLW\ POaQ fRU WKe SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\ OffLce Rf 
EdXcaWLRQ. 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: 

DeWaLOed KeUeLQ. 

BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: SeSW. 17, 2020 AJHQGa IWHP: #8.5 
129



                 

  

 

    
      

  
 

 
 

                   
                  
                  

                       
                     

                     
                  
    

  
 

                   
                    

                          
                       

                       
                
                        

Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan Template (2020–21) 
The instructions for completing the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan is available at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/documents/lrngcntntyatndncpln-instructions.docx. 

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 
Santa Cruz County Office of Education Jennifer Izant Gonzales 

Project Director 
jizant@santacruzcoe.org 
(831) 466-5739 

General Information 
[A description of the impact the COVID-19 pandemic has had on the LEA and its community.] 

The COVID-19 pandemic greatly impacted our LEA and community with the commencement of county-wide school closures on March 16, 2020. During the early summer our 
COVID-19 numbers were low in Santa Cruz County and we aggressively planned for reopening schools under low, medium, and high restrictions. As the summer progressed and 
COVID-19 numbers increased it was confirmed that all of our programs would begin the year in distance learning. Our programs immediately communicated with all stakeholders 
about the change and planned necessary professional development for our colleagues. Our administration team spent time digesting SB 98 and creating guidance for staff that 
upheld the requirements of the law while not losing what makes our Court and Community programs unique. We work together with our classified and certificated staff to 
continuously revise this living guidance document. As our school year begins we are fine tuning and revising our approach to distance learning alongside our community. In 
addition to the pandemic Santa Cruz County has been severely negatively impacted by the CZU Lightening Fire.Continuing to support the health and wellbeing of our staff, 
students, and community is our immediate priority. 

Stakeholder Engagement 
[A description of the efforts made to solicit stakeholder feedback.] 

We began stakeholder engagement in the spring gathering feedback from students through a survey and parents through multiple means of communication including surveys and 
meetings. For our LCAP, just prior to the COVID-19 pandemic, we held in-person student focus groups across our sites. During the COVID-19 pandemic, weekly site check-ins 
occurred with the administration team and sites to discuss each student and create plans for students who were disengaging. At the beginning of this school year we sent out a 
survey to families and we held parent meetings via zoom to allow the community to share the impact of distance learning and make recommendations. As a team, we reviewed 
the data from stakeholder groups and included those recommendations and concerns in this plan. The draft Learning Continuity Plan will be presented in English and in Spanish 
to our stakeholders and we will make necessary adjustments based upon input. As previously mentioned, the CZU Lightening Fire has significantly impacted our community and it 
is important to mention that the beginning of the school year has been impacted by the fires which forced the evacuation of 64,000 residents and their health and safety is most 
important. 

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Santa Cruz County Office of Education Page 1 of 8 
130

https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/documents/lrngcntntyatndncpln-instructions.docx
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23generalinformation
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23generalinformation
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23stakeholderengagement
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23stakeholderengagement


                 

   

                    
                     

          

  

                     
                        

                   
                 

            

  

                       
            

                       
 

 
  

  
  

 

 

 

 

[A description of the options provided for remote participation in public meetings and public hearings.] 

We still conducted our meetings as scheduled via Zoom in the Fall and pre-pandemic in-person. We provided information about our meetings through our parent communication 
system as well as through text messages, and phone calls. Translation of meeting notices and having both English and Spanish input sessions ensured access to provide input. 
We had our parent groups and English Language Advisory Committee participate in feedback sessions. 

[A summary of the feedback provided by specific stakeholder groups.] 

Our students reported to miss being in-class with their classmates. While some preferred the flexible schedule in spring, many felt like they needed more structure and routines. 
Our staff have mixed feelings about returning to in-person instruction because at the time of the survey our county was teetering between being on the watch list. Our employees 
provided great feedback regarding the professional development that is most needed for them to provide effective distance learning instruction. Our English Learner Advisory 
Committee expressed gratitude for our continued support of students through these many changes. The importance of providing technology was mentioned by families and many 
of our families are using their student's loaned Chromebook which emphasizes the need for devices and connectivity. 

[A description of the aspects of the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan that were influenced by specific stakeholder input.] 

While we cannot bring back in-person instruction until it is safe to do so, we took into consideration the input from our stakeholders. Luckily, we already offer small class sizes, 
individual support, social-emotional support, and tailored academic instruction. The feedback from teachers directly impacted the professional development opportunities and will 
continue to do so. The feedback from our students to have more structure was taken into consideration and each school site has a clear schedule that students and families can 
reference. 

Continuity of Learning 
In-Person Instructional Offerings 
[A description of the actions the LEA will take to offer classroom-based instruction whenever possible, particularly for students who have 
experienced significant learning loss due to school closures in the 2019±2020 school year or are at a greater risk of experiencing learning loss 
due to future school closures.] 
At this time, all schools in Santa Cruz County may only offer distance learning. Using the KLJK�DQG�medium restriction model, our reopening plan provides information about how 
our LEA will support student and staff health and safety and how we will provide continuity of learning. Our learning plan includes potential hybrid schedules, delivering high 
quality instruction and attending to the social-emotional well-being of our students and staff. Regardless of being in full distance learning or returning to schools in a high 
restriction state, we will continue to provide services for all of our learners including English learners, Foster Youth, students experiencing homelessness, socioeconomically 
disadvantaged students, and students with special needs. 

This summer and ongoing, our staff has been planning for the safe reopening of our schools. Our programs work with the Santa Cruz County Office of Education to appropriately 
prepare facilities and logistics. Each site has been through a rigorous safety inspection at prior to opening in any capacity we will ensure all planned safety protocols are in place 
which include but are not limited to signage, hand sanitizer, PPE, proper placement of furniture, staff training, and symptom checking stations. Prior to re-opening and ongoing, 
daily expectations and protocols for a healthy and safe work environment will be shared with all staff. 

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Santa Cruz County Office of Education Page 2 of 8 
131

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23ContinuityofLearning
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23ContinuityofLearning
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23ContinuityofLearning1


                 

   
   

   

   

  
  

  

   
 

      
    

 
                   

                 
                 
                     

                
                 

                   
            

  
 

                      
                     

 

  
 

 
                         

                          

X

X

X

Actions Related to In-Person Instructional Offerings [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary] 
Description Total Funds Contributing 
M&O transfer, including the cleaning of school sites. $231,067.26 No 

Supplemental food and clothing offerings supporting the needs of our low-income students. $24,224.03 Yes  

Instructional staff at Sequoia Schools campus, our school designed to meet the needs of our 
unduplicated student population. 

$530,063.59 Yes  

Distance Learning Program 
Continuity of Instruction 
[A description of how the LEA will provide continuity of instruction during the school year to ensure pupils have access to a full curriculum of 
substanWiall\ VimilaU TXaliW\ UegaUdleVV Rf Whe meWhRd Rf deliYeU\, inclXding Whe LEA¶V Slan fRU cXUUicXlXm and inVWUXcWiRnal UeVRXrces that will 
ensure instructional continuity for pupils if a transition between in-person instruction and distance learning is necessary.] 
Distance Learning will be standards-aligned and aims to meet the needs of all students including those who qualify for special education, language learners, students in foster 
care, those experiencing homelessness, students with exceptional needs, and those requiring mental health support. Our Special Education team meets weekly to ensure they 
are discussing each student and providing services as well as communicating with teachers, students, and the families they serve. Students are provided with both synchronous 
and asynchronous learning opportunities that meet or exceed the standard of instructional minutes. We will continue the work we started last spring to provide connectivity and 
devices to all students who are participating in distance learning. Teachers and other certificated employees will connect with students daily through internet-based classrooms or 
phone communication. Interaction will ensure English Language Assessment, proficiency, and include English Language Development. The curriculum and instructional 
resources for distance learning classrooms may also be utilized in an in-person instructional model. We are utilizing Google Classroom as our Learning Management System and 
teacher have received training and they are ensuring students and families understand the platform as well. 

Access to Devices and Connectivity 
[A description of how the LEA will ensure access to devices and connectivity for all pupils to support distance learning.] 
All students who need a computer have been loaned a Chromebook. Our local internet service providers have offered temporary free internet service to families who qualify. The 
Santa Cruz COE purchased new Chromebooks and hot spots and that were deployed to families who were not able to access the free internet services and still needed internet 
access at home. 

Pupil Participation and Progress 
[A description of how the LEA will assess pupil progress through live contacts and synchronous instructional minutes, and a description of how 
the LEA will measure participation and time value of pupil work.] 
One of our talented administrators made a student engagement and attendance sheet that not only tracks the type of learning and the amount of engagement each day, it also 
creates a cumulative record so that we can identify quickly students who are not engaging. We started the year utilizing this sheet and as of the writing of this document we are 

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Santa Cruz County Office of Education Page 3 of 8 
132

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23ContinuityofLearning2
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23DistanceLearningProgram
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23DistanceLearningProgram
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23DistanceLearningProgram1
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23DistanceLearningProgram2
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23DistanceLearningProgram3


                 

                      
                   

                     
                  

         

  
  

 
                   

                     
                     
                  

 
  

                       
                 

        

   
    

   
 

                 
                   

               
               
        

       
   

 
 

  

   

X

X

trying out the CDE attendance and engagement template as well. Participation in distance learning includes synchronous time with certificated staff and time with support staff, 
online activities, completion of assignments, completion of assessments, and contacts between staff and pupils or parents or guardians. Distance learning instructional time shall 
be based on the time value of assignments as determined by teachers. It must be standard-aligned and meet the needs of all students including students who qualify for special 
education, language learners, students in foster care, those experiencing homelessness, students with exceptional needs, and those requiring mental health support. We are 
closely monitoring student progress and intervening when a student shows signs of disengaging. 

Distance Learning Professional Development 
[A description of the professional development and resources that will be provided to staff to support the distance learning program, including 
technological support.] 
We started the 20-21 school year with a robust week long Professional Learning Summit. The sessions focused on supporting students, re-engaging students and families, 
Google Classroom, ed-tech resources, reviewing local guidance and SB 98, and plenty of time for collaboration. On-going professional learning will be tailored to meet the needs 
of our staff and focused on facilitating high quality instruction, supporting students and families, and supporting and collaborating with colleagues. Our staff has completed COVID-
19 specific health training and we have spent significant time reviewing each school site in preparation for returning to in-person instruction. 

Staff Roles and Responsibilities 
[A description of the new roles and responsibilities of affected staff as a result of COVID-19.] 
Currently, our staff are impacted not only by COVID-19 but also greatly impacted by local wildfires. We are incredibly proud of how our staff have stepped up to support our 
students and each other. We have provided continuous meal service and have provided social and emotional support to students. Our colleagues with specific expertise beneficial 
to distance learning have stepped up as professional learning leaders. 

Supports for Pupils with Unique Needs 
[A description of the additional supports the LEA will provide during distance learning to assist pupils with unique needs, including English 
learners, pupils with exceptional needs served across the full continuum of placements, pupils in foster care, and pupils who are experiencing 
homelessness.] 
The Alternative Education Department works very closely with our Foster Youth and homeless youth liaisons. During the pandemic and wildfires many students and staff have 
been displaced and our community has come together to support each other. English learners receive ELD instruction from their teachers as well as have structured support 
through small group or individual appointments. Staff receive professional development focused on effective instructional practices for supporting English Language learners as 
well as curriculum for English Learners. Students receiving special education services maintain their services with their resource teachers and there is continual communication 
with our Special Education team, our teaching staff, and administration. 

Actions related to the Distance Learning Program [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary] 
Description Total Funds Contributing 
Technology Coordinator ensuring tech and access for all students including unduplicated 
students 

$177,583.14 Yes  

Instructional Aides in classrooms serving high proportions of unduplicated students $ 702,728.54 Yes  

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Santa Cruz County Office of Education Page 4 of 8 
133

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23DistanceLearningProgram4
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23DistanceLearningProgram5
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23DistanceLearningProgram6
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23DistanceLearningProgram7


                 

   

  
  

  
  

 

   
  

 
 

                       
                  

                     
      

   
 

 
 

                    
                  

                     
                           

 

    
  

                    
         

X

X

Description Total Funds Contributing 
Community Organizer, Project Specialists, and Project Coordinator supporting the students 
and families of unduplicated students. 

$404,384.53 Yes  

Professional development focused on supporting the needs of our English Learners during 
Distance Learning and for in-person learning. 

Yes  

Pupil Learning Loss 
[A description of how the LEA will address pupil learning loss that results from COVID-19 during the 2019±2020 and 2020±21 school years, 
including how the LEA will assess pupils to measure learning status, particularly in the areas of English language arts, English language 
development, and mathematics.] 
Pupil learning loss will be assessed, monitored, and mitigated through a comprehensive approach. We use the Star Renaissance assessments to assess ELA and Math, and we 
monitor ELPAC scores, along with grades and credits to address the needs of English Learners. Our counselors, teachers, and support staff work collaboratively to address the 
social and emotional needs of our students. This year we have more robust structures, guidance, and routines in place during distance learning that reflect the lessons learned 
from students, teachers, and families during the spring. 

Pupil Learning Loss Strategies 
[A description of the actions and strategies the LEA will use to address learning loss and accelerate learning progress for pupils, as needed, 
including how these strategies differ for pupils who are English learners; low-income; foster youth; pupils with exceptional needs; and pupils 
experiencing homelessness.] 
Our programs are small and allow for intense student support from a team including the teacher, counselor, support staff, and administration.Teachers meet individually with 
students and their families to create strategies to support learning loss mitigation. New students enrolling in our programs who did not successfully complete their Spring semester 
at their comprehensive high school have an intake that reviews their experience during the Spring semester and this intake begins the plans that are solidified by their new 
teacher to help them re-engage in school and overcome learning loss. It is a unique journey for each student and we are fortunate to be able to work so closely with our students 
and families. 

Effectiveness of Implemented Pupil Learning Loss Strategies 
[A description of how the effectiveness of the services or supports provided to address learning loss will be measured.] 
Important ways to measure the effectiveness of learning loss strategies include, the engagement of the student, mastery of concepts, and grade and credit evaluation. We also 
use our Star Renaissance exams to compare assessment results. 

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Santa Cruz County Office of Education Page 5 of 8 
134

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23PupilLearningLoss
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23PupilLearningLoss
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23PupilLearningLoss1
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23PupilLearningLoss1
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23PupilLearningLoss2
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23PupilLearningLoss2


 

                 

     
   

 
 

     
 

 
  

 

     
 

 
 
 

  
 

    
  

 
 

                    
                       

                   
             

 
 
 
 

  
 

   
   

 
 

 

                        
                    

                       
                          

            
 

 
 
 

  

X

X

Actions to Address Pupil Learning Loss [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary] 
Description Total Funds Contributing 
Star Renaissance $9,915 Yes  

Professional development focused on learning loss mitigation, specifically for unduplicated 
students and Star Renaissance training. 

Yes  

Mental Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being 
[A description of how the LEA will monitor and support mental health and social and emotional well-being of pupils and staff during the school 
year, including the professional development and resources that will be provided to pupils and staff to address trauma and other impacts of 
COVID-19 on the school community.] 
We have invested significant time and resources to focus on mental health and social and emotional wellbeing. Our daily instruction begins with a whole group connector. Each 
staff member understands that connection comes first and in order to get to a point where students can experience academic success they must first feel safe. We have a large 
network of counselors who work with all of our sites. Our teachers have woven in social and emotional lessons and activities throughout their classes. Teachers and support staff 
continuously monitor the health and wellbeing of their students and promptly discuss any concerns to ensure appropriate services are provided. 

Pupil and Family Engagement and Outreach 
[A description of pupil engagement and outreach, including the procedures for tiered reengagement strategies for pupils who are absent from 
distance learning and how the LEA will provide outreach to pupils and their parents or guardians, including in languages other than English, 
when pupils are not meeting compulsory education requirements, or if the LEA determines the pupil is not engaging in instruction and is at risk 
of learning loss.] 
We have a tiered student support system in place to actively and swiftly support students who are disengaging from their education. Our number one goal is the health and 
wellbeing of our students and staying connected to them. All students receive universal supports and individual attention. Students who begin to miss school are discussed at a 
site level with their team including, the teacher, support staff, RSP teacher is applicable, counselor, and site administrator. If the student continues to not engage in school they 
are referred to a more acute support team who works closely with each individual family to do a deeper dive into the barriers being faced by the student and family and provide 
more counseling and specific supports based on the need of the individual student and family. 

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Santa Cruz County Office of Education Page 6 of 8 
135

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23PupilLearningLoss4
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23MentalHealthandSocialandEmotional
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23MentalHealthandSocialandEmotional
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23PupilEngagementandOutreach
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23PupilEngagementandOutreach


 

                 

 
 

 
  

 

                    
                     

       
 

 
 
 

 
    

 
 

 

   

     
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

   
  

          
 
  

X

School Nutrition 
[A description of how the LEA will provide nutritionally adequate meals for all pupils, including those students who are eligible for free or 
reduced-price meals, when pupils are participating in both in-person instruction and distance learning, as applicable.] 
The Santa Cruz COE ensures access to student meals while maintaining physical distancing protocols. Families in need of meal service will continue to receive notification that 
they can access safe school food distribution centers. Families will be advised of pick-up locations, dates and times²and reassured that not only were all meals are free of 
charge, no family will be turned away. 

Additional Actions to Implement the Learning Continuity Plan [additional rows 
and actions may be added as necessary] 
Section Description Total Funds Contributing 

Mental Health and Social and 
Emotional Well-Being 

School counselor who supports students and families most in 
need, including providing lunch services and emergency 
resources for students and families. 

$155,413.17 Yes  

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income Students 

Percentage to Increase or Improve Services Increased Apportionment based on the Enrollment of Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income students 

12.02% $2,206,974.00 

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Santa Cruz County Office of Education Page 7 of 8 
136

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23SchoolNutrition
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23SchoolNutrition
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23AdditionalActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23AdditionalActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23IncreasedorImprovedServices
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23IncreasedorImprovedServices


 

                 

 

  
 

   
 

 
 

                   
                    
                

                   
                

                 
                     

   
 

 

 
   

 
 

                 
                       

             
 

     
                   

                   
                       

                 
      

              
   

       
        
         
                 

        
                   

   
 
     
                  

 
  

                       
    

 

Required Descriptions 
[For the actions being provided to an entire school, or across the entire school district or county office of education (COE), an explanation of 
(1) how the needs of foster youth, English learners, and low-income students were considered first, and (2) how these actions are effective in 
meeting the needs of these students.] 

The needs of foster youth, English learners, and low-income students has been at the forefront of our decisions throughout the COVID-19 pandemic and now the horrific 
wildfires. The technology needs of our students, especially our low-income students is a priority. We ensured that we ordered more Chromebooks and hotspots to meet the 
needs of our students. We provided continued nutritional services for families and promoted nutritional offerings throughout the county which supported the basic needs of our 
low-income students. We worked closely with our Foster Youth liaisons to ensure students were being supported with their education. English learners received continued 
educational services from their teachers and our support staff. Our Community Organizer and Project Specialist/Project Coordinator support the students and families of 
unduplicated students through organization of parent groups, parent learning, student support, and logistical support primarily directed towards unduplicated students. We have 
staff development that is directly targeted at supporting our unduplicated student population and we collaborate with our Foster Youth team, Ed Services team, and internal 
Alternative Education staff. 

[A description of how services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students are being increased or improved by the percentage 
required.] 

The Santa Cruz County Office of Education calculates that it will receive $2,206,974.00 in Supplemental and Concentration funding under the Local Control Funding Formula 
(LCFF). Our programs exist to meet the needs of our unduplicated student population. That being said, the services outlined in this report represent an increase or improvement in 
excess of 12.02% when compared to services provided for all students for the 20-21 school year. 

Contributing Actions Related to In-Person Instructional Offerings: 
-The operation of the Sequoia Schools campus represents a massive effort to improve services for our unduplicated students. The Sequoia Schools campus serves over two 
hundred students through multiple programs. The vast majority of Sequoia students are considered unduplicated. These programs represent a set of our community school that is 
dedicated to providing the best possible education to our unduplicated students. The improvement of instruction for our unduplicated students, the provision of counseling 
services, tracking students and student data, the coordination of services for foster youth, and effectively communicating with non-English speaking parents are vital elements of 
our efforts to improve services for unduplicated students. 
-We provide food and clothing for students in need by purchasing school shirts and sweatshirts and supplemental food. 

Contributing Actions Related to the Distance Learning Program: 
- Technology Coordinator ensuring tech and access for unduplicated students. 
- Instructional Aides in classrooms serving high proportions of unduplicated students providing targeted support. 
- Community Organizer and Project Specialist/Project Coordinator supporting the students and families of unduplicated students through organization of parent groups, parent 
learning, student support, and logistical support primarily directed towards unduplicated students. 
-Professional development specifically targeted to support unduplicated students, this is done through collaboration with Educational Services, Poster Youth team, and our Alt Ed 
team. 

Contributing Actions to Address Pupil Learning Loss: 
- Utilizing Star Renaissance results to help assess and mediate pupil learning loss of unduplicated pupils and corresponding professional development for staff. 

Additional Contributing Actions: 
- Counseling and nutrition support for students in need of immediate counseling services, supplies, and food as well as counselor offering direct support and oversight for our 
tiered system of support. 

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Santa Cruz County Office of Education Page 8 of 8 
137

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23RequiredDescriptions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23RequiredDescriptions
https://2,206,974.00


  

 

         
 

            
                         

  
 
 

        
 

       
              

          
         

 

               
               

         

 

      
 

          
  

 
        

         

 

      
 

         
 

 
        

         

  

             
       

 
         

 

              
                

 

X

X

X

X

X

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan Summary of Actions 
Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 

Santa Cruz County Office of Education Jennifer Izant Gonzales, Project Director jizant@santacruzcoe.org 
(831) 466-5739 

Actions/Services Contributing to Increased or Improved Services Requirement 
Focus Area Action Action Description Total Funds 

In-Person Instructional Offerings 2 Supplemental food and clothing offerings supporting the needs of our low-
income students. 

$24,224.03 

In-Person Instructional Offerings 3 Instructional staff at Sequoia Schools campus, our school designed to meet 
the needs of our unduplicated student population. 

$530,063.59 

Distance Learning Program 1 

Technology Coordinator ensuring tech and access for all students including 
unduplicated students 

$177,583.14 

Distance Learning Program 2 

Instructional Aides in classrooms serving high proportions of unduplicated 
students 

$ 702,728.54 

Distance Learning Program 3 Community Organizer, Project Specialists, and Project Coordinator supporting the 
students and families of unduplicated students. 

$404,384.53 

Distance Learning Program 4 Professional development focused on supporting the needs of our English 
Learners during Distance Learning and for in-person learning. 

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Santa Cruz County Office of Education Page 1 of 3 
Summary of Actions/Services 

138



  

       
         

      
         

 

             
             

         

 

     
  

            
           

         

 

 

X

X

X

X

Focus Area Action Action Description Total Funds 

Pupil Learning Loss 1 Star Renaissance $9,915 

Pupil Learning Loss 2 Professional development focused on learning loss mitigation, specifically for 
unduplicated students and Star Renaissance training. 

Mental Health and Social and 
Emotional Well-Being 

1 School counselor who supports students and families most in need, including 
providing lunch services and emergency resources for students and families. 

$155,413.17 

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Santa Cruz County Office of Education Page 2 of 3 
Summary of Actions/Services 

139



  

 

         
 

       
             

 
         

 

X

Actions/Services Not Contributing to Increased or Improved Services Requirement 
Focus Area Action Action Description Total Funds 

In-Person Instructional Offerings 1 M&O transfer, including the cleaning of school sites. $231,067.26 

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Santa Cruz County Office of Education Page 3 of 3 
Summary of Actions/Services 

140



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

AGENDA ITEM 

 
      

  
  

 
 

             

 
 

​      
 

​      
 

​          
 

 
 

 
 

 
          

       
       

      
        

        
      

           
    

 
 

 
       

  
 

  
 

   

  ​     ​   

BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: SHSW. 17, 2020 AcWLRQ IQIRUPaWLRQ X 

TO: SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\ BRaUd Rf EdXcaWiRQ 

FROM: DeQiVe SaQVRQ, SeQiRU DiUecWRU, SWXdeQW PURgUaPV 

SUBJECT: ASSURYe Whe SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\ CaUeeU AdYaQcePeQW ChaUWeU LeaUQiQg 
CRQWiQXiW\ POaQ 

BACKGROUND 

The BRaUd ZiOO be aVked WR aSSURYe Whe SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\ CaUeeU AdYaQcePeQW 
ChaUWeU LeaUQiQg CRQWiQXiW\ POaQ. The LeaUQiQg CRQWiQXiW\ POaQ WePSOaWe PePRUiaOi]eV 
Whe SOaQQiQg SURceVV aOUead\ XQdeUZa\ fRU Whe 2020±21 VchRRO \eaU aQd iQcOXdeV 
deVcUiSWiRQV Rf Whe fROORZiQg: cRQdXcWiQg PeaQiQgfXO VWakehROdeU eQgagePeQW; 
PaiQWaiQiQg WUaQVSaUeQc\; addUeVViQg Whe QeedV Rf XQdXSOicaWed SXSiOV, VWXdeQWV ZiWh 
XQiTXe QeedV, aQd VWXdeQWV e[SeUieQciQg hRPeOeVVQeVV; SURYidiQg acceVV WR QeceVVaU\ 
deYiceV aQd cRQQecWiYiW\ fRU diVWaQce OeaUQiQg; SURYidiQg UeVRXUceV aQd VXSSRUWV WR 
addUeVV VWXdeQW aQd VWaff PeQWaO heaOWh aQd VRciaO ePRWiRQaO ZeOO-beiQg; aQd cRQWiQXiQg 
WR SURYide VchRRO PeaOV fRU VWXdeQWV. 

SUPERINTENDENT¶S RECOMMENDATION: 

ASSURYe 2020-2021 LeaUQiQg CRQWiQXiW\ POaQ fRU Whe SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\ CaUeeU 
AdYaQcePeQW ChaUWeU. 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: 

DeWaiOed heUeiQ. 

BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: SeSW. 17, 2020 AJHQGa IWHP: #8.6 
141



 

                       

 
 

  
 

 

 
 
 

    
    

      
            

            
  

           
 

 

 
 

 
 

  
  

    
   

  
   

   
 

   
   

  
    

 

Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan Template (2020–21) 
The instructions for completing the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan is available at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/documents/lrngcntntyatndncpln-instructions.docx. 

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 
Career Advancement Charter, Adult Re-entry 
High School for Santa Cruz County Office of 
Education 

Denise Sanson 
Senior Director 

dsanson@santacruzcoe.org 
(831) 466-5680 

General Information 
[A description of the impact the COVID-19 pandemic has had on the LEA and its community.] 

The Career Advancement Charter (CAC) is an Independent Study program for adult learners to earn their high school diploma while gaining 
academic and technical skills that will lead to college and career readiness. As part of the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, the CAC 
collaborates with community partners to achieve this mission by engaging students through work-based, relationship-focused, innovative and 
welcoming learning experiences. The CAC serves students ages 18 and older who are working to achieve their high school diploma. All 
services are free and programs are provided in multiple locations within Santa Cruz County. 
The COVID-19 pandemic greatly impacted our LEA and community with the commencement of county-wide school closures on March 16, 
2020. During the early summer our COVID-19 numbers were low in Santa Cruz County and we planned for reopening schools under low, 
medium, and high restrictions. As the summer progressed and COVID-19 numbers increased it was confirmed that all school programs 
would begin the year in distance learning. Our program immediately communicated with all stakeholders about the change and planned 
necessary professional development for our colleagues. Our administration team spent time digesting SB 98 and creating guidance for staff 
that upheld the requirements of the law while not losing what makes our CAC program unique. We work together with our classified and 
certificated staff to continuously revise this living guidance document. As our school year begins we are fine tuning and revising our approach 
to distance learning alongside our community. In addition to the pandemic, Santa Cruz County has been severely impacted by the CZU 

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Career Advancement Charter, Adult Re-entry High School for Santa Cruz County Office of Education Page 1 of 9 
142

https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/documents/lrngcntntyatndncpln-instructions.docx
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23generalinformation
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23generalinformation


 

                       

   
  

 
 
 

  
 

 
 

     
  

  
   

     
  

     
 

 
  

 

   
   

  
 

 
  

 

 
  

  
  

   
  

  

 
  

 

   
      

Lightening Fire, displacing nearly 70,000 residents. Continuing to support the health and wellbeing of our staff, students, and community is 
our immediate priority. 

Stakeholder Engagement 
[A description of the efforts made to solicit stakeholder feedback.] 

We began stakeholder engagement in the spring following eliciting feedback from students through a survey and multiple means of 
communication. Weekly check-ins occurred with the administration team and sites to discuss student need and create plans for students who 
were disengaging. At the beginning of this school year we sent out a survey to students and we held community meetings via Zoom to allow 
the community to share the impact of distance learning and make recommendations. As a team, we reviewed the data from stakeholder 
groups and included those recommendations and concerns in this plan. The draft Learning Continuity Plan will be presented in English and 
in Spanish to our stakeholders and we will make necessary adjustments based upon input. As previously mentioned, the CZU Lightning Fire 
has significantly impacted our community and it is important to mention that the beginning of the school year has been impacted by the fires. 

[A description of the options provided for remote participation in public meetings and public hearings.] 

We still conducted our meetings as scheduled via Zoom. We provided information about our meetings through our communication system as 
well as through Google Classroom, text messages, and phone calls. Translation of meeting notices and concurrent translation of meetings 
ensured access for all stakeholders. 

[A summary of the feedback provided by specific stakeholder groups.] 

Some students reported that Zoom meetings are challenging for many reasons. While some preferred the added flexibility of this virtual 
schedule, others acknowledged that doing everything remotely also can be challenging. Similarly, some students and staff expressed being 
ready to return for 1:1 instruction/interaction while others communicated that they don't feel ready to meet in person. Our staff gave very 
positive feedback about the professional learning opportunities that we have been offering to support the shift to remote instruction. Many 
students have expressed the need for both a device and a hotspot in order to connect to the Internet. At least one student expressed the 
difficulty of learning a new language is this distance learning format and was hopeful that language instruction would be available in person 
as soon as possible. 

[A description of the aspects of the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan that were influenced by specific stakeholder input.] 

Feedback from stakeholders stressed the importance of flexibility and regular contact with teachers. This was identified as a strength of 
programming offered thus far. Communication will continue to be critical during this time as information changes quickly. We have made pick 

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Career Advancement Charter, Adult Re-entry High School for Santa Cruz County Office of Education Page 2 of 9 
143

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23stakeholderengagement
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23stakeholderengagement


 

                       

  
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

  
  

 
 

      
    

  
 

 
 

   
   

        
 

 
 
 

   
 

 
 

     
     

 
 

   
 

   
  

 
   

 

X

up times available at various locations in the county and will offer flexible hours for both tech and food pick up for students who work until the 
evening hours. 

Continuity of Learning 
In-Person Instructional Offerings 
[A description of the actions the LEA will take to offer classroom-based instruction whenever possible, particularly for students who have 
experienced significant learning loss due to school closures in the 2019±2020 school year or are at a greater risk of experiencing learning loss 
due to future school closures.] 
At this time, all schools in Santa Cruz County may only offer distance learning. Using the medium restriction model, our reopening plan 
provides information about how our LEA will support student and staff health and safety and how we will provide continuity of learning. Our 
learning plan includes potential hybrid schedules, delivering high quality instruction and attending to the social-emotional well-being of our 
students and staff. 

Actions Related to In-Person Instructional Offerings [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary] 
Description Total Funds Contributing 
Maintenance and Operations transfer for services 45,000 No 

Distance Learning Program 
Continuity of Instruction 
[A description of how the LEA will provide continuity of instruction during the school year to ensure pupils have access to a full curriculum of 
VXbVWaQWiall\ VimilaU TXaliW\ UegaUdleVV Rf Whe meWhRd Rf deliYeU\, iQclXdiQg Whe LEA¶V SlaQ fRU cXUUicXlXm aQd iQVWUXcWiRQal resources that will 
ensure instructional continuity for pupils if a transition between in-person instruction and distance learning is necessary.] 
Currently students enrolled at our high school diploma program in the correctional facilities as well at our site locations are participating in 
Distance Learning, Independent Study. Teachers are providing individualized assignments based on transcript needs. Teachers provide 
weekly feedback and new assignments. 
Distance Learning will be standards-aligned and aims to meet the needs of all students including those who qualify for special education, 
language learners, those experiencing homelessness, students with exceptional needs, and those requiring mental health support. We will 
continue the work we started last spring to provide connectivity and devices to all students who are participating in distance learning. 
Teachers and other certificated employees will connect with students regularly through internet-based classrooms or phone communication. 

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Career Advancement Charter, Adult Re-entry High School for Santa Cruz County Office of Education Page 3 of 9 
144

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23ContinuityofLearning
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23ContinuityofLearning
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23ContinuityofLearning1
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23ContinuityofLearning2
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23DistanceLearningProgram
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23DistanceLearningProgram
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23DistanceLearningProgram1


 

                       

   
  

 

  
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

 

  
 

  
 

 

  
  

   
 

 

  
 

  
 

 

   
 

   
  

  
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
   

Interaction will ensure English Language Assessment, proficiency, and include English Language Development. The curriculum and 
instructional resources for distance learning classrooms may also be utilized in an in-person instructional model. 

Access to Devices and Connectivity 
[A description of how the LEA will ensure access to devices and connectivity for all pupils to support distance learning.] 
All students who need a device have been assigned a Chromebook. Our local internet service providers have offered temporary free internet 
service to families who qualify. The CAC purchased new Chromebooks and hot spots to distribute to families who were not able to access 
the free internet services and still needed internet access at home. Additional materials are on order for incoming students as well as to 
replace devices as needed. 

Pupil Participation and Progress 
[A description of how the LEA will assess pupil progress through live contacts and synchronous instructional minutes, and a description of how 
the LEA will measure participation and time value of pupil work.] 
We will identify students who are not engaging. Independent Study Distance learning instructional time shall be based on the time value of 
assignments as determined by teachers. It must be standard-aligned and meet the needs of all students including students who qualify for 
special education, language learners, those experiencing homelessness, students with exceptional needs, and those requiring mental health 
support. 

Distance Learning Professional Development 
[A description of the professional development and resources that will be provided to staff to support the distance learning program, including 
technological support.] 
We started the 20-21 school year with a robust week long Professional Learning Summit. The sessions focused on supporting students, re-
engaging students and families, Google Classroom, ed-tech resources, reviewing local guidance and SB 98, and plenty of time for 
collaboration. On-going professional learning will be tailored to meet the needs of our staff and focused on facilitating high quality instruction, 
supporting students and families, and supporting and collaborating with colleagues. Professional learning opportunities to support distance 
learning will continue throughout the 20-21 school year and will also include an emphasis on staff wellness and self-care. Our staff has 
completed COVID-19 specific health training and we have spend significant time reviewing each school site in preparation for returning to in-
person instruction. 

Staff Roles and Responsibilities 
[A description of the new roles and responsibilities of affected staff as a result of COVID-19.] 
Currently, our staff are impacted not only by COVID-19 but also greatly by local wildfires. We are grateful for how our staff have stepped up 
to support our students and each other. We have provided continuous meal service and have provided social and emotional support to 
students. Our colleagues with specific expertise beneficial to distance learning have contributed as professional learning leaders. Teachers 

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Career Advancement Charter, Adult Re-entry High School for Santa Cruz County Office of Education Page 4 of 9 
145

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23DistanceLearningProgram2
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23DistanceLearningProgram3
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23DistanceLearningProgram4
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23DistanceLearningProgram5


 

                       

 
   

 

   
 

    
   

 
 

   
  

  
  

 

       
   

      
 

  
 

     
 

 
 
 

   
 

  
 

 
 

 
  

  
 

  
 

 
 

X

X

and support staff will hold weekly virtual appointments with students to offer academic and social-emotional support. We will continue to offer 
CTEP courses via distance learning until it is deemed safe to return to in person instruction by our public health department. 

Supports for Pupils with Unique Needs 
[A description of the additional supports the LEA will provide during distance learning to assist pupils with unique needs, including English 
learners, pupils with exceptional needs served across the full continuum of placements, pupils in foster care, and pupils who are experiencing 
homelessness.] 
The CAC works very closely with our homelessness support liaisons. During the pandemic and wildfires many students and staff have been 
displaced and our community has come together to support each other. English learners receive ELD instruction from their teachers as well 
as have structured support through individual appointments. Students receiving special education services maintain their services with their 
resource teachers. 

Actions related to the Distance Learning Program [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary] 
Description Total Funds Contributing 
Chromebooks and hotspot devices to support connectivity and access for all students 20,000 Yes  

Bilingual Project Coordinator to support unduplicated students with enrollment and access to 
resources 

129,226 Yes  

Pupil Learning Loss 
[A description of how the LEA will address pupil learning loss that results from COVID-19 during the 2019±2020 and 2020±21 school years, 
including how the LEA will assess pupils to measure learning status, particularly in the areas of English language arts, English language 
development, and mathematics.] 
Pupil learning loss will be assessed, monitored, and mitigated through a comprehensive approach. We administer the CASAS (California 
Adult Education Accountability and Assessment) upon enrollment and use this tool to assess quarterly. A shift to remote testing is currently 
underway. We also monitor progress by assessing credit accrual along with grades to address the needs of English Learners. Our 
counselors, teachers, and support staff work collaboratively to address the social and emotional needs of our students. This year we have 
more robust structures, guidance, and routines in place during distance learning that reflect the lessons learned from students, teachers, and 
families during the spring. 

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Career Advancement Charter, Adult Re-entry High School for Santa Cruz County Office of Education Page 5 of 9 
146

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23DistanceLearningProgram6
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23DistanceLearningProgram7
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23PupilLearningLoss
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23PupilLearningLoss


 

                       

  
 

 
 

 
 

   
    

  
 

    
 

  
 

  
  

 

     
   

 
 

     
 

   
  

     
 

       
 

 
     

 

 
 

     
 

       
 

 
 
 

  

X

X

X

X

X

X

Pupil Learning Loss Strategies 
[A description of the actions and strategies the LEA will use to address learning loss and accelerate learning progress for pupils, as needed, 
including how these strategies differ for pupils who are English learners; low-income; foster youth; pupils with exceptional needs; and pupils 
experiencing homelessness.] 
Our programs are small and allow for intensive student support from a team including the teacher, support staff, and administration.Teachers 
meet individually with students to create strategies to support learning loss mitigation. New students enrolling in our programs have an intake 
that reviews their experience and this intake begins the plans that are solidified by their new teacher to help them re-engage in school and 
overcome learning loss. It is a unique journey for each student and we are fortunate to be able to work so closely with our students. 

Effectiveness of Implemented Pupil Learning Loss Strategies 
[A description of how the effectiveness of the services or supports provided to address learning loss will be measured.] 
Important ways to measure the effectiveness of learning loss strategies include the engagement of the student, mastery of concepts, and 
grade and credit evaluation. We can also use our CASAS assessments to compare results. 

Actions to Address Pupil Learning Loss [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary] 
Description Total Funds Contributing 
Pupil Data Specialist to support with assessment implementation, distance learning, and data 
collection 

88,117 Yes  

Instructional Aide to support student learning and assessments as well as transitions from the 
correctional facility to community college or workforce 

33,358 Yes  

English as a Second Language Instructor 20,000 Yes  

Student Programs Senior Director, bilingual administrator to support with organizational 
programming and student support 

99,062 Yes  

Materials and supplies for Career Technical Education (Culinary and Construction) distance 
learning classes 

14,000 Yes  

Instructional Aide to support student learning and assessments at the Watsonville CAC site 16,389 Yes  

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Career Advancement Charter, Adult Re-entry High School for Santa Cruz County Office of Education Page 6 of 9 
147

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23PupilLearningLoss1
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23PupilLearningLoss1
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23PupilLearningLoss2
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23PupilLearningLoss2
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23PupilLearningLoss4


 

                       

  
 

   
  

 
 

  
  

 
  

 
 
 
 

  
 

   
   

  
 

 

  
    

   
  

 
   

 
 
 
 

 
 

  
  

 

    
   

  
 
 
 

Mental Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being 
[A description of how the LEA will monitor and support mental health and social and emotional well-being of pupils and staff during the school 
year, including the professional development and resources that will be provided to pupils and staff to address trauma and other impacts of 
COVID-19 on the school community.] 
We have invested significant time and resources to focus on mental health and social and emotional wellbeing. Each staff member 
understands that connection comes first and in order to get to a point where students can experience academic success they must first feel 
safe. Our teachers have woven in social and emotional lessons and activities throughout their lessons. Teachers and support staff 
continuously monitor the health and wellbeing of their students and promptly discuss any concerns to ensure appropriate services are 
provided. 

Pupil and Family Engagement and Outreach 
[A description of pupil engagement and outreach, including the procedures for tiered reengagement strategies for pupils who are absent from 
distance learning and how the LEA will provide outreach to pupils and their parents or guardians, including in languages other than English, 
when pupils are not meeting compulsory education requirements, or if the LEA determines the pupil is not engaging in instruction and is at risk 
of learning loss.] 
We have a tiered student support system in place to actively and swiftly support students who are disengaging from their education. Our 
number one goal is the health and wellbeing of our students and staying connected to them. All students receive universal supports and 
individual attention. Students who begin to miss school are discussed at a site level with their team. If the student continues to not engage in 
school they are referred to a more acute support team who works closely with each individual family to do a deeper dive into the barriers 
being faced by the student and family and provide more counseling and specific supports based on the need of the individual student and 
family. This approach is not punitive and is intended to be supportive and strengths-based. 

School Nutrition 
[A description of how the LEA will provide nutritionally adequate meals for all pupils, including those students who are eligible for free or 
reduced-price meals, when pupils are participating in both in-person instruction and distance learning, as applicable.] 
The CAC ensures access to student meals while maintaining physical distancing protocols. Families in need of meal service will continue to 
receive notification that they can access safe school food distribution centers. Families will be advised of pick-up locations, dates and times² 
and reassured that not only were all meals were free of charge, no family will be turned away. 

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Career Advancement Charter, Adult Re-entry High School for Santa Cruz County Office of Education Page 7 of 9 
148

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23MentalHealthandSocialandEmotional
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23MentalHealthandSocialandEmotional
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23PupilEngagementandOutreach
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23PupilEngagementandOutreach
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23SchoolNutrition
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23SchoolNutrition


 

                       

 
    

 
 

 
 

     
 

 
 
 

  
 

 

   
  

          
 

  
 

    
 

 
 

  
  

 
 

   
 

 
 

 
    

    
  

 
 

X

Additional Actions to Implement the Learning Continuity Plan [additional rows 
and actions may be added as necessary] 
Section Description Total Funds Contributing 

Mental Health and Social and 
Emotional Well-Being 

Community based intern clinician to support students and 
families in most need 

6,500 Yes  

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income Students 

Percentage to Increase or Improve Services Increased Apportionment based on the Enrollment of Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income students 

5.93% $65,476 

Required Descriptions 
[For the actions being provided to an entire school, or across the entire school district or county office of education (COE), an explanation of 
(1) how the needs of foster youth, English learners, and low-income students were considered first, and (2) how these actions are effective in 
meeting the needs of these students.] 

The recent devastating racial violence amidst the backdrop of COVID-19 has made more evident the incredible disparities and oppression 
that many people of color experience on a daily basis. The needs of our unduplicated students is at the center of our decisions throughout 
the COVID-19 pandemic. The digital divide has become clearly evident throughout the past six months. The CAC is committed to providing 
access to technology for all of our students. We plan to continue offering ESL classes for our adult learners as well as employment support. 
Additionally we will continue to connect students to valuable resources in the community as well as make important and timely information 
available. Our Senior Director and Project Coordinator will support unduplicated students and their families with an intentional equity focus 
through organization of instructional programming, student groups, student support, and logistical support as needed. Professional learning 
opportunities will continue with our staff to provide the best possible instructional experience in this distance learning environment. 

Providing a high school diploma program in the correctional facilities is intended to create opportunities for our students so that as they 
reintegrate into the community they are more prepared to enter the workforce or attend community college. We are working together with 
our community partners to create pathways and opportunities into college and the workforce. 

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Career Advancement Charter, Adult Re-entry High School for Santa Cruz County Office of Education Page 8 of 9 
149

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23AdditionalActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23AdditionalActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23IncreasedorImprovedServices
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23IncreasedorImprovedServices
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23RequiredDescriptions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm%23RequiredDescriptions


 

                       

 
  

 
 

    
  

 
 

 
    

  
 

   
 

  
  

 
    

 
  

  

   
 
 

[A description of how services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students are being increased or improved by the percentage 
required.] 

The Career Advancement Charter calculates that we will receive $65,476 in Supplemental funding under the Local Control Funding Formula 
(LCFF). Our program exists to meet the needs of our unduplicated adult learners. The services detailed in this report represent an increase 
or improvement in services of 5.93% when compared to services provided for all students for this 20-21 school year. 
Contributing Actions Related to In Person Instructional Offerings: Services for actions contributing to in person offerings are for all students. 
Contributing Actions Related to the Distance Learning Program: We have budgeted a substantial amount for technology devices so that all 
students have access to updated and working equipment upon request. We want to avoid having any student wait for a device or hotspot 
because of ordering issues. The bilingual Project Coordinator serves a critical role in linking our unduplicated students to resources both at 
school and in the community. 
Contributing Actions Related to Address Pupil Learning Loss: Assigning a Pupil Data Specialist to support with the CASAS assessments and 
implementation will provide useful data to guide instruction, planning, and progress monitoring. This position is critical to support our 
unduplicated students in their academic and/or vocational journey. The Instructional Aide position will directly support unduplicated students 
with learning, assessments, and transition from the correctional facility to the community. ESL classes will directly support our English 
learners with language barriers. Assigning a bilingual Senior Director to support with organizational programming and student support directly 
supports our unduplicated students by providing cohesive systems that are designed to improve student outcomes. While our Career 
Technical Education classes will be virtual, the budget to purchase materials such as food ingredients for the Culinary class and small hand 
tools for the Construction class will support students in their efforts to continue their education with a hands-on approach that will continue to 
engage students. The Instructional Aide at the school site will directly support unduplicated students with learning and assessments over the 
course of this school year. 
Additional Contributing Actions: A focus on student wellness and social emotional health is critical. We will work with our community partner, 
Encompass Community Services, to provide access to counseling services for students. 

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Career Advancement Charter, Adult Re-entry High School for Santa Cruz County Office of Education Page 9 of 9 
150



 

                       
   

 
 

 
 

          
     

          
            

 
 
 

 
 

      
     

  
         

 

 

     
 

         
 

 

    
 

         
 

 

     

 
         

 

 

      
         

 

 

X

X

X

X

X

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan Summary of Actions 
Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 

Career Advancement Charter, Adult Re-entry High 
School for Santa Cruz County Office of Education 

Denise Sanson, Senior Director dsanson@santacruzcoe.org 
(831) 466-5680 

Actions/Services Contributing to Increased or Improved Services Requirement 
Focus Area Action Action Description Total Funds 

Distance Learning Program 1 Chromebooks and hotspot devices to support connectivity and 
access for all students 

20,000 

Distance Learning Program 2 Bilingual Project Coordinator to support unduplicated students 
with enrollment and access to resources 

129,226 

Pupil Learning Loss 1 Pupil Data Specialist to support with assessment 
implementation, distance learning, and data collection 

88,117 

Pupil Learning Loss 2 Instructional Aide to support student learning and assessments 
as well as transitions from the correctional facility to community 
college or workforce 

33,358 

Pupil Learning Loss 3 English as a Second Language Instructor 20,000 

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Career Advancement Charter, Adult Re-entry High School for Santa Cruz County Office of Education Page 1 of 3 
Summary of Actions/Services 

151



 

                       
   

      
     

  
         

 

 

    
 

         
 

 

     
 

         
 

 

     
  

  
 

         
 

 

 

X

X

X

X

Focus Area Action Action Description Total Funds 
Pupil Learning Loss 4 Student Programs Senior Director, bilingual administrator to 

support with organizational programming and student support 
99,062 

Pupil Learning Loss 5 Materials and supplies for Career Technical Education (Culinary 
and Construction) distance learning classes 

14,000 

Pupil Learning Loss 6 Instructional Aide to support student learning and assessments 
at the Watsonville CAC site 

16,389 

Mental Health and Social and 
Emotional Well-Being 

1 Community based intern clinician to support students and 
families in most need 

6,500 

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Career Advancement Charter, Adult Re-entry High School for Santa Cruz County Office of Education Page 2 of 3 
Summary of Actions/Services 

152



 

                       
   

 

 
 

      
     

         
 

 

 
X

Actions/Services Not Contributing to Increased or Improved Services Requirement 
Focus Area Action Action Description Total Funds 

In-Person Instructional Offerings 1 Maintenance and Operations transfer for services 45,000 

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Career Advancement Charter, Adult Re-entry High School for Santa Cruz County Office of Education Page 3 of 3 
Summary of Actions/Services 

153



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

AGENDA ITEM 

 
      

  
  

 
 

             

 
 

​      
 

​        
 

​        
 
 
 

 
 

          
           

            
       

     
 

 
 

 
    

 
  

 
   

  ​     ​   

BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: SHSW. 17, 2020 AcWLRQ IQIRUPaWLRQ X 

TO: SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\ BRaUG RI EGXFaWLRQ 

FROM: BUXFH VaQ AOOHQ, CRPPXQLW\ OXWUHaFK & LHJLVOaWLYH CRPPLWWHH 

SUBJECT: RHVROXWLRQ #20-27 LQ RHFRJQLWLRQ RI LGBTQ+ HLVWRU\ MRQWK 

BACKGROUND 

TKH BRaUG ZLOO FRQVLGHU aGRSWLQJ a UHVROXWLRQ UHFRJQL]LQJ WKH LPSRUWaQW FRQWULbXWLRQV RI 
ORFaO, SWaWH, aQG NaWLRQaO LGBTQ+ SHRSOH WR WKH KLVWRU\ RI WKH UQLWHG SWaWHV b\ 
SURPRWLQJ MXVWLFH, HQKaQFLQJ KHaOWK aQG ZHOO-bHLQJ, aQG bXLOGLQJ a VHQVH RI FRPPXQLW\ 
IRU LGBTQ+ SHRSOH aQG GHVLJQaWHV OFWRbHU aV a WLPH WR FHOHbUaWH WKHLU 
aFFRPSOLVKPHQWV aQG HQFRXUaJHV WHaFKHUV WR WHaFK OHVVRQV abRXW LGBTQ+ KLVWRU\ LQ 
WKHLU FOaVVURRPV. 

SUPERINTENDENT¶S RECOMMENDATION: 

AGRSW UHVROXWLRQ #20-27. 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: 

DHWaLOHG KHUHLQ. 

BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: SHSW. 17, 2020 AJHQGa IWHP: #8.7 
154



 
 

                   
 

    ​    ​      ​  ​    ​   ​      ​    ​      
 ​     ​     ​      

 
  

       
 

 ​            
               

            
  

 
​               

               
              
      

 
​                

              
    

 
​                
      

 
​                 

      
 

​             
                  

                 
       

 
​                 

                 
        

 
​                 

              
             

             
     

 

 

Santa CrX] CoXnt\ Board of EdXcation ⚈ 400 Encinal Street, Santa CrX], CA 95060 ⚈ Tel (831) 466-5900 ⚈ 
ZZZ.santacrX]coe.org 

MV. JDQH RR\HU BDUU ⚈ MV. RRVH FLOLFHWWL ⚈ MV. SDQGUD NLFKROV ⚈ MV. SXH RRWK ⚈ MU. DDQD SDOHV 
MU. AEHO SDQFKH] ⚈ MU. BUXFH VDQ AOOHQ 

RESOLUTION #20-27 
PROCLAIMING OCTOBER AS LGBTQ+ HISTOR< MONTH 

WHEREAS, LGBTQ+ Histor\ Month is an annXal, month-long obserYance of lesbian, ga\, 
bise[Xal, and transgender histor\, and the histor\ of the ga\ rights and related ciYil rights 
moYements, Zhich Zas foXnded in 1994 b\ MissoXri high-school histor\ teacher, Rodne\ 
Wilson; and 

WHEREAS, on JXl\ 14, 2011, the Fair, AccXrate, InclXsiYe and RespectfXl (FAIR) EdXcation Act 
Zas passed and signed into laZ that mandates the inclXsion of the political, economic, and 
social contribXtions of lesbian, ga\, bise[Xal, and transgender people in the social stXdies and 
histor\ cXrricXla in California pXblic schools; 

WHEREAS, on JXl\ 14, 2016, the State Board of EdXcation passed a neZ Histor\ Social 
Science FrameZork that inclXdes LGBTQ American histor\ content to be taXght in histor\ and 
social science classrooms; 

WHEREAS, all stXdents deserYe to feel safe and Zelcome in their schools and to see 
themselYes represented in the cXrricXla; 

WHEREAS, a nXmber of LGBTQ histor\ eYents and people of all races haYe contribXted to the 
histor\ of eqXalit\ for all people; 

WHEREAS, the Mattachine Societ\ and DaXghters of Bilitis Zere tZo California organi]ations 
that stood Xp for LGBT Rights in the 1960s, and S\lYia RiYera and Martha P. Johnson, tZo trans 
Zomen of color, Zere some of the significant indiYidXals Zho stood Xp for LGBT Rights at the 
StoneZall Riots in NeZ York in 1969; 

WHEREAS, HarYe\ Milk Zas the first openl\ ga\ elected official in the histor\ of California, and 
the passage of SB 572 (Leno) into laZ on October 11, 2009 officiall\ recogni]ing Ma\ 22 as 
HarYe\ Milk Da\ in the State of California; 

WHEREAS, John Laird Zas the first openl\ ga\ elected official in Santa CrX] CoXnt\, Zith a 
distingXished career of pXblic serYice as Cit\ CoXncil Member and Ma\or of Santa CrX], 
TrXstee of Cabrillo College, Assembl\member representing the Montere\ Ba\ area in the state 
legislatXre, and as ResoXrces Secretar\ in the administration of GoYernor Jerr\ BroZn, and 
continXes his leadership toda\; and 

155

https://ZZZ.santacrX]coe.org


 
 

     
   

​          
           

             
    

 
 ​             

              
          

 
​                 

             
                

             
     

 
​            

    
 

​              
            

    
 

​                
            

               
   

 
​             

                
              

  
 

    ​          
            

             
            

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ResolXtion #20-27 Proclaiming October as LGBTQ+ Histor\ Month 
September 17, 2020 

WHEREAS, nXmeroXs local LGBTQ leaders in goYernment, bXsiness, and commXnit\ 
organi]ations haYe helped shape commXnit\ institXtions, inclXding in edXcation, offering \oXng 
LGBTQ+ people of the coXnt\ inspiration and challenge, s\mpath\ and solace, encoXragement 
and honest\; and 

WHEREAS, local LGBTQ actiYists oYer nearl\ 40 \ears haYe perseYered to transform the 
annXal Pride marches from tense rallies needing police and parade monitor protection into one 
of Santa CrX]¶s most jo\fXl and beloYed commXnit\ celebrations; and 

WHEREAS, the local LGBTQ commXnit\ and its allies rose Xp to meet the challenge of the 
AIDS epidemic, helped lead the state and nation in deYeloping commXnit\-based strategies for 
redXcing pain and sXffering, and took major roles in stateZide resistance to political attacks on 
people Zith AIDS, inclXding teachers, all despite sXffering great and XnrecoYerable losses of 
friends and loYed ones; and 

WHEREAS, LGBTQ indiYidXals continXe to make noteZorth\ and important contribXtions to 
American histor\ and societ\; 

WHEREAS, the Santa CrX] CoXnt\ Board of EdXcation sXpports the rights, freedoms and 
eqXalit\ of those Zho are lesbian, ga\, bise[Xal, transgender, qXeer, qXestioning, interse[, 
panse[Xal, and ase[Xal (LGBTQ+); 

WHEREAS, the Santa CrX] CoXnt\ Board of EdXcation affirms its role in, and commitment to, 
continXing the historical process of transforming the edXcational s\stem to ensXre 
inclXsiYeness, safet\, and a sense of belonging for all LGBTQ+ stXdents, teachers, staff, and 
their families; and 

WHEREAS, the Santa CrX] CoXnt\ Board of EdXcation recogni]es the important contribXtions 
of local, State, and National LGBTQ+ people to the histor\ of the United States, b\ promoting 
social jXstice, enhancing health and Zell-being, and bXilding a sense of commXnit\ for LGBTQ+ 
people; and 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Santa CrX] CoXnt\ Board Board of EdXcation 
celebrates the accomplishments of LGBTQ people in histor\, encoXrages all schools to 
celebrate October as LGBTQ Histor\ Month, and encoXrages teachers to teach lessons aboXt 
LGBTQ histor\ in their classrooms aligned Zith the State Histor\ FrameZork. 

156



 
 

     
   

  ​            
                

  
 

​  
 

 
 

 
 

​  
 
 
 
 
 

 
     

      
 
 
 

 
     
       

 
 
 

 
     

 
 
 

 
    

 
 
 

 
   

 
 
 

______________________________________ 

_______________________________________ 

_______________________________________ 

_______________________________________ 

_______________________________________ 

ResolXtion #20-27 Proclaiming October as LGBTQ+ Histor\ Month 
September 17, 2020 

PASSED AND ADOPTED b\ the GoYerning Board of the Santa CrX] CoXnt\ Office of 
EdXcation, CoXnt\ of Santa CrX], State of California, this 17th da\ of September 2020, b\ the 
folloZing Yote: 

A<ES: 

NA<S: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

SXe Roth, Board President 
Santa CrX] CoXnt\ Board of EdXcation 

Faris M. Sabbah, Secretar\ 
Santa CrX] CoXnt\ SXperintendent of Schools 

Rose Filicetti, Vice President 

Jane Ro\er Barr, TrXstee 

Sandra Nichols, TrXstee 

157



 
 

     
   

 
 
 
 

 
   

 
 
 

 
   

 
 
 

 
    

_______________________________________ 

_______________________________________ 

_______________________________________ 

ResolXtion #20-27 Proclaiming October as LGBTQ+ Histor\ Month 
September 17, 2020 

Dana Sales, TrXstee 

Abel Sanche], TrXstee 

BrXce Van Allen, TrXstee 

158



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

AGENDA ITEM 

 
      

  
  

 
 

             

 
 
 

​      
 

​      
 

​      
 
 
 

 
 

         
             
            

      
 

     
     
     
      
   

 

  ​      ​   

BRaUd MeeWLQJ DaWe: SeSW. 17, 2020 AcWLRQ IQIRUPaWLRQ X 

TO: SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\ BRaUd RI EdXcaWLRQ 

FROM: RRVH FLOLcHWWL, BRaUd PROLc\ CRPPLWWHH 

SUBJECT: FLUVW RHadLQJ: BRaUd PROLcLHV (3000¶V SHULHV) 

BACKGROUND 

MRdLILcaWLRQ aQd QHZ SROLcLHV Pa\ bH adRSWHd b\ WKH CRXQW\ BRaUd RI EdXcaWLRQ 
IROORZLQJ a ILUVW aQd VHcRQd UHadLQJ b\ WKH BRaUd. TKH BRaUd Pa\ accHSW WKH IROORZLQJ 
SURSRVHd SROLc\(LHV) aV VXbPLWWHd aQd ZaLYH a VHcRQd UHadLQJ aQd PRYH WR WaNH acWLRQ, 
RUdHU cKaQJHV, RU RUdHU cKaQJHV aQd bULQJ bacN IRU a ILQaO UHadLQJ: 

BP 3290 GLIWV, GUaQWV, aQd BHTXHVWV 
BP 3550 FRRd SHUYLcH/CKLOd NXWULWLRQ PURJUaP 
BP 3551 FRRd SHUYLcH OSHUaWLRQV/CaIHWHULa FXQd 
BP 3553 FUHH aQd RHdXcHd PULcH MHaOV 
BP 3555 NXWULWLRQ PURJUaP CRPSOLaQcH 

BRaUd MeeWLQJ DaWe: SHSW. 17, 2020 AJeQda IWeP: #8.8 
159



 
 
 

 
 

 
 

                
             

​               
            

                 
              

 
 

        
         
    
     
      

 
               

              
             

 
 

    
    

 
 

 
               

 
 

 
 

 
 

       
    

 
 

 
     

 
 

 

Polic\ SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
adopWed: SanWa CUX], CalifoUnia 
BXViQeVV aQd NRQiQVWUXcWiRQal OSeUaWiRQV BP 3290 

GIFTS, GRANTS AND BEQUESTS 

The SanWa CUX] CoXnW\ BoaUd of EdXcaWion ma\ accepW an\ gifW, gUanW, oU beqXeVW of mone\, 
pUopeUW\, oU VeUYice Wo Whe CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion fUom an\ indiYidXal, oUgani]aWion, 
foXndaWion, oU pXblic oU pUiYaWe agenc\ WhaW deViUeV Wo VXppoUW Whe CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion¶V 
edXcaWional pUogUam. While gUeaWl\ appUeciaWing VXiWable donaWionV, Whe BoaUd Vhall UejecW an\ 
gifW Zhich ma\ diUecWl\ oU indiUecWl\ impaiU iWV aXWhoUiW\ Wo make deciVionV in Whe beVW inWeUeVW of 
SanWa CUX] CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion VWXdenWV oU iWV abiliW\ oU commiWmenW Wo pUoYide 
eqXiWable edXcaWional oppoUWXniWieV. 

(FI. 0200 - GRDOV IRU WKH 6FKRRO DLVWULFW) 
(FI. 0410 - NRQGLVFULPLQDWLRQ LQ DLVWULFW PURJUDPV DQG AFWLYLWLHV) 
(FI. 0415 - ETXLW\) 
(FI. 1260 - EGXFDWLRQDO FRXQGDWLRQ) 
(FI. 9270 - CRQIOLFW RI IQWHUHVW) 

BefoUe accepWing an\ gifW, gUanW, oU beqXeVW, Whe BoaUd Vhall caUefXll\ conVideU an\ condiWionV oU 
UeVWUicWionV impoVed b\ Whe donoU Wo enVXUe WheiU conViVWenc\ ZiWh Whe CoXnW\ Office of 
EdXcaWion¶V YiVion, philoVoph\, and opeUaWionV. If Whe BoaUd belieYeV Whe CoXnW\ Office of 
EdXcaWion Zill be Xnable Wo fXll\ VaWiVf\ Whe donoU'V condiWionV, Whe gifW Vhall noW be accepWed. 

(FI. 0000 - 9LVLRQ) 
(FI. 0100 - PKLORVRSK\) 

In addiWion, Whe BoaUd Vhall enVXUe WhaW accepWance of Whe gifW, gUanW, oU beqXeVW doeV noW: 

1. InYolYe cUeaWion of a pUogUam Zhich Whe BoaUd ZoXld be Xnable Wo VXVWain Zhen Whe 
donaWion iV e[haXVWed 

2. EnWail XndeViUable oU e[ceVViYe coVWV 

3. PUomoWe Whe XVe of Yiolence, dUXgV, Wobacco, oU alcohol 

(FI. 5131.6 - AOFRKRO DQG OWKHU DUXJV) 
(FI. 5131.62 - 7REDFFR) 

4. AdYeUWiVe oU endoUVe Whe XVe of non-nXWUiWioXV food oU beYeUageV dXUing Whe Vchool da\ 

(FI. 5030 - 6WXGHQW :HOOQHVV) 

5. EncoXUage oU enable Whe YiolaWion of an\ laZ oU CoXnW\ BoaUd polic\ 

160



             
 

 
      

 
 

 
 
 

​  
 
 

​                
 

 
         
      

 
              

                
               

 
 

                 
 

 
    

 
 

 
               

             
               

               
 

 
        
          
    
     

 
              
             
            

                 
             

6. Impl\ endoUVemenW of an\ bXVineVV oU pUodXcW oU XndXl\ commeUciali]e oU poliWici]e Whe 
Vchool enYiUonmenW 

(FI. 1325 - AGYHUWLVLQJ DQG PURPRWLRQ) 

BP 3290 

GIFTS, GRANTS AND BEQUESTS  (conWinXed) 

An\ gifW of bookV oU inVWUXcWional maWeUialV ma\ onl\ be accepWed if Whe\ meeW SanWa CUX] 
CoXnW\ BoaUd of EdXcaWion cUiWeUia foU VelecWion of inVWUXcWional maWeUialV. 

(FI. 6161.1 - 6HOHFWLRQ DQG EYDOXDWLRQ RI IQVWUXFWLRQDO MDWHULDOV) 
(FI. 6161.11 - 6XSSOHPHQWDU\ IQVWUXFWLRQDO MDWHULDOV) 

All gifWV, gUanWV, and beqXeVWV Vhall become CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion pUopeUW\. DonoUV aUe 
encoXUaged Wo donaWe all gifWV Wo Whe CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion UaWheU Whan Wo a paUWicXlaU 
Vchool, claVVUoom, oU WeacheU. AW Whe SXpeUinWendenW oU deVignee'V diVcUeWion, a gifW ma\ be XVed 
aW a paUWicXlaU Vchool oU claVVUoom. 

When an\ gifW of mone\ UeceiYed b\ Whe CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion iV noW immediaWel\ XVed, iW 
Vhall be placed in Whe coXnW\ WUeaVXU\ in accoUdance ZiWh laZ.  (EdXcaWion Code 41030-41031) 

(FI. 3430 - IQYHVWLQJ) 

CRUSRUaWe SSRQVRUVhiS 

The BoaUd ma\ enWeU inWo an agUeemenW oU aUUangemenW ZiWh an oXWVide enWiW\ foU Whe 
VponVoUVhip of an edXcaWional, aWhleWic, oU oWheU pUogUam oU acWiYiW\. When appUopUiaWe, Whe 
agUeemenW ma\ alloZ Whe oXWVide enWiW\ Wo adYeUWiVe oU pUomoWe iWV bXVineVV, pUodXcW, oU VeUYice 
in CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion pXblicaWionV oU on CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion pUopeUW\ oU Zeb 
ViWeV. 

(FI. 1113 - DLVWULFW DQG 6FKRRO :HE 6LWHV) 
(FI. 1700 - 5HODWLRQV BHWZHHQ PULYDWH IQGXVWU\ DQG WKH 6FKRROV) 
(FI. 3312 - CRQWUDFWV) 
(FI. 6145.2 - AWKOHWLF CRPSHWLWLRQ) 

EYeU\ VponVoUVhip agUeemenW Vhall be in ZUiWing. The agUeemenW Vhall enVXUe WhaW Whe CoXnW\ 
Office of EdXcaWion¶V UelaWionVhip and aUUangemenW ZiWh Whe VponVoU aUe conViVWenW ZiWh Whe 
CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion¶V miVVion, YalXeV, and goalV. An\ adYeUWiVing oU pUomoWional 
meVVage, image, oU oWheU depicWion Wo be XVed b\ Whe VponVoU Vhall meeW Whe VWandaUdV VeW foU 
commeUcial adYeUWiVing on CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion pUopeUW\ and in CoXnW\ Office of 

161



 
 

 
 

               
 

 
             

               
 

 
 

 
 

​  
 
 

               
             

 
 

           
 

 
             

              
             

 
 

        
     

 
 

 
              

               
              

             
            

                 
 

 
              

           
               

                
 

EdXcaWion-VponVoUed pXblicaWionV in accoUdance ZiWh BP 1325 - AdYeUWiVing and PUomoWion. 

Each VponVoUVhip agUeemenW Vhall conWain VWaWemenWV inclXding, bXW noW limiWed Wo: 

1. The pXUpoVe of Whe UelaWionVhip ZiWh Whe VponVoU, deWailV of Whe benefiWV Wo Whe CoXnW\ 
Office of EdXcaWion, and hoZ Whe benefiWV Zill be diVWUibXWed 

2. The dXUaWion of Whe agUeemenW and Whe UoleV, e[pecWaWionV, UighWV, and UeVponVibiliWieV of 
Whe CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion and Whe VponVoU, inclXding ZheWheU and Wo ZhaW e[WenW Whe 
VponVoU iV alloZed Wo adYeUWiVe oU pUomoWe iWV pUodXcWV and/oU VeUYiceV 

BP 3290 

GIFTS, GRANTS AND BEQUESTS  (conWinXed) 

3. The aXWhoUiW\ of Whe SXpeUinWendenW Wo UeWain e[clXViYe UighW oYeU Whe XVe of Whe COE¶V 
name, logo, and oWheU pUopUieWaU\ infoUmaWion and Whe UeqXiUemenW WhaW Whe VponVoU obWain 
pUioU appUoYal of Whe BoaUd befoUe XVing VXch infoUmaWion 

4. The pUohibiWion againVW Whe collecWion oU diVWUibXWion of VWXdenWV' peUVonal infoUmaWion 
e[cepW aV alloZed b\ laZ 

5. The aXWhoUiW\ of Whe SXpeUinWendenW Wo WeUminaWe Whe agUeemenW ZiWhoXW an\ penalW\ oU 
VancWion Wo Whe CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion if Whe VponVoU'V meVVage, bXVineVV, oU pUodXcW 
becomeV inconViVWenW ZiWh Whe CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion¶V YiVion, miVVion, oU goalV oU 
Whe VponVoU engageV in an\ pUohibiWed acWiYiW\ 

(FI. 5022 - 6WXGHQW DQG FDPLO\ PULYDF\ 5LJKWV) 
(FI. 5125 - 6WXGHQW 5HFRUGV) 

OQliQe FXQdUaiViQg 

An\ peUVon oU enWiW\ Zho ZiVheV Wo condXcW an online fXndUaiVing campaign, inclXding a 
cUoZdfXnding campaign, foU Whe benefiW of Whe CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion, a Vchool, oU a 
claVVUoom Vhall VXbmiW a ZUiWWen UeqXeVW foU pUioU appUoYal Wo Whe SXpeUinWendenW oU deVignee. 
AppUoYal of UeqXeVWV Vhall Wake inWo conVideUaWion compaWibiliW\ ZiWh Whe CoXnW\ Office of 
EdXcaWion¶V YiVion and goalV, coUe beliefV, inVWUXcWional pUioUiWieV, and infUaVWUXcWXUe; Whe manneU 
in Zhich donaWionV aUe collecWed and diVWUibXWed; eqXiW\ of Whe XVe of fXndV; and an\ oWheU facWoUV 
deemed UeleYanW oU appUopUiaWe b\ Whe CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion. 

An\ peUVon oU enWiW\ appUoYed Wo condXcW an online fXndUaiVing campaign Vhall compl\ ZiWh 
UeleYanW CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion policieV and pUocedXUeV, inclXding enVXUing financial 
WUanVpaUenc\ in deVcUibing Whe pXUpoVe and XVe of Whe fXndV and pUoWecWing VWXdenW pUiYac\ aV 
applicable. SXch peUVon oU enWiW\ Vhall Vpecif\ WhaW Whe CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion, UaWheU Whan a 
VWaff membeU, claVVUoom, oU Vchool, Zill oZn Whe fXnded UeVoXUceV. 

162



 
               

               
 

 
 

 
                

               
           

              
 

 
      
      

 
      

 
 
 

​  
 
 
 

  
  

       
     
           
            
         
                
    
      
     
        

 
  
  

       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FXndV UaiVed b\ an online fXndUaiVing campaign and donaWed Wo Whe CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion 
Vhall be VXbjecW Wo Whe Vame WeUmV, cUiWeUia foU accepWance, and accoXnWabiliW\ meaVXUeV aV an\ 
oWheU donaWion aV Vpecified in WhiV polic\. 

ASSUeciaWiRQ 

The BoaUd ma\ VhoZ appUeciaWion foU an\ donaWion Wo Whe CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion in an\ 
manneU iW deemV appUopUiaWe. SXch appUeciaWion ma\ Wake Whe foUm of leWWeUV of UecogniWion oU 
BoaUd UeVolXWionV; plaqXeV, commendaWionV, oU aZaUdV; planWing of commemoUaWiYe WUeeV oU 
gaUdenV; oU naming oU Uenaming of bXildingV, gUoXndV, oU faciliWieV. ConfeUmenW of an\ VXch 
honoU Vhall be in accoUdance ZiWh applicable BoaUd polic\. 

(FI. 1150 - CRPPHQGDWLRQV DQG AZDUGV) 
(FI. 7310 - NDPLQJ RI FDFLOLW\) 

LHJDO 5HIHUHQFH: (VHH QH[W SDJH) 
BP 3290 

GIFTS, GRANTS AND BEQUESTS  (conWinXed) 

LHJDO 5HIHUHQFH: 
ED8CA7ION CODE 
1834 AFTXLVLWLRQ RI PDWHULDOV DQG DSSDUDWXV 
35160 PRZHUV DQG GXWLHV 
35162 PRZHU WR VXH, EH VXHG, KROG DQG FRQYH\ SURSHUW\ 
41030 6FKRRO GLVWULFW PD\ LQYHVW VXUSOXV PRQLHV IURP EHTXHVW RU JLIWV 
41031 6SHFLDO IXQG RU DFFRXQW LQ FRXQW\ WUHDVXU\ 
41032 AXWKRULW\ RI VFKRRO ERDUG WR DFFHSW JLIW RU EHTXHVW; LQYHVWPHQWV; JLIW RI ODQG UHTXLUHPHQWV 
41035 AGYLVRU\ FRPPLWWHH 
41036 FXQFWLRQ RI DGYLVRU\ FRPPLWWHH 
41037 5XOHV DQG UHJXODWLRQV 
41038 ASSOLFDELOLW\ RI RWKHU SURYLVLRQV RI FKDSWHU 

MDQDJHPHQW 5HVRXUFHV: 
:EB 6I7E6 
CDOLIRUQLD CRQVRUWLXP RI EGXFDWLRQ FRXQGDWLRQV: KWWS://ZZZ.FFHIOLQN.RUJ 

163



 
 

  
 

             
             

              
 

 
             

 
 

              
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

               
 

 
 

 
                 

 
 

 
 

 
               

 
 

             
             

 
 

 

RegXlaWion SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
appUoYed: SanWa CUX], CalifoUnia 
FRRd SeUYice/Child NXWUiWiRQ PURgUam BP 3550 

The CoXnW\ BoaUd Uecogni]eV WhaW adeqXaWe, noXUiVhing food iV eVVenWial Wo VWXdenW healWh, 
deYelopmenW, and abiliW\ Wo leaUn. The SXpeUinWendenW oU deVignee Vhall deYelop VWUaWegieV Wo 
incUeaVe VWXdenWV' acceVV Wo Whe SanWa CUX] CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion¶V food VeUYice pUogUamV 
and Wo ma[imi]e WheiU paUWicipaWion in aYailable pUogUamV. 

FoodV and beYeUageV aYailable WhUoXgh Whe SanWa CUX] CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion¶V food 
VeUYice pUogUam Vhall: 

1.Be caUefXll\ VelecWed Vo aV Wo conWUibXWe Wo VWXdenWV' nXWUiWional Zell-being and Whe pUeYenWion 
of diVeaVe 

(cf. 5141.27 - Food AlleUgieV/Special DieWaU\ NeedV) 

2.  MeeW oU e[ceed nXWUiWion VWandaUdV Vpecified in laZ and adminiVWUaWiYe UegXlaWion 

(cf. 3552 - SXmmeU Meal PUogUam) 
(cf. 3554 - OWheU Food SaleV) 
(cf. 5030 - SWXdenW WellneVV) 
(cf. 5148 - Child CaUe and DeYelopmenW) 
(cf. 5148.2 - BefoUe/AfWeU School PUogUamV) 
(cf. 5148.3 - PUeVchool/EaUl\ Childhood EdXcaWion) 

3. Be pUepaUed in Za\V WhaW Zill appeal Wo VWXdenWV, UeWain nXWUiWiYe qXaliW\, and foVWeU lifelong 
healWhfXl eaWing habiWV 

4. Be VeUYed in age-appUopUiaWe poUWionV 

5.Be aYailable Wo VWXdenWV Zho meeW fedeUal eligibiliW\ cUiWeUia aW no coVW oU aW UedXced pUiceV, and 
Wo oWheU VWXdenWV aW UeaVonable pUiceV 

(cf. 3551 - Food SeUYice OpeUaWionV/CafeWeUia FXnd) 
(cf. 3553 - FUee and RedXced PUice MealV) 

The COE¶V food VeUYice pUogUam Vhall giYe pUioUiW\ Wo VeUYing XnpUoceVVed foodV and fUeVh fUXiWV 
and YegeWableV. 

SanWa CUX] CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion VchoolV aUe encoXUaged Wo eVWabliVh Vchool gaUdenV 
and/oU faUm-Wo-Vchool pUojecWV Wo incUeaVe Whe aYailabiliW\ of Vafe, fUeVh, VeaVonal fUXiWV and 
YegeWableV foU Vchool mealV and Wo VXppoUW Whe COE¶V nXWUiWion edXcaWion pUogUam. 

(cf. 6142.8 - CompUehenViYe HealWh EdXcaWion) 

164



 
             

                
 

 
             

 
 

                 
            

 
 

             
 

 
 

 
 

 
               

                 
 

 
               

               
             

            
              

           
              

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

To encoXUage VWXdenW paUWicipaWion in Vchool meal pUogUamV, VchoolV ma\ offeU mXlWiple choiceV 
of food iWemV ZiWhin a meal VeUYice, pUoYided all food iWemV meeW nXWUiWion VWandaUdV and all 
VWXdenWV aUe giYen an oppoUWXniW\ Wo VelecW an\ food iWem. 

The SXpeUinWendenW oU deVignee ma\ inYiWe VWXdenWV and paUenWV/gXaUdianV Wo paUWicipaWe in Whe 
VelecWion of foodV of good nXWUiWional qXaliW\ foU Vchool menXV. 

The CoXnW\ BoaUd deViUeV Wo pUoYide VWXdenWV ZiWh adeqXaWe Wime and Vpace Wo eaW mealV. To Whe 
e[WenW poVVible, Vchool, UeceVV, and WUanVpoUWaWion VchedXleV Vhall be deVigned Wo encoXUage 
paUWicipaWion in Vchool meal pUogUamV. 

The SXpeUinWendenW oU deVignee Vhall peUiodicall\ UeYieZ Whe adeqXac\ of Vchool faciliWieV foU 
cafeWeUia eaWing and food pUepaUaWion. 

(cf. 1312.4 - WilliamV UnifoUm ComplainW PUocedXUeV) 
(cf. 3517- FaciliWieV InVpecWion) 
(cf. 7110 - FaciliWieV MaVWeU Plan) 

In accoUdance ZiWh laZ, Whe SXpeUinWendenW oU deVignee Vhall deYelop and mainWain a food VafeW\ 
pUogUam in oUdeU Wo UedXce Whe UiVk of foodboUne ha]aUdV aW each VWep of Whe food pUepaUaWion 
pUoceVV, fUom UeceiYing Wo VeUYice. 

The SXpeUinWendenW oU deVignee Vhall annXall\ UepoUW Wo Whe BoaUd on VWXdenW paUWicipaWion in Whe 
COE¶V nXWUiWion pUogUamV and Whe e[WenW Wo Zhich Whe COE¶V food VeUYiceV pUogUam meeWV VWaWe 
and fedeUal nXWUiWion VWandaUdV foU foodV and beYeUageV. In addiWion, Whe SXpeUinWendenW oU 
deVignee Vhall pUoYide all neceVVaU\ and aYailable docXmenWaWion UeqXiUed foU Whe AdminiVWUaWiYe 
ReYieZ condXcWed b\ Whe CalifoUnia DepaUWmenW of EdXcaWion (CDE) Wo enVXUe Whe food VeUYice 
pUogUam'V compliance ZiWh fedeUal UeqXiUemenWV UelaWed Wo nXWUiWion VWandaUdV, meal paWWeUnV, 
pUoYiVion of dUinking ZaWeU, Vchool meal enYiUonmenW, food VafeW\, and oWheU aUeaV aV UeqXiUed 
b\ Whe CDE. 

(cf. 0500 - AccoXnWabiliW\) 
(cf. 3555 - NXWUiWion PUogUam Compliance) 

Legal RefeUence: 
EDUCATION CODE 
35182.5  ConWUacWV, non-nXWUiWioXV beYeUageV 
38080-38103  CafeWeUia, eVWabliVhmenW and XVe 
45103.5  ConWUacWV foU managemenW conVXlWing VeUYiceV; UeVWUicWionV 
49430-49434  PXpil NXWUiWion, HealWh, and AchieYemenW AcW of 2001 
49490-49494  School bUeakfaVW and lXnch pUogUamV 
49500-49505  School mealV 
49510-49520  NXWUiWion 
49530-49536  Child NXWUiWion AcW 

165



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

           
 

            
 

           
 

 
 

 
 

          
 

 
 

 
 

 

49540-49546  Child caUe food pUogUam 
49547-49548.3  CompUehenViYe nXWUiWion VeUYiceV 
49550-49562  MealV foU need\ VWXdenWV 
49570  NaWional School LXnch AcW 
51795-51797  School gaUdenV 
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 
113700-114437  CalifoUnia ReWail Food Code 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
15510  MandaWoU\ mealV foU need\ VWXdenWV 
15530-15535  NXWUiWion edXcaWion 
15550-15565  School lXnch and bUeakfaVW pUogUamV 
15575-15578  ReqXiUemenWV foU foodV and beYeUageV oXWVide fedeUal meal pUogUamV 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
1751-1769j  NaWional School LXnch PUogUam, inclXding: 
1758b Local ZellneVV polic\ 
1761 SXmmeU Food SeUYice PUogUam and SeamleVV SXmmeU Feeding OpWion 
1769a  FUeVh FUXiW and VegeWable PUogUam 
1771-1793  Child nXWUiWion, eVpeciall\: 
1772 Special Milk PUogUam 
1773  NaWional School BUeakfaVW PUogUam 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 7 
210.1-210.31  NaWional School LXnch PUogUam 
215.1-215.18  Special Milk PUogUam 
220.2-220.22  NaWional School BUeakfaVW PUogUam 
245.1-245.13  EligibiliW\ foU fUee and UedXced-pUice mealV and fUee milk 

ManagemenW ReVoXUceV: 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
BXilding HealWh\ CommXniWieV: A School LeadeU'V GXide Wo CollaboUaWion and CommXniW\ 
EngagemenW, 2009 
NXWUiWion SWandaUdV foU SchoolV: ImplicaWionV foU SWXdenW WellneVV, Polic\ BUief, UeY. OcWobeU 
2007 
MoniWoUing foU SXcceVV: SWXdenW WellneVV Polic\ ImplemenWaWion MoniWoUing RepoUW and GXide, 
2007 
SWXdenW WellneVV: A HealWh\ Food and Ph\Vical AcWiYiW\ Polic\ ReVoXUce GXide, UeY. ApUil 2006 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
School MealV IniWiaWiYe SXmmaU\ 
HealWh\ ChildUen Read\ Wo LeaUn, JanXaU\ 2005 
PUofeVVional SWandaUdV in Whe School NXWUiWion PUogUamV, ManagemenW BXlleWin SNP-17-2016, 
OcWobeU 2016 
CALIFORNIA PROJECT LEAN PUBLICATIONS 
Polic\ in AcWion: A GXide Wo ImplemenWing YoXU Local School WellneVV Polic\, OcWobeU 2006 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE PUBLICATIONS 
School BUeakfaVW ToolkiW 
FUeVh FUXiW and VegeWable PUogUam: Handbook foU SchoolV, DecembeU 2010 

166

https://245.1-245.13
https://220.2-220.22
https://215.1-215.18
https://210.1-210.31


 
            

 
              

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
        

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Food BX\ing GXide foU Child NXWUiWion PUogUamV, DecembeU 2007 
CiYil RighWV Compliance and EnfoUcemenW - NXWUiWion PUogUamV and AcWiYiWieV, FNS InVWUXcWion 
113-1, NoYembeU 2005 
GXidance foU School Food AXWhoUiWieV: DeYeloping a School Food SafeW\ PUogUam BaVed on Whe 
PUoceVV AppUoach Wo HACCP PUincipleV, JXne 2005 
DieWaU\ GXidelineV foU AmeUicanV, 2005 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: hWWp://ZZZ.cVba.oUg 
CalifoUnia DepaUWmenW of EdXcaWion, NXWUiWion SeUYiceV DiYiVion: hWWp://ZZZ.cde.ca.goY/lV/nX 
CalifoUnia DepaUWmenW of PXblic HealWh: hWWp://ZZZ.cdph.ca.goY 
CalifoUnia FaUm BXUeaX FedeUaWion: hWWp://ZZZ.cfbf.com 
CalifoUnia Food Polic\ AdYocaWeV: hWWp://ZZZ.cfpa.neW 
CalifoUnia HealWh\ KidV ReVoXUce CenWeU: hWWp://ZZZ.califoUniahealWh\kidV.oUg 
CalifoUnia PUojecW LEAN (LeadeUV EncoXUaging AcWiYiW\ and NXWUiWion): 
hWWp://ZZZ.califoUniapUojecWlean.oUg 
CalifoUnia School NXWUiWion AVVociaWion: hWWp://ZZZ.calVna.oUg 
CenWeUV foU DiVeaVe ConWUol and PUeYenWion: hWWp://ZZZ.cdc.goY 
NaWional Alliance foU NXWUiWion and AcWiYiW\: hWWp://ZZZ.cVpineW.oUg/nXWUiWionpolic\/nana.hWml 
U.S. DepaUWmenW of AgUicXlWXUe, Food and NXWUiWion SeUYice: hWWp://ZZZ.fnV.XVda.goY/fnV 

(11/07  3/11)  12/14 

167

https://hWWp://ZZZ.cfbf.com


 
 
 

 
             

            
               

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
            

            
 

 
 
 

 
              

           
 

 
 

 
              

             
 

 
            

                
              

 
 

              
                

                
                 

 
 

 

Polic\ SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
adopWed: SanWa CUX], CalifoUnia 
FRRd SeUYice OSeUaWiRQV/CafeWeUia FXQd BP 3551 

The CoXnW\ BoaUd inWendV WhaW Vchool food VeUYiceV Vhall be a Velf-VXppoUWing, nonpUofiW 
pUogUam. To enVXUe pUogUam qXaliW\ and incUeaVe coVW effecWiYeneVV, Whe SXpeUinWendenW oU 
deVignee Vhall cenWUali]e and diUecW Whe pXUchaVing of foodV and VXpplieV, Whe planning of menXV, 
and Whe aXdiWing of all food VeUYice accoXnWV foU Whe SanWa CUX] CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion. 

(cf. 3100 - BXdgeW) 
(cf. 3300 - E[pendiWXUeV and PXUchaVeV) 
(cf. 3311 - BidV) 
(cf. 3550 - Food SeUYice/Child NXWUiWion PUogUam) 
(cf. 3552 - SXmmeU Meal PUogUam) 
(cf. 5030 - SWXdenW WellneVV) 

The SXpeUinWendenW oU deVignee Vhall enVXUe WhaW food VeUYice diUecWoU(V) poVVeVV Whe 
qXalificaWionV UeqXiUed b\ 7 CFR 210.30 and CalifoUnia DepaUWmenW of EdXcaWion (CDE) 
VWandaUdV. 

(cf. 4231 - SWaff DeYelopmenW) 
(cf. 4331 - SWaff DeYelopmenW) 

AW leaVW once each \eaU, food VeUYice adminiVWUaWoUV, oWheU appUopUiaWe peUVonnel Zho condXcW oU 
oYeUVee adminiVWUaWiYe pUocedXUeV, and oWheU food VeUYice peUVonnel Vhall UeceiYe WUaining 
pUoYided b\ CDE.  (42 USC 1776) 

Meal SaleV 

MealV ma\ be Vold Wo VWXdenWV, CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion emplo\eeV, BoaUd membeUV, and 
emplo\eeV oU membeUV of Whe fXnd oU aVVociaWion mainWaining Whe cafeWeUia. (EdXcaWion Code 
38082) 

In addiWion, mealV ma\ be Vold Wo nonVWXdenWV, inclXding paUenWV/gXaUdianV, YolXnWeeUV, VWXdenWV' 
ViblingV, oU oWheU indiYidXalV, Zho aUe on campXV foU a legiWimaWe pXUpoVe. An\ mealV VeUYed Wo 
nonVWXdenWV Vhall noW be VXbVidi]ed b\ fedeUal oU VWaWe UeimbXUVemenWV, food VeUYice UeYenXeV, oU 
U.S. DepaUWmenW of AgUicXlWXUe (USDA) foodV. 

Meal pUiceV, aV Uecommended b\ Whe SXpeUinWendenW oU deVignee and appUoYed b\ Whe BoaUd, 
Vhall be baVed on Whe coVWV of pUoYiding food VeUYiceV and conViVWenW ZiWh EdXcaWion Code 38084 
and 42 USC 1760. SWXdenWV Zho aUe enUolled in Whe fUee oU UedXced-pUice meal pUogUam Vhall 
UeceiYe mealV fUee of chaUge oU aW a UedXced pUice in accoUdance ZiWh laZ, BoaUd polic\, and 
adminiVWUaWiYe UegXlaWion. 

(cf. 3553 - FUee and RedXced PUice MealV) 

168



             
           

               
           

            
 

 
             

                  
                 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
              

 
 

                
 

 
              
               

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

                
              

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
               

               
            

The SXpeUinWendenW oU deVignee Vhall eVWabliVh VWUaWegieV and pUocedXUeV foU Whe collecWion of 
meal pa\menWV, inclXding delinqXenW meal pa\menWV. SXch pUocedXUeV Vhall confoUm ZiWh 
BP/AR 3553 - FUee and RedXced PUice MealV, 2 CFR 200.426, and an\ applicable CDE 
gXidance. The SXpeUinWendenW oU deVignee Vhall cleaUl\ commXnicaWe WheVe pUocedXUeV Wo 
VWXdenWV and paUenWV/gXaUdianV, and Vhall make WhiV polic\ and Whe accompan\ing adminiVWUaWiYe 
UegXlaWion aYailable Wo Whe pXblic pXUVXanW Wo EdXcaWion Code 49557.5. 

The SXpeUinWendenW oU deVignee Vhall enVXUe WhaW a VWXdenW ZhoVe paUenW/gXaUdian haV Xnpaid 
Vchool meal feeV oU a VWXdenW Zho iV enUolled in Whe fUee oU UedXced-pUice meal pUogUam iV noW 
oYeUWl\ idenWified b\ Whe XVe of Vpecial WokenV, WickeWV, oU oWheU meanV and iV noW Vhamed, WUeaWed 
diffeUenWl\, oU denied a meal of Whe VWXdenW'V choice.  (EdXcaWion Code 49557, 49557.5) 

(cf. 0410 - NondiVcUiminaWion in DiVWUicW PUogUamV and AcWiYiWieV) 
(cf. 0415 - EqXiW\) 

CafeWeUia FXnd 

The SXpeUinWendenW oU deVignee Vhall eVWabliVh a cafeWeUia fXnd independenW of Whe CoXnW\ Office 
of EdXcaWion¶V geneUal fXnd. 

The ZageV, ValaUieV, and benefiWV of food VeUYice emplo\eeV Vhall be paid fUom Whe cafeWeUia fXnd. 
(EdXcaWion Code 38103) 

The SXpeUinWendenW oU deVignee Vhall enVXUe WhaW VWaWe and fedeUal fXndV pUoYided WhUoXgh Vchool 
meal pUogUamV aUe allocaWed onl\ foU pXUpoVeV UelaWed Wo Whe opeUaWion oU impUoYemenW of food 
VeUYiceV and UeaVonable and neceVVaU\ indiUecW pUogUam coVWV aV alloZed b\ laZ. 

(cf. 3230 - FedeUal GUanW FXndV) 
(cf. 3400 - ManagemenW of DiVWUicW AVVeWV/AccoXnWV) 
(cf. 3460 - Financial RepoUWV and AccoXnWabiliW\) 

ConWUacWV ZiWh OXWVide SeUYiceV 

WiWh BoaUd appUoYal, Whe CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion ma\ enWeU inWo a conWUacW foU food VeUYice 
conVXlWing VeUYiceV oU managemenW VeUYiceV in one oU moUe CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion VchoolV. 
(EdXcaWion Code 45103.5; 42 USC 1758; 7 CFR 210.16) 

(cf. 3312 - ConWUacWV) 
(cf. 3600 - ConVXlWanWV) 

PUocXUemenW of FoodV, EqXipmenW and SXpplieV 

To Whe ma[imXm e[WenW pUacWicable, foodV pXUchaVed foU XVe in Vchool mealV b\ Whe CoXnW\ 
Office of EdXcaWion oU b\ an\ enWiW\ pXUchaVing food on iWV behalf Vhall be domeVWic 
commodiWieV oU pUodXcWV. DomeVWic commodiW\ oU pUodXcW meanV an agUicXlWXUal commodiW\ WhaW 

169



                 
             

 
 

                
                 
              

               
            

 
 

               
               
                 

                 
 

 
 
 

               
             

               
               

               
 

 
 

 
              

 
 

            
             

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

iV pUodXced in Whe UniWed SWaWeV and a food pUodXcW WhaW iV pUoceVVed in Whe UniWed SWaWeV 
VXbVWanWiall\ XVing agUicXlWXUal commodiWieV WhaW aUe pUodXced in Whe UniWed SWaWeV. (42 USC 
1760; 7 CFR 210.21) 

A nondomeVWic food pUodXcW ma\ be pXUchaVed foU XVe in Whe CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion¶V food 
VeUYice pUogUam onl\ aV a laVW UeVoUW Zhen Whe pUodXcW iV noW pUodXced oU manXfacWXUed in Whe 
UniWed SWaWeV in VXfficienW and UeaVonabl\ aYailable qXanWiWieV of a VaWiVfacWoU\ qXaliW\, oU Zhen 
compeWiWiYe bidV UeYeal Whe coVWV of a UniWed SWaWeV pUodXcW aUe VignificanWl\ higheU Whan Whe 
nondomeVWic pUodXcW. In VXch caVeV, Whe SXpeUinWendenW oU deVignee Vhall UeWain docXmenWaWion 
jXVWif\ing Whe XVe of Whe e[cepWion. 

FXUWheUmoUe, Whe CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion Vhall accepW a bid oU pUice foU an agUicXlWXUal 
pUodXcW gUoZn in CalifoUnia befoUe accepWing a bid oU pUice foU an agUicXlWXUal pUodXcW gUoZn 
oXWVide Whe VWaWe, if Whe qXaliW\ of Whe CalifoUnia-gUoZn pUodXcW iV compaUable and Whe bid oU pUice 
doeV noW e[ceed Whe loZeVW bid oU pUice of a pUodXcW pUodXced oXWVide Whe VWaWe. (Food and 
AgUicXlWXUe Code 58595) 

Bid VoliciWaWionV and aZaUdV foU pXUchaVeV of eqXipmenW, maWeUialV, oU VXpplieV in VXppoUW of Whe 
CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion¶V child nXWUiWion pUogUam, oU foU conWUacWV aZaUded pXUVXanW Wo 
PXblic ConWUacW Code 2000, Vhall be conViVWenW ZiWh Whe fedeUal pUocXUemenW VWandaUdV in 2 CFR 
200.318-200.326. AZaUdV Vhall be leW Wo Whe moVW UeVponViYe and UeVponVible paUW\. PUice Vhall be 
Whe pUimaU\ conVideUaWion, bXW noW Whe onl\ deWeUmining facWoU, in making VXch an aZaUd. (PXblic 
ConWUacW Code 20111) 

PUogUam MoniWoUing and EYalXaWion 

The SXpeUinWendenW oU deVignee Vhall pUeVenW Wo Whe BoaUd, aW leaVW annXall\, financial UepoUWV 
UegaUding UeYenXeV and e[pendiWXUeV UelaWed Wo Whe food VeUYice pUogUam. 

The SXpeUinWendenW oU deVignee Vhall pUoYide all neceVVaU\ docXmenWaWion UeqXiUed foU Whe 
AdminiVWUaWiYe ReYieZ condXcWed b\ CDE Wo enVXUe compliance of Whe CoXnW\ Office of 
EdXcaWion¶V food VeUYice pUogUam ZiWh fedeUal UeqXiUemenWV. 

(cf. 3555 - NXWUiWion PUogUam Compliance) 

Legal RefeUence: 
EDUCATION CODE 
38080-38086.1  CafeWeUia, eVWabliVhmenW and XVe 
38090-38095  CafeWeUiaV, fXndV and accoXnWV 

170



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
              

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
           

 
            

 
               

 

38100-38103  CafeWeUiaV, allocaWion of chaUgeV 
42646  AlWeUnaWe pa\Uoll pUocedXUe 
45103.5  ConWUacWV foU managemenW conVXlWing VeUYiceV; UeVWUicWionV 
49490-49493  School bUeakfaVW and lXnch pUogUamV 
49500-49505  School mealV 
49550-49564.5  MealV foU need\ VWXdenWV, eVpeciall\: 
49550.5  UniYeUVal bUeakfaVW 
49554  ConWUacW foU VeUYiceV 
49580-49581  Food UecoYeU\ pUogUam 
FOOD AND AGRICULTURE CODE 
58595  PUefeUence foU CalifoUnia-gUoZn agUicXlWXUal pUodXcWV 
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 
113700-114437  CalifoUnia ReWail Food Code 
PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE 
2000-2002  ReVponViYe biddeUV 
20111  ConWUacWV 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
15550-15565  School lXnch and bUeakfaVW pUogUamV 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
1751-1769j  School lXnch pUogUamV 
1771-1793  Child nXWUiWion, inclXding: 
1773  School bUeakfaVW pUogUam 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 2 
200.56  IndiUecW coVWV, definiWion 
200.317-200.326  PUocXUemenW VWandaUdV 
200.400-200.475  CoVW pUincipleV 
200 Appendi[ VII  IndiUecW coVW pUopoValV 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 7 
210.1-210.33 NaWional School LXnch PUogUam 
220.1-220.22  NaWional School BUeakfaVW PUogUam 
245.8 NondiVcUiminaWion pUacWiceV foU VWXdenWV eligible foU fUee and UedXced pUice mealV and fUee 
milk 
250.1-250.70  USDA foodV 

ManagemenW ReVoXUceV: 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
CalifoUnia School AccoXnWing ManXal 
Food DiVWUibXWion PUogUam AdminiVWUaWiYe ManXal 
Paid LXnch EqXiW\ ReqXiUemenW and CalcXlaWion Tool-UpdaWed GXidance foU School YeaU 
2019-20, NSD ManagemenW BXlleWin, SNP-11-2019, Ma\ 2019 
PUofeVVional SWandaUdV in Whe SNP and NeZ HiUing Fle[ibiliW\, NSD ManagemenW BXlleWin, 
SNP-10-2019, ApUil 2019 
SenaWe Bill 250: Child HXngeU PUeYenWion and FaiU TUeaWmenW AcW of 2017 and USDA Meal 
ChaUge Polic\ ReqXiUemenWV, NSD ManagemenW BXlleWin, SNP-05-2018, JanXaU\ 2018 

171

https://250.1-250.70
https://220.1-220.22
https://210.1-210.33


           
 

            
          

 
           

 
 

              
 

 
 

              
 

            
 

 
            

 
 

             
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
  

SWoUage and InYenWoU\ ManagemenW of U.S. DepaUWmenW of AgUicXlWXUe FoodV, NSD 
ManagemenW BXlleWin, FDP-01-2018, JanXaU\ 2018 
Unpaid Meal ChaUgeV: Local Meal ChaUge PolicieV, ClaUificaWion on CollecWion of DelinqXenW 
Meal Pa\menWV, and E[ceVV SWXdenW AccoXnW BalanceV, NSD ManagemenW BXlleWin, 
SNP-03-2017, ApUil 2017 
PUocXUing and MoniWoUing of Food SeUYice ManagemenW ConWUacWV, NSD ManagemenW BXlleWin, 
SNP-13-2015, JanXaU\ 2015 
CafeWeUia FXndV--AlloZable UVeV, NSD ManagemenW BXlleWin, NSD-SNP-07-2013, Ma\ 2013 
AdXlW and Sibling MealV in Whe NaWional School LXnch and School BUeakfaVW PUogUamV, NSD 
ManagemenW BXlleWin, 00-111, JXl\ 2000 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE PUBLICATIONS 
School MealV - FAQV 
Compliance ZiWh and EnfoUcemenW of Whe BX\ AmeUican PUoYiVion in Whe NaWional School LXnch 
PUogUam, SP 38-2017, JXne 2017 
OYeUcoming Whe Unpaid Meal Challenge: PUoYen SWUaWegieV fUom OXU NaWion'V SchoolV, SP 
29-2017, Ma\ 2017 
Unpaid Meal ChaUgeV:  GXidance and Q&A, SP 23-2017, MaUch 2017 
IndiUecW CoVWV: GXidance foU SWaWe AgencieV and School Food AXWhoUiWieV SP 60-2016, 
SepWembeU 2016 
Unpaid Meal ChaUgeV:  Local Meal ChaUge PolicieV, SP 46-2016, JXl\ 2016 
DiVcUeWionaU\ EliminaWion of RedXced PUice ChaUgeV in Whe School Meal PUogUamV, SP 17-2014, 
JanXaU\ 2014 
WEB SITES 
CalifoUnia DepaUWmenW of EdXcaWion, NXWUiWion SeUYiceV DiYiVion:  hWWp://ZZZ.cde.ca.goY/lV/nX 
CalifoUnia School NXWUiWion AVVociaWion:  hWWp://ZZZ.calVna.oUg 
U.S. DepaUWmenW of AgUicXlWXUe, Food and NXWUiWion SeUYice:  hWWp://ZZZ.fnV.XVda.goY/cnd 

(3/18  7/19)  3/20 

172



 
 

  
 

              
             

             
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

               
                 

 
 

              
              

                 
             

 
 

                 
           

                
               

               
                 

                
               

 
 

             
           

 
 

 
 

                
 

 

Polic\ SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
adopWed: SanWa CUX], CalifoUnia 
FUee aQd RedXced PUice MealV BP 3553 

The CoXnW\ BoaUd Uecogni]eV WhaW adeqXaWe nXWUiWion iV eVVenWial Wo Whe deYelopmenW, healWh, and 
leaUning of all VWXdenWV. The SXpeUinWendenW oU deVignee Vhall faciliWaWe and encoXUage Whe 
paUWicipaWion of VWXdenWV fUom loZ-income familieV in Whe CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion¶V food 
VeUYice pUogUam. 

(cf. 3551 - Food SeUYice OpeUaWionV/CafeWeUia FXnd) 
(cf. 3552 - SXmmeU Meal PUogUam) 
(cf. 5030 - SWXdenW WellneVV) 
(cf. 5148 - Child CaUe and DeYelopmenW) 
(cf. 5148.2 - BefoUe/AfWeU School PUogUamV) 
(cf. 6177 - SXmmeU LeaUning PUogUamV) 

The SanWa CUX] CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion Vhall pUoYide aW leaVW one nXWUiWionall\ adeqXaWe meal 
each Vchool da\, fUee of chaUge oU aW a UedXced pUice, foU VWXdenWV ZhoVe familieV meeW fedeUal 
eligibiliW\ cUiWeUia.  (EdXcaWion Code 49550, 49552) 

To pUoYide opWimal nXWUiWion and UedXce Whe adminiVWUaWiYe bXUden of food VeUYice opeUaWionV, Whe 
SXpeUinWendenW oU deVignee Vhall aVVeVV Whe eligibiliW\ of SanWa CUX] CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion 
VchoolV Wo pUoYide bUeakfaVW and/oU lXnch fUee of chaUge Wo all VWXdenWV aW Whe Vchool XndeU a 
fedeUall\ fXnded XniYeUVal meal VeUYice pUoYiVion, VXch aV PUoYiVion 2 oU Whe CommXniW\ 
EligibiliW\ PUoYiVion, pXUVXanW Wo 42 USC 1759a. 

If an\ SanWa CUX] CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion Vchool meeWV Whe cUiWeUia foU a "YeU\ high poYeUW\ 
Vchool" WhUoXgh iWV eligibiliW\ foU Whe fedeUal CommXniW\ EligibiliW\ PUoYiVion UeimbXUVemenW 
UaWe pXUVXanW Wo 42 USC 1759a, Whe CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion Vhall appl\ Wo Whe CalifoUnia 
DepaUWmenW of EdXcaWion (CDE) Wo opeUaWe a XniYeUVal meal VeUYice, XnleVV Whe BoaUd adopWV a 
UeVolXWion VWaWing WhaW Whe CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion iV Xnable Wo compl\ ZiWh WhiV UeqXiUemenW 
dXe Wo fiVcal haUdVhip. The UeVolXWion Vhall be paUW of Whe pXblic agenda foU aW leaVW WZo 
conVecXWiYe BoaUd meeWingV, fiUVW aV an infoUmaWion iWem and When aV an acWion iWem. The BoaUd 
Vhall UeconVideU Whe UeVolXWion aW leaVW once eYeU\ foXU \eaUV. (EdXcaWion Code 49564; 42 USC 
1759a) 

The SXpeUinWendenW oU deVignee Vhall enVXUe WhaW mealV pUoYided WhUoXgh Whe fUee and 
UedXced-pUice mealV pUogUam meeW applicable VWaWe and/oU fedeUal nXWUiWional VWandaUdV in 
accoUdance ZiWh laZ, BoaUd polic\, and adminiVWUaWiYe UegXlaWion. 

(cf. 3550 - Food SeUYice/Child NXWUiWion PUogUam) 

SchoolV paUWicipaWing in Whe Special Milk PUogUam pXUVXanW Wo 42 USC 1772 Vhall pUoYide milk aW 
no chaUge Wo VWXdenWV Zho meeW fedeUal eligibiliW\ cUiWeUia foU fUee oU UedXced-pUice mealV. 

173



 
 

                 
               

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

              
                 

 
 

 
 

            
             

 
 

 
 

 
 

             
 

 
 

 
               

              
              

 
 

              
              

                 
             

 
 

              
             

The CoXnW\ BoaUd Vhall appUoYe, and Vhall VXbmiW Wo Whe CDE foU appUoYal, a plan WhaW enVXUeV 
WhaW VWXdenWV eligible Wo UeceiYe fUee oU UedXced-pUice mealV and milk aUe noW WUeaWed diffeUenWl\ 
fUom oWheU VWXdenWV.  (EdXcaWion Code 49557) 

(cf. 0410 - NondiVcUiminaWion in DiVWUicW PUogUamV and AcWiYiWieV) 
(cf. 3555 - NXWUiWion PUogUam Compliance) 
(cf. 5145.3 - NondiVcUiminaWion/HaUaVVmenW) 

ConfidenWialiW\/ReleaVe of RecoUdV 

All applicaWionV and UecoUdV UelaWed Wo eligibiliW\ foU Whe fUee and UedXced-pUice meal pUogUam 
Vhall be confidenWial and ma\ noW be UeleaVed e[cepW aV pUoYided b\ laZ and aXWhoUi]ed b\ Whe 
CoXnW\ BoaUd oU pXUVXanW Wo a coXUW oUdeU.  (EdXcaWion Code 49558) 

(cf. 5125 - SWXdenW RecoUdV) 

The CoXnW\ BoaUd aXWhoUi]eV deVignaWed emplo\eeV Wo XVe indiYidXal UecoUdV peUWaining Wo 
VWXdenW eligibiliW\ foU Whe fUee and UedXced-pUice meal pUogUam foU Whe folloZing pXUpoVeV: 
(EdXcaWion Code 49558) 

1.  DiVaggUegaWion of academic achieYemenW daWa 

(cf. 6162.51 - SWaWe Academic AchieYemenW TeVWV) 

2. IdenWificaWion of VWXdenWV eligible foU VeUYiceV XndeU Whe fedeUal ElemenWaU\ and SecondaU\ 
EdXcaWion AcW pXUVXanW Wo 20 USC 6301-6576 

(cf. 6171 - TiWle I PUogUamV) 

If a VWXdenW WUanVfeUV fUom Whe CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion Wo anoWheU diVWUicW, chaUWeU Vchool, 
coXnW\ office of edXcaWion pUogUam, oU pUiYaWe Vchool, Whe SXpeUinWendenW oU deVignee ma\ VhaUe 
Whe VWXdenW'V meal eligibiliW\ infoUmaWion Wo Whe oWheU edXcaWional agenc\ Wo aVViVW in Whe 
conWinXaWion of Whe VWXdenW'V meal benefiWV. 

The SXpeUinWendenW oU deVignee ma\ UeleaVe Whe name and eligibiliW\ VWaWXV of a VWXdenW 
paUWicipaWing in Whe fUee oU UedXced-pUice meal pUogUam Wo anoWheU Vchool diVWUicW, chaUWeU Vchool, 
oU coXnW\ office of edXcaWion WhaW iV VeUYing a VWXdenW liYing in Whe Vame hoXVehold foU pXUpoVeV 
UelaWed Wo pUogUam eligibiliW\ and daWa XVed in local conWUol fXnding foUmXla calcXlaWionV. 
(EdXcaWion Code 49558) 

The SXpeUinWendenW oU deVignee ma\ UeleaVe Whe name and eligibiliW\ VWaWXV of a VWXdenW 
paUWicipaWing in Whe fUee oU UedXced-pUice meal pUogUam Wo Whe SXpeUinWendenW of PXblic 

174



             
 

 
            

             
                  

              
             

                
             

              
              

               
              

             
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

InVWUXcWion foU pXUpoVeV of deWeUmining allocaWionV XndeU Whe local conWUol fXnding foUmXla and 
foU aVVeVVing accoXnWabiliW\ of WhaW fXnding.  (EdXcaWion Code 49558) 

The SXpeUinWendenW oU deVignee ma\ UeleaVe infoUmaWion on Whe Vchool lXnch pUogUam 
applicaWion Wo Whe local agenc\ WhaW deWeUmineV eligibiliW\ foU paUWicipaWion in Whe Medi-Cal 
pUogUam if Whe VWXdenW haV been appUoYed foU fUee mealV oU, if inclXded in Whe agUeemenW ZiWh Whe 
local agenc\, foU UedXced-pUice mealV. He/Vhe alVo ma\ UeleaVe infoUmaWion on Whe Vchool lXnch 
applicaWion Wo Whe local agenc\ WhaW deWeUmineV eligibiliW\ foU CalFUeVh oU anoWheU nXWUiWion 
aVViVWance pUogUam aXWhoUi]ed XndeU 7 CFR 210.1 if Whe VWXdenW haV been appUoYed foU fUee oU 
UedXced-pUice mealV. InfoUmaWion ma\ be UeleaVed foU WheVe pXUpoVeV onl\ if Whe VWXdenW'V 
paUenW/gXaUdian conVenWV Wo Whe VhaUing of infoUmaWion and Whe diVWUicW haV enWeUed inWo a 
memoUandXm of XndeUVWanding ZiWh Whe local agenc\ Zhich, aW a minimXm, inclXdeV Whe UoleV 
and UeVponVibiliWieV of Whe diVWUicW and local agenc\ and Whe pUoceVV foU VhaUing Whe infoUmaWion. 
AfWeU VhaUing infoUmaWion ZiWh Whe local agenc\ foU pXUpoVeV of deWeUmining eligibiliW\ foU WhaW 
pUogUam, no fXUWheU infoUmaWion Vhall be VhaUed XnleVV oWheUZiVe aXWhoUi]ed b\ laZ. (EdXcaWion 
Code 49557.2, 49557.3, 49558) 

(cf. 5141.6 - School HealWh SeUYiceV) 

Legal RefeUence: 
EDUCATION CODE 
48980  NoWice aW beginning of WeUm 
49430-49434  PXpil NXWUiWion, HealWh, and AchieYemenW AcW of 2001 
49490-49494  School bUeakfaVW and lXnch pUogUamV 
49500-49505  School mealV 
49510-49520  NXWUiWion 
49530-49536  Child NXWUiWion AcW of 1974 
49547-49548.3  CompUehenViYe nXWUiWion VeUYice 
49550-49564.5  MealV foU need\ VWXdenWV 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
15510  MandaWoU\ mealV foU need\ VWXdenWV 
15530-15535  NXWUiWion edXcaWion 
15550-15565  School lXnch and bUeakfaVW pUogUamV 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1232g  FedeUal EdXcaWional RighWV and PUiYac\ AcW 
6301-6576 ElemenWaU\ and SecondaU\ EdXcaWion AcW 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
1751-1769j  School lXnch pUogUam 
1771-1791  Child nXWUiWion, eVpeciall\: 
1773  School bUeakfaVW pUogUam 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 7 
210.1-210.31  NaWional School LXnch PUogUam 
220.10-220.21  NaWional School BUeakfaVW PUogUam 

175

https://220.10-220.21
https://210.1-210.31


 
 

 
 

            
 

 
 

          
         

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

        
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

245.1-245.13  DeWeUminaWion of eligibiliW\ foU fUee and UedXced-pUice mealV and fUee milk 

ManagemenW ReVoXUceV: 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
MoniWoUing foU SXcceVV: A GXide foU AVVeVVing and SWUengWhening SWXdenW WellneVV PolicieV, 
2012 
SWXdenW WellneVV: A HealWh\ Food and Ph\Vical AcWiYiW\ Polic\ ReVoXUce GXide, 2012 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
DiUecW CeUWificaWion ImplemenWaWion CheckliVW FUee and RedXced-PUice MealV: UniYeUVal Meal 
SeUYice, NXWUiWion SeUYiceV DiYiVion ManagemenW BXlleWin SNP-01-2018, JanXaU\ 2018U.S. 
DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE PUBLICATIONS 
EligibiliW\ ManXal foU School MealV:  DeWeUmining and VeUif\ing EligibiliW\, JXl\ 2015 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE PUBLICATIONS (conWinXed) 
PUoYiVion 2 GXidance: NaWional School LXnch and School BUeakfaVW PUogUamV, SXmmeU 2002 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: hWWp://ZZZ.cVba.oUg 
CalifoUnia DepaUWmenW of EdXcaWion, NXWUiWion SeUYiceV DiYiVion: hWWp://ZZZ.cde.ca.goY/lV/nX 
CalifoUnia Food Polic\ AdYocaWeV: hWWp://cfpa.neW 
CalifoUnia PUojecW LEAN (LeadeUV EncoXUaging AcWiYiW\ and NXWUiWion): 
hWWp://ZZZ.califoUniapUojecWlean.oUg 
U.S. DepaUWmenW of AgUicXlWXUe, Food and NXWUiWion SeUYice: hWWp://ZZZ.fnV.XVda.goY/cnd 

(3/16  7/16)  3/18 

176

https://245.1-245.13


 
 

  
 
 

             
              

              
               

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

               
            

  
 

 
 

              
             

 
 

 
 

             
 

 
                  

         
          

 
 

             
             

             
 

 
 

Polic\ SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
adopWed: SanWa CUX], CalifoUnia 
NXWUiWiRQ PURgUam CRmSliaQce BP 3555 

The SanWa CUX] CoXnW\ BoaUd of EdXcaWion Uecogni]eV Whe CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion¶V 
UeVponVibiliW\ Wo compl\ ZiWh VWaWe and fedeUal nondiVcUiminaWion laZV aV Whe\ appl\ Wo Whe 
CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion¶V nXWUiWion pUogUamV. The CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion Vhall noW den\ 
an\ indiYidXal Whe benefiWV oU VeUYice of an\ nXWUiWion pUogUam oU diVcUiminaWe on an\ baViV 
pUohibiWed b\ laZ. 

(cf. 0410 - NondiVcUiminaWion in DiVWUicW PUogUamV and AcWiYiWieV) 
(cf. 3550 - Food SeUYice/Child NXWUiWion PUogUam) 
(cf. 3552 - SXmmeU Meal PUogUam) 
(cf. 3553 - FUee and RedXced PUice MealV) 
(cf. 5030 - SWXdenW WellneVV) 

Compliance CooUdinaWoU 

The BoaUd Vhall deVignaWe a compliance cooUdinaWoU foU nXWUiWion pUogUamV, Zho ma\ alVo be Whe 
compliance officeU(V) Vpecified in AR 1312.3 - UnifoUm ComplainW PUocedXUeV, Wo enVXUe 
compliance ZiWh Whe laZV goYeUning Whe CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion¶V nXWUiWion pUogUamV. 

The UeVponVibiliWieV of Whe compliance cooUdinaWoU inclXde, bXW aUe noW limiWed Wo: 

1.PUoYiding Whe name of Whe compliance cooUdinaWoU, and Whe SecWion 504 cooUdinaWoU and TiWle 
IX cooUdinaWoU if diffeUenW fUom Whe compliance cooUdinaWoU, Wo Whe CalifoUnia DepaUWmenW of 
EdXcaWion (CDE) and oWheU inWeUeVWed paUWieV 

(cf. 6164.6 - IdenWificaWion and EdXcaWion UndeU SecWion 504) 

2. AnnXall\ pUoYiding mandaWoU\ ciYil UighWV WUaining Wo all fUonWline VWaff Zho inWeUacW ZiWh 
pUogUam applicanWV oU paUWicipanWV and Wo WhoVe Zho VXpeUYiVe fUonWline VWaff 

The VXbjecW maWWeU of VXch WUaining Vhall inclXde, bXW noW be limiWed Wo, collecWion and XVe of daWa, 
effecWiYe pXblic noWificaWion V\VWemV, complainW pUocedXUeV, compliance UeYieZ WechniqXeV, 
UeVolXWion of noncompliance, UeqXiUemenWV foU UeaVonable accommodaWion of peUVonV ZiWh 
diVabiliWieV, UeqXiUemenWV foU langXage aVViVWance, conflicW UeVolXWion, and cXVWomeU VeUYice. 

3.EVWabliVhing admiVVion and enUollmenW pUocedXUeV WhaW do noW UeVWUicW enUollmenW of VWXdenWV on 
Whe baViV of Uace, eWhniciW\, naWional oUigin, oU diVabiliW\, inclXding pUeYenWing VWaff fUom 
incoUUecWl\ den\ing applicaWionV and enVXUing WhaW VXch peUVonV haYe eqXal acceVV Wo all 
pUogUamV 

(cf. 6159 - IndiYidXali]ed EdXcaWion PUogUam) 

177



 
             

              
 

 
         

 
 

            
 

 
                 

              
 

 
              

 
 

 
 

           
           

               
 

 
           

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

            
                 

              
 

 
            

             
               

                 
 

 

4. Sending a pXblic UeleaVe annoXncing Whe aYailabiliW\ of Whe child nXWUiWion pUogUamV and/oU 
changeV in Whe pUogUamV Wo pXblic media and Wo commXniW\ and gUaVVUooWV oUgani]aWionV WhaW 
inWeUacW diUecWl\ ZiWh eligible oU poWenWiall\ eligible paUWicipanWV 

5.CommXnicaWing Whe pUogUam'V nondiVcUiminaWion polic\ and applicable complainW pUocedXUeV, 
aV pUoYided in Whe VecWion "NoWificaWionV" beloZ 

6. PUoYiding appUopUiaWe WUanVlaWion VeUYiceV Zhen a VignificanW nXmbeU of peUVonV in Whe 
VXUUoXnding popXlaWion haYe limiWed EngliVh pUoficienc\ 

7.EnVXUing WhaW eYeU\ paUW of a faciliW\ iV acceVVible Wo and XVable b\ peUVonV ZiWh diVabiliWieV and 
WhaW paUWicipanWV ZiWh diVabiliWieV aUe noW e[clXded fUom Whe benefiWV oU VeUYiceV dXe Wo 
inacceVVibiliW\ of faciliWieV 

8. EnVXUing WhaW Vpecial mealV aUe made aYailable Wo paUWicipanWV ZiWh diVabiliWieV Zho haYe a 
medical VWaWemenW on file docXmenWing WhaW WheiU diVabiliW\ UeVWUicWV WheiU dieW 

(cf. 5141.27 - Food AlleUgieV/Special DieWaU\ NeedV) 

9.ImplemenWing pUocedXUeV Wo pUoceVV and UeVolYe ciYil UighWV (diVcUiminaWion) complainWV and 
pUogUam-UelaWed complainWV, inclXding mainWaining a complainW log, ZoUking ZiWh Whe appUopUiaWe 
peUVon Wo UeVolYe an\ complainW, and UefeUUing Whe complainanW Wo Whe appUopUiaWe VWaWe oU fedeUal 
agenc\ Zhen neceVVaU\ 

10.DeYeloping a meWhod, Zhich pUefeUabl\ XVeV Velf-idenWificaWion oU Velf-UepoUWing, Wo collecW 
Uacial and eWhnic daWa foU poWenWiall\ eligible popXlaWionV, applicanWV, and paUWicipanWV 

(cf. 5022 - SWXdenWV and Famil\ PUiYac\ RighWV) 
(cf. 5125 - SWXdenW RecoUdV) 
(cf. 5145.13 - ReVponVe Wo ImmigUaWion EnfoUcemenW) 

NoWificaWionV 

The compliance cooUdinaWoU Vhall enVXUe WhaW Whe U.S. DepaUWmenW of AgUicXlWXUe'V (USDA) 
"And JXVWice foU All" ciYil UighWV poVWeU oU a VXbVWiWXWe poVWeU appUoYed b\ Whe USDA'V Food and 
NXWUiWion SeUYice iV diVpla\ed in aUeaV YiVible Wo Whe CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion¶V nXWUiWion 
pUogUam paUWicipanWV, VXch aV food VeUYice aUeaV and Vchool officeV 

The compliance cooUdinaWoU Vhall noWif\ Whe pXblic, all pUogUam applicanWV, paUWicipanWV, and 
poWenWiall\ eligible peUVonV of WheiU UighWV and UeVponVibiliWieV and VWepV neceVVaU\ Wo paUWicipaWe 
in Whe nXWUiWion pUogUamV. ApplicanWV, paUWicipanWV, and Whe pXblic alVo Vhall be adYiVed of WheiU 
UighW Wo file a complainW, hoZ Wo file a complainW, Whe complainW pUocedXUeV, and WhaW a complainW 
ma\ be file anon\moXVl\ oU b\ a WhiUd paUW\. 

178



 
 

              
             

              
               

 
 

            
              

               
              

                 
 

 
               

 
 

 
 

             
                 

 
 

             
          

              
 

 
               

 
 

 
 

 
 

              
             

                 
 

 
            

 
 

(cf. 5145.6 - PaUenWal NoWificaWionV 

In addiWion, Whe compliance cooUdinaWoU Vhall enVXUe WhaW all foUmV of commXnicaWion aYailable Wo 
Whe pXblic UegaUding pUogUam aYailabiliW\ Vhall conWain, in a pUominenW locaWion, a VWaWemenW 
pUoYided b\ USDA aboXW Whe CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion¶V VWaWXV aV an eqXal oppoUWXniW\ 
pUoYideU and Whe addUeVV of Whe agenc\ ZiWh UeVponVibiliW\ Wo handle complainWV made againVW Whe 
CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion. 

FoUmV of commXnicaWion UeqXiUing WhiV nondiVcUiminaWion VWaWemenW inclXde, bXW aUe noW limiWed 
Wo, Zeb ViWeV, pXblic infoUmaWion UeleaVeV, pXblicaWionV, and poVWeUV, bXW e[clXde iWemV VXch aV 
cXpV, bXWWonV, magneWV, and penV WhaW idenWif\ Whe pUogUam Zhen Whe Vi]e oU configXUaWion makeV 
iW impUacWical. The nondiVcUiminaWion VWaWemenW need noW be inclXded on eYeU\ page of pUogUam 
infoUmaWion on Whe CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion¶V oU Vchool'V Zeb ViWe, bXW Whe VWaWemenW oU a link 
Wo Whe VWaWemenW Vhall be inclXded on Whe home page of Whe pUogUam infoUmaWion. 

A VhoUW YeUVion of Whe nondiVcUiminaWion VWaWemenW, aV pUoYided b\ USDA, ma\ be XVed on 
pamphleWV, bUochXUeV, and fl\eUV in Whe Vame pUinW Vi]e aV Whe UeVW of Whe We[W. 

ComplainWV of DiVcUiminaWion 

A complainW alleging diVcUiminaWion in Whe CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion¶V nXWUiWion pUogUam(V) on 
Whe baViV of Uace, coloU, naWional oUigin, Ve[, age, oU diVabiliW\ Vhall, ZiWhin 180 da\V of Whe 
alleged diVcUiminaWoU\ acW, be filed oU UefeUUed Wo USDA aW:  (5 CCR 15582) 

U.S. DepaUWmenW of AgUicXlWXUe, Office of Whe AVViVWanW SecUeWaU\ foU CiYil RighWV, 1400 
Independence AYenXe, SW, WaVhingWon, D.C. 20250-9410, (866) 632-9992, (800) 877-8339 
(FedeUal Rela\ SeUYice - EngliVh, deaf, haUd of heaUing, oU Vpeech diVabiliWieV), (800) 845-6136 
(FedeUal Rela\ SeUYice - SpaniVh), fa[ (202) 690-7442, oU email pUogUam.inWake.XVda.goY 

ComplainWV of diVcUiminaWion on an\ oWheU baViV Vhall be inYeVWigaWed b\ Whe CoXnW\ Office of 
EdXcaWion XVing Whe pUoceVV idenWified in AR 1312.3 - UnifoUm ComplainW PUocedXUeV. 

(cf. 1312.3 - UnifoUm ComplainW PUocedXUeV) 

ComplainWV RegaUding Noncompliance ZiWh PUogUam ReqXiUemenWV 

An\ complainW alleging WhaW Whe CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion haV noW complied ZiWh pUogUam 
UeqXiUemenWV peUWaining Wo meal coXnWing and claiming, UeimbXUVable mealV, eligibiliW\ of a child 
oU adXlW, XVe of cafeWeUia fXndV and alloZable e[penVeV Vhall be filed ZiWh oU UefeUUed Wo CDE. 
(EdXcaWion Code 49556; 5 CCR 15584) 

ComplainWV of noncompliance ZiWh an\ oWheU nXWUiWion pUogUam UeqXiUemenWV Vhall be VXbmiWWed 
Wo and inYeVWigaWed b\ Whe CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion XVing Whe folloZing pUocedXUeV. 

179



                
                 

 
                  

 
 

 
 

                 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

                
 

 
             

               
                

 
 

 
 

                
                
                

 
 

                 
                

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

ComplainWV ma\ be filed b\ a VWXdenW oU Whe VWXdenW'V paUenW/gXaUdian b\ phone, email, oU leWWeU. 
The complainW Vhall be VXbmiWWed ZiWhin one \eaU fUom Whe daWe of Whe alleged YiolaWion and Vhall 
inclXde Whe folloZing:  (5 CCR 15581) 
1. A VWaWemenW WhaW Whe CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion haV YiolaWed a laZ oU UegXlaWion UelaWing Wo iWV 
child nXWUiWion pUogUam 

2. The facWV on Zhich Whe VWaWemenW iV baVed 

3. The name of Whe CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion oU Whe Vchool againVW Zhich Whe allegaWionV aUe 
made 

4. The complainanW'V conWacW infoUmaWion 

5. The name of Whe VWXdenW if alleging YiolaWionV UegaUding a Vpecific VWXdenW 

The CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion Vhall inYeVWigaWe and pUepaUe a ZUiWWen UepoUW pXUVXanW Wo 5 CCR 
4631.  (5 CCR 15583) 

UnleVV e[Wended b\ ZUiWWen agUeemenW ZiWh Whe complainanW, Whe CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion¶V 
compliance cooUdinaWoU Vhall inYeVWigaWe Whe complainW and pUepaUe a ZUiWWen UepoUW Wo be VenW Wo 
Whe complainanW ZiWhin 60 da\V of Whe CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion¶V UeceipW of Whe complainW. (5 
CCR 15583; 5 CCR 4631) 

(cf. 9321 - CloVed SeVVion) 

If Whe BoaUd conVideUV Whe complainW, Whe BoaUd'V deciVion Vhall be VenW Wo Whe complainanW ZiWhin 
60 calendaU da\V of Whe CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion¶V iniWial UeceipW of Whe complainW oU ZiWhin 
Whe Wime peUiod WhaW haV been Vpecified in a ZUiWWen agUeemenW ZiWh Whe complainanW. (5 CCR 
4631) 

If Whe complainanW iV noW VaWiVfied ZiWh Whe findingV in Whe CoXnW\ Office of EdXcaWion UepoUW, Whe 
complainanW ma\ appeal Whe deciVion Wo CDE b\ filing a ZUiWWen appeal ZiWhin 30 da\V of 
UeceiYing Whe deciVion.  (5 CCR 4632) 

Legal RefeUence: 
EDUCATION CODE 
200-262.4  PUohibiWion of diVcUiminaWion 
42238.01  DefiniWionV foU pXUpoVeV of fXnding 
48985  NoWiceV Wo paUenWV in langXage oWheU Whan EngliVh 
49060-49079  SWXdenW UecoUdV 
49490-49590  Child nXWUiWion pUogUamV 
PENAL CODE 
422.6  InWeUfeUence ZiWh conVWiWXWional UighW oU pUiYilege 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 

180

https://42238.01


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
            
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

             
 

        
 

            
 

 
 

3080  ApplicaWion of VecWion 
4600-4670  UnifoUm complainW pUocedXUeV 
4900-4965  NondiVcUiminaWion in elemenWaU\ and VecondaU\ edXcaWion pUogUamV 
15580-15584  Child nXWUiWion pUogUamV complainW pUocedXUeV 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1400-1482  IndiYidXalV ZiWh DiVabiliWieV EdXcaWion AcW 
1681-1688  DiVcUiminaWion baVed on Ve[ oU blindneVV, TiWle IX 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 
794  SecWion 504 of Whe RehabiliWaWion AcW of 1973 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
2000d-2000d-7  TiWle VI, CiYil RighWV AcW of 1964 
2000e-2000e-17  TiWle VII, CiYil RighWV AcW of 1964 aV amended 
12101-12213  AmeUicanV ZiWh DiVabiliWieV AcW 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 7 
210.19  NaWional School LXnch PUogUam, addiWional UeVponVibiliWieV 
210.23  NaWional School LXnch PUogUam, diVWUicW UeVponVibiliWieV 
215.7  Special Milk PUogUam, UeqXiUemenWV foU paUWicipaWion 
215.14  Special Milk PUogUam, nondiVcUiminaWion 
220.7  School BUeakfaVW PUogUam, UeqXiUemenWV foU paUWicipaWion 
220.13  School BUeakfaVW PUogUam, Vpecial UeVponVibiliWieV of VWaWe agencieV 
225.3  SXmmeU Food SeUYice PUogUam, adminiVWUaWion 
225.7  SXmmeU Food SeUYice PUogUam, pUogUam moniWoUing and aVViVWance 
225.11  SXmmeU Food SeUYice PUogUam, coUUecWiYe acWion pUocedXUeV 
226.6  Child and AdXlW CaUe Food PUogUam, VWaWe agenc\ adminiVWUaWiYe UeVponVibiliWieV 
250.15  OXW-of-condiWion donaWed foodV, food UecallV, and complainWV 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 
35.101-35.190  AmeUicanV ZiWh DiVabiliWieV AcW 
36.303 NondiVcUiminaWion on Whe baViV of diVabiliW\, pXblic accommodaWionV, aX[iliaU\ aidV and 
VeUYiceV 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
100.1-100.13  NondiVcUiminaWion in fedeUal pUogUamV, effecWXaWing TiWle VI 
104.1-104.39  SecWion 504 of Whe RehabiliWaWion AcW of 1973 
106.1-106.61  DiVcUiminaWion on Whe baViV of Ve[, effecWXaWing TiWle IX, eVpeciall\: 
106.9  DiVVeminaWion of polic\ 

ManagemenW ReVoXUceV: 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
CiYil RighWV and ComplainW PUocedXUeV foU Whe U.S. DepaUWmenW of AgUicXlWXUe Child NXWUiWion 
PUogUamV, JXne 2018 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, FOOD AND NUTRITION SERVICE 
PUBLICATIONS 
CiYil RighWV Compliance and EnfoUcemenW - NXWUiWion PUogUamV and AcWiYiWieV, FNS InVWUXcWion 
113-1, NoYembeU 2005 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 
NoWice of Non-DiVcUiminaWion, AXgXVW 2010 

181

https://106.1-106.61
https://104.1-104.39
https://100.1-100.13


 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

WEB SITES 
CalifoUnia DepaUWmenW of EdXcaWion, NXWUiWion SeUYiceV DiYiVion:  hWWp://ZZZ.cde.ca.goY/lV/nX 
U.S. DepaUWmenW of AgUicXlWXUe, Food and NXWUiWion SeUYiceV:  hWWp://ZZZ.fnV.XVda.goY 
U.S. DepaUWmenW of AgUicXlWXUe, Office foU CiYil RighWV:  hWWp://ZZZ.aVcU.XVda.goY 
U.S. DepaUWmenW of EdXcaWion, Office foU CiYil RighWV:  hWWp://ZZZ2.ed.goY/ocU 

(7/10  7/16)  7/2 

182



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

AGENDA ITEM 

 
      

  
  

 
 

             

 
​      

 
​      

 
​      

 
 

 
 

 
          

            
     

 
      

 
    

 
   

 
  

  ​     ​   

BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: SHSW. 17, 2020 AcWLRQ 

TO: SaQWa CUX] CRXQW\ BRaUd Rf EdXcaWiRQ 

FROM: TUXVWee FiliceWWi, BRaUd MePbeU 

SUBJECT: CalifRUQia CRXQW\ BRaUdV Rf EdXcaWiRQ (CCBE) ReSRUW 

X IQIRUPaWLRQ 

BACKGROUND 

TUXVWee FiliceWWi, CalifRUQia SchRRl BRaUdV AVVRciaWiRQ RegiRQ 9 DelegaWe, Zill SURYide 
Whe BRaUd ZiWh aQ XSdaWe ZiWh iQfRUPaWiRQ aQd QeZ XSdaWeV SeUWaiQiQg WR CSBA aQd 
CalifRUQia CRXQW\ BRaUdV Rf EdXcaWiRQ (CCBE). 

SUPERINTENDENT¶S RECOMMENDATION FOR BOARD ACTION: 

ReceiYe Whe UeSRUW. 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: 

NRQe. 

BRaUG MHHWLQJ DaWH: SeSW. 20, 2020 AJHQGa IWHP: #11.1 
183




